
DISH
WASH

DRY STORAGE

COOK
LINE

UTILITY

ICE

J.S.

SERVICE
ENTRY

DUNNAGE

FREEZER

COOLER

OFFICE WOMEN'S
RESTROOM

BEER
COOLER

PREP

MEN'S
RESTROOMALCOVE UP

DN

WINE ROOM

UP
UP

ELEVATOR

BAR -10

DINING - 22

DINING - 22 SEASONAL
DINING - 38BAR DINING - 10

WINTER
GARDEN

- 26

HOST

SERVICE

EMPLOYEE
RESTROOM

UP

SHARED HALLWAY

SE
RV

IC
E

ELEVATOR

ADJACENT
TENANT

UP

DN

ADJACENT
TENANT

LOWER LEVEL FLOOR PLAN
scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

1
NORTH

FLOOR PLANS

A-1

TH
E 

VI
NE

W
OO

D
NE

W
 B

IS
TR

O 
IN

 A
N 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 S
PA

CE
72

0 N
. O

LD
 W

OO
DW

AR
D 

AV
E.

, B
IR

MI
NG

HA
M,

 M
I  4

80
09

Issue Date:

Sheet Title:

Project:

BISTRO SLUP 2/3/21

REVISION 4/6/21

Sheet Number:

Seal:

a r
 c 

h i
 t e

 c 
t s

   e
 t  

 a 
l.

RO
N
A
N
D
RO
M
A
N

o)
 24

8.7
23

.57
90

27
5 E

. F
ra

nk
 S

t.  
Bi

rm
ing

ha
m 

MI
  4

80
09

WELDED WIRE MESH GUARD ON TOP
OF KNEE WALL

BOSTON IVY IN PLANTING POCKET TO
GROW ONTO WALLS

WOOD FRAMED KNEE WALLS WITH PAINTED
STEEL PLATE CAP

NEW WOOD FRAMED RAMP AT 1:12 PITCH
WITH PAINTED STEEL TUBE HANDRAILS

NEW WOOD PLANK DECKING ON NEW
WOOD FRAMED DECK CONSTRUCTION,
CONTINUING INTO WINTERGARDEN

EXISTING CONCRETE
SIDEWALK TO REMAIN

NEW MAKEUP AIR UNIT
FOR BISTRO

NEW EXHAUST FAN
FOR BISTRO

ENCLOSED SHAFT FOR NEW
DUCTWORK FROM
LOWER LEVEL UP TO
ROOF

NEW MECHANICAL
SCREEN AROUND
ALL NEW & EXISTING
ROOFTOP UNITS,
PREFABRICATED
CORRUGATED PAINTED
METAL

MAIN LEVEL & SITE PLAN
scale: 3/32" = 1'-0"

2
NORTH

ROOF PLAN
scale: 3/32"" = 1'-0"

3
NORTH

NEW RECESSED WINTER
GARDEN AT LOWER

LEVEL WITH NEW EXTERIOR
STOREFRONT GLAZING

EXISTING CONCRETE
WALK TO ADJACENT
BUSINESSES

NEW WOOD FRAMED RAISED
PATIO DECK, WITH NEW STAIR & RAMP

SEATING CAPACITY

INTERIOR
BAR 10
BAR DINING 10
DINING 44
TOTAL INTERIOR 64

EXTERIOR
WINTER GARDEN 26
PATIO 38
TOTAL EXTERIOR 64

PATIO/WINTER GARDEN LIGHTING
scale: 1/8" = 1'-0"

4
NORTH

SIGN LIGHTS ON CMU
PATIO WALL

LINEAR WALL-WASHING
UP LIGHT TO ILLUMINATE
LOWER PORTION OF
DECORATIVE WALL PANEL

LINEAR ELECTRIC INFRARED
HEATERS MOUNTED TO

UNDERSIDE OF METAL BALCONY
& UNDER BUILDING OVERHANG

(10 TOTAL)
NO DUCTED HVAC DIFFUSERS

IN WINTERGARDEN

GAS TORCHES
(6 TOTAL)

PAINTED PIERCED METAL DECORATIVE
WALL PANEL MOUNTED BETWEEN
PAINTED STEEL H BEAMS

SIGN ON NEW WOOD FRAMED PATIO
WALL

NEW WOOD STEPS UP TO
NEW PATIO, 7" RISERS & 12" TREADS

NEW ALUMINUM PLATE
AWNING ABOVE

THREE SETTEES WITH WOOD SEATS
& BOLSTER CUSHION BACKS FASTENED
TO WIRE MESH GUARD

EXIT DOOR FROM TENANT
SPACE ABOVE

NEW EXTERIOR WALL - BUTT GLAZED GLASS
IN ALUMINUM TOP & BOTTOM CHANNEL
WITH THREE FRAMELESS GLASS DOORS

FIXED WOOD FRAMED SCREEN PANELS
IN FOUR EXISTING WALL OPENINGS WITH
TWO OPERABLE SCREEN DOORS

THREE CANVAS UMBRELLAS

EXISTING CMU DOGHOUSE
CONSTRUCTION TO REMAIN

EXISTING ROOF PARAPET
WALL

EXISTING UTILITY POLE
WITH OVERHEAD LIGHT

EXISTING WOODED
AREA & ROUGE

RIVER

EXISTING CONCRETE
SIDWALK

EXISTING ADJACENT
TENANT STOREFRONT

NEW AWNING
& FRONT ENTRY

REWORK

EXISTING SHARED HALLWAY
& ELEVATOR/STAIR ACCESS

TO LOWER LEVEL

EXISTING SLOPED
GRADE TO REMAIN

9'-6" 15'-0"

48
'-4

"
5'-

8"

5'-0"10'-0"4'-0"

42
'-8

"

8'-6"

45
'-9

"

5'-
0"

5'-0"

NEW ALUMINUM
PLATE AWNING

5'-
0"

EXISTING PARKING
SPACES

EXISTING ANGLED
PARKING SPACES

NEW EXTERIOR ENCLOSED
SHAFT FOR NEW DUCTWORK

PAINTED GYPSUM BOARD
CEILING IN NEW WINTER

GARDEN

NEW PAINTED ALUMINUM
PLATE AWNING

LOCATION MAP
N.T.S.

NORTH

PROJECT
LOCATION

PROJECT INFORMATION:

ZONING O-2, D-2 OVERLAY
CURRENT USE GROUP B, BUSINESS
PROPOSED USE GROUP A-2, RESTAURANT

PROJECT AREAS:
INTERIOR LOWER LEVEL = 3,372 SF
WINTER GARDEN = 435 SF
NEW EXTERIOR PATIO = 1,238 SFEXTENT OF BAR AREA

UMBRELLAS WITH MINI
LED SPOT LIGHTS UNDER
CANOPY

EXISTING METAL
BALCONY

4'-0"

7'-10"

5'-
0"

4'-
0"

3'-0"

SIX GAS TORCHES AT PERIMETER OF PATIO

WALL MOUNTED OSCILLATING
FANS

SURFACE MOUNTED
DOWNLIGHTS ON UNDERSIDE

OF BALCONY

SEE SHEET A-3 FOR
EXTERIOR MODIFICATIONS
TO BUILDING ALONG
N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

O-2 ZONING DISTRICT
(D-2 OVERLAY)

O-2 ZONING DISTRICT

O-2 ZONING DISTRICT

R-
6 Z

ON
IN

G 
DI

ST
RI

CT
ON

 O
TH

ER
 S

ID
E 

OF
N.

 O
LD

 W
OO

DW
AR

D 
AV

E.
PP ZONING DISTRICT
(P OVERLAY)

RECESSED DOWNLIGHTS
(6 TOTAL)

BALCONY BELOW

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED
BACK LIT PANEL ON

UNDERSIDE OF AWNING

21'-0"

10
'-0

"

14
'-1

0"

TWO EXISTING DUMPSTERS
AT 30 DEGREE ANGLE

NEW GREASE TRAP

TYPICAL
6" STEEL
BOLLARDS

HINGED PAINTED
WOOD DOORS

NEW 6' HIGH PAINTED CONCRETE
MASONRY SCREEN WALL ON THREE
SIDES, WITH PRECAST STONE
CAP ON REINFORCED CONCRETE
FOUNDATION

EXISTING
CURB

120°

TYPICAL 16" WIDE CUSTOM BUILT WOOD
CLAD PLANTERS, 18" TALL, WITH SEASONAL
"NATURAL RIVER PLANTINGS"



THE VINEWOOD

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

A-2

Issue Date:

Sheet Title:

Project:

BISTRO SLUP 2/3/21

REVISION 4/6/21

Sheet Number:

Seal:

a r
 c 

h i
 t e

 c 
t s

   e
 t  

 a 
l.

RO
N
A
N
D
RO
M
A
N

o)
 24

8.7
23

.57
90

27
5 E

. F
ra

nk
 S

t.  
Bi

rm
ing

ha
m 

MI
  4

80
09

REAR ELEVATION (FACING ROUGE RIVER)

scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"
1

NEW WINTER GARDEN EXTERIOR WALL ELEVATION
scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

2

SECTION THRU NEW PATIO & WINTER GARDEN
scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

4

scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"
3

WOOD FRAMED WALLS WITH
PAINTED STEEL PLATE CAP

LINE OF RAISED
PATIO BEYOND

7'-
0"

3'-0" 3'-0"
TYPICAL

8'-
3"

SIDE ELEVATION

WELDED WIRE MESH GUARD
ON TOP OF WALLS AT PATIO

PAINTED PIERCED METAL DECORATIVE
WALL PANEL WITH COPPER INSERTS
MOUNTED BETWEEN PAINTED STEEL
H BEAMS
PAINTED METAL EXIT DOOR FROM
TENANT SPACE ABOVE

NEW EXTERIOR WALL - BUTT GLAZED GLASS
IN ALUMINUM TOP & BOTTOM CHANNEL
WITH THREE FRAMELESS GLASS DOORS

FIXED STAINED WOOD FRAMED BRONZE
SCREEN PANELS IN FOUR EXISTING WALL
OPENINGS WITH TWO OPERABLE SCREEN
DOORS

CANVAS UMBRELLAS

PAINTED STEEL TUBE
HANDRAILS

ALUMINUM PLATE
AWNING, PAINTED

NEW STAINED WOOD
 & GLASS DOOR,

TRANSOM & SIDE LITE

EXISTING BRICK TO REMAIN

EXISTING PAINTED METAL
BALCONY & GUARD TO REMAIN

EXISTING WINDOWS & DOORS
AT UPPER FLOORS, TYPICAL

NEW ROOF SCREEN AROUND
NEW & EXISTING MECHANICAL
UNITS, PREFABRICATED PAINTED
CORRUGATED METAL

BOSTON IVY GROWING
ONTO WALLS

3'-
6"

 A
BO

VE
GR

AD
E

1'-
6"

2'-
0"

GAS TORCHES

INTERIOR FINISHED FLOOR
ELEVATION, NEW RAISED PATIO

LEVEL TO MATCH

NEW DUCTWORK ABOVE CEILING, RUNNING
FROM KITCHEN TO REAR EXTERIOR WALL

45'-9"

3'-
6"

7'-
4"

 E
XI

ST
. O

PE
NI

NG
S

10
'-6

"

PAINTED PIERCED ALUMINUM DECORATIVE
WALL PANEL WITH COPPER INSERTS BEYOND,
MOUNTED BETWEEN PAINTED STEEL H BEAMS

GAS TORCHES

WOOD FRAMED WALLS WITH
PAINTED STEEL PLATE CAP

PAINTED STEEL HANDRAILS

WOOD FRAMED RAMPSIGN LETTERS & LIGHTS
MOUNTED TO WALL - SEE
SIGN DETAIL SHEET A-3

WELDED WIRE MESH GUARD,
PAINTED

WOOD FRAMED STEPS

EXISTING BUILDING
OVERHANG

4"
 C

UR
B

AT
 R

AM
PSETTEES WITH WOOD SEATS

& FABRIC CUSHION BACKS
FASTENED TO WIRE MESH

WOOD FRAMED RAMP

GAS TORCHES

PAINTED STEEL HANDRAILS

WELDED WIRE MESH GUARD,
PAINTED
BOSTON IVY GROWING ONTO
WALLS

FIXED SCREENS &
OPERABLE SCREEN
DOORS IN EXISTING

OPENINGS

8'-
0"

BUTT GLAZED GLASS
IN ALUMINUM TOP &
BOTTOM CHANNEL
WITH FRAMELESS
GLASS DOORS

8'-6" 8'-10" 8'-8"12" 5'-0"

EXISTING REAR EXTERIOR
WALL

NEW ENCLOSED SHAFT
FOR NEW DUCTWORK
FROM KITCHEN UP REAR
WALL ONTO ROOF

4'-0"

EXISTING METAL BALCONIES

8'-
3"

UMBRELLAS WITH
MINI DOWNLIGHTS

WOOD FRAMED
PATIO DECK

NEW ENCLOSED SHAFT FOR NEW
DUCTWORK FROM KITCHEN UP REAR
WALL ONTO ROOF, CLAD IN COPPER

NEW MECHANICAL
ROOF SCREEN

TH
E 

VI
NE

W
OO

D
NE

W
 B

IS
TR

O 
IN

 A
N 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 S
PA

CE
72

0 N
. O

LD
 W

OO
DW

AR
D 

AV
E.

, B
IR

MI
NG

HA
M,

 M
I  4

80
09

VINCA VINE IN PLANTERS AT EDGE
OF BALCONY, VINES HANGING DOWN
AND TRIMMED EVENLY

VINCA VINE IN PLANTERS
ALONG EDGE OF BALCONY

NEW SHAFT

OSCILLATING WALL
MOUNTED FANS

DOWNLIGHTS

HEATERS

3'-0"

7'-
0"

SIGN LIGHTS & SIGN
LETTERS ON SIDE WALL

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED
BACK LIT PANEL ON

UNDERSIDE OF PAINTED
ALUMINUM AWNING

10
'-0

"
5'-

0"

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED
BACK LIT PANEL ON

UNDERSIDE OF AWNING

NEW & EXISTING
ROOFTOP MECHANICAL
UNITS

8'-0"

ELECTRIC INFRARED HEATERS ON CEILING IN
WINTERGARDEN, NO DUCTED HVAC DIFFUSERS

ELECTRIC INFRARED HEATERS
ON CEILING IN WINTERGARDEN,

NO DUCTED HVAC DIFFUSERS

6"

6"

5'-0"

6'-
0"

6'-
0"

GAP AT BOTTOM OF HORIZONTAL
WOOD PLANK CLADDING ON

PERIMETER DECK WALLS

GAP AT BOTTOM OF HORIZONTAL
WOOD PLANK CLADDING ON

PERIMETER DECK WALLS

CONCRETE PIER FOUNDATIONS
FOR NEW DECK CONSTRUCTION WOOD POSTS ON CONCRETE PIER

FOUNDATIONS FOR NEW DECK
CONSTRUCTION



KOHLER
THE VINEWOOD

THE VINEWOOD

THE VINEWOOD

EXTERIOR
ELEVATIONS

A-3

Issue Date:

Sheet Title:

Project:

BISTRO SLUP 2/3/21

REVISION 4/6/21

Sheet Number:

Seal:

a r
 c 

h i
 t e

 c 
t s

   e
 t  

 a 
l.

RO
N
A
N
D
RO
M
A
N

o)
 24

8.7
23

.57
90

27
5 E

. F
ra

nk
 S

t.  
Bi

rm
ing

ha
m 

MI
  4

80
09

TH
E 

VI
NE

W
OO

D
NE

W
 B

IS
TR

O 
IN

 A
N 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 S
PA

CE
72

0 N
. O

LD
 W

OO
DW

AR
D 

AV
E.

, B
IR

MI
NG

HA
M,

 M
I  4

80
09

FRONT ELEVATION (FACING N.OLD WOODWARD AVE.)

scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"
1 SECTION THRU ENTRY

scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"
2

FRONT ENTRY PLAN
scale: 1/4" = 1'-0"

3

ADJACENT TENANT
ENTRY

ADJACENT TENANT (CURRENTLY KOHLER SHOWROOM)

60'-0" BUILDING STOREFRONT

EX
IS

TI
NG

RE
CE

SS
ED

EN
TR

Y
4'-

0"
 A

W
NI

NG

6'-
4"

 T
O 

ED
GE

 O
F 

CU
RB

5'-6" AWNING

EXISTING BRICK TO REMAIN

NEW THREE TAB NON-DIMENSIONAL
BLACK SHINGLE ROOFING TO
REPLACE EXISTING

PAINT CMU RETURN SIDE WALLS AT
ENDS OF BUILDING

PAINT CMU RETURN SIDE WALLS
AT ENDS OF BUILDING

PAINT EXISTING CMU DOGHOUSE
CONSTRUCTION

NEW ROOF SCREEN AROUND
NEW & EXISTING MECHANICAL
UNITS, PREFABRICATED PAINTED
CORRUGATED METAL

PAINT EXISTING WOOD TRIM

PAINT EXISTING WOOD
WINDOW FRAMES

PAINT EXISTING WOOD TRIM

EXISTING ALUMINUM SASH
& GLASS STOREFRONT

TO REMAIN

EXISTING ALUMINUM
SASH & GLASS DOOR

TO REMAIN

SLOPED CONCRETE
SIDEWALK

REMOVE ALL EXISTING WOOD
TRIM AT RECESSED ENTRY,
NEW STAINED WOOD CLADDING
EXTENDING OUT BEYOND BRICK
FACADE

NEW PAINTED ALUMINUM FOLDED
PLATE AWNING

EXISTING RAISED CONCRETE
ENTRY SLAB

NEW STAINED WOOD
& GLASS DOOR WITH
CUSTOM BRONZE "VINE"
DOOR PULL

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED
UNDERSIDE OF AWNING
CONTINUING INTO RECESSED
ENTRY

NEW PAINTED ALUMINUM FOLDED
PLATE AWNING ABOVE

INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED LIGHT
PANEL ON UNDERSIDE OF AWNING
& AT CEILING OF RECESSED ENTRY

REPLACE EXISTING 3'-0"x7'-0"
DOOR & FRAME

EX
IS

TI
NG

RE
CE

SS
ED

EN
TR

Y

EX
IS

TI
NG

RE
CE

SS
ED

EN
TR

Y

EXISTING CONCRETE
SIDEWALK & CURB

EXISTING ANGLED
PARKING

PIERCED BACK LIT SIGN LETTERS
ON AWNING FOLD FACING OLD
WOODWARD AVE.

NEW PAINTED ALUMINUM FOLDED
PLATE AWNING, MOUNTED TO
BUILDING FACE

NEW STAINED WOOD
ON RETURN WALLS

AT RECESSED ENTRY

EXISTING CONCRETE SIDEWALK

EXISTING CONCRETE
STEP UP

BOSTON IVY IN PLANTING
POCKETS, GROWING UP

ONTO BRICK BEHIND WOOD
PANELS

5'-
4"

 C
LE

AR

PLANTING POCKETS FOR BOSTON IVY

NEW STAINED WOOD CLADDING,
WRAPPING OUT BEYOND BRICK
FACADE

1'-
6"

4'-0"

FRONT SIGN ELEVATION
scale: 1/2" = 1'-0"

4 FRONT SIGN SECTION
scale: 1" = 1'-0"

5

REAR SIGN ELEVATION
scale: 1/2" = 1'-0"

6 REAR SIGN SECTION
scale: 1" = 1'-0"

7

3"

8"

6'-0"

8"

5'-6"

4"

1'-
6"

PAINTED ALUMINUM

PIERCED LETTERS
WITH ACRYLIC BACKER

WHITE LED INTERNAL
LIGHTING

PROJECTING PAINTED
ALUMINUM CLAD

AWNING STRUCTURE

ACRYLIC PANEL WITH
LED BACKLIGHTING

BISTRO LOGO LETTERS,
PIERCED IN ALUMINUM

FACE & BACKLIT, 4" TALL
(33% OF 5 SF FASCIA MAX.)

PINNED OFF
FLAT CUT PAINTED
ALUMINUM LOGO
LETTERS

SIGN LIGHTS MOUNTED
TO CONCRETE MASONRY
WALL ON RECESSED
JUNCTION BOXES

TOP OF PATIO WALL

36
" T

O 
GR

AD
E

1'-6"

8'-
6"

4'-
4"

REDUCED AWNING PROJECTION
TO 2/3 OF SIDEWALK DEPTH
MAXIMUM PER ZONING ORDINANCE

REDUCED FASCIA HEIGHT TO
18" PER ZONING ORDINANCE



ADJACENT AREAS SITE PLAN
scale: 1"=30'

1
NORTH

SURROUNDING
PROPERTIES

SITE PLAN

A-4

TH
E 

VI
NE

W
OO

D
NE

W
 B

IS
TR

O 
IN

 A
N 

EX
IS

TI
NG

 S
PA

CE
72

0 N
. O

LD
 W

OO
DW

AR
D 

AV
E.

, B
IR

MI
NG

HA
M,

 M
I  4

80
09

Issue Date:

Sheet Title:

Project:

BISTRO SLUP 2/3/21

REVISION 4/6/21

Sheet Number:

Seal:

a r
 c 

h i
 t e

 c 
t s

   e
 t  

 a 
l.

RO
N
A
N
D
RO
M
A
N

o)
 24

8.7
23

.57
90

27
5 E

. F
ra

nk
 S

t.  
Bi

rm
ing

ha
m 

MI
  4

80
09

790 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE. - 1 STORY

BAUS THE GROOMING HAUS

794 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE. - 1 STORY

LORI'S SALON
798 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE. - 1 STORY

BIRMINGHAM WINE

800 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE. - 2 STORY

STATE FARM

768 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE. - 1 STORY

THE FRENCH LADY

742 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE. - 2 STORY

CARL STERR BY DESIGN

730 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE. - 2 STORY

ALEX EMILIO SALON & PAPILLON BLANC

720-724 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE. - 3 STORY

KOHLER (724),

JOHN SUSHKO, DDS (720 #201)

VINEWOOD BISTRO (720)

704-710 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

- 3 STORY W. MEZZANINE

GSA/GRUPPO (704), VACANT (706),

ROMA SPOSA (708),

PRIVATE RESIDENCE (710)

700 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

- 3 STORY

EDWARD JONES (#102),

LEGACY JEWELRY (#200)

LUXE BRIDAL RACK (#202)

VISION INVESTMENT (#300)

640 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

- 3 STORY

MAPLEWOOD OFFICE PARK

D.HAMAMAH INVESTMENTS (#101)

SHARK LAW (#102)

DR. STEPHEN FABICK (#201)

PERCH 313 (#202)

TOTAL SCULPT (#204)

796 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

MASQ BEAUTY

630 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

- 3 STORY

MAPLEWOOD OFFICE PARK

MASSAGE RAIN (#101)

H.DUGGAN INTERIORS (#102)

GEORGE GETSCHMAN DDS (#202)

MULTI RESOURCE CENTER (#303)

620 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

- 3 STORY

MAPLEWOOD OFFICE PARK

SPOSA BELLA COTURE (620)

DR ARGIRDAS VAITAS (#301)

600 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

- 3 STORY, MAPLEWOOD OFFICE PARK

856 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE. - 4 STORY

THE PEARL -

GROUND FLOOR RETAIL

FRUITION (#100), LASH LOUNGE (#110),

VACANT (#120)

3 UPPER LEVELS APARTMENTS (26 UNITS)

617 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

2 STORY

APARTMENTS

ZONED R-6

631,633,635,637,639

N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

2 STORY

APARTMENTS

ZONED R-6

740 BROOKSIDE AVE.
2 STORY

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

740 BROOKSIDE AVE.
2 STORY

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

692 BROOKSIDE AVE.
2 STORY

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

680 BROOKSIDE AVE.
2 STORY

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

652 BROOKSIDE AVE.
2 STORY

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

650 BROOKSIDE AVE.
2 STORY

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

612 BROOKSIDE AVE.
2 STORY

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

588 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

- 1 STORY

580 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.

- 1 STORY

NORTH OLD WOODWARD AVE.

VINEWOOD AVE.

BROOKSIDE AVE.

ROUGE RIVER

WOODWARD AVENUE

(SOUTHBOUND)

WOODWARD AVENUE

(NORTHBOUND)

ROUGE RIVER

WOOD

DECK

WOOD

DECK
WOOD

DECK

WOOD

DECK

WOOD

DECK

CONC. WALK

200' EXTENT FROM
PROPERTY LINE

715,715,721,723,725,727
N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.
- 2 STORY, APARTMENTS

ZONED R-6

751,753,755,757,759,761,763,765
N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.
- 2 STORY, APARTMENTS

ZONED R-6

885 N. OLD WOODWARD AVE.
(16 UNITS) - 2 STORY

APARTMENTS
ZONED R-6

RAMP

RAMP

RAMP

RAMP

APPROXIMATE
LOCATION OF
RIVER BANKS

NEW TRASH ENCLOSURE
AT LOCATION OF EXISTING
DUMPSTERS

EXISTING CITY PARKING
LOT - ZONED PP

EXISTING NATURAL
WOODED AREA

BR
OO

KS
ID

E 
AV

E.

PARK ST.

441 VINEWOOD AVE.
2 STORY

SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE
ZONED R-2451 VINEWOOD AVE.

2 STORY
SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE

ZONED R-2

RAMP

11' WIDE EASEMENT

EXISTING ANGLED
CITY PARKING

EXISTING CITY ANGLED
& PARALLEL PARKING

LANDSCAPED
BOULEVARDS

ALL SINGLE FAMILY
RESIDENCES ZONED R-2

ALL COMMERCIAL PROPERTIES SHOWN
ALONG N.OLD WOODWARD AVE.
ZONED O-2

THIS LOT ZONED PP

THIS LOT ZONED PP

TYPICAL CONCRETE
CITY SIDEWALK

TYPICAL CONCRETE
RESIDENTIAL ACCESS
SIDEWALKS

NEW BISTRO
DECK

TYPICAL CITY
STREET LIGHT

TYPICAL UTILITY
POLE WITH
OVERHEAD LINES

POLE WITH OVERHEAD LIGHT

CAFE SUCCO (600), NAJOR COMPANIES(#100)

SWAY'D SALON (#102), DIPILLA DENTISTRY

(#201), BIRMINGHAM FOOTCARE (#202)

J. PASKEIWICA PHD, BENIE LES PHD (#300)

BARRY DAUPHIN, PHD (#301)

       
       

       
       

       
       

 KAY HUBERTY (#303)

       
       

       
       

       
      N

ORTHSTAR

       
       

       
       

       
       

    P
AINTING (#304)



..
.

Designer

Date
04/05/2021
Scale
Not to Scale
Drawing No.

Summary

2.6

3.9

5.4

6.5

7.0

7.4

7.7

7.8

7.7

7.8

7.9

7.8

7.8

7.9

7.8

7.7

7.7

7.6

7.3

6.9

6.4

5.3

3.8

2.9

4.6

6.4

7.6

8.2

8.6

9.0

9.0

9.0

9.1

9.2

9.0

9.0

9.2

9.1

8.9

9.0

8.9

8.5

8.1

7.5

6.2

4.4

2.8

4.3

6.1

7.3

7.8

8.2

8.6

8.6

8.5

8.7

8.7

8.5

8.5

8.7

8.6

8.5

8.5

8.4

8.1

7.7

7.1

5.9

4.2

2.3

4.0

6.2

7.7

7.5

6.9

6.8

6.9

7.3

8.2

8.4

6.7

6.7

8.4

8.2

7.2

6.7

6.6

6.3

6.9

7.1

6.0

3.9

2.3

8.8

9.4

9.7

7.6

7.1

5.1

4.2

7.0

8.7

8.3

3.1

3.1

8.3

8.4

6.2

4.1

4.9

3.1

3.1

8.2

7.0

4.9

4.0

4.7

2.4

0.7

3.0

10.0

9.9

9.8

6.8

5.3

7.3

6.4

4.9

7.6

8.3

4.6

4.6

8.3

7.5

4.8

6.3

6.4

4.0

5.2

7.7

6.6

4.7

6.2

6.2

3.2

0.8

5.3

4.3

3.6

4.7

4.0

2.8

4.5

5.0

3.1

3.5

4.8

3.9

2.9

3.8

4.0

2.4

3.1

4.3

3.7

2.6

3.5

3.8

1.9

0.6

3.3

4.8

6.7

4.7

1.7

1.5

3.8

6.7

5.2

1.9

1.8

3.2

5.7

5.6

2.2

1.1

1.2

1.5

1.3

1.1

1.2

1.2

0.6

0.2

3.4

10.6

24.6

8.9

2.1

1.3

7.3

37.2

12.2

3.0

0.8

5.4

29.3

15.5

3.9

0.7

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.1

2.0

9.9

22.8

7.7

1.4

0.7

6.6

32.8

10.6

2.3

0.3

4.8

28.6

13.4

3.5

0.2

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

1.0

0.7

0.9

3.0

4.9

2.8

0.3

0.3

2.3

4.5

3.6

0.5

0.2

1.7

4.0

4.0

0.9

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.0

1.4

1.6

0.6

12.6

14.8

13.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.9

1.4

2.2

3.5

6.5

13.9

16.3

15.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.6

1.0

1.6

2.7

4.6

8.8

13.8

16.2

15.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.6

1.0

1.7

2.8

4.7

8.4

12.3

14.4

13.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.6

1.0

1.6

2.6

4.1

7.0

9.9

11.6

11.0

4.2

1.7

0.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.6

0.8

1.3

2.1

3.1

5.2

7.1

8.3

8.3

5.2

3.0

1.9

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.7

1.1

1.6

2.3

3.7

5.0

5.9

7.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.7

2.6

3.5

4.1

7.5

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.7

2.3

2.8

6.7

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.8

1.2

1.5

1.9

4.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.1

1.2

2.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.8

0.9

1.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

41.117.55.52.41.3 89.029.27.83.11.5 59.730.78.63.41.6 89.429.07.73.11.5 39.717.25.42.41.30.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.0 0.00.0

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.9

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.9

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.2

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.4

1.9

2.3

2.3

1.9

1.4

0.9

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.8

1.2

2.1

3.0

3.7

3.8

3.1

2.2

1.3

0.8

0.5

0.4

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.7

1.1

1.7

3.1

4.7

6.0

6.1

4.9

3.3

1.8

1.1

0.7

0.4

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.8

1.5

2.5

4.8

7.5

9.8

10.0

7.8

5.0

2.6

1.5

0.9

0.5

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.9

1.7

3.1

6.3

10.6

14.2

14.4

11.0

6.7

3.3

1.8

1.0

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.9

1.7

3.3

7.3

13.1

18.1

18.4

13.8

7.8

3.5

1.8

1.0

0.6

0.3

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.8

1.5

2.7

5.9

12.8

19.8

20.1

13.9

6.3

2.8

1.5

0.9

0.5

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

20.8

17.9

17.8

Plan View

Schedule

Symbol Label Image QTY Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp Number
Lamps Filename

Lumens
per

Lamp
LLF Wattage Distribut

ion Polar Plot Notes

A

7 Hydrel PEPIN 3LED16 30K FL PEPIN LED 30K 40? (4th GEN
LED)

LED16 - 6W/40?FL/3K
WW - 3X Nichia 219
w/Khatod Optic

1 PEPIN_3LED16_
30K_FL.ies

Absolute 1 5.84 4 X 4

B

6 Lithonia
Lighting

6JBK RD 30K 90CRI 6" Direct Wire LED Recessed
Downlight, 3000K CCT, 120V

LED 1 6JBK_RD_30K_
90CRI.ies

840 1 10.9 DIRECT,
SC-
0=1.22,
SC-
90=1.23

C

9 Hydrel 4620 LED WHT53K
MVOLT SP

5"DIA. X 8-1/8"H. 4620 SERIES
ACCENT LED FIXTURE 6 COOL
WHITE LEDS WITH TIGHT SPOT
DISTRIBUTION TEMPERED
CLEAR FLAT BOROSILICATE
GLASS

6 COOL WHITE LEDS
WITH TIGHT SPOT
DISTRIBUTION

1 4620_LED_WHT
53K_MVOLT_SP
.ies

162 1 9.95 3 X 3

D

2 Hydrel 4750L 4FT 500LMF 30K
MFL

4750L Linear LED Flood 4FT
500LMF 30K MFL

1 4750L_4FT_500
LMF_30K_MFL.i
es

2350 1 20.98 7 X 5

E

4 B-K LIGHTING,
INC.

NS-LED-e66-MFL-13,
AR-LED-TR-e66-MFL-
13, AR-LED-RM-e66-
MFL-13, DS-LED-e66-
MFL-13, RM-AR-LED-
e66-MFL-13, SN-LED-
e66-MFL-13, ST-LED-
e66-MFL-13, SF-LED-
e66-MFL-13, TF-LED-
e66-MFL-13, WS-LED-
e66-MFL-13, AW-LED-
e66-MFL-13, SW-LED-
e66-MFL-13, GD-LED-
e66-MFL-13, GQ-LED-
e66-MFL-13, EC-LED-
e66-MFL-13, ED-LED-
e66-MFL-13, SM-AR-
LED-e66-MFL-13, PM-
LED-e66-MFL-13, WM-
LED-e66-MFL-13, UL-AR-
-LED-e66-MFL-13, HP2-
LED-e66-MFL-13, CO2-
LED-e66-MFL-13, VQ-
LED-e66-MFL-13, VS-
LED-e66-MFL-13

MACHINED CYLINDRICAL METAL
HOUSING, 1 BLACK CIRCUIT
BOARD WITH 3 LEDS, ONE
CLEAR CONICAL PLASTIC OPTIC
PER LED WITH FROSTED
SURFACE OPPOSITE LED AND
SEMI-HEMISPHERICAL
RECESSED CENTER TOWARD
LED, MOLDED BLACK PLASTIC
OPTIC MOUNTING FRAME,
CLEAR LINEAR-PRISMATIC FLAT
GLASS LENS IN MACHINED
CYLINDRICAL BLACK PAINTED
METAL LENS FRAME. LENS
PRISMS OUT AND VERTICAL.

THREE WHITE LIGHT
EMITTING DIODES
(LEDS), AIMED AT THE
HORIZON.

3 LED-e66-MFL-
13-
ITL85924.IES

Absolute 1 6.95

F

130 Juno Lighting SM2 FR SL412 27K
80CRI

DEEP CHANNEL FROSTED (1FT
SECTION)

SL412 20FT 27K 80CRI
(1 FT SECTION)

1 SM2_FR_SL412
_27K_80CRI.ies

99 1 4.4 DIRECT,
SC-
0=1.26,
SC-
90=1.24

a
Text Box
A

a
Text Box
A

a
Text Box
A

a
Text Box
A

a
Text Box
A

a
Text Box
A

a
Text Box
A

a
Text Box
B

a
Text Box
B

a
Text Box
B

a
Text Box
B

a
Text Box
B

a
Text Box
B

a
Text Box
C

a
Text Box
C

a
Text Box
C

a
Text Box
D

a
Text Box
D

a
Text Box
E

a
Text Box
E

a
Text Box
E

a
Text Box
E

a
Text Box
F

a
Text Box
F

a
Text Box
THIS FIXTURE IS A COMPATIBLE SUBSTITUE FOR FOCUS INDUSTRIES UNDER UMBRELLA LIGHTS - HEADS TO BE AIMED DOWNWARDS, NOT OUTWARDS

a
Text Box
THIS FIXTURE IS USED TO SIMULATE CUSTOM INTERNALLY ILLUMINATEDPANEL, WITH CONTINUOUS LED STRIPS AT 6" O.C. 

a
Text Box
THIS FIXTURE IS AIMED AT BASE OF DECORATIVE WALL PANEL, NOT UPWARDS

a
Text Box
THESE SIGN LIGHTS ARE DIRECTED TOWARDS WALL THAT SIGN IS MOUNTED ONTO



AUGUST 10, 2015
ORIGINAL
ISSUE DATE:

DRAWING NUMBER:

R
EV

IS
IO

N
S

THIS DRAWING AND DESIGN ARE THE PROPERTY OF
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC. THEY
ARE SUBMITTED ON THE CONDITION THAT THEY ARE
NOT TO BE USED, REPRODUCED, OR COPIED, IN
WHOLE OR IN PART, OR USED FOR FURNISHING
INFORMATION TO OTHERS, WITHOUT THE PRIOR
WRITTEN CONSENT OF PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING
ASSOCIATES, INC. ALL COMMON LAW RIGHTS OF
COPYRIGHT AND OTHERWISE ARE HEREBY
SPECIFICALLY RESERVED.     ©  2012 PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES, INC.

1

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTOR AGREES THAT IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED
CONSTRUCTION PRACTICES, CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR WILL BE REQUIRED TO ASSUME SOLE
AND COMPLETE RESPONSIBILITY FOR JOB SITE
CONDITIONS DURING THE COURSE OF CONSTRUCTION
OF THE PROJECT, INCLUDING SAFETY OF ALL PERSONS
AND PROPERTY; THAT THIS REQUIREMENT SHALL BE
MADE TO APPLY CONTINUOUSLY AND NOT BE LIMITED
TO NORMAL WORKING HOURS, AND CONSTRUCTION
CONTRACTOR FURTHER AGREES TO DEFEND,
INDEMNIFY AND HOLD DESIGN PROFESSIONAL
HARMLESS FROM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, REAL OR
ALLEGED, IN CONNECTION WITH THE PERFORMANCE
OF WORK ON THIS PROJECT EXCEPTING LIABILITY
ARISING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF THE DESIGN
PROFESSIONAL.

PEA JOB NO. 2015-166

A
LT

A
/A

C
SM

 L
A

N
D

 T
IT

LE
 S

U
R

VE
Y

PA
R

T 
O

F 
TH

E 
SW

 1
/4

 O
F 

SE
C

TI
O

N
 2

5,
 T

.2
N

., 
R

.1
0E

.,
C

IT
Y 

O
F 

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM
, O

AK
LA

N
D

 C
O

U
N

TY
, M

IC
H

IG
AN

SCALE: 1" = 10'

D
ES

.

CAUTION!!
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF EXISTING
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THIS
DRAWING ARE ONLY APPROXIMATE.  NO GUARANTEE IS
EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED AS TO THE
COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY THEREOF. THE
CONTRACTOR SHALL BE EXCLUSIVELY RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

N
A

JO
R

 C
O

M
PA

N
IE

S
60

0 
N

. O
LD

 W
O

O
D

W
AR

D
 , 

SU
IT

E 
10

0
BI

R
M

IN
G

H
AM

, M
I  

48
00

9

D
AT

E
C

H
K

D
ES

C
R

IP
TI

O
N

D
N

.
EH

SU
R

.
M

S
P.

M
.

D
EC

72
0 

N
. O

LD
 W

O
O

D
W

A
R

D
N

o.
BY

3 FULL WORKING DAYS
BEFORE YOU DIG CALL

www.missdig.net1-800-482-7171
(TOLL FREE)

MISS DIG System, Inc.

811
Know what's below

Call before you dig

2430 Rochester Ct. Suite 100
Troy, MI  48083-1872

Phone: (248) 689-9090
Fax: (248) 689-1044

website: www.peainc.com

PROFESSIONAL
ENGINEERING
ASSOCIATES

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
RAMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.00'(R)  70.18'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE  (100'WIDE - PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISLAND VIEW DRIVE  (PUBLIC)

AutoCAD SHX Text
40.00'(R)  40.02'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING METER (PM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-ELEC (PAINT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC/PH

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/UG- ELEC/PH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
7"POSTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-GAS (PAINT)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL NO. 19-25-328-060

AutoCAD SHX Text
"ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 29" (LIBER 6, PAGE 45, O.C.R.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
#700 N. OLD WOODWARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL NO. 19-25-328-014

AutoCAD SHX Text
#704-710 N. OLD WOODWARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
#720-726 N. OLD WOODWARD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN SPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27°05'40"W  946.80'(R) 946.32'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
2ND STORY BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
EAST 27' LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 23' LOT 10

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING COLUMN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASTERLY LINE OLD WOODWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER AREAS ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODWAY ZONE AE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OTHER FLOOD ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
4'WOOD FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING BLOCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"TRENCH DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD PATH

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
RETAINING WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL BALCONY

AutoCAD SHX Text
W/UG

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING METER (PM)

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC

AutoCAD SHX Text
18"CURB & GUTTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOWN SPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
4 ELEC. METERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"

AutoCAD SHX Text
CANVAS OVERHANG

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"CONC WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
17"BRICK WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL NO. 19-25-328-058 ±5579 SQ.FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"DOWN SPOUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1/2"IB #22705 "NOWAK & FRAUS"

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOOD OVERHANG/ FACADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
PART OF LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27 05'40"W  59.83'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N62 47'18"E  92.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S27 23'20"E  59.96'(C) 60.00'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
S62 52'12"W  93.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
115.99'

AutoCAD SHX Text
59.79'(C) 60.00'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
116.29'

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 23' OF LOT 8

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST 23' OF LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING LINE ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING LINE ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING LINE ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING LINE ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHANG 0.51'E OF LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL BALCONY EXTENDS 0.10'N OF PARCEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH WALL LINE ON LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST CORNER LOT 9

AutoCAD SHX Text
20.09'(M) 20.00'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
N62 52'12"E  23.00'52'12"E  23.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N27 05'40"W  19.93'(M) 20.00'(R)05'40"W  19.93'(M) 20.00'(R)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL NO. 19-25-328-010

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM 734.96 21"NE 726.11 21"S 726.06

AutoCAD SHX Text
~

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM 734.51 24"N 723.01 24"S 722.96

AutoCAD SHX Text
21"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
24"RCP

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
-10

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
C:\WORK FILES from home\Vinewood\4  Engineered Drawings\Civil\15166 ALTA.dwg

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (PER TITLE CONNECT LLC, COMMITMENT NO. TC13-60274, EFFECTIVE JUNE 22, 2015) Land situated in the City of Birmingham, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, Described as follows: The Northerly 30 feet of Lot 9 and Southerly 30 feet of Lot 8 except the West 23 feet deeded to the City of Birmingham for access drive for off-street parking, Assessor's Plat No. 29, a replat of Residence Park Subdivision, a resubdivision of Lots 25 to 27 inclusive, Lots 57 to 64 inclusive and parts of Ravine Road and Court included therein of Residence Park Subdivision, C.E. Jones Subdivision and part of Lot 88 and all of Lots 13, 14, 15, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57,87 and 89 of Oak Grove Addition, City of Birmingham, Oakland County, Michigan, according to the plat thereof as recorded in Liber 6, of Plats, Page 45, Oakland County Records. Parcel No. 19-25-328-058 720-726 N. Old Woodward

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
CO

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUARD RAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-PHONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
OH-ELEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAILBOX, TRANSFORMER, IRRIGATION CONTROL VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE BOX/HYDRANT VALVE BOX, SERVICE SHUTOFF

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND CABLE TV, CATV PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
UG-CATV

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREET LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CATCH BASIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMBINED SEWER & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORM SEWER, CLEANOUT & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SANITARY SEWER, CLEANOUT & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATERMAIN, HYD., GATE VALVE, TAPPING SLEEVE & VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS MAIN, VALVE & GAS LINE MARKER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC U.G. CABLE, MANHOLE, METER & HANDHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE U.G. CABLE, PEDESTAL & MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC., PHONE OR CABLE TV O.H. LINE, POLE & GUY WIRE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MEASURED

AutoCAD SHX Text
RECORDED

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
MONUMENT FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAIL FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
NAIL & CAP SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
IRON FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%ULEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEC. CORNER FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
TV

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNIDENTIFIED STRUCTURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
?

AutoCAD SHX Text
BRASS PLUG SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
WOODWARD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOCATION MAP  NOT TO SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAPLE RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
OLD WOODWARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
VINEWOOD AVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
MANOR RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARMON ST

AutoCAD SHX Text
REDDING RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCHEDULE B EXCEPTIONS (PER TITLE CONNECT LLC, COMMITMENT NO. TC13-60274, EFFECTIVE JUNE 22, 2015) 5 Rights of tenants under any unrecorded leases. Rights of tenants under any unrecorded leases. 6 Subject to the Combined Storm/Sanitary Sewer Retention Treatment Basin Appurtenances Subject to the Combined Storm/Sanitary Sewer Retention Treatment Basin Appurtenances Easement Agreement between the City of Birmingham and the Birmingham CSO Drainage District recorded December 7, 1994 in Liber 15134, Page 290, Oakland County Records. [Not [Not plotted. Easement does not lie within the subject parcel.]

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOODPLAIN: By graphic plotting only, the subject parcel lies within Zone AE, Floodway Zone AE, Other Flood Areas Zone X and Other Areas - Zone X Per Flood Insurance Rate Map Number 26125C-0537F. Effective September 29, 2006) SPECIAL FLOOD HAZARD AREAS SUBJECT TO INUNDATION BY THE 1% ANNUAL CHANCE FLOOD The 1% annual chance flood (100 year flood), also known as the base flood, is the flood that has a 1% chance of being equaled or exceeded in any given year. The Special Flood Hazard Area is the area subject to flooding by the 1% annual chance flood. Areas of Special Flood Hazard include Zones A, AE, AH, AO, AR, A99, V and VE. The Base Flood Elevation is the water-surface elevation of the 1% annual chance flood. ZONE AE - Base Flood Elevations determined.  FLOODWAY AREAS IN ZONE AE The floodway is the channel of stream plus any adjacent floodplain areas that must be kept free of encroachment so that the 1% annual chance flood can be carried without substantial increases in flood heights. OTHER FLOOD AREAS  ZONE X - Area of 0.2% annual chance flood; areas of 1% annual chance flood with average depths of less Area of 0.2% annual chance flood; areas of 1% annual chance flood with average depths of less than 1 foot or with drainage areas less than 1 square mile; and areas protected by levees from 1% annual chance flood. OTHER AREAS ZONE X - Area to be determined outside of the 0.2% annual chance floodplain.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 1"PIPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
70.00'(R)  70.18'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
606.80'(R)  606.53'(M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTHWEST CORNER LOT 12

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION (AS SURVEYED BY PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING ASSOCIATES) PARCEL NO. 19-25-328-058 Land Situated in the City of Birmingham in the County of Oakland in the State of MI North 30 feet of Lot 9, EXCEPT the West 23 feet thereof and the South 30 feet of Lot 8, EXCEPT the West 23 feet thereof, Assessor's Plat No. 29, as recorded in Liber 6, Page 45 of Plats, Oakland County Records, said parcel being more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the Southwest corner of Lot 9, Assessor's Plat No. 29, as recorded in Liber 6, Page 45 of Plats, Oakland County Records;  thence along the westerly line of said Lot 9, said line also being the easterly line of Old Woodward Avenue (100 feet wide), N27°05'40"W, 19.93 feet; thence N62°52'12"E, 23.00 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence along a line parallel to the easterly line of said Old Woodward Avenue (100 feet wide), N27°05'40"W, 59.83 feet to the extension of the northerly line of Building #720-726 N. Old Woodward; thence along said extension and the northerly line thereof, N62°47'18"E, 92.99 feet; thence S27°23'20"E, 59.96 feet to the extension of the southerly line of said Building; thence along said extension and southerly line thereof, S62°52'12"W, 93.29 feet to the Point of Beginning. Containing 5579 square feet of land, more or less.

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
*

AutoCAD SHX Text
DAVID EDWIN COLE PROFESSIONAL SURVEYOR NO. 32334

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE: To: Title Connect, LLC  Title Connect, LLC  Brian F. Najor Woodridge Properties 720-726 N. Old Woodward LLC Bank of Ann Arbor This is to certify that this map or plat and the survey on which it is based were made in accordance with the "Minimum Standard Detail Requirements for ALTA/ACSM Land Title Surveys," jointly established and adopted by ALTA and NSPS in 2011, and includes Items 3, 4, 8 and 11(a) of Table A thereof. The field work was completed on July 6, 2015. _______________________________________ David E. Cole, PS Agent for Professional Engineering Associates, Inc. MI. P.S. No. 32334        



BENJAMIN MOORE “PERENNIAL” 405
PAINTED ALUMINUM CANOPY & AWNING,

DECORATIVE PIERCED PANEL

STAINED WOOD TO MATCH LIGHT GREEN 
PAINT COLOR, AT FRONT ENTRY

SUNBRELLA “GINKGO”
CANVAS UMBRELLAS

BENJAMIN MOORE “BLACK FOREST GREEN” 
HC-187 - PAINTED METAL GUARD & HAND 

RAILS, STEEL PLATE CAP

STAINED WOOD TO MATCH DARK GREEN 
PAINT COLOR, AT REAR DOORS

BENJAMIN MOORE “UNIVERSAL BLACK” 
2118-10, EXISTING PAINTED

WOOD TRIM



EXISTING BRICK WALLS TO REMAIN

BRONZE SCREEN AT REAR DOORS

COPPER PANELS,
CLADDING AT DUCT SHAFT ENCLOSURE,
INSERTS AT DECORATIVE PIERCED WALL

PAINTED METAL WALL CAP &
WIRE MESH GUARD RAIL

HORIZONTAL IPE WOOD PLANK CLADDING 
ON PATIO KNEE WALLS, SEALED

IPE WOOD DECKING ON PATIO &
WINTERGARDEN, SEALED



CLIMBINGBOSTON IVY
AT PATIO WALLS

& AT FRONT ENTRY

ASSORTED NATIVE GRASSES & SEASONAL FLOWERING RIVER BANK PLANTS, 
IN PLANTERS ON PATIO DECK

FRAMELESS GLASS DOORS & BUTT GLAZED 
WINDOWS AT REAR WINTERGARDEN WALL

TRAILING VINCA VINE
IN PLANTERS ON REAR BALCONY

GAS TORCHES AT PATIO

ILLUMINATED PANEL UNDERNEATH
FRONT AWNING & REAR CANOPY



ENTICE® SERIES ENTRANCE SYSTEM

A CRH COMPANY

A CRH COMPANY

TYPICAL DETAILS
ENTICE® SERIES ENTRANCE SYSTEM

NOT TO SCALE  |  For Specifications, Details, and Testing visit crl-arch.com/ENTICE

SIDELITE JAMB AT WALL INTERMEDIATE VERTICAL MULLION

DOOR JAMB AT SIDELITE

MEETING STILES

Finish Wall

CRL Entice® Series Sidelite

2-1/2"

1-1/4"

2-3/8"

2"

CRL Entice® Series Sidelite

CRL Entice® 
Series Sidelite Center Pivot Stile CRL Entice® 

Series Door Floor Closer

CRL ESTCP Series 
Aluminum Threshold

CRL9040CB Floor 
Closer Arm

1-1/8" 1-1/8"

CRL Custom 
Ladder Pull

CRL Entice®  
Series Door

CRL Custom 
Ladder Pull

CRL Entice® 

Series Door

CRL ESTCP Series 
Aluminum Threshold 1-1/8" 1-1/8"

GL1 GL1

10

VERBENA



global headquarters
2900 NW 35th Street, Miami, FL 33142 USA | 305.634.5116 | info@tuuci.com

european office
Nedervonder 17, 5061 JP Oisterwijk, The Netherlands | +31.13.522.0471 | info@tuuci.eu

 
v. 06.13.17                                                                                                                                                                                   tuuci.com

shapes & sizes 

ocean master classic 

The Ocean Master Classic market style parasol is the culmination of durable engineering, stylish profiles and functional shade design. 

Manufactured to marine specifications, all Ocean Master parasols feature 100% replaceable parts for easy service and a 15/5-year 

warranty. Classic beauty. Classic TUUCI.

premium parasols

features:

a. Manual Lift w/ Stainless Steel Security Pin

b. “Auto-Loc” Marine Pulley Lift System

c. “Easy Drive” Crank Lift System

d. Reinforced Strut Joints Construction

e. Armor-Wall Mast

f. Reinforced Pocket Construction
hexagon

ft. / m.

7.0' / 2.15

*8.5' / 2.6

*10.0' / 3.0

*11.0' / 3.4

octagon
ft. / m.

6.0' / 1.8

7.5' / 2.25

*9.0' / 2.75

*10.5' / 3.2

*11.5' / 3.6

square
ft. / m.

5.5' / 1.65

6.5' / 2.0

7.5' / 2.25

*8.5' / 2.6

rectangle
ft. / m.

5’ x 8' / 1.5 x 2.45

*6’ x 9' / 1.8 x 2.75

ba c

d e f

square
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*10.0' / 3.0

octagon
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*13.0' / 4.0

rectangle
auto-scope

ft. / m.

*8’ x 12' / 2.45 x 3.65

*Available with Easy Drive Crank

finial options 

venice 
aluminum

finish options

powder coat standard

textured bright white sea shell white ash grey hammered bronzeespresso jet blackpolished aluminum

global headquarters
2900 NW 35th Street, Miami, FL 33142 USA | 305.634.5116 | info@tuuci.com

european office
Nedervonder 17, 5061 JP Oisterwijk, The Netherlands | +31.13.522.0471 | info@tuuci.eu

 
v. 06.13.17                                                                                                                                                                                   tuuci.com

shapes & sizes 

ocean master classic 

The Ocean Master Classic market style parasol is the culmination of durable engineering, stylish profiles and functional shade design. 

Manufactured to marine specifications, all Ocean Master parasols feature 100% replaceable parts for easy service and a 15/5-year 

warranty. Classic beauty. Classic TUUCI.

premium parasols

features:

a. Manual Lift w/ Stainless Steel Security Pin

b. “Auto-Loc” Marine Pulley Lift System

c. “Easy Drive” Crank Lift System

d. Reinforced Strut Joints Construction

e. Armor-Wall Mast

f. Reinforced Pocket Construction
hexagon

ft. / m.

7.0' / 2.15

*8.5' / 2.6

*10.0' / 3.0

*11.0' / 3.4

octagon
ft. / m.

6.0' / 1.8

7.5' / 2.25

*9.0' / 2.75

*10.5' / 3.2

*11.5' / 3.6

square
ft. / m.

5.5' / 1.65

6.5' / 2.0

7.5' / 2.25

*8.5' / 2.6

rectangle
ft. / m.

5’ x 8' / 1.5 x 2.45

*6’ x 9' / 1.8 x 2.75

ba c

d e f

square
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*10.0' / 3.0

octagon
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*13.0' / 4.0

rectangle
auto-scope

ft. / m.

*8’ x 12' / 2.45 x 3.65

*Available with Easy Drive Crank

finial options 

venice 
aluminum

finish options

powder coat standard

textured bright white sea shell white ash grey hammered bronzeespresso jet blackpolished aluminum

global headquarters
2900 NW 35th Street, Miami, FL 33142 USA | 305.634.5116 | info@tuuci.com

european office
Nedervonder 17, 5061 JP Oisterwijk, The Netherlands | +31.13.522.0471 | info@tuuci.eu

 
v. 06.13.17                                                                                                                                                                                   tuuci.com

shapes & sizes 

ocean master classic 

The Ocean Master Classic market style parasol is the culmination of durable engineering, stylish profiles and functional shade design. 

Manufactured to marine specifications, all Ocean Master parasols feature 100% replaceable parts for easy service and a 15/5-year 

warranty. Classic beauty. Classic TUUCI.

premium parasols

features:

a. Manual Lift w/ Stainless Steel Security Pin

b. “Auto-Loc” Marine Pulley Lift System

c. “Easy Drive” Crank Lift System

d. Reinforced Strut Joints Construction

e. Armor-Wall Mast

f. Reinforced Pocket Construction
hexagon

ft. / m.

7.0' / 2.15

*8.5' / 2.6

*10.0' / 3.0

*11.0' / 3.4

octagon
ft. / m.

6.0' / 1.8

7.5' / 2.25

*9.0' / 2.75

*10.5' / 3.2

*11.5' / 3.6

square
ft. / m.

5.5' / 1.65

6.5' / 2.0

7.5' / 2.25

*8.5' / 2.6

rectangle
ft. / m.

5’ x 8' / 1.5 x 2.45

*6’ x 9' / 1.8 x 2.75

ba c

d e f

square
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*10.0' / 3.0

octagon
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*13.0' / 4.0

rectangle
auto-scope

ft. / m.

*8’ x 12' / 2.45 x 3.65

*Available with Easy Drive Crank

finial options 

venice 
aluminum

finish options

powder coat standard

textured bright white sea shell white ash grey hammered bronzeespresso jet blackpolished aluminum



RoofScreen® System
 

5

ROOF ATTACHMENTS YOU CAN TRUST
With the adjustable RotoLock™ feature, integral 

ENGINEERED

and shop drawings, with 

WATERTIGHT

never leak. 

WARRANTY

Base Gasket

RotoLock™

Base Support

Roof Insulation
Roof Deck

Roof Membrane
Roof Joist

Max Elevation

Stainless Steel Connectors, TYP

Galv Steel Tubing, TYP

TYP

Stainless Steel

With RotoLockTM

Base Support, TYP

Roof Deck

2/8/2021 Square - Wire Mesh - Galvanized - 34031300 | McNICHOLS®

https://www.mcnichols.com/wire-mesh/square/galvanized-steel-gv-34031300?rbl=89101280&cId=177 1/1

PAGE 1 OF 1

ITEM 3403130041 - 48" x 120"

McNICHOLS  WIRE MESH
Square, Galvanized Steel, Hot Dipped, Welded - Untrimmed, 3" x 3" Mesh
(Square), 2.8650" x 2.8650" Opening (Square), 0.135" Thick (10 Gauge)
Wire Diameter, 91% Open Area  

McNICHOLS  Wire Mesh, Square, Galvanized Steel, Hot Dipped, Mill
Finish, Welded - Untrimmed, 3" x 3" Mesh (Square), 2.8650" x 2.8650"
Opening (Square), 0.135" Thick (10 Gauge) Wire Diameter, 91% Open Area

ITEM SPECIFICATIONS
Item Number 3403130041

Product Line Wire Mesh

Mesh Type Square

Construction Type Welded

Primary Material Galvanized Steel (GV)

Alloy, Grade or Type Hot Dipped (HD)

Material Finish Mill Finish

Weave or Trim Type Welded - Untrimmed

Mesh Size 3" x 3"

Opening Size 2.8650" x 2.8650"

Wire Diameter/Wire Gauge 0.135" Thick (10 Gauge)

Percent Open Area 91%

Weight 0.41 Lbs./Square Foot

Product Form Sheet

Sizes (Width x Length) 48" x 120"

®

®

2/8/2021 U-Edging - Accessories - Carbon Steel - 40038014 | McNICHOLS®

https://www.mcnichols.com/accessories/u-edging/carbon-steel-cs-40038014?rbl=3621019514&cId=8 1/1

PAGE 1 OF 1

ITEM 4003801410 - 1" x 120"

McNICHOLS  ACCESSORIES
U-Edging, Carbon Steel, Hot Rolled, 14 Gauge (.0747" Thick), Type 438 U-
Edging (3/8" Opening x 1" Width)  

McNICHOLS  Accessories, U-Edging, Carbon Steel, Hot Rolled, Mill Finish,
14 Gauge (.0747" Thick), Type 438 U-Edging (3/8" Opening x 1" Width),
Used to Frame the Edges of Carbon Steel Perforated Metal, Expanded Metal
and Wire Mesh

ITEM SPECIFICATIONS
Item Number 4003801410

Product Line Accessories

Accessory Type U-Edging

Primary Material Carbon Steel (CS)

Alloy, Grade or Type Hot Rolled (HR)

Material Finish Mill Finish

Gauge/Thickness 14 Gauge (.0747" Thick)

Accessory Profile Type 438 U-Edging (3/8" Opening x 1" Width)

Opening (Clear Space) 3/8"

Width 1"

Length 120"

Compatible With Used to Frame the Edges of Carbon Steel Perforated
Metal, Expanded Metal and Wire Mesh

Weight 0.56 Lbs./Linear Foot

Product Form Piece

Sizes (Opening x Width x Length) 3/8" x 1" x 120"  (Cut Lengths Available)

®

®



ENTICE® SERIES ENTRANCE SYSTEM

A CRH COMPANY

A CRH COMPANY

TYPICAL DETAILS
ENTICE® SERIES ENTRANCE SYSTEM

NOT TO SCALE  |  For Specifications, Details, and Testing visit crl-arch.com/ENTICE

SIDELITE JAMB AT WALL INTERMEDIATE VERTICAL MULLION

DOOR JAMB AT SIDELITE

MEETING STILES

Finish Wall

CRL Entice® Series Sidelite

2-1/2"

1-1/4"

2-3/8"

2"

CRL Entice® Series Sidelite

CRL Entice® 
Series Sidelite Center Pivot Stile CRL Entice® 

Series Door Floor Closer

CRL ESTCP Series 
Aluminum Threshold

CRL9040CB Floor 
Closer Arm

1-1/8" 1-1/8"

CRL Custom 
Ladder Pull

CRL Entice®  
Series Door

CRL Custom 
Ladder Pull

CRL Entice® 

Series Door

CRL ESTCP Series 
Aluminum Threshold 1-1/8" 1-1/8"

GL1 GL1

10

TYPICAL DETAILS
ENTICE® SERIES ENTRANCE SYSTEM

U.S. Patent 9,074,413

 crl-arch.com/ENTICE     |     C.R. LAURENCE ARCHITECTURAL PRODUCTS AND SERVICES    |    (800) 421.6144 EXT. 15305

LOW PROFILE SIDELITE

2"

1-3/8"

2-7/16"

11

4" DOOR BOTTOM
10" AVAILABLE

DOOR HEAD

CRL Entice®  Series 
Doorway Header Locking Ladder 

Pull Strike

CRL Entice® 
Series Door

CRL Ladder Pull

CRL Ladder Pull

CRL Entice®  
Series Door

4-1/16"

CRL9040CB 
Center Pivot 
Bottom Arm

CRL ESTCP Series 
Aluminum Threshold 

Satin Brushed Finished

Floor Closer

4" SIDELITE HEAD

4" SIDELITE BOTTOM

2-1/2"

4-3/16"

2-1/2"

4-3/16"

CRL PROJECT RESOURCES

NOT TO SCALE  |  For Specifications, Details, 
and Testing visit crl-arch.com/ENTICE

ENERGY CODE TOOLS:
• NFRC Bid Reports
• NFRC Label Certificates
• Thermal Performance Glazing Selection Charts
• Area Weighting Calculations
• State Energy Commission Document Coordination

DRAFTING AND DESIGN SERVICES:
• Shop Drawings
• Fabrication Drawings
• 3D Modeling
• Engineering Services
• Project Management

Contact U.S. Aluminum Tech 
Sales for more information at 
usalum@crlaurence.com.



     shown as  
ceiling fan  

in Brushed Nickel

     shown in  
 Matte Black

         shown in 
    Polished Chrome

        shown as ceiling 
fan in Gloss White

         shown in 
    Textured Bronze

NEW

KAYE
FINISH AND BLADE OPTIONS

SKU#   KC-XX 
  (Model+Finish)

Finishes

Brushed Nickel   BN
Matte Black   BK
Polished Chrome   CR 
Textured Bronze   TB
Gloss White   WH

TECHNICAL SPECS

Fan Weight 10.5 lbs

Voltage 110 or 220

Motor Type AC

Oscillation Yes

Fan Diameter 13 inches / 33 cm

Fan Height 13 inches / 33 cm

Fan Projection 17.5 inches / 44 cm

Ceiling Mount  
Overall Drop 17.5 inches / 44 cm

Recommended  
Mounting Height

Approximately 24 inches /  
61 cm from ceiling

Fan Guard Safety Cage

Blade Pitch 31°

Environment
Damp locations for all finishes 
Neither coastal, saltwater nor  
chlorine compatible

Ambience Soothing White Noise

Safety Certification ETL / CETL

Warranty Limited Lifetime

NEW JAN 21, 2020 DOE MOTOR EFFICIENCY DATA

RPM (Low / High) 1213 / 1445

CFM (Low / High) 868 / 1303

Watts (High) 47.68

CFM/Watt (High) 27.32

Blade Pitch 31°

STANDARD EQUIPMENT

Safety cage

Side-mounted wall junction box

White Decora- 
style, 3-speed  
wall control

ACCESSORY

Black 3-speed 
RF remote  
control 

Note:  
1 ) A three-wire system is needed to operate the oscillation  
    mechanism independent of the fan blades. 
2) The remote control receiver will not fit behind the wall  
    canopy. A clever electrician will need to hide the receiver  
    in wall or ceiling according to code.

     shown as  
ceiling fan  

in Brushed Nickel

     shown in  
 Matte Black

         shown in 
    Polished Chrome

        shown as ceiling 
fan in Gloss White

         shown in 
    Textured Bronze

NEW

KAYE
FINISH AND BLADE OPTIONS

SKU#   KC-XX 
  (Model+Finish)

Finishes

Brushed Nickel   BN
Matte Black   BK
Polished Chrome   CR 
Textured Bronze   TB
Gloss White   WH

TECHNICAL SPECS

Fan Weight 10.5 lbs

Voltage 110 or 220

Motor Type AC

Oscillation Yes

Fan Diameter 13 inches / 33 cm

Fan Height 13 inches / 33 cm

Fan Projection 17.5 inches / 44 cm

Ceiling Mount  
Overall Drop 17.5 inches / 44 cm

Recommended  
Mounting Height

Approximately 24 inches /  
61 cm from ceiling

Fan Guard Safety Cage

Blade Pitch 31°

Environment
Damp locations for all finishes 
Neither coastal, saltwater nor  
chlorine compatible

Ambience Soothing White Noise

Safety Certification ETL / CETL

Warranty Limited Lifetime

NEW JAN 21, 2020 DOE MOTOR EFFICIENCY DATA

RPM (Low / High) 1213 / 1445

CFM (Low / High) 868 / 1303

Watts (High) 47.68

CFM/Watt (High) 27.32

Blade Pitch 31°

STANDARD EQUIPMENT

Safety cage

Side-mounted wall junction box

White Decora- 
style, 3-speed  
wall control

ACCESSORY

Black 3-speed 
RF remote  
control 

Note:  
1 ) A three-wire system is needed to operate the oscillation  
    mechanism independent of the fan blades. 
2) The remote control receiver will not fit behind the wall  
    canopy. A clever electrician will need to hide the receiver  
    in wall or ceiling according to code.

global headquarters
2900 NW 35th Street, Miami, FL 33142 USA | 305.634.5116 | info@tuuci.com

european office
Nedervonder 17, 5061 JP Oisterwijk, The Netherlands | +31.13.522.0471 | info@tuuci.eu

 
v. 06.13.17                                                                                                                                                                                   tuuci.com

shapes & sizes 

ocean master classic 

The Ocean Master Classic market style parasol is the culmination of durable engineering, stylish profiles and functional shade design. 

Manufactured to marine specifications, all Ocean Master parasols feature 100% replaceable parts for easy service and a 15/5-year 

warranty. Classic beauty. Classic TUUCI.

premium parasols

features:

a. Manual Lift w/ Stainless Steel Security Pin

b. “Auto-Loc” Marine Pulley Lift System

c. “Easy Drive” Crank Lift System

d. Reinforced Strut Joints Construction

e. Armor-Wall Mast

f. Reinforced Pocket Construction
hexagon

ft. / m.

7.0' / 2.15

*8.5' / 2.6

*10.0' / 3.0

*11.0' / 3.4

octagon
ft. / m.

6.0' / 1.8

7.5' / 2.25

*9.0' / 2.75

*10.5' / 3.2

*11.5' / 3.6

square
ft. / m.

5.5' / 1.65

6.5' / 2.0

7.5' / 2.25

*8.5' / 2.6

rectangle
ft. / m.

5’ x 8' / 1.5 x 2.45

*6’ x 9' / 1.8 x 2.75

ba c

d e f

square
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*10.0' / 3.0

octagon
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*13.0' / 4.0

rectangle
auto-scope

ft. / m.

*8’ x 12' / 2.45 x 3.65

*Available with Easy Drive Crank

finial options 

venice 
aluminum

finish options

powder coat standard

textured bright white sea shell white ash grey hammered bronzeespresso jet blackpolished aluminum

global headquarters
2900 NW 35th Street, Miami, FL 33142 USA | 305.634.5116 | info@tuuci.com

european office
Nedervonder 17, 5061 JP Oisterwijk, The Netherlands | +31.13.522.0471 | info@tuuci.eu

 
v. 06.13.17                                                                                                                                                                                   tuuci.com

shapes & sizes 

ocean master classic 

The Ocean Master Classic market style parasol is the culmination of durable engineering, stylish profiles and functional shade design. 

Manufactured to marine specifications, all Ocean Master parasols feature 100% replaceable parts for easy service and a 15/5-year 

warranty. Classic beauty. Classic TUUCI.

premium parasols

features:

a. Manual Lift w/ Stainless Steel Security Pin

b. “Auto-Loc” Marine Pulley Lift System

c. “Easy Drive” Crank Lift System

d. Reinforced Strut Joints Construction

e. Armor-Wall Mast

f. Reinforced Pocket Construction
hexagon

ft. / m.

7.0' / 2.15

*8.5' / 2.6

*10.0' / 3.0

*11.0' / 3.4

octagon
ft. / m.

6.0' / 1.8

7.5' / 2.25

*9.0' / 2.75

*10.5' / 3.2

*11.5' / 3.6

square
ft. / m.

5.5' / 1.65

6.5' / 2.0

7.5' / 2.25

*8.5' / 2.6

rectangle
ft. / m.

5’ x 8' / 1.5 x 2.45

*6’ x 9' / 1.8 x 2.75

ba c

d e f

square
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*10.0' / 3.0

octagon
auto-scope
ft. / m.

*13.0' / 4.0

rectangle
auto-scope

ft. / m.

*8’ x 12' / 2.45 x 3.65

*Available with Easy Drive Crank

finial options 

venice 
aluminum

finish options

powder coat standard

textured bright white sea shell white ash grey hammered bronzeespresso jet blackpolished aluminum

2/8/2021 U-Edging - Accessories - Carbon Steel - 40038014 | McNICHOLS®

https://www.mcnichols.com/accessories/u-edging/carbon-steel-cs-40038014?rbl=3621019514&cId=8 1/1

PAGE 1 OF 1

ITEM 4003801410 - 1" x 120"

McNICHOLS  ACCESSORIES
U-Edging, Carbon Steel, Hot Rolled, 14 Gauge (.0747" Thick), Type 438 U-
Edging (3/8" Opening x 1" Width)  

McNICHOLS  Accessories, U-Edging, Carbon Steel, Hot Rolled, Mill Finish,
14 Gauge (.0747" Thick), Type 438 U-Edging (3/8" Opening x 1" Width),
Used to Frame the Edges of Carbon Steel Perforated Metal, Expanded Metal
and Wire Mesh

ITEM SPECIFICATIONS
Item Number 4003801410

Product Line Accessories

Accessory Type U-Edging

Primary Material Carbon Steel (CS)

Alloy, Grade or Type Hot Rolled (HR)

Material Finish Mill Finish

Gauge/Thickness 14 Gauge (.0747" Thick)

Accessory Profile Type 438 U-Edging (3/8" Opening x 1" Width)

Opening (Clear Space) 3/8"

Width 1"

Length 120"

Compatible With Used to Frame the Edges of Carbon Steel Perforated
Metal, Expanded Metal and Wire Mesh

Weight 0.56 Lbs./Linear Foot

Product Form Piece

Sizes (Opening x Width x Length) 3/8" x 1" x 120"  (Cut Lengths Available)

®

®



DATE:

CATALOG NUMBER LOGIC:

PROJECT: TYPE:

THIS DOCUMENT CONTAINS PROPRIETARY INFORMATION OF B-K LIGHTING, INC. AND ITS RECEIPT OR POSSESSION DOES NOT CONVEY ANY RIGHTS TO REPRODUCE, DISCLOSE ITS CONTENTS, OR TO 
MANUFACTURE, USE OR SELL ANYTHING IT MAY DESCRIBE.  REPRODUCTION, DISCLOSURE OR USE WITHOUT SPECIFIC WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF B-K LIGHTING, INC. IS STRICTLY FORBIDDEN.

559.438.5800  |  INFO@BKLIGHTING.COM  |  BKLIGHTING.COMMADE IN THE USA

DELTA STAR - SIGN STAR STYLE ‘C’ LED 

CATALOG NUMBER LOGIC

Example: SN - 30 - C - LED - e65 - SP - A7 - WHW - 12 - 11 - A - PC-TRe20

MATERIAL

Aluminum

SERIES

SN - Sign Star

STEM LENGTH

18” (Standard), 24”, 30”, 36”, *42”, or *48”

STYLE

C - Straight Mount

SOURCE

LED - with Integral Dimming Driver**

LED TYPE

e64 - 7W LED/2700K          e66 - 7W LED/4000K

e65 - 7W LED/3000K          e74 - 7W LED/Amber

OPTICS

NSP - Narrow Spot (13°)          MFL - Medium Flood (23°)

SP - Spot (16°)                          WFL - Wide Flood (31°)

ADJUST-E-LUME OUTPUT INTENSITY***

A9 (Standard), A8, A7, A6, A5, A4, A3, A2, A1

FINISH

Standard Finishes (BZP, BZW, BLP, BLW, WHP, WHW, SAP, VER)

Premium Finish (ABP, AMG, AQW, BCM, BGE, BPP, CAP, CMG, CRI, CRM, HUG, MDS, NBP, OCP, 
RMG, SDS, SMG, TXF, WCP, WIR)

(Also available in RAL Finishes. See submittal SUB-1439-00)

LENS TYPE****

12 - Soft Focus          13 - Rectilinear

SHIELDING****

11 - Honeycomb Ba¥le

CAP STYLE

A - 45°

B - 90°

C - Flush

D - 45° Less Weephole (Interior use only)

E - 90° Less Weephole (Interior use only)

F - 90° with Flush Lens

OPTIONS

PC-TRe20 - Power Canopy with TRe20 Electronic Transformer (105-300 VAC. 50/60 Hz. non-
dimming)*

UPM - Universal Power Module

IP66 RATED

12/02/2020 SKU-746

*36” maximum stem length with Power Canopy 
option.

**Designed for use with 12 VAC. LED transformer. 
Requires magnetic low voltage dimmer.

***Please see Adjust-e-Lume photometry to 
determine desired intensity.

****Accommodates up to 2 lens/shielding media.

SUB-2270-00 



Brass LED Umbrella Lights
By Focus Industries

Call Us 877.445.4486

Product Options

Finish: Brass , Brass Acid Rust , Brass Acid Verde , Black Acid Treatment

Details

3 brass heads, each with independent 360? swivel
Heavy duty formed brass bracket
Adjustable from 1 1/4" to 1 3/4" pole sizes
High impact clear tempered convex glass lens
High temperature red silicone O-ring
Life expectancy up to 25,000 hours for LED light
Black 10 foot SPT-1W lead wire from fixture
Connects to a 12v landscaping electrical system
Transformer is necessary but not included
ETL Listed Damp
Warranty: 3 years
Made In USA

Dimensions

Head: Height 3.5", Diameter 1.4"
Mounting Bracket: Diameter 2.5"

Lighting

4.5 Watt (160 Lumens) 12 Volt Integrated LED: Lifespan: 50000 hours

Additional Details

Product URL:
https://www.lumens.com/brass-led-umbrella-lights-by-focus-industries-FOCP9
7822.html
Rating: ETL Listed Damp

Notes:

Product ID: FOCP97822

Prepared by: Prepared for:
Project:
Room:
Placement:
Approval:

Created April 7th, 2021

https://www.lumens.com
https://www.lumens.com/brass-led-umbrella-lights-by-focus-industries-FOCP97822.html
https://www.lumens.com/brass-led-umbrella-lights-by-focus-industries-FOCP97822.html
a
Rectangle

a
Text Box
THREE HEADED FIXTURE UNDER EACH UMBRELLA



CATALOG 
NUMBER

NOTES

TYPE

One Lithonia Way  •  Conyers, GA 30012
Phone: (800) 705-7378  •  www.hydrel.com

ORDERING INFORMATION EXAMPLE:  PEPIN  3LED16  30K  12  FL  CN5  IHL  C4  LP  DBL   

*Required Fields
Notes:
1 Remote Transformer Required.
2 Up to 3 Optional items can be specified.

NOTE:  Hydrel Reserves The Right To Modify Specification Without Notice. Any dimension 
on this sheet is to be assumed as a reference dimension: “Used for information purposes 
only. It does not govern manufacturing or inspection requirements.” (ANSI Y14.5-1973)

PEPIN LED
12V LED16

Suitable For Wet Locations

PEPIN 3LED16 12

Series* Source* Color Temperature* Voltage* Distribution* Mounting Accessories* Mounting Stems

PEPIN 3LED16 LED 3up Round 27K

30K

40K

50K

12 1 NSP Narrow Spot

NFL Narrow Flood

FL Flood

CN4 Rectangular canopy

CN5 Round 5” canopy

DCDM Two part canopy

S__ Straight Stems Avail. in 3” and 
6”-36” in 6” Increments

Options 2 External Caps* Finish*

Internal Louver

IHL Honeycomb Louver

Internal Accessory

L1 Prismatic Lens

L2 Linear Spread Lens

L3 Softening Lens

Internal Filters

FA Amber

FG Green

FGD Green Dichroic

FLB Light Blue

FM Mercury Vapor

FMB Medium Blue

FMBD Medium Blue Dichroic

FR Red

FRD Red Dichroic

C1 Short Flush

C2 Recessed Lens

C3 45º  Angle Cut

C4 Long Flush

BL Black Textured

BRS Bronze Smooth

BRT Bronze Textured

DBL Black Smooth

DDB Designer Bronze

DNA Natural Aluminum

NBS Natural Bronze Smooth

VET Verde Textured

WH White

CF Custom Finish

DESCRIPTION
The Pepin series is a nonadjustable down light suitable for 
ceiling mounting to provide accent or general lighting.  Wet 
Location, Indoor/Outdoor rated, machined from billet Alumi -
num, Stainless Steel Hardware, Optically Clear heat strengthen 
borosilicate glass and Powder coated with a super durable 
TGIC powder coat finish, this fixture is designed to withstand 
the test of time.  Designed with a wide range input voltage 
(11Vac - 14Vac) giving a nearly constant light output to combat 
Voltage drop, yet is dimmable using most standard Low Volt -
age Magnetic dimmers. LED units and Optics are replaceable. 
This fixture requires a remote 12Vac Transformer, purchased 
separately, to function. 

MOUNTING DETAIL

CN4 CN5

D: 2-1/4” (58mm)

H: 4-17/32” (116mm) w/C1
5-17/32” (135mm) w/C2
7-11/32” (187mm) w/C3
5-9/32” (135mm) w/C4

*See mounting detail for additional dimensions.

Weight up to 5 lbs (2.3kg)
C1

C2

C3

C4

H
H H

H

D

DCDM

5"
(127mm)

3 9/32"
(83.5mm)

2x
Ø3/16"
(4.8mm)

Ø27/32"
(22mm)

3/8"
(10mm)

3 1/4"
(83mm)

3 1/2"
(89mm)

3/8"
(10mm)

2x
Ø3/16"
(4.8mm)

Ø27/32"
(22mm)

Ø5"
(127mm)

7/8"
(22mm)

2x
Ø3/16"
(4.8mm)

Ø31/4"
(83mm)

Ø27/32"
(22mm)

2 5/8"
(66mm)

©2014-2019 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc.
Rev. 04/17/19

PEPIN_LED

a
Text Box
SURFACE MOUNTED LIGHTS UNDER EXISTING BALCONY



Direct-Wire LED Recessed Downlight

6JBK RD
IC 

Remodel

Specifications
Aperture: 4-3/4" (119.7)
Overlap Trim: 7-1/4" (184.6)
Height: 5" (127.9) 
Ceiling Opening: 6-1/2" (165)
Min Ceiling Thickness: 1/2" (12.7)
Max Ceiling Thickness: 1-1/2" (38.1)
All dimensions are inches (millimeters).

FEATURES & SPECIFICATIONS
INTENDED USE — The OneUp™ recessed direct-wire LED downlights includes integrated junction box, 
trim, pre-installed non-metallic push-in connectors, and wago connectors in one package. The OneUp is 
the most economical means to create a well lit environment with exceptional energy efficiency and near 
zero maintenance. 

CONSTRUCTION — Spun steel, round baffle trim. Integrated galvanized steel junction box with captive 
door for easy access. Suitable for daisy chaining (pulling wires). Available in 3000K color temperature 
LEDs.

OPTICS — Round baffle recesses optical system into the ceiling to prevent glare and provide a 
traditional look. Diffused lens provides even light distribution for general illumination, equivalent to 
65W incandescent flood lamp. Wide flood beam angle at >90°. CRI >90. Maintains at least 70% light 
output for 50,000 hours.

INSTALLATION — Tool-less installation. Secure trim retention with two side-mounted spring clips for 
easy installation in plaster, sheet rock, or plywood ceilings. Two non-metallic push-in connectors and 
three wago connectors pre-installed. Rated for Type IC installations. Maximum of 4 No. 12AWG through 
branch circuit conductor suitable for 90°C permitted in box. Ground wire provided. 

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM — LED module with high-efficiency on board driver. Dimming down to 10%. For 
compatible dimmers, refer to: Compatible dimmers Chart.  

Actual wattage may differ by +/-5% when operating at 120V +/-10%.

LISTINGS — ETL certified to US and Canadian safety standards. California T24 compliant. WSEC 
ASTEM E283 for Air-Tight rated with gasket or caulking between fixture trim and ceiling. ENERGY STAR® 
certified. Wet location listed.

WARRANTY — 5-year limited warranty. Complete warranty terms located at:  
www.acuitybrands.com/CustomerResources/Terms_and_conditions.aspx

Note: Actual performance may differ as a result of end-user environment and application.  
All values are design or typical values, measured under laboratory conditions at 25 °C. 
Specifications subject to change without notice. 

DOWNLIGHTING 6JBK RD

Catalog  
Number

Notes

Type

Notes 

1 Total System Delivered Lumens.

5.04 [127.9]

7.28 [185.0]

4.71 [119.7]

Series Shape CCT/Watts/Lumens1 CRI Finish

6JBK RD Round 30K 3000K/10.9W/850L 90CRI 90 CRI MW Matte White

ORDERING INFORMATION For shortest lead times, configure product using standard options (shown in bold). Example:  6JBK RD 30K 90CRI MW

IC RATED AIRTIGHT

http://www.acuitybrands.com/CustomerResources/Terms_and_conditions.aspx
a
Text Box
RECESSED LIGHTS IN WINTERGARDEN CEILING



2        Acuity Brands®  |  Juno FlexConnect™

Superior Performance  
and Quality of Light  
 Juno FlexConnect™ LED luminaires offer superb  

lighting performance, producing up to 450 lumens  

per foot of brilliant white light in CCTs of 2200K,  

2700K, 3000K, 3500K, and 4000K. 

Onboard Current Regulation – Consistent 
light output is maintained across the length of  
the run utilizing current regulators every 6-inches; 
unlike traditional LED tape that uses resistors 
which results in voltage drop and  
light degradation.

Embedded Connectors – Patent pending,
embedded connectors allow Juno FlexConnect 
to be field-cut in 6-inch increments and reconnected 
in the field to another strip, electrical feed  
or connector.

The proprietary optical pigment utilized in Juno FlexConnect luminaires is truly unique.  

This UV-stable pigment maintains color throughout the life of the product and corrects color  

shift that regularly occurs with other encapsulated strips. CCT color points are maintained  

within a 3-step MacAdam ellipse, providing the ability to accurately match other architectural  

lighting within a space. Excellent color rendition is achieved with standard CRI of 80 minimum  

and CRI of 95 available in the 2700K and 3000K versions. No other flexible linear-lighting  

system can compare in color and performance to these exceptional luminaires.

Patent Pending Optical Pigment

Indoor  
(SL Series, Damp Location) 
• 2W/ft. (225 lm/ft.) 
• 4W/ft. (425 lm/ft.)
• 12 LEDS per foot

Indoor/Outdoor  
(SLW Series, IP67 Rated) 
• 2W/ft. (220 lm/ft.) 
• 4W/ft. (450 lm/ft.)
• 12 or 24 LEDS per foot

a
Text Box
CONTINUOUS LED STRIP LIGHTS AT 6" O.C. IN CUSTOM INTERNALLY ILLUMINATED BOXES UNDER AWNINGS



®

© 2019-2021 Acuity Brands Lighting, Inc. • One Lithonia Way Conyers GA 30012 
Phone: 800-705-SERV (7378) • www.hydrel.com

CATALOG  
NUMBER

NOTES

TYPE

4750L QS Static White | Rev. 01/19/21
Page 1 of 8

4750L STATIC WHITE
Linear
Design2Ship

HIGHLIGHTS

• The The 4750L delivers industry leading durability, 
performance and lumen output

• Superior water resistance IP67 with Hydrel “Flow-Thru” 
technology, water flows around the independently sealed 
integral driver module and sealed LED module

• Aiming integrity with a fully adjustable and rugged knuckle 
design using Taper-Lock technology

• Long life in the most demanding environments with low 
copper content housing materials, stainless steel fasteners, 
and durable powder coat finish options for Coastal Regions 
and Natatoriums

• 3G vibration rated per ANCI C136.31

LUMEN PACKAGES

STANDARD DISTRIBUTION

TM

Specifications 

Weight: 4' 17.5lbs
2' 12.5lbs

DIMENSIONS

AIMING DETAILS

48.00 (1219)

AJUSTABLE 33.5-36.5 (851-927)

9.25 (235)

4.11 3.00

4.00

3.80 (97)

4.00 (102)

3.00 (76) 4.11 (104)

AJUSTABLE 17.5-18.5 (445-470)

24.00 (610)

9.25 (235)

15° x 120°VNSP

25° x 120°NSP

95° x 120°WFL

ASY

WWD

60° x 120°MFL

155°

45°

135°

45°

KM KMS

110° 90°
90° 90°

KM90 KMS90

VNSP NSP MFL WFL WWD

Delivered Lumens 6491 6646 7200 7286 6592

Watts 64 64 64 64 64

LPW 102 104 113 114 103

Peak Candela 7650 5961 4242 2683 3998

Note: Information based on 4000K @ 2000LMF on 4FT fixture

tel://18007057378
http://www.hydrel.com
https://www.acuitybrands.com/resources/quickship/design2ship
a
Text Box
AT BASE OF DECORATIVE WALL PANEL



^W��/&/��d/KE�^,��d 
W�Zd�E�D�͗�  ,��d^dZ/W�Z�^d�hZ�Ed 

��^�Z/Wd/KE͗  ,ŝŐŚ�ŝŶƚĞŶƐŝƚǇ�ĞůĞĐƚƌŝĐ�ƌĂĚŝĂŶƚ�ŚĞĂƚĞƌ 

W�Zd�EŽ͗�  d,,ϯϮϬϬ�hD 

WKt�Z͗�  ϯϮϬϬ�tĂƩƐ�;ϭϭϬϬϬ�dhͿ 

sK>d�'�͗�  ϮϬϴ�ǀŽůƚƐ�Λ�ϱϬ�-�ϲϬ,ǌ 

�hZZ�Ed͗�  ϭϱ��ŵƉƐ 

�/D�E^/KE^͗�  ϳϬ�ǆ�ϲ͘ϱ�ǆ�Ϯ͟� 

t�/',d͗�  ϮϮ�ůďƐ� 

�KEE��d/KE͗  'ĂŶŐďŽǆ 

�WWZKs�>^͗  �^�ͬh>��ϯϮϭϰϰϴ 

WZKd��d/KE�Z�d/E'͗ /Wϱϱ�&ƌŽŵ�ǁĂƚĞƌ�ŝŶŐƌĞƐƐ�ĨƌŽŵ�Ăůů� 

   ĚŝƌĞĐƟŽŶƐ  

DKhEd/E'�KWd/KE^͗ ^ƵŝƚĂďůĞ�ĨŽƌ�ĐĞŝůŝŶŐ͕�ǁĂůů͕�ďĞĂŵ͕�ĮǆĞĚ� 
   ƵŵďƌĞůůĂ�ĂŶĚ�ƌĞĐĞƐƐ�ŵŽƵŶƟŶŐ͘��ůƐŽ� 
   ĂǀĂŝůĂďůĞ�ǁŝƚŚ�ĚƌŽƉ�ĚŽǁŶ�ƉŽůĞƐ�Žƌ� 

   ƐƵƐƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�Ŭŝƚ͘ 

DKhEd/E'�,�/',d͗  

D/E/DhD  ϴϮ͟�;Ϯ͘ϭŵͿ 

KWd/DhD�  ϵϬ�ƚŽ�ϭϬϱ͟�;Ϯ͘ϯ�ƚŽ�Ϯ͘ϳŵͿ 

hƐĞ�ĚƌŽƉ�ĚŽǁŶ�Ŭŝƚ�Žƌ�ƐƵƐƉĞŶƐŝŽŶ�Ŭŝƚ�ŝĨ�ŚŝŐŚĞƌ 

EŽƚĞ͗�^ĞĞ�ƚŚĞ�WƌŽĚƵĐƚ�DĂŶƵĂů�ĨŽƌ�ŵŽƌĞ�ĚĞƚĂŝů 

 

/E�KKZ�WZKd��d�� ϴϲ�ŌϮ�;ϲŵϮͿ 

Khd�KKZ��E�>K^�� ϲϵ�ŌϮ;ϰ͘ϴŵϮͿ 

Khd�KKZ��yWK^�� ϱϳ�ŌϮ�;ϰŵϮͿ 

,��d����Z��� 

,ĞĂƚƐƚƌŝƉ�h^��>>�͘   ϰϮϳϱ��ǆĞĐƵƟǀĞ�^ƋƵĂƌĞ�  ϲϭϲ��ŽƌƉŽƌĂƚĞ�tĂǇ͕� 

ϭ-ϴϳϳ-ϮϮϮ-ϬϬϲϯ�;dŽůů�&ƌĞĞͿ�  ηϮϬϬ    ^ƵŝƚĞ�Ϯ-ϱϳϳϭ͕� 

ǁǁǁ͘ŚĞĂƚƐƚƌŝƉƵƐĂ͘ĐŽŵ  >Ă�:ŽůůĂ͕���͕�ϵϮϬϯϳ  sĂůůĞǇ��ŽƩĂŐĞ͕�Ez�ϭϬϵϴϵ 

ŝŶĨŽΛŚĞĂƚƐƚƌŝƉƵƐĂ͘ĐŽŵ� 



www.mucklerktech.com   

a
Text Box
NEW MAKE UP AIR UNIT ON ROOF



SHEET NO.

SCALE:

DWG.#:

DRAWN

DATE:

 BY:

w
w

w
.m

uc
kl

er
kt

ec
h.

co
m

   

REVISIONS

MASTER DRAWING

M
ic

hi
ga

n 
O

ff
ic

e

38
76

 E
as

t P
ar

is
 A

ve
 S

E
, S

ui
te

 1
8,

 G
ra

nd
 R

ap
id

s,
 M

I, 
49

51
2 

P
H

O
N

E
: (

61
6)

 9
42

-9
88

1 
FA

X
: (

91
9)

 2
27

-5
98

4 
E

M
A

IL
: r

eg
77

@
kt

ec
hh

oo
ds

.c
om

a
Text Box
NEW EXHAUST FAN ON ROOF



Cooling Performance
Total gross capacity 130.0 MBH
Sensible gross capacity 96.0 MBH
Total net capacity 120.7 MBH
Sensible net capacity 86.7 MBH
Efficiency (at ARI) 12.00 EER
Integrated eff. (at ARI) 14.60 IEER
Ambient DB temp. 95.0 °F
Entering DB temp. 80.0 °F
Entering WB temp. 67.0 °F
Leaving DB temp. 57.8 °F
Leaving WB temp. 56.7 °F
Power input (w/o blower) 9.00 kW
Sound power 83 dB(A)

Refrigerant
Refrigerant type R-410A
Sys1 7 lbs 12 oz
Sys2 7 lbs 10 oz

Gas Heating Performance
Entering DB temp. 60 °F
Heating output capacity (Max) 192 MBH
Supply air 4000 CFM
Heating input capacity (Max) 240 MBH
Leaving DB temp. 104.4 °F
Air temp. rise 44.4 °F
SSE 80.0 %
Stages 2

Supply Air Blower Performance
Supply air 4000 CFM
Ext. static pressure  0.6 IWG
Addl. Unit Losses (Options/Accessories) 0.58 IWG
Blower speed 1181 RPM
Max BHP of Motor (including service factor) 3.45 HP
Duct location Bottom
Motor rating 3.00 HP
Actual required BHP 2.94 HP
Power input 2.74 kW
Elevation 0 ft.
Drive type BELT
Requires field-supplied drive true

Electrical Data 
Power supply 208-3-60 230-3-60
Unit min circuit ampacity 50.9 Amps 50.9 Amps
Unit max over-current protection 60 Amps 60 Amps

Dimensions & Weight 
Hgt 51 in. Len  89 in. Wth 59 in.
Weight with factory installed options 1335 lbs.

Clearances
Right 12 in. Front 36 in. Rear 36 in.
Top 72 in. Bottom 0 in. Left 36 in.
Note:  Please refer to the tech guide for listed maximum static pressures

10 Ton
• JCI Pro units are manufactured at an ISO 9001 registered facility and each
rooftop is completely computer-run tested prior to shipment.

Unit Features
• Two Stage Cooling
• 240 MBH Input Stainless Steel, Two Stage Gas Heat
• Unit Cabinet Constructed of Powder Painted Steel, Certified At 750 Hours
Salt Spray Test (ASTM B-117 Standards)

• Full perimeter base rails with built in rigging capabilities
• Scroll Compressor[s]
• Dry Bulb Low Leak Economizer w/Barometric Relief and Power Exhaust and
Hoods (Bottom or Horizontal End Return Only) with Economizer Fault
Detection & Diagnostic (Meets ASHRAE 90.1-2013, IECC 2015, California
Title 24, AMCA 511).

• Slide-out Blower/3 HP Belt Drive Motor Assembly
• Unit Ships with 2" Pleated Filters (MERV 8)
• Solid Core Liquid Line Filter Driers
• Replacement Filters: 4 - (24" x 20"). Unit accepts 2" or 4" wide filters.
• Non-Powered Convenience Outlet
• HACR Circuit Breaker/Disconnect
• Short Circuit Current: 5kA RMS Symmetrical
• Single Point Power Connection
• Through-the-Curb and Through-the-Base Utility Connections
• Phase Monitor
• Micro-Channel "all-aluminum" condenser coil, Copper tube/aluminum fin
evaporator coil

• Composite Drain Pan - Front Connection
• Tool-free maintenance with features like hinged doors for all-access panels,
slide-out blower and blower motor tray

BAS Controller
• IntelliSpeed control of the VFD based on stages of cooling. Provides Single
Zone VAV Fan Operation as defined by ASHRAE 90.1 section 6.4.3.10.

• Smart Equipment Controller including Discharge Air, Return Air, and Outdoor
Air Temperature Sensors.

Standard Unit Controller: Smart Equipment Control Board
• Safety Monitoring - Monitors the High and Low-Pressure Switches, the
Freezestats, the Gas Valve, if Applicable, and the Temperature Limit Switch
on Gas and Electric Heat Units. The Unit Control Board will Alarm on Ignition
Failures, Safety Lockouts and Repeated Limit Switch Trips.

Warranty
• One (1) Year Limited Warranty on the Complete Unit
• Five (5) Year Warranty - Compressors and Electric Heater Elements
• Fifteen (15) Year Limited Warranty - Stainless Steel Heat Exchanger

Information is subject to change without notice. Check local codes. Printed 03/19/2021

3-12.5 Pro Page: 3

Project Name:  Superior Bar and Grill Unit Model #:  ZJ120S24R2D5BAA2A2
Quantity:   2  System:    ZJ120S24R2D5BAA2A2

a
Cross-Out

a
Text Box
TYPICAL ROOFTOP HVAC UNIT



 
R O N A N D R O M A N  
 

 
 
   

2 7 5  E .  F r a n k ,  B i r m i n g h a m  M i  4 8 0 0 9        2 4 8 - 7 2 3 - 5 7 9 0  

 

 
April 7, 2021 
 
 
Mr. Nick Dupuis 
Plan Reviewer, City of Birmingham 
 
Re: 720 N. Old Woodward – Vinewood Bistro (Lower Level in Kohler Building) 
 
 
Dear Mr. Dupuis, 
 
This letter addresses issues raised during the February 24th Planning Commission 
meeting at which time the project was postponed. 
 
Since then, we have made revisions to the following items which should remove 
them from being contentious: 
 

1. We have reduced the projection and valance height of the front canopy at 
Old Woodward to be compliant with the zoning ordinance. 

2. We have reduced the projection and eliminated the ground mounted post 
which was not on our property at the rear entry canopy 

3. We have noted the mechanical equipment screen height and included cut 
sheets for the proposed tallest rooftop equipment (the make up air unit). 

4. We have added a new drawing showing all adjacent structures within 200 
feet of the bistro and adjacent parking lot. 

5. We have completed and added a photometric study plan 
 

In addition to these specific technical requirements, a number of issues were raised 
by the commission which are addressed below: 
 
Wintergarden configuration and use 
The proposed wintergarden is an outdoor space where the exterior wall is comprised 
of permanently installed bronze screens and bronze screened man doors, with a new 
all glass wall with operable doors between the bistro interior and the Wintergarden.  
This space shall be heated with infrared electric heaters and will not utilize the HVAC 
system supplying the interior of the Bistro. 
 
The screening allows for the opening of the glass wall doors between the Bistro and 
the Wintergarden when weather permits meeting Health Department requirements 
for preventing insects from entering the building.  We are not proposing at any point 
to add any Isinglass or solid glass infills at the propose screen walls, and would 
propose to make that a condition of use. 
 
The 26 proposed seats in the Wintergarden along with the proposed 38 seasonal 



 

 
 
 

2 7 5  E .  F r a n k ,  B i r m i n g h a m  M i  4 8 0 0 9        2 4 8 - 7 2 3 - 5 7 9 0  

 

seats on the exterior portion of patio total 64 outdoor seats which are within the 
limit established by the Bistro ordinance. 
 
The Wintergarden itself provides for the opportunity to apply for extended patio use 
for the 26 seats as a separate application available to all patios which is granted 
based on each specific location of patio in the City. 
 
The building owner has adequate space in other floors of this building, and other 
spaces in the buildings he owns south of this project to store all outdoor furnishings 
requiring to be brought in daily. 
 
Proximity of garage entry adjacent to proposed Bistro entry 
Because of the configuration of grade at the neighboring south building garage entry, 
we believe there is less life safety concern with the cars entering this door due to the 
slow speed required to approach the grade then exists at the patios along Old 
Woodward where cars pull into angled spaces at speed, potentially overriding the 
curb and engaging patrons on sidewalk patios. 
 
If the Planning Commission feels the need, we can add a guard component to 
prevent a pedestrian from engaging the change of grade. 
 
Dumpster location and screening 
We have studied the placement, configuration, enclosure and frequency of trash 
management for this project and the other businesses sharing this dumpster 
location.  Currently, this project owner also owns the trash management company 
providing service there now.   
 
The existing dumpsters leave a 13 ft 8 in clear drive, our solution provides for a 15 ft 
wide lane, allows for simpler servicing of the units, provides screening all around and 
accommodates a grease trap and ancillary storage space for cardboard which we 
have witnessed being stored at that area. 
 
We shall work with the city to pursue any other required permits for the placement 
and use of this dumpster location. 
 
Based on existing use and pickup schedule of twice weekly, we can increase the 
frequency of pickup to 3 times weekly or every other day as may be required based 
on the impact of the Bistro. 
 
Deliveries 
The typical Fedex and UPS deliveries expected for the Bistro are no different than 
that associated with the other businesses adjacent to this project, and the frequency 
is expected to be less than the adjacent businesses as they do not typically utilize 
those carriers for day to day business needs. 
 
The delivery of food and dry good product will be scheduled to occur earlier daily as 
the operations of the restaurant require it.  There will be no late night deliveries. 
 



 

 
 
 

2 7 5  E .  F r a n k ,  B i r m i n g h a m  M i  4 8 0 0 9        2 4 8 - 7 2 3 - 5 7 9 0  

 

Clarification of number of seats and their location 
This project proposes the following seats per the submitted plans: 
 
Interior Seats   64 
Wintergarden Patio Seats 26 
Exterior Patio Seats  38 
 
This results in 64 interior seats, and 64 patio seats. 
 
Location of proposed outdoor patio 
We believe strongly that the appropriate location for the patio associated with this 
Bistro belongs at the “storefront” of the bistro, and not dislocated on North Old 
Woodward.  We interpret the intent of the Bistro Ordinance as providing seating in 
storefront windows with continuing the dynamic with the outdoor seating 
component.  A freestanding patio on N. Old Woodward would be difficult to service 
and would be contrary to our interpretation of the ordinance.   
 
We believe that the interest the City Commission expressed in this location for the 
Bistro promotes the proposed location of the patio. 
 
With the changes to the construction of the patio noted in the paragraph following, 
we have also eliminated the fountains with lighting, and configured the patio with a 
built-in planter which will limit the number of patrons at the easternmost edge of the 
patio at its proposed location at the storefront of the Bistro. 
 
Building within the AE floodplain/floodway 
We have reviewed the State of Michigan Permit Requirements for building in the 
Floodplain and have revised our proposed construction of the entire rear patio and 
ramp area to be a wood framed structure with an IPE deck.  As such we believe we 
can meet the requirements for permit approval with structural piers not interfering 
with floodwater flows.  We also understand the flood insurance needs associated 
with building in the Floodplain. 
 
This solution also provides for a simpler approach to the lease negotiation with the 
City for the proposed property on which the patio is proposed, allowing for simpler 
removal of the structure upon completion of the term of the lease. 
 
The proposed use of wood also responds to the natural setting along the river. 
 
Other Considerations: 
We have visited this site during evening hours and have found that the most 
obtrusive component as viewed from the neighboring residential area is the existing 
pole mounted sodium vapor light lighting the northern end of the parking lot, and 
numerous pedestrian scaled city lights along the back of the building.   
 
Signage Location: 
We propose to pursue a variance for the sign location on the to be leased area for 
the patio.  We believe this is the most reasonable location for the sign, and that its 



 

 
 
 

2 7 5  E .  F r a n k ,  B i r m i n g h a m  M i  4 8 0 0 9        2 4 8 - 7 2 3 - 5 7 9 0  

 

removal would be required at the end of the term of the lease.  The unique 
conditions of the project and the ability to provide for a subtle sign that would not 
set precedent as it would be tied to the lease makes the most sense.  We will pursue 
a separate variance for this location. 
 
Hours: 
The owners shall address final operating hour considerations on hearing staff’s 
information requested by Mr. Boyle on the operating hours of the 2 nearest bistros. 
 
We look forward to continuing our dialogue with the commission, and hope the 
information provided above helps clarify the technical issues associated with this 
project. 
 
Sincerely, 
 

 
Roman Bonislawski, R.A. 
Ron and Roman, Inc. 
 
cc. Brian Najor 
  Christ Backos  

 



 

R O N A N D R O M A N  
 

 
 

     

2 7 5   E .   F r a n k ,   B i r m i n g h a m   M i   4 8 0 0 9               2 4 8 ‐ 7 2 3 ‐ 5 7 9 0  

 

 
Vinewood Bistro – April 6, 2021 
 
Site Plan Review 
 
 
Itemized List of Revisions 
 
Front awning – reduced projection & valance height to be compliant with zoning ordinance 
 
Rear canopy – reduced projection & eliminated ground mounted posts 
 
Trash enclosure – revised layout to increase functionality 
 
Roof screen – noted screen height & included cut sheets for heights of new equipment 
 
Photometrics – added new photometric plan sheet to show proposed new light levels 
 
Surrounding site – added new adjacent properties site plan, showing structures within 200’ of 
bistro, and adjacent parking lot 
 
Rear patio construction – revised construction method to wood deck framing on pier foundations 
rather than masonry walls with concrete slabs, as a better approach to new construction in the 
flood plain 
 
Updated cut sheets – new wood decking, revised infrared heater, rooftop equipment, revised light 
fixtures, revised plantings 
 
Narrative – included new narrative speaking to Planning Board’s concerns discussed at previous 
meeting 
 
 
 
 











 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
February 24, 2021 

 

2 
 

PD Ecker said the applicant would have to request another variance from the BZA 
because all granted variances are tied to the specific submitted plans as a condition 
of approval.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Whipple-Boyce, Boyle, Share, Williams, Koseck, Clein, Jeffares  
Nays: None 
 
Motion by Ms. Whipple-Boyce 
Seconded by Mr. Boyle to recommend approval to the City Commission of the 
applicant’s request for a Special Land Use Amendment for Birmingham Pub restaurant 
at 555 S. Old Woodward with the following conditions: (1) The Planning Board 
designates the Bowers elevation as the principal building frontage or the applicant 
reduces the overall building signage by 47.76 sq. ft.; (2) The applicant remove the 
proposed illumination from the building identification sign on Woodward Avenue or 
obtain a variance from the Board of Zoning Appeals; (3) Applicant provide all material, 
color and lighting specifications for all signage; and (4) Applicant execute a revised 
contract with the City of Birmingham outlining the nature of the proposed operation 
of Birmingham Pub and approving the use of the existing Economic Development 
liquor license under the new name Birmingham Pub. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Whipple-Boyce, Williams, Boyle, Share, Koseck, Clein, Jeffares  
Nays: None 

 
2. 720 N. Old Woodward – Vinewood Bistro (Lower Level in Kohler Building), 
Special Land Use Permit request and Final Site Plan and Design Review to consider 
approval of Vinewood, a new bistro proposed at the rear of the building, including the 
service of alcoholic liquor.  
 

CP Dupuis reviewed the item. 
 
Chair Clein noted the Board received two emails from residents of Brookside, across the Rouge 
River from the proposed Vinewood Bistro. The emails were from Drew Detling and Kristen Tait, 
both expressing concerns about the proposed plans. He noted the emails would be included in 
the March 10, 2021 Planning Board agenda packet. 
 
Brian Najor, co-applicant, Roman Bonislawski, architect, Ron Rea, architect, and Chris Bakos, 
restauranteur and co-applicant, were present on behalf of the application. 
 
Mr. Bonislawski explained: 

● The garage door opening at the north end of building will be removed and turned into a 
screen; 

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
February 24, 2021 

 

3 
 

● There will be an infrared linear gas tube heating component in the building; 
● The building will have fire sprinklers throughout; 
● The rooftop mechanical will be screened; 
● The proposed ducting architecture in the back of the building is because Kohler cannot 

have new shafts built through it; 
● The grade differential outside the garage in the rear of the building means cars can only 

enter/exit very slowly; 
● The rear canopy will be redesigned without the freestanding column; 
● The part of the patio furthest from the building will be not engaged at all, with plans to 

sink it a bit to dampen the noise; 
● There will be adequate space to take in the outdoor furniture at night in the off-season; 

and, 
● There will be a separate natural gas radiant heater in the outdoor space, but nothing 

coming off of the interior HVAC into the outdoor space. 
 
PD Ecker noted that the applicant could do off-season outdoor dining as long as they secure a 
permit from the City and bring in the outdoor furniture every night. 
 
Chair Clein said the design was beautiful. He said he was supportive of the rear sign aesthetically 
but would defer to legal considerations on that. He asked what the applicant could do to address 
some of the nearby residents’ concerns. 
 
Mr. Bonislawski said that the foliage blocks a lot of the sound and light in spring and summer. 
The planned outdoor lighting is minimalist. He said they could add more greenery along the metal 
partition screening along the ramp, which faces Brookside to the east. He said the applicant team 
would be averse to putting any greenery between the outdoor dining and the river since part of 
the charm is seeing the river. He said their plans also keep the seats closer to the building rather 
than further out towards the ramp in order to maintain the distance from Brookside as much as 
possible. 
 
Public Comment 
 
Helene Fertal, owner/operator of Birmingham Wine, spoke largely in favor of the application. Her 
concerns were the often overfull dumpsters behind the building, and the grease trap given issues 
with flooding in the immediate area. 
 
Kristen Tait, resident of Brookside, provided a brief overview of the concerns previously expressed 
in the email she submitted to the Board. She said that noise would be her biggest concern. She 
said that she is able to see and hear clearly across the river in all seasons. She also clarified that 
even when the foliage comes in, it still does not block her views into Vinewood’s proposed outdoor 
seating area, and vice-versa. 
 
Rob Kamenec, Brookside resident, said he was deeply concerned about the prospect of increased 
noise from Vinewood especially with the proposed closing hours of 1 a.m. He observed that staff 
would be staying after 1 a.m. to finish cleaning and closing, meaning that the noise would 
necessarily occur even after 1 a.m. 
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
February 24, 2021 

 

4 
 

Mr. Share said that one evening the prior week he had been walking by Social Kitchen at 8 p.m. 
when the temperature was not above freezing. He said the outdoor seating area at Social was 
very crowded. He asked for some assurance from the applicant that the winter garden at 
Vinewood will not replicate some of the issues the City has faced from the outdoor seating at 
Social. 
 
Some Board members asked for some clarifications of the plans in addition to the ones specified 
by CP Dupuis in his report. Those requests for clarifications included: 

● Information about how deliveries will be handled; 
● A floor plan that makes the number of seats and their location clear; 
● Comments on the plans from City departments, including and especially the Fire 

Department; and, 
● Consideration of the appropriate dumpster configuration due to the proximity of the river. 

 
Ms. Whipple-Boyce said that two dumpsters are not enough behind Vinewood, and said she has 
often seen trash on the placed outside the dumpster. She recommended Mr. Najor consider a 
compacting dumpster for the rear of the building. She said she would not recommend adding a 
third dumpster. She advised the applicant team to have a conversation with the building owner 
to the south in order to make sure that Vinewood’s plans do not conflict with the rear garage 
door used by the condominium owner on the top floor of that building. She said she was in favor 
of the winter garden idea as long as it is well-maintained. 
 
Mr. Koseck expressed concerns about the outdoor seating not activating the street, which he 
stated was a significant aim of the bistro ordinance. He said that having the seating in the back 
could make it hard to police. He also said the logistics of trash pick-up, deliveries and cleaning 
would be made more difficult by the entrance in the back. 
 
Mr. Jeffares noted that when bistro options were reviewed by the Commission at their October 
26, 2020 meeting, Mr. Najor proposed two bistros: Vinewood and a bistro in the center of town 
that would have activated the street. He highlighted the fact that the Commissioners advanced 
the plans for Vinewood, even with the understanding that the outside seating would not be on 
the street, because it seemed like a unique opportunity to have seating by the river. 
 
Mr. Williams, Mr. Jeffares, and Mr. Boyle expressed concern about making sure that the proposed 
hours do not adversely affect the residents across the river.  
 
Mr. Williams recommended that staff return with information on the hours of operation for Market 
North and Luxe Bistro, the two nearest bistros, to see how those hours compare to the hours 
proposed for Vinewood.  
 
Mr. Boyle said reviewing noise or other complaints for the two aforementioned bistros might 
clarify Vinewood’s potential impact on the residents across the river since those two bistros abut 
residential area. 
 
Mr. Koseck and Mr. Jeffares expressed concern about the high number of total proposed seats 
since the application was coming in as a bistro and not as a Class C license.  
 



Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings 
February 24, 2021 

5 

Mr. Emerine noted that the area behind the building is a regulated floodway, and that raising the 
ground elevation would require additional permits.  

PD Ecker stated that information had been communicated to the applicant team. 

Motion by Mr. Boyle 
Seconded by Mr. Williams to postpone the discussion regarding 720 N. Old Woodward 
– Vinewood Bistro – to the April 14, 2021 Planning Board meeting.

Motion carried, 7-0. 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Whipple-Boyce, Williams, Boyle, Share, Koseck, Clein, Jeffares 
Nays: None 

Motion by Mr. Williams 
Seconded by Mr. Share to suspend the rules for the April 14, 2021 Planning Board 
meeting to allow the review of site plans. 

Motion carried, 7-0. 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Whipple-Boyce, Williams, Boyle, Share, Koseck, Clein, Jeffares 
Nays: None 

Mr. Jeffares noted the City should take a look at the lighting in Lot Six to see whether that can 
be better screened so as not to adversely affect the residences across the river. 

02-30-21

G. Miscellaneous Business and Communications:
a. Communications
b. Administrative Approval Correspondence

After a brief review of the proposal from CP Dupuis, the Planning Board told Randy Dickow they 
had no initial hesitations about the Mad Hatter moving into the vacant space next door to their 
current location in order to expand their access to space for outdoor dining. 

In reply to Mr. Jeffares, Mr. Dickow said he would remove the two gazebos currently in front of 
the Mad Hatter as soon as possible. 

CP Dupuis then presented a brief proposal from Brooklyn Pizza that would include two outdoor 
dining pods.  

Mr. Williams and Mr. Boyle said they did not like the proposed pod to the north. 



City Of Birmingham 
Regular Meeting Of The Planning Board 

Wednesday, April 14, 2021 
Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access 

E. Special Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan and Design Review

1. 720 N. Old Woodward, Vinewood Bistro (Lower Level in Kohler Building), Special
Land Use Permit and Final Site Plan and Design Review request to consider approval of
Vinewood, a new bistro proposed at the rear of the building, including the service of
alcoholic liquor (Postponed from February 24, 2021).

CP Dupuis presented the item. 

In reply to Board inquiries, Planning Staff stated: 
● Given the dimensions, there should not be an issue with a vehicle making a turn in the

rear even if the two closest spots have vehicles in them. The Engineering Department
reviewed the plans, including that aspect, and did not flag it as an issue. Only one vehicle
would be able get through at a time.

● There is nothing in the ordinance that would prevent the use of painted gypsum board as
part of the exterior.

● The rear of the building could be considered to have a ‘pedestrian passage’ as required
by Item E in the bistro ordinance since there is a sidewalk lined by entrances to the
buildings. It might also not qualify as a ‘pedestrian passage’ since the aforementioned
entrances are not accessible to the public.

● While the ordinance would not prevent this bistro from being located in the front of the
building, it might not be desirable since it would result in the loss of a parking spot.

● In contrast with previous years, the Commission did not request that the bistros be
returned to them ranked in terms of priority.

Mr. Koseck said that if the rear of the building were considered a pedestrian passage then the 
rear facade would need to have 70% glazing. He said he did not believe the plans as proposed 
met the spirit or intent of the bistro ordinance, which is to create dialogue between the interior 
and exterior. 

Roman Bonislawski spoke on behalf of the applicant. He stated: 
● The proposed lighting would only slightly extend the existing lighting. The lighting would

need to remain as-proposed in order to maintain sufficient safe lighting for the patio. The
lighting would meet the zero condition at the edge of the ramp. A shield component could
be added to the top of the wall to trap light. The lights in the front of the building could
be reduced.

● The applicant team is fully aware of the permitting requirements for floodwater areas.
● The rear of the building should be described as a pedestrian path.

Chair Clein stated that all emails from the public were received by both Staff and the Board. 

Public Comment 

ndupuis
Highlight

ndupuis
Highlight



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
April 14, 2021 

 

1 
 

Kristen Tait, Drew Detling, and Kristen Bongiovanni, residents of Brookside Street, spoke against 
many aspects of the Vinewood bistro proposal due to the impact it could have on their enjoyment 
of their properties. The main concerns mentioned were noise, hours of operation, the size of the 
proposed restaurant and the strain it would put on the area’s parking.  
 
Ms. Tait noted that in her email she meant to write ‘Maplewood’ and not ‘Merrillwood’. She also 
suggested that the City should focus more on moving bistros and other establishments into 
vacancies in the downtown area instead of into the neighborhoods. 
 
John Roselli spoke as the owner of the adjacent building. He said he was concerned about 
retaining his residential tenant on the upper floor of the building due to the hours of operation, 
likely parking difficulties, potential noise issues and pedestrian safety in the rear of the building. 
He said the dumpsters were consistently neglected by the owner and stated that he has cleaned 
around them hundreds of times in his fifteen years of ownership of the building. 
 
The Chair returned the conversation to the Board.  
 
Mr. Boyle expressed concern about the potential environmental impact of the proposal on the 
Rouge River. 
 
Mr. Share observed that the applicant would not be able to move forward with operation unless 
a permit is secured from EGLE.  
 
Both Mr. Share and Ms. Whipple-Boyce stated that the rear of the building was not a pedestrian 
passage. They also agreed that while the ‘winter garden’ aspect of the plans was creative, it was 
not outdoor space. Both concurred that the project would not meet the intent of the bistro 
ordinance in terms of activating the street. 
 
Mr. Share also expressed concerns regarding the potential noise, dumpster issues, and pedestrian 
conflict with vehicles accessing the adjacent building. 
 
Chair Clein and Mr. Koseck both agreed that while they appreciated many aspects of the project 
there were too many misalignments between the current proposal, the proposed location, and 
the bistro ordinance.  
 
Chair Clein commented that the likelihood of the project receiving the necessary permits to 
operate in the floodplain was low and the cost would be high. He said he was aware that was a 
permitting issue and not a site plan one. He said the proposal would be more appropriate if it 
were located elsewhere in the City.  
 
Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Mr. Koseck to recommend denial to the City Commission the Special 
Land Use Permit for 720 N. Old Woodward – Vinewood Bistro – because the proposal 
fails to satisfy the spirit and intent of the Zoning Ordinance as required in Section 
7.26 and 7.27, specifically the outdoor enclosure issue of 3.04(c)(10)(h), and the ‘no 
permanent structure requirement’ of Section 3.04(c)(10)(i), as well as floodplain, 
dumpster, pedestrian interaction and storefront issues.  



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
April 14, 2021 

 

2 
 

 
Mr. Koseck said the seating limits in the bistro ordinance were a key part of its appeal 
and efficacy. He noted that the area in the rear of 720 N. Old Woodward would be 
difficult to police. He also noted that even if the Planning Board did endorse the 
proposed plans the applicant would still have to appear before the Board of Zoning 
Appeals for a number of variance requests. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Koseck, Jeffares, Whipple-Boyce, Clein, Ramin, Boyle  
Nays: None  
 
Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Mr. Koseck to recommend denial to the City Commission the final site 
plan and design review for 720 N. Old Woodward – Vinewood Bistro – because the 
proposal fails to satisfy the spirit and intent of the Zoning Ordinance as required in 
Section 7.26 and 7.27, specifically the outdoor enclosure issue of 3.04(c)(10)(h), and 
the ‘no permanent structure requirement’ of Section 3.04(c)(10)(i), as well as 
floodplain, dumpster, pedestrian interaction and storefront issues.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Koseck, Jeffares, Whipple-Boyce, Clein, Ramin, Boyle  
Nays: None  

































Restaurant Name Address Indoor Outdoor Total S M T W T F S Outdoor Ends
Adachi Sushi 325 S. Old Woodward 65 67 132 11:30 am - 10 pm 12:00 am
Bella Piatti 167 Townsend 62 28 90 12:00 am
Birmingham Sushi Café 377 Hamilton Row 65 24 89 11:00 am - 9:30 pm 12:00 am
Bistro Joe's 34244 Woodward 64 60 124 12:00 am
Churchills Bistro & Cigar Bar 116 S. Old Woodward 63 12 75 Never provided 12:00 am
Elie's Mediterranean Grill/Bar 263 Pierce 64 24 88 Never provided 12:00 am
Forest Grill 735 Forest 64 30 94 12:00 am
La Strada Café 243 E. Merrill 65 14 79 8:00 am - 3:00 pm 12:00 am
Luxe Bar & Grill 525 N. Old Woodward 59 12 71 12:00 am
Mad Hatter Café 185 N. Old Woodward 58 24 82 10:00 pm
Maple Road Taproom (Whole Foods) 2100 E. Maple 36 33 69 10:00 pm
Market North End 474 N. Old Woodward 64 44 108 12:00 am
Pernoi 310 E. Maple 65 26 91 12:00 am
Salvatore Scallopini 505 N. Old Woodward 64 34 98 9:30 am - 12:00 am 12:00 am
Social Kitchen & Bar 225 E. Maple 64 86 150 9:30 am - 12:00 am 9:30 am - 12:00 am 12:00 am
Tallulah Wine Bar & Bistro 155 S. Bates 64 42 106 12:00 am
Toast 203 Pierce 65 59 124 8:00 am - 4:00 pm 8:00 am - 9:00 pm Same as Business

Townhouse 180 Pierce 50 64 114 Never provided 12:00 AM

8:00 am - 9:30 pm

Restaurant Seating Indoor Hours of Operation

11:30 am - 10:30 pm 11:30 am - 11:30 pm
11:00 am - 12:00 am

11:00 am - 10:30 pm 11:00 - 11:00 pm

11:00 am - 12:00 am
7:00 am - 10:00 pm 7:00 am - 11:00 am 

11:00 am - 11:00 pm
9:00 am - 10:00 pm 9:00 am - 11:00 pm

11:00 am - 12:00 am

7:00 am - 3:00 pm 7:00 am - 8:00 pm

8:00 am - 10:00 pm
11:00 am - 12:00 am

5:00 pm - 11:00 pmSpecial Events Only

11:00 am - 12:00 am
11:00 am - 12:00 am



Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

Fwd: 720N. Old Woodward - Vinewood Bistro 

Drew Dettling <dsdettling@comcast.net> Wed, Feb 24, 2021 at 11:04 AM
To: ndupuis@bhamgov.org

Nicholas

Below is an email I just sent Jana.  I’m pretty sure it’s too late to distribute to Planning Board members for tonight’s
meeting (if you could get it in their hands, that would be great).  But I did want them to know that Brookside residents do
have an opinion.  

Drew Dettling 

Begin forwarded message:

From: Drew Dettling <dsdettling@comcast.net> 
Subject: 720N. Old Woodward - Vinewood Bistro 
Date: February 24, 2021 at 10:52:05 AM EST 
To: jecker@bhamgov.org 

Jana

I’m writing to voice my opposition to the Vinewood Bistro, which will be the subject of a Special Land
Use Permit and Final Site Plan and Design Review hearing tonight before the Planning Board.  I
apologize in advance for the tardiness of this letter, but I’ve been out of town and just received the
hearing notice yesterday.

By way of background, I live at 740 Brookside Ave.  My home is directly across Parking Lot #6 and
the Rouge River from the proposed Bistro.  As you know, Brookside Ave is a quiet residential dead-
end street of single family homes.  I have significant concerns about the hours of operations, light
and noise ‘pollution’ and kitchen odors of the proposed Bistro.  The homes on Brookside sit at
higher elevations from the street and the foliage along the river provides minimal screening from Lot
#6 (even in the summer).  The proximity of the proposed Bistro to our homes is roughly equivalent
to having your house sitting on the play structure in Booth Park, facing Market Northend.  The light,
noise and odors from Vinewood will significantly detract from our ability to enjoy the peace and quiet
of our homes.  It will also significantly detract from the value of our homes.  Since the developer /
operator of Vinewood has not yet specified the hours of operation, I’m assuming the worst case;
they will want to be open until 1am, similar to Luxe.  This is not tenable.

Regarding the situation with the dumpsters, the current dumpsters in Lot #6 fill rapidly, requiring
collection 2-3 times per week.  The dump trucks typically pick up at 6am, further disturbing our
peace and quiet.  With the addition of Vinewood, either more dumpsters or more frequent collection
will be needed.  And since the dumpsters sit right next to the river, any overflow of kitchen waste will
create a bad environmental situation, not to mention the need for additional pest and rodent control. 

I understand the intent of the Bistro Ordinance is to activate the streetscape and promote a more
pedestrian oriented environment, by requiring outdoor dining.  'Bistros must have tables located in
the storefront space lining any street, or pedestrian passage'.  Vinewood’s outdoor dining abutting
Parking Lot # 6 stretches the definition of street or pedestrian passage to the breaking point.  I don’t
understand the purposed of ‘activating’ a surface parking lot.  If Vinewood wanted to comply with the
spirit of the Ordinance, they would find a way to place the Bistro so it’s outdoor dining fronted on Old
Woodward. 

To the best of my knowledge, no Bistro in Birmingham has an entrance, signage and outdoor dining
facing single family residential housing.  I think that is for a reason; protect and respect the single

mailto:dsdettling@comcast.net
mailto:jecker@bhamgov.org


family neighborhoods.  Prior Planning Board and Bistro owner decisions have respected that intent.
 Approving Vinewood as proposed would break with that precedent and open the possibility for
further deterioration of our neighborhoods.  I thought the City’s recent strategic planning effort was
placing more emphasis on the neighborhoods.  I don’t believe approving Vinewood is honoring the
intent of the strategic plan.

Respectfully,

Drew Dettling
740 Brookside Ave.  
          



Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

Parking issues in North Old Woodward 
1 message

kshama Jay <kshamajay@gmail.com> Wed, Apr 14, 2021 at 2:26 PM
To: ndupuis@bhamgov.org
Cc: EMG Property Admin <propertyadmin@emgcondo.com>, Dennis Gistinger <dgistinger@gmail.com>, Kristin Bongiovanni
<kbongi@gmail.com>, kshama Jay <kshamajay@gmail.com>

Good Afternoon,

I have been informed that the township has a planning Board meeting to discuss an addition of a new Restaurant and Bar
in the Kohler Building off North Old Woodward Avenue. While this is great for the township, the parking needs to be
addressed and considered a priority before entertaining  approval of new businesses. As a homeowner and resident of
the North end, I was on a zoom call last year when the city and planning board voted to approve the extension of luxe
Bistro and Bar. I asked the question then and will ask it again, what is the city doing to assure that the planning
includes parking as well? 
We have a private parking area that is constantly occupied  and used by patrons of the different restaurants, not sure how
we can stop this. The city's parking ordinance states that this is a private lot. I have reached out to the owners of Luxe as
well to help with the logistics of the current foot traffic and vehicle traffic.  The flat lot across the area where the farmers
market takes place needs to be updated to incorporate the traffic that is expected with these expansions or maybe the city
as other ideas to help alleviate the congestion. 
We need more traffic police in the area, FYI ,it is a good source of revenue for the city. We can provide the vehicles that
are legally allowed to park in the area (we plan on using a parking decal). Bottom line is that the businesses in the area
do not help as the city does not follow through on what is expected to keep the peace. As the city of Birmingham expands
its commerce it would be prudent to ensure the safety of the residents while improving the infrastructure to match its
expansion. 

Thank you for your time and I look forward to hearing from you and/or the city of Birmingham.

Kshama Jayasuriya
kshamajay@gmail.com

mailto:kshamajay@gmail.com


Nicholas Dupuis <ndupuis@bhamgov.org>

new restaurant 

Lori Karbal <lorikarbal@gmail.com> Wed, Apr 14, 2021 at 1:00 PM
To: ndupuis@bhamgov.org

I am a business owner at 560 North Old Woodward.  Please do not put in a restaurant down here.  We finally have
parking here after so many years of problems.  Also, the noise in the neighborhood. 

Thank you 

Lori Karbal 
560 North Old Woodward 
Birmingham, Michigan 48009



Dear members of the Birmingham Planning Board: 
 
I am writing in regard to the proposed bistro “Vinewood Bistro” at 720 N Old Woodward.  
This is proposed for the back lot of Parking Lot No. 6, behind the Merrillwood building & 
associated buildings to its north.  My properties, 692 and 724 Brookside Ave., are 
across the Rouge to the east and look directly onto the lot and building.  I disagree with 
the proposal and urge the Board to deny the application for the following reasons: 
 

1. Increased noise & traffic 
2. Increased light pollution 
3. Location 
4. Restaurant density/saturation, especially with regards to traffic & parking 

 
To begin, let me provide some physical context to help support this comment of 
Nicholas Dupuis’: “[T[here are single family residences across the river that may be 
affected by any noise or light emanating from the proposed patio.” 1 
 

Because my properties are on a substantial hill and are much higher than the 
level of Lot 6, they have a direct view down onto this area.  After the 2018 
extension of the lot and removal of trees/brush on the west side of the Rouge, 
which was preceded by the loss of many elm trees due to the emerald ash borer, 
there is now very little natural shielding.  As a result, I can see everything that 
goes on in the lot and often what happens inside the buildings.  This clear 
sightline is, of course, heightened during winter.  From my upstairs windows I 
have an even more unobstructed view. 
 
The landscaping planted after the 2018 lot extension is not thriving; as I look out 
of my window, 5 of the 12 evergreens I see are brown and dying/dead.  During 
the spring thaws and large rain events the lot often is partially underwater.  While 
plantings at the south end of the parking lot were chosen with inundation in mind, 
the remainder of the plantings obviously were not.  Thus, shielding from mature 
evergreens in the landscaping is less likely and is at least several more years 
into the future.  Because of the hill and driveways, I cannot use landscaping on 
my own properties to shield my view (to cover my upstairs windows, trees need 
to grow at least 50 feet, something only achieved by three existing 100-year old 
oaks. 

 
 
 
 
Regarding the bistro itself, I have four main objections: 

 
1 Memorandum of February 24, 2021 from Nicholas Dupuis, City Planner, to Jana 

Ecker, Planning Director, as included in the Full Agenda of the February 24, 2021 
Planning Board meeting, page 81. 
 



 
1. INCREASED NOISE POLLUTION & TRAFFIC 

 
As I stated above, there is very little shielding my properties from Lot 6 and its 
buildings.  Luckily, during the day there is minimal noise, as the lot is used mainly 
by employees and short-term visitors to the businesses.  At night, noise is from 
patrons of Market North End, Luxe, & Salvatore Scallopine; at times this can get 
quite raucous, but it is rare that those patrons park directly across from me.  
Regardless, I hear car doors, engines, the occasional car alarm, and even loud 
conversations.  I can even set my watch by the schedule of the office cleaners, 
who dispose of their trash in the dumpsters and then idle their engines around 
midnight Monday-Saturday. 
 
A bigger noise impact is indeed from the dumpsters (at both ends of the lot) 
which are emptied most days between 6 and 7:30am; the accompanying bangs 
and wall-shaking thuds are heard and felt quite clearly.  More intrusive yet is the 
Farmer’s Market; for 6 months (May to October), every Sunday it often gets loud 
enough that I cannot drown out the noise with music (played inside my home with 
the windows closed).2   
 
With the exception of petitioning the Farmer’s Market organizers to limit/eliminate 
amplified music (both recorded and live), I have accepted that these noises are 
part of living in what is now an urban environment.  I am no stranger to city life, 
having lived in various downtowns during my graduate school years, and accept 
that sounds like dumpsters emptying and car doors are part of the city 
soundscape.  However, with each additional noise source the enjoyment of living 
in my house diminishes, and I fear the value of my property will drop further.  The 
increased traffic noise from Woodward has already affected the assessment of 
my property, as evidenced from the bank appraisal done last year during the 
course of refinancing my home equity loan.3 
 
With Vinewood Bistro operating in this location, more noise will be constant all 
day long, seven days a week.  Judging from behavior of diners at the three 
established night-time restaurants in this city block, patrons will not merely dine 
inside/on the patio but will also congregate around cars and on the walkways.  In 
addition to the public hours, restaurant staff will be prepping early and cleaning 
up late – an impact often overlooked by planners.  I do not see a staff break room 
on the plans, so I expect that staff will take breaks in the parking lot, much like 
they do in the alleys behind other Birmingham restaurants.  In addition, also in 
the early hours deliveries will be made and dumpsters emptied more frequently 
and/or in greater quantity.   

 
2 An exception was the 2020 season, as the market was drive-through only that year and as a result, was 
hardly noticeable. 
3 “[A] potentially adverse noise” because the property “is adjacent to a busy road (in the rear)…[T]his has 
been considered to have an effect on value or marketability”.  CoreLogic Valuation of 692 Brookside Ave 
from March 25 and May 15 2020. 



 
I take this time to mention the chance for increased vermin.  Rats are endemic to 
cities; I do not expect Birmingham to be exempt.  However, we have been 
fortunate in my neighborhood to escape large-scale infestation.4  While much of 
this can be attributed to good garbage handling and yard maintenance, there is 
also the fact that the majority of the waste deposited in Lot 6’s dumpsters is not 
from food.   
 

2. INCREASED LIGHT POLLUTION  
 
As detailed above, a large amount of natural shielding/buffer between Lot 6 and 
Brookside has been lost in recent years.  With the installation of new street lamps 
in the lot, plus the construction of the Pearl and consequent reduction in mature 
trees at the north end of Brookside, my properties are now never dark.  Blackout 
curtains in the bedrooms are necessary to block out enough light to allow the 
rooms to be somewhat conducive to sleep.  The twinkling of the red lights from 
the newer parking meters has also added to the light pollution reaching my 
properties.  We cannot afford to have more light reach us on Brookside – not only 
from the bistro but from the headlights of the cars of bistro patrons. 
 

3. LOCATION  
 
The entire back of Lot 6, and especially the new extension, are in a Special Flood 
Hazard Area (SFHA) as designated by FEMA5 (see also the attached map).  In 
fact, the entire Merrillwood complex and the back half of buildings to its north – 
including this proposed bistro location - are in in the SFHA, with the majority 
of the back of Lot 6 designated further as Regulatory Floodway.  This alone 
should be enough to dissuade the Planning Board from approving this 
application. 
 
Natural flooding is common in this area, both from spring thaws and from heavy 
rain events.  Further development/use of the area should be discouraged. 
 
 
This is the back of 720-790 Woodward in March 2020: 

 
4 The exception, of course, is Market North End; in recent years I have seen rats on occasion when 

walking on Ravine at dawn/dusk, and cannot help but think they are the direct result of the dumpsters 
behind that restaurant.  
 
5 https://msc.fema.gov/portal/search?AddressQuery=692%20Brookside%20Ave%2048009#searchresultsanchor .  
See also: 
https://msc.fema.gov/arcgis/rest/directories/arcgisjobs/nfhl_print/agolprintb_gpserver/jbd5c654db52c4c2f9477e
75f402e1796/scratch/FIRMETTE_31170d74-ed41-47a0-bfdf-8b6c911784e2.pdf  

https://msc.fema.gov/portal/search?AddressQuery=692%20Brookside%20Ave%2048009#searchresultsanchor
https://msc.fema.gov/arcgis/rest/directories/arcgisjobs/nfhl_print/agolprintb_gpserver/jbd5c654db52c4c2f9477e75f402e1796/scratch/FIRMETTE_31170d74-ed41-47a0-bfdf-8b6c911784e2.pdf
https://msc.fema.gov/arcgis/rest/directories/arcgisjobs/nfhl_print/agolprintb_gpserver/jbd5c654db52c4c2f9477e75f402e1796/scratch/FIRMETTE_31170d74-ed41-47a0-bfdf-8b6c911784e2.pdf


 
 
In February of 2019 (as seen from Brookside Ave) 

 
 
February 2017: 



 
 
February 2016 (This is a still from a 3-minute video): 

 
 
 
 
 

4. RESTAURANT DENSITY/SATURATION 



While the zoning of this portion of Old Woodward does allow for use as a bistro, 
within 1 block there are already 3 (soon to be 4) dining establishments that are 
open at night and serve alcohol.  Three additional daytime cafes are also open.  
Had the Planning Board and the City Commissioners really wanted to expand the 
bistro dining opportunities in this area, there would have been an optimal chance 
to do so when The Pearl was proposed and built.  Instead, there is now concern 
over the parking impact a 2-table juice bar will have – what will the impact be of a 
full-service lunch & dinner bistro serving alcohol?  Isn’t it contradictory to 
discourage a juice bar with its quick service and short visits at the same time you 
encourage an establishment that will have lengthier visits and 64 patrons? 
 
The vehicle and pedestrian traffic at the corners of Ravine/Old Woodward and 
Harmon/Old Woodward is already heavy at night and on the weekends.  Rare is 
the day/night that I use Ravine to exit/access my neighborhood.  Between 
delivery trucks in the morning on Ravine and in the center of Old Woodward, 
jaywalkers at all times, and drivers who idle waiting for the perfect parking spot, 
the area has become increasingly risky to drivers.  The perennial problem of 
protecting pedestrians crossing Old Woodward has yet to be solved, and I fear 
the day a serious (or, god forbid, fatal) accident occurs from a distracted driver.  
The area is utilized enough and, in my opinion, would not benefit from the 
additional of yet another bistro.   
 
Based on the October 26, 2020 City Commission meeting minutes, another 
location in Downtown Birmingham has been also proposed for a similar concept 
bistro by the same owner.  This location is a much more suitable property to 
consider, especially considering the recent closure of several restaurants in the 
same area.  As the current pandemic continues to ravage the hospitality industry, 
I believe it would be prudent to encourage redevelopment of empty properties in 
Downtown, rather than forcing a restaurant onto a new location. 

 
My family has lived on Brookside since 1942, I grew up here, and I moved back more 
than twenty years ago.  I feel lucky to being still living and working here.  Part of the 
attraction of living in my neighborhood is the seclusion from the commercial portion of 
Birmingham.  In fact, Little San Francisco (or The Ravines, the proposed new name) is 
desirable because it is not just close to Old Woodward and Downtown Birmingham but 
is uniquely private and intimate as well.  The proposed bistro does not enhance these 
features but instead intrudes unnecessarily into a quiet residential area.   
 
Thank you for taking the time to consider my comments. 
 
Sincerely, 
Kristen Tait 
I encourage the Planning Board members to visit my street (and climb up my stairs) to 
see my view for themselves.  However, in case that is not feasible, here are several 
photos that approximate the right scale: 



 
 

 



 
 

  























1 

MEMORANDUM 

Fire Department 

DATE: June 8, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Paul A. Wells, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: Woodward Dream Cruise 

INTRODUCTION: 
The continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic has caused us to review and evaluate our City 
sponsored events for this summer with concerns for the public’s health and safety. All City 
events were canceled last summer and some large events have already been canceled for 
2021. 

The annual Woodward Dream Cruise event is held with the support of neighboring 
communities along the Woodward corridor. Several communities, including Birmingham, have 
shared concerns about this event occurring in the current environment. 

At the request of the City Commission, a resolution is being proposed to formalize the City’s 
“scaled down” participation in the Woodward Dream Cruise event taking place on August 21, 
2021. 

BACKGROUND: 
The Woodward Dream Cruise event is managed through a non-profit corporation, Woodward 
Dream Cruise (WDC), Inc., comprised of community representatives along the Woodward 
corridor and representatives from Oakland County, as well as private sector media partners. 
This body has handled the promotion and organization of this multi-community event over the 
years. 

This year, with the continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic and the uncertainty of safely 
engaging large crowds, the ability and prudence to hold this annual event has come into 
question. Certainly, canceling this event for a second year would be a disappointment to many 
who relish in this annual celebration of car culture and, as such, there is some reluctance to cancel 
the event. Conversely, attracting over one million people to an event during a worldwide 
pandemic is very concerning and is the reality we face.  

At the City Commission meeting on May 24, 2021, the suggested resolution from City staff was to 
cancel the City’s participation in the Woodward Dream Cruise for 2021.  The City Commission did 
not support the suggested resolution and directed staff to present a possible option of a “scaled 
down” version of the City’s participation in the Dream Cruise.   

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The resolution has been reviewed and approved by the City attorney. 

6B



2  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

In 2019, event related expenses were $29,042.98, which included extra police and fire 
personnel, public services set up and clean up, building-related inspections, etc. The 
anticipated 2021 expenses are $34,000. The Birmingham Shopping District (BSD) is anticipating 
this year’s revenues to be around $63,000 based on several small vendors and three tentative 
sponsors: General Motors, WOMC, WXYZ.    

 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 

If the Commission adopts this resolution, the City’s communications team will prepare a press 
release informing residents of the scaled down scope of participation. 

 
SUMMARY: 

Given the large crowds that are drawn to the annual Woodward Dream Cruise event and the 
continuing concerns with COVID-19, it is recommended to adopt the attached resolution for a 
scaled down scope of participation in the Woodward Dream Cruise on August 21, 2021.  
These efforts are in an attempt to properly manage the large gatherings this event produces, 
while still prioritizing public health and safety.  

 

 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
- Draft Resolution for scaled down participation by the City in the 2021 Woodward Dream Cruise  

- Current CDC recommendations for large gatherings 
- Current MDHHS guidance on large outdoor events 
- BSD map of the proposed “scaled down” site with sponsor locations 

 
SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 

To approve a resolution that the City of Birmingham will have a scaled down participation in the 
annual Woodward Dream Cruise event for 2021, due to public health and safety concerns 
attributed to the COVID-19 pandemic, by managing the large crowds that any participation in 
the Dream Cruise naturally creates.



3  

 
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

 RESOLUTION REDUCING THE PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL 
WOODWARD DREAM CRUISE EVENT FOR 2021 DUE TO PUBLIC HEALTH AND SAFETY 

CONCERNS ATTRIBUTED TO THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 
 
WHEREAS, the Woodward Dream Cruise event has developed from a grass roots community 
based effort to promote a one-day, non-alcoholic car event along the Woodward Avenue 
corridor, and 
 
WHEREAS, the Woodward Dream Cruise is established by the community involvement of 
Berkley, Birmingham, Bloomfield Hills, Bloomfield Township, Ferndale, Huntington Woods, 
Pleasant Ridge, Pontiac and Royal Oak to coordinate the event through an intergovernmental 
partnership, and 
 
WHEREAS, the annual Woodward Dream Cruise event attracts people from around the world, 
the country, and the state to celebrate car history and car culture along Woodward Avenue in 
Oakland County, and 
 
WHEREAS, the annual Woodward Dream Cruise event attracts crowds in excess of one (1) 
million people to the Woodward corridor in Oakland County, and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 10, 2020, Michigan Governor, Gretchen Whitmer had declared a 
State of Emergency across the State of Michigan due to public health concerns related to a novel 
coronavirus (COVID-19) that was introduced in our state, and 

 
WHEREAS, at the time of this resolution only 55% of the population 12 years and older of 
Michigan has been fully vaccinated, and 
 
WHEREAS, the promotion of the 2021 annual Woodward Dream Cruise event is contributing 
to the current public health crisis by encouraging large crowds to convene during a worldwide 
pandemic, and  
 
WHEREAS, the Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and Michigan Department of 
Health and Human Services (MDHHS) continue to recommend avoiding large events and 
gatherings regardless of vaccination status, and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Birmingham Commissioners gave the direction to submit a “scaled 
down” participation plan for the Dream Cruise event for 2021 at the May 24, 2021 Commission 
meeting, and 
 
WHEREAS, it is recommended that the City Commission designate one specific public area for 
all City approved participation in the Dream Cruise event, and 
 
WHEREAS, this specified zone for City approved participation shall span South Old Woodward 
south of Bowers Street to north of Landon Street, and 
 
WHEREAS, this specified zone for City approved participation shall ensure a minimum of 16 
feet of clearance down the center of South Old Woodward for emergency vehicle traffic, and  
 
 



4  

 
WHEREAS, all vendors, car clubs, sponsors, etc. wishing to do business in this specified zone 
for City approved participation will require all necessary City permits and fees prior to approval, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, all permits for events, block parties, temporary structures, etc. outside the 
specified special event zone on public property for City approved participation will be denied.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED that due to concerns for the safety of the residents of 
the communities along the Woodward Avenue corridor and the one million attendees that 
normally participate in the annual event, and the potential spread of the coronavirus, the City 
will reduce the allowed Dream Cruise public property events within its boundaries during this 
event for 2021, and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, the City of Birmingham will prohibit any events on public 
property that requires a permit, except for the designated special event zone on South Old 
Woodward south of Bowers Street to north of Landon Street, and  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that on, before, and at the time of the 2021 Woodward Dream 
Cruise all MDHHS orders will be reviewed, and if any new MDHHS orders prohibit the event 
from continuing, the City will cancel all permits and participation.    
 
Passed, adopted and approved this    day of   , 2021. 

AYES:            
            

 
NAYS:            

            
 

PRESENT:            
            

 
ABSENT:            

            
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION 
 

I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that the foregoing is a complete 
and true copy of a resolution adopted by the City Commission of the City of Birmingham at 
a regular Birmingham City Commission meeting held on June 14, 2021. 

 
 

 
 

         
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 



CDC Readiness and Planning Tool to Prevent the Spread of COVID-19 at Events and Gatherings 

As some communities in the United States begin to plan and hold events and gatherings,  
CDC offers the following readiness and planning tool to share ways event planners and 
administrators can help protect staff, volunteers, and attendees and slow the spread of 
COVID-19. This tool aligns with the Considerations for Events and Gatherings and  
includes the following: 

• General Readiness Assessment 

• Preparing for If Someone Gets Sick 

• Daily/Weekly Readiness Assessment 

• End-of-Day Actions and Resources

Event planners and administrators may review and complete the general readiness 
assessment while working with state and local officials as part of making initial preparations 
before the event to promote healthy behaviors, environments, and operations that reduce the 
spread of COVID-19. The daily/weekly readiness assessment may be used to monitor and maintain 
recommended practices. Planning tools are also included to help event planners and administrators prepare for if 
someone gets sick, plan after-event actions, and address the specific needs and circumstances of the local community. 
Implementation should be guided by what is feasible, practical, acceptable, and tailored to the needs and context of  
each community.

Guiding Principles to Keep in Mind 
A gathering refers to a planned or spontaneous event, indoors or outdoors, with a small number of people participating, 
or a large number of people in attendance. Examples of gatherings, small or large, include a community event, concert, 
festival, conference, parade, wedding, or sporting event. 

• The more people an individual interacts with at a gathering and the longer that interaction lasts, the higher the 
individual’s potential risk of becoming infected with COVID-19 and then spreading COVID-19 to others.  

• The higher the level of community transmission in the area where the gathering is held, the higher the risk of 
COVID-19 spreading at the gathering. 

• The size (attendance) of an event or gathering should be determined based on state, local, territorial, or tribal safety 
laws and regulations.

The risk of COVID-19 spreading at events and gatherings increases as follows:

• Lowest risk: Virtual-only activities, events, and gatherings.

• More risk: Smaller outdoor gatherings in which individuals from different households remain spaced at least 6 feet 
apart, wear cloth face coverings, do not share objects, and come from the same local area (e.g., a community, town, 
city, or county). 

• Higher risk: Medium-sized in-person gatherings that are organized/laid out to allow individuals to remain spaced 
at least 6 feet apart, some wear cloth face coverings and come from outside the local area (e.g., a community, town, 
city, or county). 

• Highest risk: Large in-person gatherings where it is difficult for individuals to remain spaced at least 6 feet apart, 
do not wear cloth face coverings and travel from outside the local area.

• 

Events and Gatherings: Readiness and Planning Tool   

CS 317934-A    July 6, 2020 7:51 AM

cdc.gov/coronavirus

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/large-events/considerations-for-events-gatherings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/community-mitigation.html
http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus


2

Events and Gatherings: General Readiness Assessment
Use the following tool when making initial preparation before the event to promote healthy behaviors, environments, and operations that reduce the spread of COVID-19.

Policies and Procedures

Point Person(s): _________________________________

Review relevant local/state regulatory agency 
policies and orders, such as those related to events, 
gatherings, and travel. 

Consult local health officials about recommended 
COVID-19 testing policies for events and gatherings. 

Consult with the venue operators about their 
COVID-19 policies prior to the event. 

Develop a plan to conduct daily health checks (e.g., 
temperature screening and/or symptom checking) of 
staff and attendees. 

Develop a plan to allow for social distancing before, 
during, and after the event (e.g., limiting attendance 
and modifying layouts before the event, providing 
physical barriers during the event and staggering exit 
times after the event). 

Consider limiting event attendance to staff and 
attendees who live in the local area (e.g., community, 
city, town, or county) to reduce risk of spreading the 
virus from areas with higher levels of COVID-19.  
If attendance is open to staff and guests from other 
communities, inform attendees in advance so  
they can make an informed decision whether they  
will participate. 

Develop online attendance options in addition to 
in-person attendance to help reduce the number of 
attendees at the event. 

Develop a flexible refund policy. 

Designate a staff person responsible for responding to 
all COVID-19 related situations and concerns. Make 
sure other staff and attendees know how to contact 
this person. 

Facilities and Supplies

Point Person(s): _________________________________

Obtain supplies including: 

soap 

water for hand hygiene 

hand sanitizer (at least 60% alcohol) 

paper towels 

tissues 

cleaning supplies 

EPA approved disinfection supplies 

cloth face coverings 

no-touch/foot pedal trash cans 

no-touch soap/hand sanitizer dispensers 

gloves 

disposable food service items 

other:   __________________________________

Develop a schedule for increased routine cleaning  
and disinfection. 

Close shared spaces (e.g., a lounge); otherwise develop 
a plan for staggered use of these spaces and cleaning 
and disinfecting. 

Develop a plan for the safe and correct use and 
storage of cleaners and disinfectants, including 
storing products away from children. 

Education and Training

Point Person(s): ____________________________

Create a plan for educating staff and attendees 
to ensure they know that they should not come 
to the event if they become sick with COVID-19 
symptoms, test positive for COVID-19, or have 
been exposed to someone with symptoms 
or someone suspected or confirmed to have 
COVID-19. Make sure they know that if they 
get sick at the event, they should notify event 
administrators (e.g., the designated COVID-19 
point of contact) right away. 

Develop protocols to educate staff on flexible 
work and leave policies that encourage sick staff 
members to stay at home without fear of job 
loss or other consequences. 

Create a plan for educating staff and attendees 
about who should wear cloth face coverings, and 
communicate the importance of wearing them 
to both staff and attendees. Cloth face coverings 
should not be placed on.  

• children younger than 2 years old 

• anyone who has trouble breathing or is 
unconscious 

• anyone who is incapacitated or otherwise 
unable to remove the cover without help 

Create information on proper use, removal, and 
washing of cloth face coverings and distribute 
to staff members. 

Create and implement training to be delivered 
to staff on all COVID-19 safety protocols: 

• Conduct training virtually or maintain social 
distancing during training 

Other:  _________________________________

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fabout%2Fsymptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/reopen-guidance.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/reopen-guidance.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/reopen-guidance.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/reopen-guidance.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fabout%2Fsymptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/social-distancing.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/social-distancing.html


3

Events and Gatherings: General Readiness Assessment 
(continued from previous page)

Policies and Procedures

Develop policies that encourage sick staff members 
to stay at home without fear of job loss or other 
consequences. Protect their privacy, particularly for 
those with underlying medical conditions and at 
higher risk for severe illness). 

Develop options for staff at higher risk for 
severe illness (e.g., telework or virtual learning 
opportunities). 

Develop flexible sick leave policies and practices. 

Develop options for flexible worksites  
(e.g., telework) and flexible work hours  
(e.g., staggered shifts). 

Develop a plan to monitor absenteeism of staff, 
cross-train staff, and create a roster of trained 
back-up staff. 

Develop a transportation and parking plan to limit 
contact between attendees (e.g., staggered arrival and 
ride share drop-off times or locations). 

Develop a plan for if someone gets sick or shows 
symptoms of COVID-19 while at the event or venue. 
(See Preparing for If Someone Gets Sick). 

Develop a plan to safely serve food, beverages, and 
merchandise, if applicable. Refer to CDC’s COVID-19 
considerations for restaurants and bars for guidance. 

Other:  _____________________________________

Facilities and Supplies

Make sure ventilation systems operate properly. If using 
fans, make sure they do not blow from one person onto 
another, and increase circulation of outdoor air as much as 
possible (e.g., opening windows and doors). 

Make sure water systems and features are safe to use after a 
prolonged facility shutdown.  

Develop a plan to use touchless payment options . 

Develop a plan to use multiple entrances and exits to 
discourage crowding in waiting areas. 

Develop a plan to change seating layout or availability of 
seating, or block off rows or sections so that attendees can 
stay at least 6 feet apart. 

Create and install physical barriers, such as sneeze guards 
and partitions, in areas where it is difficult for individuals 
to remain at least 6 feet apart. 

Create physical guides, such as tape on floors and signs on 
walls, to promote social distancing. 

Develop a plan to eliminate lines or queues if possible or 
encourage people to stay at least 6 feet apart by providing 
signs or other visual cues such as tape or chalk marks in 
congregation areas such as entrances, exits, and restrooms 
if a 6-foot distance between attendees is hard to ensure. 

Develop a plan to reconfigure parking lots, limit 
congregation points and ensure proper separation (e.g., 
closing every other space). 

Purchase adequate supplies to minimize sharing of 
materials, or limit use to one per family or group of 
individuals at a time, and clean and disinfect between use. 

Ensure organizations that share the venue facilities such as 
food vendors are aware of and follow all safety protocols. 

Other:  _____________________________________

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/people-at-higher-risk.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/people-at-higher-risk.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/organizations/business-employers/bars-restaurants.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/building-water-system.html


4

Events and Gatherings: General Readiness Assessment
Use the following tool when making initial preparations before the event to promote healthy behaviors, environments, and operations that reduce the spread of COVID-19.

Communication and Messaging

Point Person(s): ____________________________________

Develop a plan to create and disseminate clear messages (e.g., videos) about 
behaviors that prevent spread of COVID-19 to staff and attendees before  
the event: 

websites 

email 

social media accounts 

other  ______________________________________

Create and post signs in highly visible locations that promote everyday protective 
measures such as wearing cloth face coverings and that describe how to stop the 
spread of germs in: 

entrances 

dining areas 

restrooms 

other  ______________________________________

Develop a plan to communicate with partner organizations such as vendors to 
ensure that they are aware of all of your COVID-19 safety protocols.  

Develop signs and communication (e.g., videos) in alternative formats (e.g., large 
print posters, braille, American Sign Language) for people who have limited vision, 
or are blind, or people who are deaf or hard of hearing.  

Consider posting signs for the national distress hotline: 1-800-985-5990, text 
TalkWithUs to 66746; The National Domestic Violence Hotline: 1-800-799-7233, 
TTY 1-800-787-3224; and The National Suicide Prevention Lifeline: 1-800-273-
TALK (8255). 

Develop regular announcements on reducing the spread of COVID-19 to be 
broadcast on public address systems. 

Create a plan for communicating with staff and attendees about whom to contact 
if they have questions and concerns related to COVID-19. 

Other:   ________________________________________

Action Planning—Notes and Next Steps

Point Person(s): ___________________________

Use this space to note any required resources and next steps, or potential barriers 
and opportunities:  

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/videos.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/social-media-toolkit.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/videos.html


5

Events and Gatherings: Preparing for if Someone Gets Sick
Use the following tool when making initial preparations before the event for if someone gets sick with COVID-19.

Before Someone Gets Sick

Point Person(s): _______________________________

Create a plan to educate staff and attendees to 
ensure they know that they should not come to 
the event If they become sick with COVID-19 
symptoms, test positive for COVID-19, or have 
been exposed to someone with symptoms or 
someone with suspected or confirmed COVID-19. 
Make sure they know that if they get sick at the 
event, they should notify event planners (e.g., the 
designated COVID-19 point of contact) right away. 

Develop systems to: 

Allow staff and attendees to self-report to 
administrators if they have symptoms of 
COVID-19, a positive test for COVID-19, or 
were exposed to someone with COVID-19 
within the last 14 days. 

Notify individuals of closures and restrictions 
put in place to limit COVID-19 exposure. 

Develop staff policies for returning to the 
venue after COVID-19 illness. CDC’s criteria to 
discontinue home isolation and quarantine can 
inform these policies. 

Identify and create an isolation room or area to 
separate anyone who has COVID-19 symptoms 
or who has tested positive but does not have 
symptoms. 

Develop procedures for safely transporting anyone 
who is sick to their home or to a healthcare facility. 

Develop a plan to support staff and attendees 
experiencing trauma or challenges related to 
COVID-19. 

Other:  ___________________________________

Notes and Next Steps: 

When Someone Gets Sick

Point Person(s): _______________________________

Immediately separate individual(s) with COVID-19 
symptoms from others. 

Safely transport sick individuals home or to a 
healthcare facility, depending on how severe their 
symptoms are. 

If calling an ambulance or bringing someone to 
the hospital, try to call first to alert them that the 
person may have COVID-19. 

Close off areas used by a sick person and do not 
use these areas until after cleaning and disinfecting 
them (for outdoor areas, this includes surfaces or 
shared objects in the area, if applicable). 

Advise sick individuals that they should not return 
to the venue until they have met CDC’s criteria to 
discontinue home isolation. 

Other:  ___________________________________

After Someone Gets Sick

Point Person(s): _______________________________

In accordance with state and local laws and 
regulations, notify local health officials, staff, 
and families of a person with COVID-19 while 
maintaining the individual’s confidentiality in 
accordance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA). 

Notify individuals of closures and restrictions put 
in place due to COVID-19 exposure. 

Advise those who have had close contact with a 
person diagnosed with COVID-19 to stay home, 
self-monitor for symptoms, and follow CDC 
guidance if symptoms develop. 

Close off the area and wait at least 24 hours 
before cleaning and disinfecting. If 24 hours is 
not feasible, wait as long as possible. Make sure 
of safe and correct use and storage of cleaning 
and disinfection products, including storing them 
securely away from children. 

Other:  ___________________________________

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fabout%2Fsymptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/if-you-are-sick/quarantine-isolation.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/if-you-are-sick/quarantine-isolation.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fabout%2Fsymptoms.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/clean-disinfect/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/if-you-are-sick/steps-when-sick.html#discontinue-isolation
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/if-you-are-sick/steps-when-sick.html#discontinue-isolation
https://www.cdc.gov/publichealthgateway/healthdirectories/index.html
https://www.eeoc.gov/facts/pandemic_flu.html
https://www.eeoc.gov/facts/pandemic_flu.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/public-health-recommendations.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/if-you-are-sick/quarantine-isolation.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/if-you-are-sick/steps-when-sick.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/if-you-are-sick/steps-when-sick.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html


6

Events and Gatherings: Daily/Weekly Readiness Assessment
Use the following tool the day of and during the event to monitor and maintain healthy behaviors, environments, and operations that reduce the spread of COVID-19.

Policies and Procedures

Point Person(s): _______________________________

Maintain regular contact with local health 
authorities to ensure adherence to their most up-
to-date guidance. 

Ensure an on-duty staff person is assigned to be 
responsible for responding to COVID-19 concerns. 

Monitor absenteeism of staff. 

Ensure the roster of trained back-up staff is 
updated in case a staff member is sick. 

Conduct daily health checks (e.g., temperature 
screening and/or symptom checking) of staff and 
attendees, if feasible. 

Ensure staff are using flexible worksites (e.g., 
telework) and flexible work hours (e.g., staggered 
shifts) when needed.  

Ensure staff and attendees have received 
communication about all safety protocols and 
COVID-19 related policies. 

Ensure that attendees have received 
communication about refund policies if they get 
sick and cannot attend the event. 

Ensure that all protocols developed, to limit 
contact between staff and attendees and ensure 
that attendees can maintain 6 feet of distance, are 
implemented. 

Ensure limited opportunities for both staff and 
attendees to share objects. 

Ensure the broadcasting of regular announcements 
on reducing the spread of COVID-19 on public 
address systems throughout the event. 

Facilities and Supplies

Point Person(s): ___________________________________

Monitor and restock supplies including: 

soap 

water for hand hygiene 

hand sanitizer (at least 60% alcohol) 

paper towels 

tissues 

cleaning supplies 

EPA-approved disinfection supplies 

cloth face coverings 

no-touch/foot pedal trash cans 

no-touch soap/hand sanitizer dispensers 

disposable food service items 

gloves 

other:  ____________________________________

Monitor adherence to the schedule for increased, 
routine cleaning and disinfection of: 

frequently touched surfaces 

communal spaces 

shared objects 

other:  ____________________________________

Monitor availability and use of gloves when removing 
garbage bags or handling and disposing of trash. 

Education and Training

Point Person(s): ___________________________

Ensure that staff and attendees have 
received communication that they should 
not come to the event if they become sick 
with COVID-19 symptoms, test positive for 
COVID-19, or have been exposed to someone 
with symptoms or someone with suspected 
or confirmed COVID-19. Make sure they 
know that if they get sick at an event, they 
should notify event administrators (e.g., the 
designated COVID-19 point of contact). 

Ensure that staff have reviewed the policies 
on flexible work and leave that encourage sick 
staff members to stay at home without fear of 
job loss or other consequences. 

Reinforce and monitor handwashing with 
soap and water for at least 20 seconds or using 
hand sanitizer containing at least 60% alcohol 
if soap and water are not readily available.  

Encourage staff to cover their mouth and nose 
with a tissue when coughing and sneezing and 
then wash hands with soap and water for at 
least 20 seconds. 

Ensure that communication about the proper 
use of cloth face coverings is easily seen 
or heard by staff and attendees. Cloth face 
coverings should not be placed on. 

• children younger than 2 years old 

• anyone who has trouble breathing or  
is unconscious . 

• anyone who is incapacitated or otherwise 
unable to remove the cover without help 

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html?CDC_AA_refVal=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.cdc.gov%2Fcoronavirus%2F2019-ncov%2Fabout%2Fsymptoms.html
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2-covid-19
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/handwashing/when-how-handwashing.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html


7

Events and Gatherings: Daily/Weekly Readiness Assessment 
(continued from previous page)

Policies and Procedures

Review the most recent local/state regulatory 
agency policies for updates. 

Other:  ___________________________________

Facilities and Supplies

Monitor safe and correct use and storage of cleaners 
and disinfectants, including storing products securely 
away from children. 

Ensure adequate ventilation when cleaners and 
disinfectants are used to prevent staff and attendees 
from inhaling toxic fumes. 

Monitor ventilation systems to determine if they are 
operating properly. 

Ensure that touchless payment options are operational. 

Ensure all physical barriers, such as sneeze guards and 
partitions, in areas where it is difficult for individuals to 
remain at least 6 feet apart are installed correctly. 

Ensure that all physical guides, such as tape on floors 
and signs on walls, to promote social distancing are 
easily seen. 

Ensure that all changes to the venue such as seating 
layout, entrances and exits are well marked and easy to 
understand. 

Ensure the staggered use and cleaning and disinfecting 
between uses of shared spaces. 

Ensure the circulation of outdoor air as much as 
possible throughout the event (e.g., opening windows 
and doors). 

Ensure that adequate supplies are available to minimize 
sharing of high-touch materials and monitor cleaning 
and disinfecting between use. 

Other:  ______________________________________

Education and Training

Ensure that information on proper use, 
removal, and washing of cloth face coverings 
is available. 

Ensure that all staff present have been trained 
on relevant COVID-19 safety protocols. 

Other:  _______________________________  

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/disinfecting-building-facility.html
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html


8

Events and Gatherings: Daily/Weekly Readiness Assessment
Use the following tool the day of and during the event to monitor and maintain healthy behaviors, environments, and operations that reduce the spread of COVID-19.

Communication and Messaging

Point Person(s): _________________________________

Ensure that signs are placed in highly visible 
locations that promote everyday protective 
measures such as wearing cloth face coverings 
and that describe how to stop the spread of 
germs at: 

entrances 

dining areas 

restrooms 

other  _____________________________

Continue to provide or update clear messages 
(e.g., videos) about behaviors that prevent 
spread of COVID-19 when communicating 
with staff and families on: 

websites 

email 

social media accounts 

other  _____________________________

Ensure that partner organizations such as 
vendors have received communication about 
all COVID-19 safety protocols. 

Ensure signs and communication (e.g., videos) 
in alternative formats (e.g., large print posters, 
braille, American Sign Language) for people 
who have limited vision or are blind or  
people who are deaf or hard of hearing are 
readily available. 

Make sure all staff and attendees have been 
informed which staff person is responsible for 
responding to COVID-19 concerns and how to 
contact them. 

Encourage staff to take breaks from watching, 
reading, or listening to news stories about 
COVID-19, including social media if they are 
feeling overwhelmed or distressed throughout 
the event. 

Promote healthy eating, exercising, getting 
sleep, and finding time to unwind among staff 
to help them cope with stress. 

Encourage staff to talk with people they trust 
about their concerns and how they are feeling. 

Other:  _______________________________

Action Planning—Notes and Next Steps

Point Person(s): _________________________________

Use this space to note any required resources and next 
steps, or potential barriers and opportunities:  

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/print-resources.html?Sort=Date%3A%3Adesc
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/prevention-H.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/prevention-H.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/downloads/stop-the-spread-of-germs-11x17-en.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/videos.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/social-media-toolkit.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/videos.html


9

Events and Gatherings: End-of-Day Actions and Other Resources
Use the following resources to conduct end-of-day actions and address any additional considerations specific to your program or community context.

Other Considerations

Point Person(s): ______________________________

Use this space to note any other considerations unique 
to your program or community context. 

Other Resources

Point Person(s): _______________________________

• Latest COVID-19 Information

• Cleaning and Disinfection

• Guidance for Businesses and Employers

• Guidance for Schools and Childcare Centers

• Guidance for Park Administrators

• Shared and Congregate Housing

• COVID-19 Prevention

• Handwashing Information

• Face Coverings

• Social Distancing

• COVID-19 Frequently Asked Questions

• People at Higher Risk

• People with Disabilities

• Coping with Stress

• HIPAA and COVID-19

• CDC communication resources

• Community Mitigation

End-of-Day Actions

Point Person(s): _______________________________

Meet with the emergency operations coordinator 
and/or planning team(s) to discuss and note 
lessons learned. 

Determine ways to improve planning and 
implementation processes if the event will  
happen again. 

Inform staff and attendees of any changes made. 

Update your plans regularly according to the state 
and local situation and orders. 

Other:  _______________________________

http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/clean-disinfect/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/guidance-business-response.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/schools-childcare/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/parks-rec/park-administrators.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/shared-congregate-house/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/handwashing/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/diy-cloth-face-coverings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/prevent-getting-sick/social-distancing.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/faq.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/people-at-higher-risk.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/need-extra-precautions/people-with-disabilities.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/daily-life-coping/managing-stress-anxiety.html
https://www.hhs.gov/hipaa/for-professionals/special-topics/hipaa-covid19/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/communication/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/open-america/community-mitigation.html


1 
 

  For more information, visit Michigan.gov/Coronavirus. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Issue Date: May 27, 2021 
 
Executive Summary 
MDHHS is providing guidance on how to hold safer large outdoor events – such as sporting 
events, festivals, and fairs – during the COVID-19 pandemic. This document provides general 
recommended guidance for how organizers for large outdoor events can create a safer 
environment. 
 
Individuals are not required to wear face masks at outdoor events. However, the Michigan 
Department of Health and Human Services (MDHHS) recommends that individuals who are 
not yet fully vaccinated continue to wear face masks while in crowded spaces outdoors and 
practice social distancing.  
 
While gathering in outdoor settings lowers the risk of COVID-19 transmission because of 
fresh air flow, it is still possible to breathe in enough of the respiratory droplets containing 
the virus that causes COVID-19 to become infected when gathered close to others 
unmasked. 
 
As the epidemiology of COVID-19 around the country and the state of Michigan evolves, 
MDHHS will continue to review and update this guidance. 
   
Recommended Mitigation Measures for Large Outdoor Events 
 
MDHHS recommends the following infection control measures to reduce the risk of COVID-
19 transmission in large outdoor event settings:   

 
1. Infection Control Plans 
 
Large event organizers may develop a plan to mitigate COVID-19 transmission. This plan 
should:  

- Demonstrate that the event is designed such that groups of patrons can 
maintain six feet of distance from other groups 

- Include entry and exit protocols that maintain physical distancing requirements 
to minimize congregation 

LARGE OUTDOOR EVENTS 
GUIDANCE  

Michigan.gov/Coronavirus 

http://www.michigan.gov/Coronavirus


2 
 

  For more information, visit Michigan.gov/Coronavirus. 
 

- Cooperate with local public health officials during any case investigation and 
contact tracing 

- Include specific protocols for social distancing (examples listed below) 
- Be posted on a public website; and 
- Be provided to the local health department at least seven days before scheduled 

events. (This submission does not constitute or require approval from the local 
health department, but rather is for awareness only.) 

 
2. Food and Beverage Service Requirements 
 
Food or beverages should only be consumed while seated in designated areas. While 
eating/drinking, no more than 6 people should be seated together in a group, and groups 
should be separated by at least 6 feet; groups should avoid mingling.  
 
3. Wear Face Masks in Crowded Spaces 

 
MDHHS strongly recommends that individuals continue to wear face masks while in 
crowded spaces outdoors, especially individuals who are not yet fully vaccinated.  

- While gathering in outdoor settings lowers the risk of COVID-19 transmission 
because of fresh air flow, it is still possible to breathe in enough of the respiratory 
droplets containing the virus that causes COVID-19 to become infected when 
gathered close to others unmasked.    
 

4. Participant Cohorts  
 

It is best if participants stay in small groups or cohorts, while gathering at outdoor events. 
- For outdoor events that have assigned seating, individuals should attempt to 

remain at least six feet from other cohorts throughout the duration of the event.  
 

5. Physical Distancing Protocols  
 
Organizers for outdoor events should develop plans to prevent congestion:  

- Individuals should enter at designated sections of the venue during designated 
times to avoid mass congregation. MDHHS recommends scheduling a limited 
number of individuals to enter in 10-minute increments. 

- Individuals should follow a staggered exit schedule as well.  
o For example, spectators at sporting events should be dismissed by 

sections and required to exit at designated doors. 
- Designate one-way stairwells or paths to minimize congestion. 
- Establish capacity limits for restrooms and other enclosed spaces, such as gift 

shops. 
- Institute distancing markers six feet apart for queues.  

http://www.michigan.gov/Coronavirus


3 
 

  For more information, visit Michigan.gov/Coronavirus. 
 

 
6. Self-Screening Practices  
 
Individuals, including employees, should conduct self-screening for COVID-19 symptoms 
before attending an outdoor event.  

- The free MI Symptoms tool can be used to complete self-screening for COVID-19 
symptoms. 

 
Individuals, including employees, should not attend any types of gatherings while 
symptomatic (even with a negative COVID-19 test or fully-vaccinated against COVID-19). 
 
7. Contact Tracing Capabilities  

 
Outdoor event organizers should collect and maintain contact information from all those 
in attendance to help inform contact tracing efforts. 

- To expedite this process, MDHHS recommends prohibiting same-day ticket sales. 
- Ticket re-sale and forwarding should be prohibited to maintain accurate contact 

tracing records.  
 

Venues should help local health departments with contact tracing and quarantine and 
isolation requirements, that result from attendance of a large outdoor event. 
 
8. Comprehensive Communications Strategy  

 
Large event organizers should communicate public health guidance clearly and 
effectively to attendees and employees: 

- Post information about the symptoms of COVID-19 in order to help attendees and 
employees to self-assess whether they have any symptoms.  

- Display signs regarding COVID-19 mitigation measures throughout the venue. 
- Make regular PA announcements regarding COVID-19 mitigation measures and 

other event rules. 
- Provide a list of all nearby sites to receive a COVID-19 test to all individuals who 

attend large outdoor events.  
o Please find a list of MDHHS COVID-19 testing sites here. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

http://www.michigan.gov/Coronavirus
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/symptoms-testing/symptoms.html
https://www.michigan.gov/coronavirus/0,9753,7-406-99891_99912---,00.html


4 
 

  For more information, visit Michigan.gov/Coronavirus. 
 

9. Event Hygiene Procedures   
 

Venues should establish a schedule for increased, routine cleaning to disinfect common 
spaces.  

- Venues should use FDA-approved cleaning supplies that are listed here. 
 
Public event spaces should establish numerous hand sanitizing stations with hand 
sanitizers that are at least 60% alcohol.  

 
MDHHS recommends utilizing contactless/no-touch practices whenever possible, 
including:  

- Ticketed entry  
- Concessions and other purchases  
- Waste/recycling disposal  

 
10.  Testing  

 
Encourage all individuals who attend large gatherings who are not fully vaccinated 
against COVID-19 to seek a COVID-19 test 1-3 days before the event. 

 
 
For further information: 

• CDC Readiness and Planning Tool to Prevent the Spread of COVID-19 Events and 
Gatherings 

• Considerations for Events and Gatherings | CDC 
• Large Gatherings | CDC 

 
For the latest information on Michigan’s response to COVID-19, please visit 
Michigan.gov/Coronavirus. You may also call the COVID-19 Hotline at 888-535-6136 or 
email COVID19@michigan.gov. 

http://www.michigan.gov/Coronavirus
https://www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-disinfectants-coronavirus-covid-19
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/downloads/community/COVID19-events-gatherings-readiness-and-planning-tool.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/downloads/community/COVID19-events-gatherings-readiness-and-planning-tool.pdf
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/large-events/considerations-for-events-gatherings.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/your-health/large-gatherings.html
http://www.michigan.gov/Coronavirus
mailto:COVID19@michigan.gov




MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

June 7, 2021 

Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing for a Rezoning Request for 300 - 394 S. Old 
Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street from D3 to D4 

INTRODUCTION: 
The owner of the property known as 300 S. Old Woodward is seeking a lot split/rearrangement 
to allow for 3,104.39 sq.ft. on the western edge of 300 S. Old Woodward to be split from the 
existing parcel, and added to the parcel known as 294 E. Brown Street.  In addition, the owner 
of 294 E. Brown Street is seeking a lot split/rearrangement to divide the existing parcel into two 
parcels, to allow for 1,962.79 sq.ft. on the southeastern edge of the parcel to be split and 
added to the parcel at 394 S. Old Woodward.  Both lot splits/rearrangements, if approved, will 
allow for a swap of land between property owners that will create a rectangular lot at 294 E. 
Brown, as well as new parcels at 300 and 394 S. Old Woodward.  The owner of the amended 
parcels at 300 and 394 S. Old Woodward is then seeking a lot combination to create a larger 
rectangular parcel on S. Old Woodward running south of E. Brown Street to Daines Street to 
allow the development of a four story mixed use building on the site.   

The existing buildings (currently 300 and 394 S. Old Woodward) on the lot to be newly created 
are proposed to be demolished to construct a new 4 story mixed use building with retail and 
design uses on the first three floors, and a restaurant on the fourth floor.  In order to permit 
the use of a restaurant on the fourth floor, the applicant is proposing a rezoning of the new 
parcel encompassing 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward and portions of 294 E. Brown from B-2 
(General Business) and D-3 (Downtown Overlay) to B-2 (General Business) and D-4 (Downtown 
Overlay).  The maximum height allowed in the D-4 zoning district is 4 stories with a bonus fifth 
story for residential.  The applicant has stated they plan to limit a building to four stories. 

In addition, the applicant will be proposing zoning amendments to Chapter 126, Zoning, of the 
City Code to allow the use of economic development liquor licenses with a Special Land Use 
Permit on this site, which will include an application for an amendment to Exhibit 1, Appendix C, 
to add the properties at 300 – 394 S. Old Woodward to this map.  This request is discussed 
under separate cover. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the application and has no concerns as to the form of the 
application. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not applicable. 

7A



PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Prior to the application being considered by the City Commission, the City Clerk’s office sent out 
notices to all property owners and tenants within 300 feet of 300 and 394 S. Old Woodward 
and 294 E. Brown Street seeking public comment on the proposal.   

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division recommends that the City Commission conduct a public hearing to 
consider the rezoning of the new parcel encompassing 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward 
and portions of 294 E. Brown from B-2 (General Business) and D-3 (Downtown Overlay) 
to B-2 (General Business) and D-4 (Downtown Overlay).  

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Application for Rezoning
• Planning Board report dated April 23, 2021
• Relevant meeting minutes
• Plans for proposed development at 300 -394 S. Old Woodward as submitted to the

Planning Board for the meeting of April 28, 2021.

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
To APPROVE the rezoning of the new parcel encompassing 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward 
and portions of 294 E. Brown from B-2 (General Business) and D-3 (Downtown Overlay) 
to B-2 (General Business) and D-4 (Downtown Overlay);

OR

To DENY the rezoning of the new parcel encompassing 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward and 
portions of 294 E. Brown from B-2 (General Business) and D-3 (Downtown Overlay) to B-2 
(General Business) and D-4 (Downtown Overlay);

OR

To POSTPONE the public hearing on the rezoning of the new parcel encompassing 300 - 394 S. 
Old Woodward and portions of 294 E. Brown from B-2 (General Business) and D-3 (Downtown 
Overlay) to B-2 (General Business) and D-4 (Downtown Overlay) to ____________________.











E. BROWN ST.

( 60' R.O.W. )

DAINES ST.

( 40' R.O.W. )

S

.
 
O

L
D

 
W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 
A

V

E

.

(
 
1
0
0
'
 
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
)

BENCHMARK

B

E

N

C

H

M

A

R

K

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

4

5

7

10

8

9

9
6

6

7

8

6

E. BROWN ST.

DAINES ST.

ALTA/NSPS Land Title /
Topographic Survey

SP-1

SCALE:

Part of the NE 1/4
of Section 36
T.2N., R.10E.,
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Saroki Architecture
430 N. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

Contact: Victor Saroki
Phone: 248.258.5707

294 E. Brown St. and
300 & 394
S. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

SEAL

February 24, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M106
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

00-00-00

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

19 96 - 9120

NF
ENGINEERS

nowak & fraus

engineers

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N

M. Carnaghi

K. Navaroli

LEGEND

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY NOTES

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCELS I & II
(PER TITLE COMMITMENT)

FLOOD HAZARD NOTE ALTA SURVEY NOTES SURVEY DATA

DTE DISCLAIMER NOTE

DATUM NOTE

BASIS OF BEARING NOTE

ANN STREET SKETCH

N
F

N

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCEL 2
(PER TITLE COMMITMENT)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCEL 3
(PER TITLE COMMITMENT)

TITLE REPORT NOTES - PARCELS I & II

TITLE REPORT NOTES - PARCEL 2

TITLE REPORT NOTES - PARCEL 3



E. BROWN ST.

( 60' R.O.W. )

DAINES ST.

( 40' R.O.W. )

S

.
 
O

L
D

 
W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 
A

V

E

.

(
 
1
0
0
'
 
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
)

BENCHMARK

B

E

N

C

H

M

A

R

K

BENCHMARK

4

5

10

9
6

6

4

4

4

4

PROPOSED MIXED-

USE DEVELOPMENT

±14,335 S.F. FOOTPRINT

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

CONCRETE CURB DETAIL 'A' CONCRETE CURB DETAIL 'B'

ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTIONCONCRETE PAVEMENT SECTION CONCRETE SIDEWALK SECTION

Dimensional Site Plan

SCALE:

Part of the NE 1/4
of Section 36
T.2N., R.10E.,
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Saroki Architecture
430 N. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

Contact: Victor Saroki
Phone: 248.258.5707

294 E. Brown St. and
300 & 394
S. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

SEAL

February 24, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M106
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

00-00-00

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

19 96 - 9120

NF
ENGINEERS

nowak & fraus

engineers

GENERAL PAVING NOTES

SP-2

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

A. Eizember

A. Eizember

P. Williams

COVID-19 PANDEMIC CONDITION

N
F

N



MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

 
DATE:   April 23, 2021 
 
TO:   Planning Board 
 
FROM:  Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Rezoning Request for 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 

294 E. Brown Street  
 
 
The subject site includes the properties known as 300 – 394 S. Old Woodward, and portions of the 
property located at 294 E. Brown.  These properties are currently occupied by Capital Title/Lutz, 
Roche Bobois/Frank’s Shoe Service and Coldwell Banker Weir Manual.  The entire property has a 
total land area of 54,052.96 sq.ft. or 1.24 acres.  It is located on the west side of S. Old Woodward, 
including the entire block of S. Old Woodward from Brown Street south to Daines Street.  All parcels 
are zoned B2 General Business and D-3 in the Downtown Birmingham Overlay District.   
 
The applicant is proposing to rearrange the parcel lines for the above three properties to create two 
new parcels through the lot split and combination process.  The applicant is proposing to split off 
the westernmost portion of the 300 S. Old Woodward (currently parking lot) and combine this 
portion with the parcel at 294 E. Brown Street.  In addition, the applicant is proposing to split off 
the easternmost portion of the L-shaped parcel at 294 E. Brown and combine this with the parcel 
at 394 S. Old Woodward.  Finally, the applicant proposes to combine the new parcels at 300 and 
394 S. Old Woodward to create one large new parcel that will run from Brown south to Daines.  The 
applicant is required to obtain approval of the City Commission for the proposed lot 
splits and lot combination to create the new lot that is the subject of this application 
and shown on the site plan.  The applicant has submitted applications to the City Commission 
for their review.  On April 12, 2021, the City Commission set a public hearing date of May 10, 2021 
to consider the requests for lot split/rearrangements and lot combination for the subject properties. 
 
The existing buildings (currently 300 and 394 S. Old Woodward) on the lot to be newly created are 
proposed to be demolished to construct a new 4 story mixed use building with retail and design 
uses on the first three floors, and a restaurant on the fourth floor.  One level of underground parking 
is proposed to house 24 cars. As the building is located within the Parking Assessment District, no 
on-site parking is required for the proposed commercial uses.  The applicant is required to obtain 
site plan approval for the proposed building, as well as acceptance of a Community Impact Study, 
as the building is larger than 20,000 sq.ft. in size.  The Planning Board reviewed the Community 
Impact Study and Preliminary Site Plan on March 26, 2021.  After much discussion, the Planning 
Board postponed both matters to the April 28, 2021 meeting to allow the applicant to address 
concerns about the traffic study methodology with the City’s transportation consultants. 
 
In order to permit the use of a restaurant on the fourth floor, the applicant is proposing a rezoning 
of the new parcel encompassing 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward and portions of 294 E. Brown.  Thus, 
the applicant has requested that the Planning Board hold a public hearing to consider the rezoning 
of the property from B-2 (General Business) and D-3 (Downtown Overlay) to B-2 (General Business) 
and D-4 (Downtown Overlay).  The maximum height allowed in the D-4 zoning district is 4 stories 
with a bonus fifth story for residential.  The applicant has stated they plan to limit a building to four 



stories. 
 
In addition, the applicant will be proposing zoning amendments to Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City 
Code to allow the use of economic development liquor licenses with a Special Land Use Permit on 
this site, which will include an application for an amendment to Exhibit 1, Appendix C, to add the 
properties at 300 – 394 S. Old Woodward to this map.  This request is discussed under separate 
cover. 
 
History of Property 
 
Information gathered by PM Environmental for a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment on the 
property history revealed that the subject property was previously used for automotive service and 
sales, a dry cleaning facility, a fur retailer with possible repair or cleaning operations, and a gasoline 
dispensing station with underground storage tanks.   
 
300 S. Old Woodward 
The northern portion of the subject property was developed prior to 1921 with a residential dwelling 
and a garage structure.  A small storefront building was also constructed between 1926 and 1931, 
and may have been used to support a used car sales operation on the surface lot that existed at 
the time.  Both structures were demolished in 1949, and the current building at 300 S. Old 
Woodward was completed in 1954, with an addition in 1994.  Historical records demonstrate that 
existing building on the site has been used as professional offices since at least 1951. 
 
360 – 394 S. Old Woodward 
The southern portion of the subject property was also developed prior to 1921 with a residential 
dwelling and shed structure.  The residential dwelling was converted to a storefront by 1926.  In 
approximately 1929, both structures were demolished and a majority of the existing building was 
constructed to house an automotive service operation and gasoline dispensing station.  An addition 
to the original service building was completed in the late 1960’s, and the building continued to be 
used for automotive service operations until at least 1967.  A portion of the existing building was 
occupied by a theater between 1966 and 1986, a portion of the building remained in use for 
automotive sales and service until 1988, and a portion was used for drycleaning services between 
1969 and 1976.  Frank’s Shoe Service and other retail sales operations have also been located in 
the existing building since at least 1969. 
 
Requirements for Rezoning 
 
The requirements for a request for the rezoning of a property are set forth in Article 07, section 
7.02 of the Zoning Ordinance as follows:    
 

Each application for an amendment to change the zoning classification of a particular 
property shall include statements addressing the following:  
  

1. An explanation of why the rezoning is necessary for the preservation and 
enjoyment of the rights of usage commonly associated with property 
ownership. 

 
Applicant response:  

• The rezoning of the subject property to B2/D4 would result in the preservation 
and enjoyment of the rights of usage commonly associated with property 
ownership for the applicant.  This property is unique in that it sits across 



Brown Street from the five story Daxton Hotel and kitty-corner from the ten 
story Birmingham Place.  However, this property is currently zoned B2/D3.  
While a four story building may be constructed in the D3 zone, the ordinance 
mandate the fourth floor to be residential.  This area of S. Old Woodward has 
more apartments and condominiums than any other area of Downtown 
Birmingham.  There are residential units in Birmingham Place, the 555 
Building, and the Forefront.  The applicant is a retailer seeking four stories of 
retail operations with food and beverage services on the fourth floor.  The 
rezoning is necessary to preserve the applicant’s enjoyment of its permitted 
uses of retail and restaurant in the Downtown Overlay District.  Both uses are 
permitted in the Downtown Overlay; note that all restaurants serving alcoholic 
beverages are subject to a Special Land Use Permit. 

• Other property owners in the S. Old Woodward corridor, including most of 
those across S. Old Woodward south of Brown Street, enjoy the designation 
of the Economic Development License zone, including those of principally 
residential buildings and whether the properties face S. Old Woodward or 
Woodward Avenue.  Further, the iconic Phoenicia restaurant serves alcoholic 
beverages in the subject property’s current D3 zone on the west side of S. 
Old Woodward.  Placing the subject property in the Economic Development 
License zone would allow the applicant to enjoy the same restaurant use with 
alcoholic beverage service as is enjoyed by many of the neighboring property 
owners. 
 

2. An explanation of why the existing zoning classification is no longer 
appropriate 
 
Applicant response:  
 

• After reviewing the 2016 Plan, the existing zoning for the subject property 
should be updated so it is possible to allow a four story retail development.  
The RH experience is one of stand-alone buildings in walkable neighborhoods.  
Destination stores with restaurant amenities are one of the ways retailers like 
RH continue to thrive.  RH offers customers the cultural experience of visiting 
a gallery.  This is good news for cities like Birmingham.  Malls draw pedestrian 
shoppers away from downtown areas while the applicant’s project will bring 
shoppers into Downtown Birmingham.  Additionally, with Birmingham Place 
and the 555 Building just south of the subject property, the streetscape of S. 
Old Woodward in this area of the City is architecturally balanced by the 
addition of the applicant’s proposed, classically designed four story building 
with a top floor restaurant, drawing pedestrians off the street to shop and 
relax in a restaurant setting. 

• Similarly, the new or returning concept of stand-alone destination retail 
supports placing the subject property in the Economic Development License 
zone.  Current zoning of the subject property does not support the RH concept 
of a destination retail that is a dramatic, economic improvement to the 
property, and that offers a first-class dining experience.  The RH concept 
complements the goals of the Birmingham Master Plan and is a benefit to the 
City.  The changes in the zoning requested here will allow this concept to be 
developed in our City.  Hence, the current zoning is no longer appropriate. 

 



3. An explanation of why the proposed rezoning will not be detrimental to 
the surrounding properties. 
 

Applicant response:  
• The rezoning of this property to B2/D4 is complimentary to the surrounding 

properties, rather than detrimental. First, the uses proposed for the building 
and the D4 zone will allow the property to accommodate a large, stand-alone, 
destination retailer.  Second, it will bring a unique strolling shopping 
experience to the nearby residents of Birmingham Place, the 555 Building, 
and residential neighborhoods, as well as permit a handsome, four story 
building with underground garage designed to the standards of the D4 zone.  
Third, it will give new life to the S. Old Woodward streetscape between Brown 
and Daines, while at the same time it will comply with the spirit and intent of 
the 2016 Plan and the Birmingham Zoning Ordinances. 
 

Article 7, section 7.02 of the Zoning Ordinance further states: 
 
Applications for amendments that are intended to change the zoning classification of a particular 
property shall be accompanied by a plot plan.  Information required on plot plans shall be as follows: 
 

1. Applicant’s name, address and telephone number. 
2. Scale, north point, and dates of submission and revisions. 
3. Zoning classification of petitioner’s parcel and all abutting parcels. 
4. Existing lot lines, building lines, structures, parking areas, driveways, and other 

improvements on the site and within 100 feet of the site. 
5. Existing use of the property. 
6. Dimensions, centerlines and right-of-way widths of all abutting streets and alleys. 
7. Location of existing drainage courses, floodplains, lakes, streams, and wood lots. 
8. All existing easements. 
9. Location of existing sanitary systems and or septic systems. 
10.  Location and size of existing water mains, well sites and building service. 
11.  Identification and seal of architect, engineer, land surveyor, or landscape architect who 

prepared the plans.  If any of the items listed above are not applicable to a particular plot 
plan, the applicant must specify in the plot plan which items do not apply and, furthermore, 
why the items are not applicable. 
 

A land survey was provided by the applicant with the required details and is attached to this report.   
 

Planning Division Analysis & Findings 
   
In accordance with Article 7 of the Zoning Ordinance, the Planning Board is required to conduct a 
public hearing on an application for rezoning, and to make a recommendation on the rezoning to 
the City Commission.  Article 7, section 7.02(B)(5) of the Zoning Ordinance states: 
 

The Planning Board shall make written findings of fact and transmit same, together with its 
recommendation, to the City Commission.  The City Commission may hold additional 
hearings if the City Commission considers it necessary.  The Planning Board shall make 
findings based on the evidence presented to it with respect to the following matters: 

a. The objectives of the City’s then current master plan and the City’s 2016 Plan. 
b. Existing uses of property within the general area of the property in question. 
c. Zoning classification of property within the general area of the property in question. 



d. The suitability of the property in question to the uses permitted under the existing 
zoning classification. 

e. The trend of development in the general area of the property in question, including 
any changes which have taken place in the zoning classification. 

 
Accordingly, the Planning Division has reviewed the evidence presented with respect to the matters 
listed in Article 7, section 7.02(B)(5) of the Zoning Ordinance as noted below.   
 

A. The objectives of the City’s then current master plan and the City’s 2016 Plan 
 
The Birmingham Plan (1980) is the master plan currently in effect for the entire city, although 
a first draft of an updated 2040 Master Plan has been completed, but not yet adopted by 
the City Commission.  The 1980 plan shows the subject properties with commercial use, 
similar to the surrounding Central Business District, and a maximum height limit at the time 
of four stories. 
 
The Future Land Use Plan (“FLUP”) contained in the 1980 shows the subject property 
designated for office and low-intensity commercial development.  The 1980 Plan states that 
art galleries, boutiques, and home furnishings stores are recommended for such low-
intensity commercial areas.  In addition, the FLUP also recommends that quality restaurant 
and entertainment facilities be encouraged to expand in the downtown area (with the 
exception of fast food establishments), as “restaurants are magnets which bring potential 
shoppers into the Downtown”. 
 
The Birmingham Plan also noted the presence of several sensitive residential neighborhoods 
surrounding Downtown, including the Woodward-Lincoln-Pierce area.  The subject property 
requesting rezoning at this time does not abut any portion of this sensitive residential area.  
The entire area east of Purdy between Brown and Daines was considered the commercial 
area of downtown, thus there are no residential properties contained within the entire block 
on which the subject site is located.  There are residential properties located on the 
southwest corner of the block located south of Daines Street. 
 
The Downtown Birmingham 2016 Plan (“2016 Plan”) was adopted in 1996 to specifically 
improve the downtown area.  The 2016 Plan was formally integrated into the requirements 
of the Zoning Ordinance shortly thereafter through the creation of the Downtown 
Birmingham Overlay District which defined the area to be governed by the recommendations 
in the 2016 Plan.  The subject property to be considered for rezoning is located in the 
Downtown Birmingham Overlay District.  The current D-3 Overlay Zoning already permits 
the development of four story buildings, if the fourth floor is used as residential.  The 
requested rezoning to D-4 Overlay Zoning would allow the applicant to construct a four story 
building with a fourth floor restaurant use.   
 
The 2016 Plan encourages D-3 flexible use buildings in this area (which are permitted to be 
4 stories in height), to provide a connection between Downtown and the south end of S. Old 
Woodward, and encourages anchor retail development.  The rezoning request made by the 
applicant is to allow the construction of a four story mixed use building to house Restoration 
Hardware.  The proposed retail, gallery, design services and restaurant uses all work 
together to provide a significant retail anchor as recommended by the 2016 Plan to activate 
this area and support an active live, work and play environment for downtown.   
 
The 2016 Plan also states that “Traditional American cities, except the very largest, rarely 



exceed five stories in building height and most commonly range from two to four stories.  
Downtown Birmingham adheres to this rule, with the most memorable streets tending to be 
at least two stories and the least memorable being mostly one story”, and encourages proper 
building mass and scale to create an environment that is more comfortable to pedestrians, 
thus creating a walkable downtown.  While the proposed rezoning to D-4 would also permit 
five story buildings, the applicant has indicated that they wish to limit development on the 
subject property to four stories.  Both four or five story buildings would provide for significant 
massing at this important corner of Brown and S. Old Woodward.  The height limit of four 
stories proposed by the applicant will also provide a transition from the five story Daxton 
Hotel to the north and the three story Forefront building to the south, ensuring that any new 
building will be harmonious with existing buildings.    
 

B. Existing uses of property within the general area of the property in question 
 
The property to the north of the subject site houses a recently constructed five story hotel, 
with a mix of retail and restaurant uses on the first floor, and residential uses on the top 
floor.  The properties to the east of the site across S. Old Woodward include a mix of retail, 
restaurant and office use, as well as residential uses in the Birmingham Place building.  The 
property located to the west of the subject site is a commercial office building with surface 
parking.  The property across Daines Street to the south contains a mix of retail and 
commercial uses on the first floor, and residential uses on the upper floors. 
 
The following chart summarizes the land uses and zoning districts adjacent to and in the 
vicinity of the subject site. 
 

 North South East West 
 

Existing Land 
Use 

Retail/ 
Commercial / 

Hotel 

Retail/ 
Commercial / 
Residential 

Retail / 
Commercial/ 
Residential 

Commercial/ 
Parking 

Existing 
Zoning 

B-4, Business 
Residential 

B-2, General 
Business 

B-2, General 
Business & B-3, 

Office Residential 
B-2, General 

Business 

Overlay Zoning D-4 D-2 D-3 & D-4 D-3 
 

 
 

C. Zoning classification of property within the general area of the property in 
question. 
 
The properties immediately north of the subject site are zoned B4 and D4, which allow a mix 
of residential, retail and commercial uses, and buildings up to 5 stories in height up to a 
maximum height of 80’.  The property to the west of the subject site is zoned B2 and D3, 
which also allow a mix of residential, retail and commercial uses, and buildings up to 4 stories 
in height up to a maximum height of 68’. Across S. Old Woodward to the east, adjacent 
properties are zoned B2 and D3 (Peabody Mansion and Powerhouse Gym Building), which 
allow a mix of residential, retail and commercial uses, and a maximum height of 4 stories 
and 68’.   In addition, also across S. Old Woodward to the east adjacent to the subject site 
is the Birmingham Place building which is zoned B3 and D5, which also allows a mix of 
residential, retail and commercial uses, allows more than 5 stories, up to a maximum height 



of 180’.   The property to the south across Daines is zoned B2-B and D2, also allowing a mix 
of residential, retail and commercial uses and buildings up to 3 stories and 56’ in height.   

 
     D. The suitability of the property in question to the uses permitted under the existing 

zoning classification. 
 
Under the current zoning, all of the same uses are permitted as those under the proposed 
D4 zoning classification.  However, while the existing D3 zoning does permit a fourth floor 
as proposed by the applicant, it is only permitted if it is used solely for residential use.  Thus, 
the applicant is proposing the rezoning from D3 to D4 to permit a fourth floor for restaurant 
use.  Restaurant uses are permitted in both D3 and D4 of the Downtown Overlay District.  
The applicant has stated that the proposed restaurant use on the fourth floor is necessary 
for the proposed development to allow Restoration Hardware to create a unique, experience-
based retail destination for Downtown Birmingham.   
 

E. The trend of development in the general area of the property in question, 
including any changes which have taken place in the zoning classification. 
 
The Daxton Hotel immediately north of the subject site was recently completed, and opened 
for business this spring.  The Daxton Hotel is a 5 story, mixed use building that contains 
hotel, residential, retail and restaurant uses.  In addition, to the south, the Forefront Building 
was completed several years ago with retail/commercial space on the first floor and 
residential units on the upper floors.  The Forefront was purchased, and the new owners 
recently applied for approval to increase the number of residential units on the upper floors 
(within the original building envelope).   In 2017, the Birmingham Place building adjacent to 
the east was also rezoned to D5 under the Downtown Overlay.  While no changes were 
made to Birmingham Place at the time, the new zoning now permits buildings over 5 stories 
in height (up to 180’) so long as they are compatible with adjacent buildings, thus correcting 
the previous legal, non-conforming status of that building with regards to height.   

 
Based on a review of the rezoning application and supporting documentation submitted by the 
applicant, a review of the applicable master plan documents, current zoning and recent development 
trends in the area, the Planning Department finds that the applicant meets the established Zoning 
Ordinance requirements in Article 7, section 7.02(B)(5) to qualify for a rezoning of the property from 
D-3 to D-4 in the Downtown Overlay district for the purpose of permitting a fourth floor to be used 
as a restaurant.  Given the recommendations of the 2016 Plan, the existing mix of uses in the 
immediate area and given the size and quality of the building, the proposal to rezone to D4 is 
appropriate and compatible with both the zoning and height of properties within the general area.   
 
Departmental Reports 
 

1. Engineering Division – The Engineering Department will provide any comments prior to the 
April 28, 2021 Planning Board meeting. 

 
2. Department of Public Services –The Department of Public Services will provide any 

comments prior to the April 28, 2021 Planning Board meeting. 

3. Fire Department – The Fire Department has no concerns with the rezoning at this time. 
 

4. Police Department – The Police Department has no concerns with the rezoning application. 
 



5. Building Department – The Building Department has no concerns with the rezoning 
application at this time. 

 
Sample motions with attached conditions have been provided in the event that the Planning Board 
deems it appropriate to send a recommendation of approval forward to the City Commission.    
 
Suggested Action: 
 
Based on a review of the rezoning request and supporting documentation submitted by the 
applicant, a review of the applicable master plan documents and the development trends in the 
area, the Planning Board adopts the findings of fact contained in the staff report dated April 17, 
2020 and recommends APPROVAL to the City Commission for the rezoning of 300 -394 S. Old 
Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street from D-3 to D-4 in the Downtown Overlay. 

 
OR 

 
Based on a review of the rezoning request and supporting documentation submitted by the 
applicant, a review of the applicable master plan documents and the development trends in the 
area, the Planning Board recommends DENIAL to the City Commission of the applicant’s request 
for the rezoning of the property at 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street 
from D-3 to D-4 in the Downtown Overlay for the following reasons: 
 

1. _______________________________________________________________________ 
2. _______________________________________________________________________ 
3. _______________________________________________________________________ 

 
OR 

 
Motion to recommend POSTPONEMENT of the applicant’s request for the rezoning of the property 
at 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street from D-3 to D-4 in the Downtown 
Overlay, pending receipt and review of the following information: 
 

1. _______________________________________________________________________ 
2. _______________________________________________________________________ 
3. _______________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
  



Planning Board Minutes 
March 26, 2021 

F. Community Impact Study Review

1. 300 & 394 S. Old Woodward, and portions of 294 E. Brown – New Construction
(Capital Title/Lutz & Frank’s Shoe Service, portions of Coldwell Banker Weir Manual parking
lot), Community Impact Study to consider approval of a new 4 story building, including a
request to operate a restaurant using an Economic Development Liquor License.

Chair Clein said he would be recusing himself from the Board’s considerations regarding 300 & 394 
S. Old Woodward and portions of 294 E. Brown. While he said he and the City Attorney determined
he had no conflict-of-interest, he was concerned that existing business relationships between his
company and parties affiliated with the applicants could lead to the public impression of a conflict-
of-interest. The Chair said that if it became clear in the future that his participation in these
discussions would not result in the public impression of a conflict-of-interest, he would rejoin
deliberations regarding 300 & 394 S. Old Woodward and portions of 294 E. Brown at that time.

The Chair recused himself and left the meeting at 8:06 p.m. 

Mr. Emerine filled the Board vacancy stemming from the Chair’s recusal and Vice-Chair Williams 
commenced facilitation of the meeting. 

PD Ecker presented the CIS. 

Victor Saroki, architect, Richard Rattner, attorney, Dave Stanchak, President of RH, Paul O’Meara, 
engineer, and Mike Kulka, Environmental Engineer, were present on behalf of the application.  

Ms. Kroll reported she had met with the applicant team and they confirmed they would get her the 
additional traffic information she had requested.  

In reply to Mr. Share, Ms. Kroll explained that the Multi-Modal Transportation Board had recently 
updated the transportation impact study requirements for the City, and that adding crash analyses 
was one of the updates. She said that there were no accident mitigation measures beyond signage 
recommended for the intersection of S. Old Woodward and Brown since the majority of the accidents 
resulted from parking issues and inattentive drivers. She confirmed some of the parking in front of 
the building may be eliminated to make room for the valet, and that if that were to occur it may 
reduce some of the parking accidents.  

In reply to a request from Vice-Chair Williams, Mr. Emerine said he could work as the Board’s 
representative with Ms. Kroll and Mr. O’Meara regarding the site’s traffic impact.  

In reply to Mr. Emerine, Ms. Kroll explained she wanted to produce a conservative traffic analysis 
to make sure that the site could handle the peak amount of likely traffic. She said that would better 
ensure that severe issues with traffic around the site do not ensue from the proposed uses.  

The Board was advised by the applicant team that furniture loading and unloading would occur 
infrequently since RH is a showroom only and furniture purchases would be coming from off-site. 
Vice-Chair Williams and Mr. Boyle asked that furniture delivery trucks still be addressed in upcoming 



discussions of this item since the pieces in the showroom would likely be refreshed from time to 
time.  
 
Mr. Saroki stated that the applicant team would resolve all issues raised by City departments and 
by Ms. Kroll’s comments on the traffic study.  
 
Mr. Kulka stated that the site had no more significant environmental issues than similar urban sites. 
He said any issues found in the environmental study would be remediated. 
 
In reply to Mr. Share, Mr. Kulka committed the applicant team to environmentally remediating the 
site to residential criteria.   
 
Public Comment 
Mr. Reagan said he was concerned about there being insufficient parking proposed and in the area 
to support the site. He said he was also concerned about the impact of the project on nearby 
residences. 
 
In reply to a question from David Bloom, Mr. Saroki said one area of the site would gain three 
parking spaces and another area would lose 11, leading to a net loss of eight parking spaces from 
the current number available. He also stated that RH paid for the CIS. 
 
Mr. Share complimented the applicant team on their work thus far.  
 
Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Mr. Emerine to postpone action on the Community Impact Study as 
provided by the applicant to April 28, 2021 for the proposed development at 300 - 394 
S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street, allowing the applicant the 
opportunity to address the issues raised by the Planning Department in its review of the 
CIS. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Emerine, Williams, Whipple-Boyce, Koseck, Boyle, Ramin  
Nays: None 
 

03-045-21 
 
G. Preliminary Site Plan Review  
 

1. 300 & 394 S. Old Woodward, and portions of 294 E. Brown – New Construction  
(Capital Title/Lutz & Frank’s Shoe Service, portions of Coldwell Banker Weir Manual  
parking lot), Preliminary Site Plan Review to consider approval of a new 4 story building,  
including a request to operate a restaurant using an Economic Development Liquor  
License. 

 
PD Ecker reviewed the item. 
 
In reply to Mr. Share, PD Ecker said she would speak with the Engineering Department regarding 
possible options for additional sidewalk lighting on Daines. 
 



Mr. Saroki explained that the landscaping off of Daines would be on the Coldwell Banker site with 
the consent of the property’s owner. He stated that RH would be paying for the landscaping. 

Mr. Stanchak provided a brief overview of the design inspiration for the Birmingham site and showed 
a rendering of RH Birmingham. 

Jim Arpin, President of the Condo Association at Birmingham Place, said he appreciated what he 
had seen of the plans so far. Mr. Arpin invited the applicants to meet with the Condo Association. 

Vice-Chair Williams encouraged the applicants to take Mr. Arpin up on his invitation. 

Mr. Share asked if the applicant team had considered doing a three-story building without the need 
for a liquor license, since pursuing a four-story building with a liquor license adds complexity. 

Mr. Stanchak said the restaurant and alcohol service were integral to creating the hospitable, 
appealing atmosphere of RH. 

Mr. Koseck said he thought the applicant team had gone above and beyond to address site issues. 
He commended them on designing the building in context, on the attention paid to the aesthetics 
of all sides of the building, and on the landscaping and hardscaping. He said he thought the designs 
for the building and grounds would fit well in the neighborhood’s context. 

There was Board consensus to postpone voting on the item until April 28, 2021 in order to 
consider the CIS, Preliminary Site Plan, Rezoning Request and Economic Development License for 
300 & 394 S. Old Woodward and portions of 294 E. Brown during the same meeting. 

Motion by Mr. Boyle 
Seconded by Mr. Koseck to postpone the Preliminary Site Plan for 300 - 394 S. Old 
Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street pending receipt of an updated CIS 
addressing all issues noted in the CIS review above and setting the date for 
reconsideration to be April 28, 2021. 

Motion carried, 7-0. 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Boyle, Koseck, Ramin, Share, Emerine, Whipple-Boyce, Williams 
Nays: None 



City Of Birmingham 
Regular Meeting Of The Planning Board 

Wednesday, April 28, 2021 
Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access 

E. Rezoning Request

1. 300 & 394 S. Old Woodward, and portions of 294 E. Brown (Capital Title/Lutz
& Frank’s Shoe Service, portions of Coldwell Banker Weir Manual parking lot), Request for
rezoning from B2/D3 to B2/D4 in the Downtown Overlay District.

PD Ecker and Gayle McGregor, attorney for the applicant, reviewed the item. 

Victor Saroki, applicant, and Kelly Allen, attorney for the applicant, were also present on behalf 
of the item. 

Ms. McGregor affirmed the applicant was offering to voluntarily limit the height of the building to 
four stories as part of rezoning the proposed parcel to D4. She said she believed she had 
submitted that offer in writing to the City. She said that if she had not yet submitted the offer in 
writing she would. 

Mr. Share noted that the use and development of the land as a condition of the rezoning could 
be voluntarily limited by the applicant if submitted in writing, and could then be accepted by the 
City, per MCL 125.3405(1). 

Board discussion noted that the City had used the same mechanism to include rezoning 
restrictions when the Whole Foods Market parcel was rezoned. 

Vice-Chair Williams said the applicant’s offer to limit the height of the building was positive since 
he did not believe that a five-story building should be built on the proposed parcel.  

Mr. Share agreed. 

Public Comment 
Jeff Hockman, Chair of the BSD Board, spoke in favor of the rezoning. He said rezoning this 
proposed parcel was in line with the goals of the 2016 Plan and would benefit the broader 
Birmingham business community.  

Marko Berishaj spoke in favor of the project. 

After further discussion, the Board asked the applicant to clarify whether their voluntary limitation 
was to four floors, or to the specific design being put forth. 

Mr. Saroki said he would voluntarily limit the rezoning request to the design as proposed in the 
site plan. 

In reply to Ms. Whipple-Boyce, Vice-Chair Williams said the City Attorney would have to determine 
what would happen to the rezoning if the building is not developed. 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
April 28, 2021 

 

1 
 

 
Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Mr. Emerine based on a review of the rezoning request and supporting 
documentation submitted by the applicant, the voluntary offer conditions submitted 
by the applicant, a review of the applicable master plan documents and the 
development trends in the area, the Planning Board 1. Adopts the findings of fact 
contained in the staff report dated April 23, 2020 and 2. Recommends approval to the 
City Commission for the rezoning of 300-394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 
E. Brown Street as delineated in the application from D-3 to D-4 in the Downtown 
Overlay, conditioned on the City Commission’s acceptance of the applicant’s 
voluntary offer to limit the height of the building on this parcel to four stories in 
accordance with the building’s form and mass contained in the proposed site plan 
submitted by the applicant. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Emerine, Boyle, Jeffares, Koseck, Whipple-Boyce, Williams 
Nays: None  
 

04-060-21 
 
F. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Request 
 

1. Request for an amendment to Chapter 126, Zoning, Appendix 1, Exhibit A, to amend 
the Economic Development License map to include the properties at 300 & 394 S. Old 
Woodward, and portions of 294 E. Brown – New Construction (Capital Title/Lutz & 
Frank’s Shoe Service, portions of Coldwell Banker Weir Manual parking lot) on the map 
contained in Exhibit A to allow the use of economic development liquor licenses (EDL) on 
these properties. 
 

CP Brooks and Ms. McGregor presented the item. 
 
In reply to Vice-Chair Williams, Mr. Saroki confirmed the granting of an EDL is critical to the 
development of this project. 
 
Mr. Share said that irrespective of the current proposal from RH the City should consider allowing 
this parcel to be eligible for an EDL since the 2016 Plan set it out as an ideal location for an 
anchor tenant.  
 
Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Ms. Whipple-Boyce to recommend approval to the City Commission of 
the ordinance amendment to allow the use of an Economic Development Liquor 
License in the expanded area as shown on the attached map for Appendix C, Exhibit 
1, Economic Development Licenses. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
April 28, 2021 

 

2 
 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Whipple-Boyce, Emerine, Boyle, Jeffares, Koseck, Williams 
Nays: None  
 

04-061-21 
 

G. Special Land Use Permit Reviews  
 

1. 300 & 394 S. Old Woodward, and portions of 294 E. Brown – New Construction 
(Capital Title/Lutz & Frank’s Shoe Service, portions of Coldwell Banker Weir Manual 
parking lot), Request for a Special Land Use Permit to consider approval of a new 4 story 
building, including a request to operate a restaurant using an Economic Development 
Liquor License.  
 

No discussion occurred regarding this item per PD Ecker’s comments under Item D, Review of 
the Agenda. 

 
04-062-21 

 
H. Community Impact Study Review  
 

1. 300 & 394 S. Old Woodward, and portions of 294 E. Brown – New 
Construction (Capital Title/Lutz & Frank’s Shoe Service, portions of Coldwell Banker Weir 
Manual parking lot), Community Impact Study to consider approval of a new 4 story 
building, including a request to operate a restaurant using an Economic Development 
Liquor License (Continued from March 26, 2021).  
 

PD Ecker introduced the item. She noted that the only outstanding comment from Ms. Kroll was 
that the applicant consider adding more bicycle parking onsite.  
 
Mr. Emerine was the Board liaison to the meeting between the City, Ms. Kroll and the applicant’s 
traffic consultants regarding the transportation impact study. Mr. Emerine reported that the 
applicant addressed every issue raised by Ms. Kroll in her March 17, 2021 letter, with the 
exception of some possible additional bicycle parking, to Ms. Kroll’s satisfaction. He stated that 
the applicant also shifted the proposed valet south in response to a request from the Police 
Department.  
 
Ms. Kroll concurred with Mr. Emerine’s summary. 
 
Mr. Saroki said he would be happy to add additional bicycle racks, noting that there would be a 
bicycle rack provided for employees as well. He continued that while peak demand on the City’s 
parking system is weekdays during business hours, the demand for parking from visitors to RH 
would be Saturdays and Sundays. He said, consequently, that RH would add little strain to the 
City’s parking system. He said that during any shift there would be approximately 50 employees 
working and that they would would park in the City’s parking decks.  
 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
April 28, 2021 

 

3 
 

Motion by Mr. Emerine 
Seconded by Ms. Whipple-Boyce to accept the Community Impact Study as provided 
by the applicant for the proposed development at 300 - 394 S. Old Woodward and a 
portion of 294 E. Brown Street with the following conditions: 
1. The applicant is required to provide information on all life safety issues and Fire 
Dept. approval;  
2. The applicant is required to provide information on the proposed security system 
for approval by the Police Department; and, 
3. The applicant shall add the bicycle racks in accordance with the Fleis and 
Vandenbrink letter dated April 26, 2021. 
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Emerine, Whipple-Boyce, Share, Boyle, Jeffares, Koseck, Williams 
Nays: None  

 
04-063-21 

 
I. Preliminary Site Plan Review  
 

1. 300 & 394 S. Old Woodward, and portions of 294 E. Brown – New Construction 
(Capital Title/Lutz & Frank’s Shoe Service, portions of Coldwell Banker Weir Manual 
parking lot), Preliminary Site Plan Review to consider approval of a new 4 story building, 
including a request to operate a restaurant using an Economic Development Liquor 
License (Continued from March 26, 2021). 
 

PD Ecker summarized the item. 
 
Vice-Chair Williams said that the applicant’s offer to have a zoning with limitations consistent with 
the preliminary site plan would need the review of the City Attorney to make sure the rezoning, 
if authorized by the Commission, occurs in a way that is consistent with Michigan law.  
 
In reply to Mr. Boyle, Mr. Saroki stated the building would be very adaptable for other uses in the 
future should the need arise. 
 
Mr. Koseck concurred with Mr. Saroki. He expressed his support for the plans thus far, and 
recommended that the applicant consider an exterior building color that would contrast with the 
grey exterior of the Daxton instead of looking like an extension of it. 
 
Messrs. Koseck and Emerine noted that RH would be a regional attraction. 
 
Mr. Emerine spoke positively about previously living two blocks from the RH in Chicago. He also 
spoke about the positive impact the proposed development would have on the retail community 
in Birmingham. He said he was in support of the plan. 
 
Motion by Ms. Whipple-Boyce 



 
Birmingham Planning Board Proceedings  
April 28, 2021 

 

4 
 

Seconded by Mr. Jeffares to approve the Preliminary Site Plan for 300 - 394 S. Old 
Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street subject to the following conditions: 
1. The applicant is required to obtain approval of the City Commission for the 
proposed lot splits and lot combination to create the new lot that is the subject of this 
application and shown on the site plan; 
2. The applicant obtain a variance for the use of the fourth floor as a restaurant, or 
obtain approval of a rezoning of the property to D-4 in the Downtown Overlay; 
3. The applicant obtain a variance for the use of an Economic Development license on 
the site, or obtain approval of a zoning amendment to alter the map contained in 
Appendix C, Exhibit 1 of the Zoning Ordinance to include the subject property; 
4. The applicant reduce the height of the proposed building to 68’ and 3 stories and 
the eave height to 34’ maximum, or obtain the requested rezoning of the site from D-
3 to D-4 in the Downtown Overlay District, or obtain a variance from the Board of 
Zoning Appeals; 
5. The applicant update the landscape plan to provide species and size details on all 
proposed plantings, and provide material specifications on hardscape items at the 
time of Final Site Plan Review; 
6. The applicant is required to receive separate Planning approval for all landscaping 
changes proposed for the adjacent site, as they are not included in this site plan 
review approval; 
7. The applicant must submit a complete streetscape plan, including detail on hanging 
planters, at the time of Final Site Plan review; 
8. All streetscape elements on S. Old Woodward will be required to be consistent with 
the enhanced streetscape design planned by the City for future construction; 
9. The applicant must obtain approval of the Police Department and/or City 
Commission for any valet operation proposed; 
10. The applicant must submit all light fixture specification sheets and material and 
color samples at Final Site Plan Review; 
11. Compliance with the requirements of all departments; and, 
12. The applicant provide all material samples, specifications and colors at the time 
of Final Site Plan Review. 
 
Vice-Chair Williams said he was in favor of the plan, especially since all outstanding 
issues from the transportation impact study had been resolved and since the 
applicant voluntarily offered to accept a rezoning with conditions. 
 
Public Comment 
Richard Astrein, who has been a merchant in Birmingham for 50 years, spoke of the 
positive impact RH would have on the Birmingham retail business community.  
 
Motion carried, 7-0. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Whipple-Boyce, Jeffares, Emerine, Share, Boyle, Koseck, Williams 
Nays: None  
 
Vice-Chair Williams thanked the applicant team and Ms. Kroll for their work. 























57’

52’

63’

69’

35’

43’
47’

51’

70’

80’



Architectural Brick
Slate Grey Velour

Norman Brick Type (3” x  12”)

Basaltina
Basalt Stone

Hope’s Steel Windows & Doors

Steel and Glass Rooftop RestaurantExterior Light Fixtures & Steel Canopies



RH

B  R  O  W  N    S  T  R  E  E  T

D  A  I  N  E  S    S  T  R  E  E  T

O

 
 
L

 
 
D

 
 
 
 
W

 
 
O

 
 
O

 
 
D

 
 
W

 
 
A

 
 
R

 
 
D

 
 
 
 
A

 
 
V

 
 
E

 
 
N

 
 
U

 
 
E

WEIR MANUAL REALTORS

COLDWELL BANKER

LOT 11

ZONED B2

LOADING

RECEIVING

LIGHT POLE 

CURB PLANTER

COLUMNAR STREET TREES

DWARF ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

EAST ENTRANCE 

INTERSECTION WALK

PERIMETER WALK

RAISED CURB PLANTER

INTERSECTION PLAZA

GRANITE BENCH

ROAD PERIMETER WALK

COURTYARD SPACE DECIDUOUS CANOPY TREES DWARF ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

COLUMNAR ORNAMENTAL TREES

EVERGREEN SHRUB MASS

STREET TREES

SEATING SPACE

GARDEN SPACE

SEATING SPACE

WEST ENTRANCE 

ORNAMENTAL GRASSES

LARGE FLOWERING SHRUBS

CLIPPED EVERGREEN HEDGE

SMALL FLOWERING SHRUBS

COLUMNAR ORNAMENTAL TREES

MEDIUM  FLOWERING SHRUBS

STONE BORDER

CLIPPED EVERGREEN HEDGE

MAINTENANCE EDGE

ENTRANCE GARDEN

SMALL FLOWERING SHRUBS

EVERGREEN SCREEN HEDGE

SOUTH ENTRANCE 

ENTRANCE 

ENTRANCE GARDEN

EVERGREEN SHRUB MASS

COLUMNAR ORNAMENTAL TREES

EVERGREEN GROUNDCOVER

NORTH 

LARGE FLOWERING SHRUBS

LIGHT POLE LIGHT POLE 

COLUMNAR STREET TREES

LIGHT POLE 

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

H

G

F

E

D

C

B

A

430 N. OLD WOODWARD

BIRMINGHAM, MI  48009

Date: Issued For:

Project:

P.  248.258.5707

F.  248.258.5515

SarokiArchitecture.com

Sheet No.:

RH / Mixed-Use
300 S Old Woodward
Birmingham, MI 48009

L1.1
Landscape Plan

MICHAEL J. DUL

LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECTURE

& ASSOCIATES, INC

212 DAINES STREET

BIRMINGHAM

MICHIGAN 48009

P   248 644 3410

F   248 644 0819

02-24-2021 Preliminary Site Plan App.

T

S

R

E

T

A

A

L

E

D

)

D

R

C

C

E

T

H

I

N

M

I

G

I

C

H

A

T

CS

A

P

E

A

O

N

E

S

G

I

R

E

T

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

781
NO.

MICHAEL J. DUL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTCODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTCODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ESTCODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
90' x 166'

AutoCAD SHX Text
13,400 SF/FLOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
294 E. BROWN ST.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL I

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL II

AutoCAD SHX Text
12'x40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY STANDARD-MAX. 40' O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" HIGH x 5' WD. x 24' LG.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINDRED SPIRIT COLUMNAR OAKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL GOLD JAPANESE F. GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE. 30" SCORING PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOM FINISH CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BROOM FINISH CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE. 30" SCORING PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' WD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DECOMPOSED GRANITE SURFACE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN VASE ZELKOVIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALL GOLD JAPANESE F. GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLENDER SILHOUETTE SWEETGUM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN VELVET BOXWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXPOSED AGGREGATE CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
AVE. 30" SCORING PATTERN

AutoCAD SHX Text
K. FORESTER FEATHER R. GRASS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMELIGHT HYDRANGEA

AutoCAD SHX Text
HATFIELD YEW

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOBO HYDRANGEA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FRANS FONTAINE HORNBEAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
INCREDIBALL HYDRANGEA

AutoCAD SHX Text
18" WD. CRUSHED STONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN VELVET BOXWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" WD. DECOMPOSED GRANITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTERS & DECOMPOSED GRANITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LITTLE QUICK FIRE HYDRANGEA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BENCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
BIKE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMERALD GREEN ARBORVITAE 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
12' WIDE

AutoCAD SHX Text
STONE PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLANTERS & DECOMPOSED GRANITE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN VELVET BOXWOOD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SLENDER SILHOUETTE SWEETGUM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN CARPET PACHYSANDRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMELIGHT HYDRANGEA

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY STANDARD-40' O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING PERENNIALS

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING TRAFFIC LIGHT POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
40' O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KINDRED SPIRIT COLUMNAR OAKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY STANDARD-MAX. 40' O.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRANS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HYBRID ELM



E. BROWN ST.

( 60' R.O.W. )

DAINES ST.

( 40' R.O.W. )

S

.
 
O

L
D

 
W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 
A

V

E

.

(
 
1
0
0
'
 
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
)

BENCHMARK

B

E

N

C

H

M

A

R

K

BENCHMARK

BENCHMARK

4

5

7

10

8

9

9
6

6

7

8

6

E. BROWN ST.

DAINES ST.

ALTA/NSPS Land Title /
Topographic Survey

SP-1

SCALE:

Part of the NE 1/4
of Section 36
T.2N., R.10E.,
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Saroki Architecture
430 N. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

Contact: Victor Saroki
Phone: 248.258.5707

294 E. Brown St. and
300 & 394
S. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

SEAL

February 24, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M106
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

00-00-00

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

19 96 - 9120

NF
ENGINEERS

nowak & fraus

engineers

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

N
F

N

M. Carnaghi

K. Navaroli

LEGEND

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY NOTES

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCELS I & II
(PER TITLE COMMITMENT)

FLOOD HAZARD NOTE ALTA SURVEY NOTES SURVEY DATA

DTE DISCLAIMER NOTE

DATUM NOTE

BASIS OF BEARING NOTE

ANN STREET SKETCH

N
F

N

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCEL 2
(PER TITLE COMMITMENT)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION - PARCEL 3
(PER TITLE COMMITMENT)

TITLE REPORT NOTES - PARCELS I & II

TITLE REPORT NOTES - PARCEL 2

TITLE REPORT NOTES - PARCEL 3



E. BROWN ST.

( 60' R.O.W. )

DAINES ST.

( 40' R.O.W. )

S

.
 
O

L
D

 
W

O

O

D

W

A

R

D

 
A

V

E

.

(
 
1
0
0
'
 
R

.
O

.
W

.
 
)

BENCHMARK

B

E

N

C

H

M

A

R

K

BENCHMARK

4

5

10

9
6

6

4

4

4

4

PROPOSED MIXED-

USE DEVELOPMENT

±14,335 S.F. FOOTPRINT

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

CONCRETE CURB DETAIL 'A' CONCRETE CURB DETAIL 'B'

ASPHALT PAVEMENT SECTIONCONCRETE PAVEMENT SECTION CONCRETE SIDEWALK SECTION

Dimensional Site Plan

SCALE:

Part of the NE 1/4
of Section 36
T.2N., R.10E.,
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Saroki Architecture
430 N. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

Contact: Victor Saroki
Phone: 248.258.5707

294 E. Brown St. and
300 & 394
S. Old Woodward Ave.
Birmingham, MI 48009

SEAL

February 24, 2021

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

M106
NFE JOB NO.

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

00-00-00

civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

19 96 - 9120

NF
ENGINEERS

nowak & fraus

engineers

GENERAL PAVING NOTES

SP-2

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

A. Eizember

A. Eizember

P. Williams

COVID-19 PANDEMIC CONDITION

N
F

N



0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.7

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.8

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.3

1.4

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.8

1.6

1.8

1.5

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.9

1.1

1.4

1.7

0.4

1.6

1.5

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.7

1.0

1.2

1.6

2.0

1.7

2.0

1.6

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.7

1.0

1.2

1.5

1.7

1.7

1.8

1.6

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.4

0.5

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.5

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

1.0

1.3

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.4

0.7

1.0

1.6

0.9

0.1

1.0

1.3

1.6

1.8

1.7

1.8

1.6

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

1.3

4.5

4.7

5.0

7.0

2.9

0.1

1.0

1.2

1.7

2.1

1.9

2.1

1.7

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

1.5

6.8

1.0

1.6

1.8

0.5

1.8

1.6

1.3

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

1.0

1.2

1.7

2.1

1.9

2.1

1.7

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

1.1

1.3

1.6

1.8

1.8

1.8

1.6

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

1.9

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

6.3

2.7

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

8.3

3.5

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

7.1

4.0

1.6

1.7

1.7

1.7

1.6

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

8.9

5.2

1.8

2.0

1.8

2.0

1.6

1.2

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.6

2.8

5.6

3.5

1.6

1.7

0.4

1.7

1.5

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.8

5.9

1.2

1.5

1.8

1.6

1.8

1.5

1.1

0.9

0.7

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.5

4.0

1.0

1.3

1.4

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.4

3.7

7.3

0.9

1.0

1.1

1.0

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.3

3.5

7.2

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

1.2

1.7

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.4

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

1.3

0.9

0.7

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.4

0.4

0.5

0.4

0.4

1.9

1.4

1.5

1.7

1.8

1.8

1.6

1.3

1.0

0.8

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

1.8

6.5

6.7

7.7

5.8

2.6

2.0

2.0

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.8

1.7

0.9

1.7

1.3

1.0

0.9

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.3

1.2

1.5

1.1

1.5

1.6

1.8

2.0

2.2

3.8

4.2

3.2

2.8

2.5

2.2

1.4

1.0

1.8

1.7

1.0

1.8

1.3

1.0

0.9

0.7

0.6

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.5

1.0

1.5

1.7

1.9

1.9

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.7

2.0

1.9

1.3

2.3

2.0

1.9

1.7

2.0

2.0

0.8

2.0

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.8

1.9

1.8

1.7

1.3

1.1

0.8

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.1

1.4

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.9

2.0

1.5

2.1

1.8

0.9

2.2

1.9

1.8

1.9

2.0

2.1

2.1

2.0

1.7

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.3

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.5

0.6

0.9

1.1

1.5

1.8

1.4

2.0

1.7

0.6

2.0

1.8

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.9

2.1

2.1

2.0

1.8

1.7

1.7

1.7

1.7

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.0

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.3

0.5

0.7

0.8

1.1

1.3

1.6

0.4

1.8

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.9

2.0

2.0

2.0

1.7

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.1

1.4

1.8

1.7

1.9

1.7

1.5

1.5

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.5

1.6

1.5

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.1

1.0

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.6

0.8

1.0

1.2

1.4

1.3

1.5

1.4

1.4

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.3

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.0

1.1

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.7

0.8

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.1

1.1

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

1.0

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.2

0.2

0.3

0.4

0.5

0.6

0.7

0.8

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.9

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.7

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.6

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.5

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.4

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.3

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.2

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9.1

F

F

F

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C
C

C
C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C

C
C

C

G

G

C
C

G
G

G

G

G
G

FF F

C

C
F

F

Plan View
Scale - 1" = 20ft

Mounting Height Note

MOUNTING HEIGHT IS MEASURED FROM GRADE TO
FACE OF FIXTURE. POLE HEIGHT SHOULD BE
CALCULATED AS THE MOUNTING HEIGHT LESS BASE
HEIGHT.

Drawing Note

THIS DRAWING WAS GENERATED FROM AN ELECTRONIC
IMAGE FOR ESTIMATION PURPOSE ONLY. LAYOUT TO BE
VERIFIED IN FIELD BY OTHERS.

R
H

 -
 B

IR
M

IN
G

H
A
M

P
H

O
T
O

M
E
T
R
IC

 S
IT

E
 P

L
A
N

P
R
E
P
A
R
E
D

 F
O

R
: 

S
A
R
O

K
I 

A
R
C
H

IT
E
C
T
U

R
E

G
A
S
S
E
R
 B

U
S
H

 A
S
S
O

C
IA

T
E
S

 
W

W
W

.G
A
S
S
E
R
B
U

S
H

.C
O

M

Designer

JM/KB

Date

2/22/2021
rev. 2/23/2021

Scale

Not to Scale

Drawing No.

#21-59200-V2

1 of 1

Statistics

Description Symbol Avg Max Min Max/Min Avg/Min Avg/Max

OVERALL 0.5 fc 9.1 fc 0.0 fc N/A N/A 0.1:1

General Note

1.  SEE SCHEDULE FOR LUMINAIRE MOUNTING HEIGHT.
2.  CALCULATIONS ARE SHOWN IN FOOTCANDLES AT: 0' - 0"

THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT MUST DETERMINE APPLICABILITY OF THE LAYOUT TO EXISTING / FUTURE
FIELD CONDITIONS.  THIS LIGHTING LAYOUT REPRESENTS ILLUMINATION LEVELS CALCULATED FROM
LABORATORY DATA TAKEN UNDER CONTROLLED CONDITIONS IN ACCORDANCE WITH ILLUMINATING
ENGINEERING SOCIETY APPROVED METHODS.  ACTUAL PERFORMANCE OF ANY MANUFACTURER'S LUMINAIRE
MAY VARY DUE TO VARIATION IN ELECTRICAL VOLTAGE, TOLERANCE IN LAMPS, AND OTHER VARIABLE FIELD
CONDITIONS. MOUNTING HEIGHTS INDICATED ARE FROM GRADE AND/OR FLOOR UP.

THESE LIGHTING CALCULATIONS ARE NOT A SUBSTITUTE FOR INDEPENDENT ENGINEERING ANALYSIS OF
LIGHTING SYSTEM SUITABILITY AND SAFETY.  THE ENGINEER AND/OR ARCHITECT IS RESPONSIBLE TO REVIEW
FOR MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE AND LIGHTING QUALITY COMPLIANCE.

UNLESS EXEMPT, PROJECT MUST COMPLY WITH LIGHTING CONTROLS REQUIRMENTS DEFINED IN ASHRAE 90.1
2013. FOR SPECIFIC INFORMATION CONTACT GBA CONTROLS GROUP AT ASG@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Ordering Note

FOR INQUIRIES CONTACT GASSER BUSH AT
QUOTES@GASSERBUSH.COM OR 734-266-
6705.

Schedule

Symbol Label QTY Manufacturer Catalog Number Description Lamp
Number
Lamps

Lumens per
Lamp

LLF Wattage
Mounting

Height

C
26 BEGA 77007+K4 LED IN-GRADE FLOODLIGHT LED 1 967 0.9 17 0'-0"

F
8 UNKNOWN SUPPLIED AND VERIFIED BY

OTHERS
SUPPLIED AND VERIFIED BY
OTHERS

SUPPLIED AND VERIFIED BY
OTHERS

1 UNKNOWN 0.75 12'-0"

G
8 LANTERN SUPPLIED BY RH LANTERN SUPPLIED BY RH LANTERN SUPPLIED BY RH LANTERN SUPPLIED BY RH 1 0.9 9'-0"

Alternates Note

THE USE OF FIXTURE ALTERNATES MUST BE
RESUBMITTED TO THE CITY FOR APPROVAL.

UNKNOWN UNKNOWN

UNKNOWN



Brown St. & S Old Woodward Ave.

RH BIRMINGHAM



Brown & S Old Woodward Ave.

RH / Mixed-Use Development



Brown & S Old Woodward Ave.

RH / Mixed-Use Development



Brown & S Old Woodward Ave.

RH / Mixed-Use Development



Brown & S Old Woodward Ave.

RH / Mixed-Use Development



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Planning Department 

DATE:  May 26th, 2021 

TO: Thomas Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Brooks Cowan, City Planner 

APPROVED: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Public hearing for the application to amend the Economic 
Development License Map in Appendix C; Exhibit 1 of the Zoning 
Ordinance to include 300-394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 
294 E. Brown Street. 

INTRODUCTION: 
The owners of 300-394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street have requested a 
zoning amendment to have the properties located at 300-394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 
294 E. Brown Street included with the properties eligible for an Economic Development License 
as identified on the map in Appendix C; Exhibit 1 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

BACKGROUND: 
Properties with an Economic Development License may operate an establishment with on premise 
sales and consumption of liquor if they obtain a Special Land Use Permit and meet the criteria of 
Chapter 10, Article II, Division 3 of the Municipal Code. A liquor license associated with an 
Economic Development License does not have a limit on the number of seats inside or outside of 
the establishment. The applicant is applying to make this property eligible for an Economic 
Development License so they may pursue a SLUP for their RH concept store to allow patrons to 
purchase wine while dining at their restaurant and shopping the design galleries.  

The City uses Economic Development Licenses to incentivize growth in certain areas and permit 
the use of a liquor license if the request is deemed to constitute a substantial economic 
development and benefit to the City. 

On April 28th, 2021, the applicant appeared before the Planning Board to amend the Zoning 
Ordinance and have the subject property included within the area eligible for an Economic 
Development license. The Planning Board reviewed recommendations from the Downtown 2016 
Plan, development trends in the surrounding area, and trends in retail while considering the 
zoning amendment. The Planning Board recommended approval of the amendment citing the 
2016 Plan’s recommendation for an anchor tenant in this location, and how enabling an Economic 
Development License in this location could help attract a retail anchor that activated the subject 
area.  

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the documentation and has no concerns. 

7B



2 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Expanding the boundary for properties eligible for an Economic Development License has the 
potential to increase the tax revenue for the City due to approval criteria requiring a 500% 
increase in assessed value and/or an investment of ten million dollars. 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION: 
Prior to the application being considered by the City Commission, the City Clerk’s office will send 
out notices to all property owners and tenants within 300 feet of 300-394 S. Old Woodward and 
294 E. Brown Street seeking public comment on the proposal.   

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division recommends the City Commission approve the ordinance amendment to 
Chapter 126, Zoning Ordinance, Appendix C, Exhibit 1, Licenses for Economic Development to 
include 300-394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street to be eligible for an 
Economic Development License. 

ATTACHMENTS:   
Draft Ordinance Amendment Map 
Application 
Planning Board Memo  
Planning Board Minutes  

SUGGESTED RESOLUTION: 
To approve an amendment to Chapter 126, Zoning Ordinance, Appendix C, Exhibit 1, Licenses 
for Economic Development to include 300-394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown 
Street to be eligible for an Economic Development License. 

OR 

To deny an amendment to Chapter 126, Zoning Ordinance, Appendix C, Exhibit 1, Licenses for 
Economic Development to include 300-394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street 
to be eligible for an Economic Development License. 



7 

 
 

Appendix C; Exhibit 1 Economic Development Licenses (Proposed Amendment) 

 











1 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Planning Department 
 
DATE:   April 23rd, 2021 
 
TO:   Planning Board 
 
FROM:  Brooks Cowan, City Planner 
 
APPROVED:  Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Public Hearing for a Zoning Amendment to Chapter 126, Zoning 

Ordinance Appendix C, Exhibit 1 Economic Development Licenses 
Map to allow the use of an Economic Development License for the 
property located at the southwest corner of Brown Street and S. 

Old Woodward. 

 
Introduction: 
The owners of 300-394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 294 E. Brown Street have requested a 
zoning amendment to have the properties located at 300-394 S. Old Woodward and a portion of 
294 E. Brown Street be included with the properties eligible for an Economic Development License 
as identified on the map in Appendix C; Exhibit 1 of the Zoning Ordinance. Properties with an 
Economic Development License may operate an establishment with on premise sales and 
consumption of liquor if they obtain a Special Land Use Permit and meet the criteria of Chapter 
10, Article II, Division 3 of the Municipal Code. A liquor license associated with an Economic 
Development License does not have a limit on the number of seats inside or outside of the 
establishment. The applicant is applying to make this property eligible for an Economic 
Development License which they intend to pursue for their RH concept store to allow patrons to 
purchase wine while browsing and shopping the design galleries.  
 
Background: 
The subject site is zoned B2 and D3 Overlay. The B2 (General Business) zoning classification 
permits businesses to operate with an Economic Development License as long as they obtain a 
Special Land Use Permit and are within the parcels eligible for an Economic Development License 
identified on the map in Exhibit 1; Appendix C of the Zoning Ordinance. The majority of the 
parcels currently eligible for an Economic Development License are located along Woodward 
Avenue between Oakland and Lincoln Avenue in the commercial areas of the Downtown Overlay 
and Triangle District. The southern portion of the Rail District is also eligible for an Economic 
Development License. Establishments currently operating with an Economic Development license 
in Birmingham include the All Seasons, Hazel Ravines & Downtown, and Birmingham Pub. Lincoln 
Yard was approved for an Economic Development License in the fall of 2019, however it has yet 
to open. 
 
In regards to the purpose of an Economic Development License, the Municipal Code Chapter 10, 
Article II, Division 3, Section 10-60 states the following: 
 



2 

 
 

The purpose of this division is to establish a policy and conditions to allow the City 
Commission the ability to approve a request to transfer a liquor license into the city in 
excess of the city's quota licenses if the request is deemed to constitute a substantial 
economic development and benefit to the city, to establish criteria for selecting 
applicants, and to provide limitations on the influx of new liquor licenses and to insure 
controlled growth and development regarding liquor licenses and to evaluate the impact 
of increased liquor licenses on the city. 

 
The applicant is requesting this zoning amendment to be eligible for the sale of wine at their 
proposed retail and restaurant development for RH. The applicant believes the combination of 
wine, food, and furniture design galleries will create a socially engaging retail experience that will 
serve as a destination based anchor tenant for the City. The eligibility of an Economic 
Development License may incentivize the applicant to pursue a development that meets the intent 
of the license which is “to constitute a substantial economic development and benefit to the city.” 
 
Master Plan: 
In regards to the Downtown Birmingham 2016 Plan, it is recommended that the City encourage 
destination restaurants and retailers which serve as anchor tenants that compliment rather than 
compete with neighboring commercial uses. These anchor tenants should attract customers from  
outside the primary trade area, and not have negative impacts on surrounding neighborhoods or 
the CBD (p. 29-30). 

 
The plan also states that Birmingham has five primary shopping areas in its Downtown which are 
isolated from each other. The distance between the primary shopping areas significantly limits 
cross-shopping between them. The plan states that the S. Old Woodward commercial area is 
separated from the CBD by the ring road traffic of Brown Street, and the plan identifies the 
intersection of Brown and S. Old Woodward as a location where an anchor tenant development 
will help spread out retail and encourage pedestrian movement between shopping districts. The 
illustration of this concept is provided below from Appendix D-1 of the Downtown 2016 Plan. 
 
The plan recommends infill development with 0 foot setback and calls for the elimination of 
exposed surface parking. Breaks in the street wall for surface parking leads to isolation of retail 
sections and discourages pedestrian cross shopping from one area of town to the next. The plan 
also recommends a retail requirement for first floor buildings with frontage along main streets. A 
retail requirement would provide first floor uses that activate the street at a pedestrian level and 
provide a continuous engaging experience of items and activities to see in businesses as visitors 
pass through Birmingham’s downtown. 
 
An economic development license for the subject area could incentivize an anchor tenant that 
provides infill for the space and helps connect the downtown to the S. Old Woodward corridor 
which the 2016 Plan calls for. This anchor tenant could help continue the street wall from 
downtown and enhance the pedestrian experience with more retail activity. By attracting an 
anchor tenant for this location, an Economic Development License for this location could 
constitute a substantial economic development and benefit to the City and also help achieve the 
goals of the 2016 Master Plan. 

 
 



3 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



4 

 
 

 
 

Surrounding Area: 
In regards to existing uses within the general area of the property, the subject property currently 
consists of a one story building and a two story building with a surface parking lot between them. 
The buildings are along the retail frontage line and consist of businesses offering financial 
services, shoe repair, and furniture.    
 
The properties to the east and southeast from 355 to 555 S. Old Woodward are all eligible for an 
Economic Development license. Birmingham Pub at 555 S. Old Woodward currently operates with 
an Economic Development Liquor License. The area to the southeast is not within the Parking 
Assessment District, however it does include a parking deck in the 555 building that is available 
for public use, and a new 5-story mixed-use building has been approved at 469-479 S. Old 
Woodward. Adachi Sushi is located directly to the east at 325 S. Old Woodward and operates 
with a Bistro Liquor License in the historical Peabody Mansion. The Peabody Mansion is the only 
property south of Brown Street between Woodward and S. Old Woodward that is not eligible for 
an Economic Development license due to its historical designation. 

 
To the north of the subject property is the newly developed Daxton Hotel which has replaced a 
former single story building and a large surface parking lot. The Daxton Hotel operates with a 
Hotel Liquor License which enables them to serve alcohol at the restaurant, banquet hall, and for 
room service. There are two public parking structures to the northeast and northwest of the 
subject property which are the Pierce Structure and Peabody Structure. Both public parking 
structures are within 200 feet of the subject property. Birmingham’s core commercial area is 
currently located just north of the subject property, which is zoned as B4 and D4 Overlay.  

 
Directly to the south is the newly developed Forefront property. The Forefront is a mixed-use 3-
story building with a 1st floor commercial use and a mix of condos and apartments on floors two 
and three. There is an eclectic mix of uses continuing further south along Old Woodward which 
includes a pharmacy, an outdoor sporting goods store, and the restaurant “Phoenicia” which 
operates with a Class C Quota Liquor License.  
 
Directly to the west along Brown Street is a 2-story office building for Coldwell Banker followed 
by a 3-story office building with Broder &Sachse amongst other tenants. The southwest portion 
of the property faces Daines Street which has a mix of office uses in the B2-B zone.  
 
At this time, there are no properties on the west side of S. Old Woodward that are eligible for an 
Economic Development License.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 

Current Trends: 
Brick and mortar retail has been shifting towards experience-based retail to compete with online 
shopping. This past decade, the retail industry has seen a number of businesses close their doors 
due to an inability to compete with online shopping. Successful brick and mortar stores have been 
able to combat online shopping by providing a positive experience that coincides with quality 
goods being sold. Doing so creates a destination-based experience that gets patrons walking into 
their doors and exploring the surrounding area.  

The applicant wishes to become eligible for an Economic Development License to provide a luxury 
shopping experience that includes wine sales to go along with the furniture sales concept. Patrons 
of the restaurant would be able to bring their wine into various sections of the store while 
browsing the various design galleries with items for sale. This luxury shopping experience adds a 
social element to their shopping experience and encourages social interaction while visiting their 
store. 

In regards to development and business trends in the area, The City has begun to see more 
activity near S. Old Woodward and Brown. The Forefront completed construction in 2018 however 
it did not occupy its first floor space with a tenant that quite meets the intent of the retail 
requirement. Attracting an anchor tenant on this side of town could help compliment and activate 
the surrounding retail spaces as spill-over shopping becomes a possibility. The Daxton Hotel 
recently completed construction across the street from the subject site and intends to activate 
the area with its hotel rooms for rent, its restaurant, and its banquet hall for various events. A 5-
Story mixed use building was recently approved for 469-479 S. Old Woodward which also intends 
to bring more 1st floor retail and residents to this side of town. Attracting an anchor tenant could 
help compliment the surrounding development activity for this area. 

An item for consideration and discussion is the impact of Covid-19 on downtowns such as 
Birmingham where restaurants and shops depend on business from surrounding office workers. 
There is a wide range of future projections for in-office work, many of them reducing the number 
of office workers and allowing more opportunities to work at home. If this occurs, Birmingham’s 
businesses could experiences a drastic reduction in revenue (or continue to…) An Economic 
Development License could help attract a destination anchor tenant that brings more people into 
downtown. Doing so could also provide an interesting destination for people working at home 
and looking to get out for social activity. 

Amending the Ordinance to make the subject property eligible for an Economic Development 
License could incentivize development at this site that incorporates more experience-based retail 
that attracts patrons to the area and compliments the surrounding uses.  

Summary: 
The Planning Division finds that a zoning amendment to make the subject property eligible for an 
Economic Development License could help incentivize an anchor tenant that serves as an 
experience-based retail destination. Attracting such an anchor tenant would satisfy the 
recommendations of the Downtown 2016 Plan for the subject area of S. Old Woodward and 
Brown. Incentivizing an anchor tenant could also help connect retail from the CBD into the S. Old 
Woodward area and serve as a catalyst for surrounding businesses. 



6 

Suggested Action: 

To recommend approval to the City Commission of the ordinance amendment to allow the use of 
an Economic Development Liquor License in the expanded area as shown on the attached map 
for Appendix C, Exhibit 1, Economic Development Licenses. 

OR 

To postpone the ordinance amendment to allow the use of an Economic Development Liquor 
License in the expanded area as shown on the attached map for Appendix C, Exhibit 1, Economic 
Development Licenses given the following reasons: 

1.) __________________________ 
2.) __________________________ 
3.) __________________________ 

OR 

To recommend denial to the City Commission of the ordinance amendment to allow the use of 
an Economic Development Liquor License in the expanded area as shown on the attached map 
for Appendix C, Exhibit 1, Economic Development Licenses. 



City Of Birmingham 
Regular Meeting Of The Planning Board 

Wednesday, April 28, 2021 
Held Remotely Via Zoom And Telephone Access 

Minutes of the regular meeting of the City of Birmingham Planning Board held on April 28, 2021. 
Vice-Chair Bryan Williams convened the meeting at 7:35 p.m. 

A. Roll Call 

Present: Vice-Chair Bryan Williams; Board Members Robin Boyle, Stuart Jeffares, Bert  
Koseck, Daniel Share, Janelle Whipple-Boyce; Alternate Board Member Jason 
Emerine (all located in Birmingham, MI, with the exception of Stuart Jeffares  who 
was in Traverse City, MI.) 

Absent: Chair Scott Clein; Alternate Board Member Nasseem Ramin; Student 
Representatives Daniel Murphy, Jane Wineman 

Administration: Jana Ecker, Planning Director (“PD”) 
Brooks Cowan, City Planner (“CP”) 
Laura Eichenhorn, City Transcriptionist 

Fleis and Vandenbrink: 
Julie Kroll 



2 

04-060-21 

F. Zoning Ordinance Amendment Request 

1. Request for an amendment to Chapter 126, Zoning, Appendix 1, Exhibit A, to amend
the Economic Development License map to include the properties at 300 & 394 S. Old 
Woodward, and portions of 294 E. Brown – New Construction (Capital Title/Lutz & 
Frank’s Shoe Service, portions of Coldwell Banker Weir Manual parking lot) on the map 
contained in Exhibit A to allow the use of economic development liquor licenses (EDL) on 
these properties. 

CP Brooks and Ms. McGregor presented the item. 

In reply to Vice-Chair Williams, Mr. Saroki confirmed the granting of an EDL is critical to the 
development of this project. 

Mr. Share said that irrespective of the current proposal from RH the City should consider allowing 
this parcel to be eligible for an EDL since the 2016 Plan set it out as an ideal location for an 
anchor tenant.  

Motion by Mr. Share 
Seconded by Ms. Whipple-Boyce to recommend approval to the City Commission of 
the ordinance amendment to allow the use of an Economic Development Liquor 
License in the expanded area as shown on the attached map for Appendix C, Exhibit 
1, Economic Development Licenses. 

Motion carried, 7-0. 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
Yeas: Share, Whipple-Boyce, Emerine, Boyle, Jeffares, Koseck, Williams 
Nays: None  



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Police Department 

DATE: May 26, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Mark H. Clemence, Chief of Police 

Paul A. Wells, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: Temporary COVID-19 Off-Season Outdoor Dining 
Standards Expiration Date 

INTRODUCTION: 

As part of the City’s economic relief efforts to assist the residential and business 
community through the COVID-19 pandemic, the City Commission approved 
“Temporary COVID-19 Off-Season Outdoor Dining Standards” that allowed businesses 
to erect dining platforms on City property without charge and without following 
standardized dining platform rules.  The current resolution is set to expire on June 30, 
2021 (see-attached resolution).  On May 10, 2021, a “draft report” was included under 
the reports section for the City Commission and the public (see attached).  This draft 
detailed the status of the “Temporary COVID-19 Off-Season Dining Standards” as it 
stood relative to the date and current state of Michigan Department of Health and 
Human Services (MDHHS) orders at that time.  

On May 20, 2021, the Center for Disease Control (CDC) released new guidance on 
masks, based on the strength of vaccines preventing infections and spread among 
vaccinated people. The guidance says vaccinated people no longer need to wear masks 
or socially distance indoors or outdoors, with exceptions for certain medical spaces. The 
State of Michigan has adjusted the State’s mask policy to match the CDC 
recommendation. Currently, fully vaccinated people no longer need to wear a mask 
outdoors or indoors unless required by their work or business.  The State of Michigan 
has also announced that as of June 1, 2021, all outdoor capacity limits will be lifted 
while all indoor establishments will continue at a 50% capacity limit. Finally, it is 

anticipated that on July 1, 2021, the State of Michigan will take its final step in 
reopening the state by lifting the remaining mask and gatherings orders and will no 
longer impose broad mitigation measures related to COVID-19.  All businesses and 
workplaces will have the right to require masks beyond that date. 

7C



2 

BACKGROUND: 

The City Commission originally approved the installation of temporary COVID-19 off-
season outdoor dining standards on May 11, 2020 through September 8, 2020 (see 
attached minutes).   On August 24, 2020, the City Commission approved an extension 
of the COVID-19 off-season outdoor dining standards until March 31, 2021 (see 
attached minutes). Finally, on March 8, 2021, the City Commission approved a 
resolution to extend the temporary COVID-19 off-season outdoor dining standards until 
June 30, 2021 (see attached minutes).  

In addition to the economic relief efforts, the City has also been engaged in helping the 
restaurant and retail operations with other COVID-19 assistance, including the 
following: 

1. The City applied for and was awarded a total of $106,970.00 from Oakland

County to help support the local needs of restaurants, bars and cafes.

2. Through the Oakland County Restaurant Relief Grant, the City was able to

procure a number of eligible items valued at $48,192.00 that included:

a. (60) outdoor propane heaters

b. (1,400) 20lb. propane tank exchanges (program still ongoing)

c. (25) electrostatic sprayers

d. (50) gallons of disinfectant

e. (3) greenhouses

f. (1) igloo

The remaining balance of $58,778.00 was used for reimbursing restaurants, bars and 
cafes for COVID-19 related expenses accrued through June 30, 2021. Eligible purchases 
through the grant were personal protective equipment (PPE), outdoor propane heaters, 
electrostatic sprayers, propane, electric heaters, greenhouses, igloos and supplies for 
building temporary outdoor shelters (lumber, tables, chairs, etc.). In April, twelve 
restaurants, bars and cafes also received approximately $5,000.00 each in 
reimbursements. 

The Birmingham Shopping District (BSD) has held multiple PPE drive-up donation days 
to help support all local businesses. The PPE drives were funded by the BSD with a 
donation from Oakland County.  

The basic premise for the temporary COVID-19 off-season outdoor dining standards 
was to allow for on-site, outdoor dining to make-up for indoor dining that was either 
eliminated or limited by compliance with the Executive Orders from the Governor of the 



3 

State of Michigan or the Michigan Department of Health and Human Services.  The 
number of dining seats removed from the interior of the restaurant due to health 
guidelines was the maximum number that each establishment was permitted to add 
outdoors in the public right-of-way on the sidewalk, in the on-street parking zone , in a 
via and/or on private property.   

Throughout the course of the past year, the State of Michigan has experienced peaks 
and valleys as it relates to the prevalence of COVID-19.  Currently, COVID-19 numbers 
in Michigan have been consistently high.  The current MDHHS orders include: 

1. Consumption of food or beverages only in designated dining area where patrons

are seated, separated by 6 feet in distance and no more than 6 patrons are

seated together

2. No gathering of patrons in common areas

3. No more than 50% of normal seating capacity

4. Close by 11:00 pm

5. All dine-in food service establishments must maintain accurate records of the

names and phone numbers of patrons who consume food or beverages on the

premises, and the date and time of entry

According to a recent press release from Governor Gretchen Whitmer on May 24, 2021, 

it is the intention of the MDHHS to have only the following restrictions in place on June 

1, 2021: 

1. No more than 50% of the limits established by the State of Michigan Fire Marshal

or a local fire marshal (or 30 persons per 1,000 square feet if no applicable fire

marshal limit exists) or 25 persons.

2. All dine-in food service establishments must maintain accurate records of the

names and phone numbers of patrons who consume food or beverages on the

premises, and the date and time of entry

It is also anticipated that barring any unforeseen uptick in COVID-19 cases, that the 
MDHHS will remove all restrictions on July 1, 2021.  

It should be noted that in recent visits to many of the City’s restaurants by staff, 
including police and fire, prior to June 1, 2021,  numerous violations of MDHHS indoor 
dining orders were observed (see attached), including: 

1. Over 50% capacity indoors

2. Not observing 6 foot social distancing between dining groups

3. More than 6 patrons sitting at one table



4 

4. Patrons allowed to stand and gather in common areas (bar area)

Additional areas of concern have been the encroachment of outdoor decks and dining 
operations into public walkways (planter stands, hostess/host stands, employees) 
causing obstructions and the over occupancy in outdoor dining areas.   

The current City resolution is set to expire on June 30, 2021.  Alternate options for 
temporary COVID-19 outdoor dining standards for consideration by the Commission 
include the following: 

1. Continue with expiration date of June 30, 2021

2. Modify with expiration date of Friday, September 10, 2021, the first Friday after

the Labor Day weekend subject to the following conditions:

a. Any temporary dining platform with walls and/or roofs must have those

walls and/or roofs removed by July 9, 2021.  Walls and/or roofs will not

be permitted on any future temporary platforms. Proper

temporary barriers will be required to denote the dining areas.

b. Heaters will be allowed pursuant to fire department rules and regulations,

but storage of propane containers near the dining area will no longer be

permitted.

The City will continue to monitor all restaurants to ensure that compliance with current 
MDHHS orders.  Any restaurant not in compliance may have their temporary outdoor 
dining revoked by the City.  The City will investigate violations of MDHHS orders, 
document violations of MDHHS orders and report violations of MDHHS orders to that 
agency.  

LEGAL REVIEW: 

The City Attorney has reviewed this report and has no objections to the suggested 
resolutions. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 

The fiscal impact will be determined by the course of action selected by the 
Commission.  If the Commission chooses to extend the period of time that temporary 
COVID-19 outdoor dining platforms can remain in place, those platforms utilizing on-
street parking spaces would represent lost revenue commensurate with parking meter 
fees.  

SUMMARY: 

The current resolution allowing for temporary COVID-19 outdoor dining standards is set 
to expire per resolution on June 30, 2021. The City has gone to great lengths to assist 



5 

the business community to weather the COVID-19 pandemic, both financially and with 
the time and efforts of City staff.  The City Commission has two options: 

1. Take no action.  The current City resolution allowing for temporary COVID-19

outdoor dining standards would expire on June 30, 2021.

2. Extend the current resolution allowing the temporary COVID-19 dining standards

to Friday, September 10, 2021 subject to the following conditions:

c. Any temporary dining platform with walls and/or roofs must have those

walls and/or roofs removed by July 9, 2021.  Walls and/or roofs will not

be permitted on any future temporary platforms. Proper

temporary barriers will be required to denote the dining areas.

b. Heaters will be allowed pursuant to fire department rules and regulations,

but storage of propane containers near the dining area will no longer be

permitted.

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. City Resolution # 05-073-20

2. Draft Report: Temporary COVID-19 Off Season Outdoor Dining Standards

Expiation Date

3. City Commission Minutes of May, 11, 2020

4. City Resolution # 08-160-20

5. City Commission Minutes of August 24, 2020

6. City Resolution # 03-062-21

7. City Commission Minutes of March 8, 2021

8. Police and Fire Restaurant Observation Reports (04/30, 05/01)

SUGGESTED RESOLUTIONS: 

Take no action. The current City resolution allowing Temporary COVID-19 Off-Season 
Outdoor Dining Standards would expire on June 30, 2021. 

OR 

Extend the current City resolution allowing Temporary COVID-19 Off-Season Outdoor 
Dining Standards to Friday, September 10, 2021 subject to the following conditions: 



6 

a. Any temporary dining platform with walls and/or roofs must have those

walls and/or roofs removed by July 9, 2021.  Walls and/or roofs will not

be permitted on any future temporary platforms. Proper

temporary barriers will be required to denote the dining areas.

b. Heaters will be allowed pursuant to fire department rules and regulations,

but storage of propane containers near the dining area will no longer be

permitted.































































MEMORANDUM 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Planning Division 

June 14th, 2021 

Thomas Markus, City Manager 

Jana L. Ecker, Planning Director 

Food Trucks (Vendors and Peddlers) 

Back in 2011, the City Commission approved amendments to Chapter 26, Businesses, of the City 
Code to amend Section IV, Vendors and Peddlers, to clarify requirements for approved vendors 
and peddlers as defined in the ordinance (which did not include food trucks).   

At the same time, the City Commission considered permitting the operation of food trucks in the 
City, potentially at specified locations to activate City parks, vias and other public spaces. 
Research was conducted on potential ordinance amendments to allow food trucks, 
possible locations throughout the City, and input was solicited from several City boards.  Many 
residents and brick and mortar business owners spoke in opposition to the proposal to allow 
food trucks, and ultimately the City Commission did not support amending the Vendors 
and Peddlers section of Chapter 26, Businesses, to allow food trucks to operate in the City. 

Please see attached for reports, minutes and other documentation prepared and considered by 
the City back in 2011.     

7D



1 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: March 15, 2011 

TO: Robert J. Bruner, Jr., City Manager 

FROM: Jana Ecker, Planning Director 

APPROVED:  Robert J. Bruner, Jr., City Manager 

SUBJECT: Proposed Ordinance Amendment 
Commercial Vendors – Moveable & Park Vendors 

In accordance with the Planning Board’s action list, the Planning Division 
conducted a study of the alleys and passages in the downtown area.  This 
assessment of the current condition of alleys in the City of Birmingham was done 
to identify the strengths and weaknesses of the alleys and passages and seek 
out possibilities for improvement to the urban fabric of the downtown area 
through the improvement of these areas.   

The 2016 plan identified the alleys behind commercial buildings as underutilized 
assets within the city.  The alleys of the downtown area are primarily used to 
service shops in the manner of deliveries and trash disposal.  While the 2016 
plan recognizes the service value of the alleys as an essential function of the 
downtown area, it also identifies certain alleys as pedestrian passages as they 
are more pedestrian oriented and used only lightly for service functions.  The 
2016 Plan recommends the enhancement of pedestrian passages to improve 
routes for pedestrians. The recommendations contained in Circulation 5 of the 
2016 Plan state that alleys should be kept clean and well lit, but that their service 
function should not be compromised. The Plan further states that pedestrian 
passages should be held to higher standards, similar to sidewalks, given their 
pedestrian function. The 2016 Plan specifically recommends encouraging outdoor 
dining areas along pedestrian passages. 

The recommendation of the 2016 plan is to make a distinction between the 
alleys that should be considered primarily as service oriented and alleys that 
have a pedestrian aspect that classify them as “passages”.   Appendix C-9 of the 
2016 Plan provides a map of all alleys in downtown Birmingham, and classifies 
each as an alley or a pedestrian passage. Those areas designated as “passages” 
should be held to a higher standard, similar to sidewalks and streetscapes, which 
should be maintained and patrolled by the City accordingly. 



2 

Since the time that the 2016 plan was written there has been significant 
development which could alter the way these alleys are classified.  Most notably, 
the Willits building was erected on the former Jacobson’s site.  During the 
development process, a great deal of attention was given to this alley and its 
ability to function as a pedestrian corridor.  In addition, many stores have since 
opened rear entrances to their establishments.  Standard streetscape elements 
such as streetlights and landscaping have been installed.  The enhancement of 
the passages and pedestrian oriented alleys benefit the vitality and walkability of 
Birmingham, and adds to the ambience of downtown.  The pedestrian vias 
leading from Maple and S. Old Woodward to the plaza space where the passages 
meet at Café Via’s entrance are excellent examples of what can be done to 
create interesting and lively spaces out of alleys, passages and their connection 
points.  This area can be used as a model for discussion of improvements to the 
public alleys.   

As a result of ongoing discussions at the Planning Board regarding improvements 
to the alleys and passages downtown, an Alleys and Passages Committee was 
formed and had their first meeting in May 2009.  The Committee discussed 
burying utility lines underground in alleys and passages, cleaning up the City 
alleys, adding directional signage to encourage use, adding hanging planters to 
the pedestrian lighting already existing in some alleys, and allowing vendors to 
set up kiosks in alleys and passages to create an artisan market or other similar 
attraction to add life to the alleys and passages.  The Committee also 
recommended contacting the PSD to discuss many of these issues further. 

In addition, over the past year the Clerk’s Office has received numerous requests 
from residents to allow ice cream trucks in neighborhoods, and the Planning 
Division has been approached by multiple vendors seeking to set up kiosks in 
Birmingham on the streets, sidewalks, alleys, passages, and in the parks.   

Current Peddlers and Vendors Regulations 

The existing regulations for vendors and peddlers can be found in Chapter 26, 
Businesses, Article IV, Peddlers and Vendors.  Essentially, the City’s current 
policy is to allow peddlers throughout the year, but to be considered a peddler 
you must move every 20 minutes.  The City’s policy on vendors (stationary 
kiosks) has been to allow them only during special events as a part of the 
approved event.  This does not allow for an artisan market in an alley for 
instance, or a hot dog vendor on the same street corner every day.  Under the 
current vendor ordinance, no peddlers or vendors are permitted in any 
residential zoned area of the City or public area adjacent to a residentially zoned 
area.   



3 

Vendors 

The proposed ordinance amendment included with this memo defines several 
types of vendors.  This includes frozen confection vendors, park vendors, 
movable vendors, special event vendors, and school vendors/vendors at an 
athletic event in a city park.  No changes are proposed to the existing 
requirements for special event vendors or school vendors. 

Movable Vendors at Designated Locations Downtown 

Amendments proposed in the draft ordinance would allow vendors in designated 
locations within the downtown area.  These vendors will be defined as moveable 
vendors as they will be permitted to occupy a particular location each day, but 
their cart or stand must be removed every night.  The draft ordinance sets out 
standards for the aesthetics of the cart or stand, regulations on the hours of 
operation, the size of the public space to be rented, the type of product to be 
sold, and ensures provision of the required 5’ minimum clear pedestrian path at 
all times.   The Planning Division has prepared a map designating two proposed 
vendor locations that the City Commission may wish to start with for the first 
year on a trial basis.  Numerous other sites throughout the downtown could 
support the addition of a moveable vendor, including many of the pedestrian 
passages discussed in the 2016 Plan. 

Park Vendors at Designated Locations in Shain and Booth Park 

The 2016 Plan states “the reason that parks in some cities are exceedingly 
popular is that food and beverages are provided, allowing people to stay for 
extended periods of time.” (p. 56).  The 2016 Plan goes on to provide the 
following recommendation to “encourage a new café or pub in Booth Park at the 
corner of north Woodward and Harmon, possibly as a public-private partnership.”  
(p. 56).  The plans for the redesigned Shain Park also included an area for the 
sale of food and beverages.   

Accordingly, the proposed ordinance amendment allows for park vendors at 
designated locations in both Shain and Booth Parks.  Should this ordinance 
amendment be approved, the City would prepare a Request for Proposals to 
solicit proposals for a food booth in one or both park(s) and would include 
seating areas to provide a plaza space for people to gather and enjoy the 
park(s).   

Application Process & Fee Schedule 

The draft ordinance details the comprehensive application process that is 
proposed, and outlines all required information for submittal with an application, 



4 

such as photos of proposed operators, cart or stand specifications and personal 
information to allow the Police Department to conduct background checks on 
applicants. A comprehensive review of the costs involved to process the 
applications has also been done by each department and a Fee Schedule will be 
provided should the Commission choose to move forward with the proposed 
ordinance amendments.   

Input from Principal Shopping District Board 

An earlier draft of the proposed ordinance amendment was presented to the 
Principal Shopping District (“PSD”) Board in August 2010, at which time a 
subcommittee was established to review and provide comment on the proposed 
ordinance.  This early draft proposed approximately 10 vendor locations at 
designated areas downtown and in the parks.  The subcommittee met on two 
occasions this past fall to review the draft ordinance, and provided a 
recommendation to the full board of the Principal Shopping District at the 
October 7, 2010 meeting.  After some discussion, the PSD Board passed a 
motion providing a recommendation that no vendors be added to the streets, 
alleys or parks downtown.  In the event that the City decided to proceed with 
the vendor ordinance, the board suggested offering vendor locations to existing 
businesses downtown first (see attached memo dated November 2, 2010). 

Moveable Vendor Ordinance Option 

Based on the input received from the Principal Shopping District Board, staff has 
modified the earlier drafts of the revised Vendor Ordinance to limit the number 
of moveable vendors to two locations for the first year to evaluate the impact of 
this program on the downtown.  Language has also been added to the proposed 
ordinance amendment to designate one of the two moveable vendor locations 
and one of the two park vendor locations for existing downtown Birmingham 
businesses.   

On January 22, 2011, the proposed vendor ordinance was discussed at the Long 
Range Planning meeting.  The proposed version at that time combined all 
required amendments to comply with State and Federal law, and also to permit 
the addition of moveable and park vendors.  Several members of the City 
Commission were in support of adding moveable and park vendors on a trial 
basis.   

On February 9, 2011 the proposed vendor ordinance was discussed at the 
Planning Board meeting.  Several members expressed support for park vendors, 
and several others were concerned about allowing vendors in alleys and 
passages.  The Planning Board did not take any action on the proposed 
ordinance amendment as it was not within their authority to do so.  They did ask 



5 

that the comments from the entire board be forwarded to the City Commission 
for their review and consideration. 

On February 28, 2011, the City Commission again discussed amendments to the 
vendor ordinance, and expressed their concern that the moveable and park 
vendors had been removed from the ordinance.  Several City Commissioners 
again stated their desire to allow moveable and/or park vendors on a trial basis. 
The City Commission then directed staff to come back with two versions of the 
proposed vendor ordinance, one with all required changes to comply with State 
and Federal law, and another to allow moveable and/or park vendors for their 
consideration.   

Thus, please find attached draft ordinance language that would allow vendors at 
designated locations only in the City.  The dimensions of the kiosk area for lease 
from the City will be determined based on the individual location constraints.  A 
minimum 5’ of clear pedestrian path will be maintained at all times.  The goal is 
to identify areas where we want to target additional activity, and to establish a 
clear plan for vendors to eliminate conflict.  The draft ordinance establishes 
parameters for the aesthetics of kiosks, hours of operation, license regulations, 
insurance requirements, the lease terms available and all license fees and lease 
payment calculations.  The draft ordinance also provides selection criteria 
including the type of product to be sold, the pricing of the product, and the 
vendor’s previous experience in Birmingham to allow the City to control both the 
number of vendors, and the type of products sold. 

Suggested Resolution: 

To adopt Ordinance _____ to allow moveable and/or park vendors at specified 
locations in the City on a trial basis, and to establish selection criteria for such 
vendors; 

OR 

To direct City staff to bring this matter back to the City Commission at a later 
date with the following additional information: 
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________
_________________________________________________________________ 

OR  

To take no action. 



6 

Principal Shopping District Board Minutes 
August 5, 2010 

Jana Ecker presented the proposed ordinance amendment for commercial 
vendors, peddlers and solicitors to the Board. Ecker stated that one of the ideas 
behind having vendors in the park is to encourage people to stay and enjoy the 
park. Ecker stated that alleys and passages are also in the 2016 plan. The 
possibility is there for vendors in some of the city’s pedestrian alleys and 
passages as well. Ecker stated the proposal allows for the city to have a request 
for proposal (RFP) for Shain and Booth parks for vendors. The park vendors 
would be a more permanent vendor probably set up for the season. Ecker stated 
that the city would encourage the seasonal vendors to have a plaza area with 
tables and chairs for patrons.  

The discussion opened up for the Board to ask questions.  

Some examples of PSD questions:  
 the fees to be charged
 what time would the vendors be restricted to
 where are the locations that vendors will be allowed and can the city

dictate the location for each vendor, such as where to put food vendors
and opposed to a magazine vendor

 would there be a preference to PSD businesses
 would the size of the vendor space be limited, and what would that size

be
 could PSD merchants be added to the RFP, so that it was in writing they

would get preference over an outside vendor
 was there a retailer on the ordinance committee
 would the vendors be allowed to operate during PSD special events
 where will patrons be sent for restroom facilities after City Hall is closed or

in areas where there is not a public restroom

Hockman stated the city went through a process to approve outdoor dining with 
the Bistros and to create activity on the city streets. Hockman went on to ask, 
where are the deficiencies that the city feels a need to have street vendors? 
What is the city trying to accomplish that they feel is not currently being done? 
Ecker stated that this vision was outlined in the 2016 plan.  

Alan Borman a Birmingham resident gave a brief presentation to the Board on 
why he felt the City of Birmingham should make changes to its current vendor 
amendment. Borman is interested in becoming a vendor in a Birmingham park.  



7 
 

Hockman suggested for consideration that the PSD Board appoint a 
subcommittee consisting of three to four Board members along with City staff, 
and documents to meet and discuss the vendor ordinance and then report back 
to the PSD Board at the September meeting. Hockman suggested that Peter 
Sobelton, Richard Astrein, Bill Roberts, Doug Fehan and John Heiney represent 
the PSD if they were available. Hockman suggested the subcommittee try to 
meet one or two times before the September PSD Board meeting. 



8 
 

Principal Shopping District Board Minutes October 7, 2010 
 
Heiney reported that, per the PSD Board’s request, a subcommittee reviewed the 
recommendations of the City staff regarding modifying the vendor ordinance to 
allow for a season-long food or craft stand in key public locations. The PSD 
subcommittee concluded that such an ordinance would allow temporary vendors 
to compete with brick and mortar businesses who have a much higher 
investment in the city. Therefore the sub-committee recommended against 
supporting the ordinance revisions. Ecker said that the revised ordinance was an 
effort to fulfill a 2016 plan recommendation for areas of attraction in public 
spaces, including alleys and passages . Heiney said that the PSD Executive  
Committee also reviewed this matter. They suggested that the City consider 
installing outdoor dining amenities at Shain Park and other public locations 
around the downtown area. Ecker said that the outdoor dining suggestion was 
interesting, and could be a possible interim solution to try in a few locations. She 
said that some vendors will still request the revised ordinance at the City 
Commission meeting. Roberts said that the sub-committee is concerned about 
vendors competing with businesses, like the Sweet Earth frozen yogurt store that 
just opened. Fehan asked Ecker if a fee structure had been set for the proposed 
new vendors. Ecker said they had not set that up, but that it would be based on 
a fair market value to lease public property. Sherman said that the outdoor 
dining might be a reasonable compromise to start. He said that the PSD should 
communicate with restaurants in the areas of this outdoor dining. Heiney said 
that several restaurants offer carry out service, and some deliver. He suggested 
that the PSD could coordinate with these restaurants to provide delivery service 
to these public dining locations. Ecker cautioned that this plan would be an 
unanticipated cost to the City.  
 
Hohendorf said that he reviewed the 2016 plan, and did not recall any discussion 
that advocated for vendors. He called Bob Gibbs to ask about this. He reported 
that Gibbs did not necessarily envision outdoor dining. Ecker said that the 
committee had several objectives to providing this vendor service. Hockman said 
that the outdoor dining would meet the stated objective of creating areas of 
interest in public spaces without creating unfair competition.  
 
Motion by Hockman: PSD Board would report back to the City that the PSD 
encourages the use of outdoor dining furniture as an alternative to revising the 
vendor ordinance and allowing vendors on public property in the downtown area. 
Second: Sobelton. 



9 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

________________________________________________________ 
DATE:  November 2, 2010 
 
TO:   Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

Laura Broski, City Clerk 
 
FROM:  John Heiney, Executive Director,  

Birmingham PSD 
 
SUBJECT: PSD Position on Proposed Ordinance Amendment 

Regarding Vendors and Peddlers 
________________________________________________________ 
 
 
As you know, the PSD Board reviewed the provisions of the proposed vendor 
ordinance at their August meeting, and appointed a subcommittee to review the 
proposed revisions.  The subcommittee consisted of PSD Board members Richard 
Astrein, Doug Fehan, Bill Roberts and Peter Sobelton. The committee convened 
twice in the month of August, and shared their conclusions with the PSD 
Executive Committee on September 22.   
 
At the PSD Board meeting in August and at the first sub-committee meeting, 
Planning Director Jana Ecker spoke on behalf of the City staff committee, stating 
some of the goals for the revised ordinance.   
 
After reviewing the proposed ordinance, the PSD subcommittee expressed 
concerns about setting up temporary vendors that would compete directly with 
existing “brick and mortar” businesses.  Whether artisans or food vendors, the 
subcommittee agreed that these types of businesses would directly compete with 
existing downtown stores during a continued slow economy. 
 
They concluded that out of all the proposed locations, either Shain Park or the 
Pierce Street fountain area would be the most highly sought-after locations.  
Their concerns are that these locations are in close proximity to existing casual 
dining establishments 
 
The sub-committee, by consensus, rejected the provisions of the revised vendor 
ordinance and asked that the City not adopt it.  They requested that if the City 
does decide to go forward with the ordinance, to please give preference to 
merchants who wish to open a vendor kiosk.   
 



10 
 

The PSD Executive Committee reviewed the sub-committee’s recommendation.  
They established the fact that part of the reason for this proposed revisions is to 
create points of interest and energy around town, as per 2016 recommendations.  
The Executive Committee agrees with the findings of the sub-committee and 
suggests that the ordinance not be adopted as written. 
 
Instead, the Executive Committee suggested that the PSD put forth the following 
recommendation: 
 
Create seating and dining areas where visitors can enjoy a meal they bring in, or 
purchase from an existing establishment.  The PSD would offer to work with 
appropriate staff and committees, and will organize restaurants who wish to 
provide delivery service at approved locations.  The PSD could also work on a 
plan to provide restaurant information, menus, etc. at the suggested locations. 
 
This would address the recommendations of the 2016 plan for outdoor dining in 
public areas, and would meet the intent of the Alleys and Passages committee to 
create areas of interest in certain locations without creating additional 
competition for existing businesses.  In fact, such installations may encourage 
more business for some restaurants. 
 
 
At their October 7 meeting the PSD Board adopted these recommendations by 
resolution, and asked my office to report the outcome to the City Staff 
committee who originally drafted the proposed ordinance revisions. 
 
 



11 
 

Long Range Planning Minutes 
January 22, 2011 

 
C. PROPOSED ORDINANCE AMENDMENT REGARDING COMMERCIAL 
VENDORS, PEDDLING, SOLICITING  
 
Ms. Ecker explained that the alley and passages subcommittee is looking for 
different ways to improve the alleys and passages. She explained that 
discussions included vendors in the alleys and passages.  
 
Ms. Ecker explained that the Principal Shopping District Board is not overly in 
favor of bringing in new vendors. She explained that there would be a Request 
for Proposal process to control the vendor location, aesthetic of the cart, number 
of seats, etc, including background checks on the vendors.  
 
Ms. Broski explained that the requirements for peddlers, vendors and solicitors 
will be combined into one chapter of the City Code. She explained the revisions 
to the ordinance will include redefining the term peddler to include non-
charitable soliciting, adding a provision to allow frozen confection vendors in the 
neighborhoods, and limiting the hours that soliciting, peddling and frozen 
confection will be permitted to daylight hours only.  
 
Ms. Broski confirmed for Mayor Pro Tem Nickita that vendors must obtain a 
license from the City.  
 
Commissioner McDaniel suggested that the City try this idea and see what 
happens.  
 
Mayor Rinschler agreed. In response to a question from Mayor Rinschler, Ms. 
Ecker commented that fees have been discussed, but not set yet. She noted that 
the vendor would be charged a fee to use City property.  
 
Ms. Ecker confirmed for Mayor Pro Tem Nickita that vendors in the park would 
be limited to one near the Pierce Street Garage and one in the alley near Tokyo 
Sushi and one in Shain Park and one in Booth Park. Ms. Ecker confirmed that the 
proposed locations would not block existing buildings.  
 
Ron Rea suggested adding an enclosed port-a-potty to the park vendor locations.  
 
Bill Roberts, member of Principal Shopping District (PSD) Board, stated that the 
Board is in support of the concept to provide dining areas in the park such as 
tables and chairs. He expressed the concern of the Board in allowing vendors on 
public property which would be in direct competition of existing businesses. He 



12 
 

suggested that if the Commission moves forward on this, local restaurants should 
get the first opportunity.  
 
Ms. Conrad expressed that existing businesses should be given priority. She 
expressed concern with vendors in the neighborhoods. Ms. Broski confirmed that 
the police department performs background checks of the vendors.  
Mr. Bloom suggested the PSD install a kiosk for those restaurants that want to 
deliver to those in the park.  
 
Alan Borman, resident, expressed that food vendors will highlight the park. He 
pointed out that the investment for the vendors will be large.  
 
Dave Hohendorf, resident and business owner, pointed out that there is no 
mention of vendors in the 2016 Plan.  
 
The Commission recessed at 12:07 PM.  
The Commission reconvened at 12:19 PM.  



13 
 

Planning Board Minutes 
February 9, 2011 

 
STUDY SESSION 
VENDOR ORDINANCE 
 
Ms. Ecker advised that in accordance with the Planning Board’s Action List, the 
Planning Division conducted a study of the alleys and passages in the downtown 
area. This assessment of the current condition of alleys in the City of Birmingham 
was done 
to identify the strengths and weaknesses of the alleys and passages and to seek 
out possibilities for improvement to the urban fabric of the downtown area 
through the improvement of alleys and passages. 
 
The recommendation of the 2016 Plan is to make a distinction between the 
alleys that should be considered primarily as service oriented and alleys that 
have a pedestrian aspect that classifies them as “passages.” Those areas 
designated as “passages” should be held to a higher standard, similar to 
sidewalks and streetscapes, and should be maintained and patrolled by the City 
accordingly. 
 
Ms. Ecker advised that as a result of ongoing discussions at the Planning Board 
regarding improvements to the alleys and passages downtown, an Alleys and 
Passages Committee was formed and had their first meeting in May 2009. The 
Committee discussed burying utility lines underground in alleys and passages, 
cleaning up the City 
alleys, adding directional signage to encourage use, adding hanging planters to 
the pedestrian lighting already existing in some alleys, and allowing vendors to 
set up kiosks in alleys and passages to create an artisan market or other similar 
attraction to add life to the alleys and passages. 
 
In addition, over the past year the Clerk’s Office has received numerous requests 
from residents to allow ice cream trucks in neighborhoods, and the Planning 
Division has been approached by multiple vendors seeking to set up kiosks in 
Birmingham on the streets, sidewalks, alleys, passages, and in the parks. 
 
The city attorney has now drafted an ordinance that would allow vendors at 
designated locations only in the City, based on the suggestions of the Alleys and 
Passages Committee and the City Departments. The goal is to identify areas 
where we want to target additional activity, and to establish a clear plan for 
vendors to eliminate conflict. The draft ordinance also provides selection criteria 
including the type of product to be sold, the pricing of the product, and the 
vendor’s previous experience in Birmingham to allow the City to control both the 
number of vendors, and the type of products sold. The draft ordinance talks 



14 
 

about four locations:  one in Shain Park, one in Booth Park, one in the passage 
east of Tokyo Sushi, and one in front of the Pierce St. parking deck. 
 
The Principal Shopping District (“PSD”) has taken the position that they are not 
in favor of having vendors, but the City might want to consider giving preference 
to local businesses already in town if this ordinance is approved.   
 
Ms. Lazar pointed out that vendors have very little overhead.  Contrast that with 
a business in town that pays a very high rent along with additional taxes.  A 
vendor may present unfair competition to someone who is well entrenched in the 
community. 
 
Mr. Williams expressed his aversion to the thought of eating a hot dog in an 
alley.  To him it is inappropriate for Birmingham.  On the other hand he thinks 
something should be done to allow vendors in the parks and the opportunity 
should be made available to the PSD to provide vending services in the parks. 
 
Mr. DeWeese said the definition for frozen confection vendors should be changed 
to say “any commercial vendor traveling by vehicle,” rather than “traveling by 
automotive vehicle” to include bicycles. 
 
Ms. Lazar suggested existing businesses might want to set up a rotation to share 
a location.   
 
The chairman opened up discussion to the audience at 10 p.m. 
 
Ms. Dorothy Conrad pointed out that the Boy Scouts sell ice cream in the park 
for special events.  They do a lot of public things with the money that they 
make.  She only supports vendors if an offer is made to the existing businesses 
to provide vending services. 
 
Mr. Bill Roberts, 273 Pierce, a member of the PSD Board, said there is a lot of 
opportunity to take food to the parks.  The board cannot support the idea of 
bringing more vendors into town at this point.  There is plenty of competition 
already. 
 
Mr. John Kloche thought that having vendors in town would be complimentary to 
the cityscape.   
 
Ms. Susan Peabody from Peabody’s Restaurant said there are 53 restaurants in 
town.  There is no food that they are not doing.  If this is to happen, give the 
businesses in town the opportunity first.   
 



15 
 

Ms. Alice Thimm felt the customer base is already diluted enough for the current 
food establishments.  There is a history with the businesses that are in town now 
and she thinks the City ought to do its best to keep them. 
 
Ms. Ecker read a letter into the record in favor of street vendors because they 
would add interest and bring new business into the downtown area.  That ends 
up helping all of the merchants. 
 
Mr. Williams suggested the ordinance could be defined so that somebody who 
does not have a significant investment in Birmingham will not be eligible.  Mr. 
DeWeese recommended that the PSD might work in conjunction with the City to 
have an ongoing special event for vendors that introduces Birmingham 
restaurants to the larger community. That would limit the opportunity to existing 
businesses in town. 
 
Chairman Boyle said the minutes of tonight’s discussion will be sent to the PSD 
and forwarded to the City Commission. 

 



16 
 

City Commission Minutes 
February 28, 2011 

 
02-53-11 VENDOR, PEDDLER, SOLICITOR ORDINANCE UPDATE  
 
The Commission received the Vendor, Peddler, and Solicitor Ordinance Update 
submitted by City Clerk Broski.  
 
Ms. Broski explained that the movable and park vendors have been removed 
from the ordinance in order to move forward with combining the vendor, peddler 
and soliciting into one ordinance to bring it into compliance with state law before 
the vending season begins. She noted that movable and park vendors will 
continue to be studied.  
 
Edward Nemerkaiser questioned the concerns of the Principal Shopping District 
(PSD) with the mobile or stationary vendors. Mayor Rinschler referred him to the 
PSD.  
 
Mr. Valentine commented that the concerns from the PSD Board and Planning 
Board are what have delayed this discussion from moving ahead.  
 
Commissioner Sherman suggested both drafts of the ordinance be given to the 
Commission for review.  
 
Commissioner McDaniel suggested starting small, such as a vendor in Shain Park 
instead of allowing four vendors around town.  
 
The Commission agreed to bring the language which includes movable and park 
vendors as an alternative for discussion and possible modification. 



MEMORANDUM 
 
 
DATE:  July 19, 2010 
 
TO:   Principal Shopping District 
 
FROM:  Laura M. Broski, City Clerk  
   Jana Ecker, Planning Director 
   Bruce R. Johnson, Building Official 
   Lauren A. Wood, Director of Public Services 
   Christian Wuerth, Management Analyst  
 
SUBJECT: Proposed Ordinance Amendment 
 Commercial Vendors, Peddling, Soliciting 
 
 
A group of staff members have been working to revise the peddler/vendor and 
soliciting ordinance.  Highlights to the ordinance include the following: 

 Combining the requirements for peddler & vendor and soliciting into one 
chapter of the city code 

 Add provision for frozen confection vendor (ie: ice cream truck) 
 Add provision for movable vendors at designated locations in the 

downtown area 
 Add provision for stationary park vendor at Shain Park or Booth Park 

 
Combining the Peddler & Vendor and Soliciting ordinance 
The purpose in combining the peddler, vendor, and soliciting into one ordinance 
is to streamline and clarify the ordinance.   
 
The current ordinance allows for charitable and non-charitable solicitors to solicit 
in the downtown and residential areas.  The proposed ordinance allows 
charitable solicitors, as well as those groups protected by the first amendment, 
to continue to solicit in the City once the application has been approved at no 
cost.  The proposed ordinance defines non-charitable solicitors as peddlers.  In 
addition to the application fee, peddlers will have the option to pay a daily fee for 
those who will only be peddling for several days or an annual fee for the 
calendar year. 
 
The type of vendor has been broken down to include frozen confection vendors, 
stationary park vendors, movable vendors, special event vendors, and school 
vendor/vendor at an athletic event in a city park.  The requirement for special 
event vendors and school vendors remains the same. 
 



Addition of Frozen Confection Vendors 
Every summer the Clerk’s Office receives several calls regarding ice cream trucks.  
The current ordinance does not allow for ice cream vendors in residential areas.  
The proposed ordinance would allow only three frozen confection licenses to be 
issued per year and limit each company to one truck.  
 
Addition of Movable Vendors at Designated Locations 
In accordance with the Planning Board’s action list, the Planning Division 
conducted a study of the alleys and passages in the downtown area.  This 
assessment of the current condition of alleys in the City of Birmingham was done 
to identify the strengths and weaknesses of the alleys and passages and seek 
out possibilities for improvement to the urban fabric of the downtown area 
through the improvement of these areas.   
 
The 2016 plan identified the alleys behind commercial buildings as underutilized 
assets within the city.  The alleys of the downtown area are primarily used to 
service shops in the manner of deliveries and trash disposal.  While the 2016 
plan recognizes the service value of the alleys as an essential function of the 
downtown area, it also identifies certain alleys as pedestrian passages as they 
are more pedestrian oriented and used only lightly for service functions.  The 
2016 Plan recommends the enhancement of pedestrian passages to improve 
routes for pedestrians. The recommendations contained in Circulation 5 of the 
2016 Plan state that alleys should be kept clean and well lit, but that their service 
function should not be compromised. The Plan further states that pedestrian 
passages should be held to higher standards, similar to sidewalks, given their 
pedestrian function. The 2016 Plan specifically recommends encouraging outdoor 
dining areas along pedestrian passages. 
 
The recommendation of the 2016 plan is to make a distinction between the 
alleys that should be considered primarily as service oriented and alleys that 
have a pedestrian aspect that classify them as “passages”.   Appendix C-9 of the 
2016 Plan provides a map of all alleys in downtown Birmingham, and classifies 
each as an alley or a pedestrian passage. Those areas designated as “passages” 
should be held to a higher standard, similar to sidewalks and streetscapes, which 
should be maintained and patrolled by the City accordingly. 
 
Since the time that the 2016 plan was written there has been significant 
development which could alter the way these alleys are classified.  Most notably, 
the Willits building was erected on the former Jacobson’s site.  During the 
development process, a great deal of attention was given to this alley and its 
ability to function as a pedestrian corridor.  In addition, many stores have since 
opened rear entrances to their establishments.  Standard streetscape elements 
such as streetlights and landscaping were installed.  The enhancement of the 
passages and pedestrian oriented alleys benefit the vitality and walkability of 



Birmingham, and adds to the ambience of downtown.  The vias leading from 
Maple and S. Old Woodward to the plaza space where the passages meet at Café 
Via’s entrance are excellent examples of what can be done to create interesting 
and lively spaces out of alleys, passages and their connection points.  This area 
can be used as a model for discussion of improvements to the public alleys.   
 
On August 8, 2007, the Planning Board discussed alleys and passages and the 
need to improve many of the passages for pedestrian use as recommended in 
the DB 2016 Plan.  The Planning Division conducted a PowerPoint presentation 
to illustrate the condition of many of the alleys and passages discussed in the DB 
2016 Plan.  The Board concluded that baseline standards should be created, and 
a priority list created outlining which alleys and passages should be addressed 
first.  Planning Board members also requested that staff coordinate with the DPS 
to ensure that any wayfinding signage for alleys and passages be connected to 
the trail marker signage that is currently in the works.  Finally, a GIS map was 
requested to show all alleys and passages and their connections to open space 
networks, trails and the downtown. 
 
On September 12, 2007, the Planning Board again reviewed the issue of alleys 
and passages.  Board members suggested coming up with guidelines for the 
improvement of alleys and passages.  The Planning Board also discussed 
combining trash facilities and encouraging trash compactors.  A suggestion was 
also made to consider establishing an “adopt an alley” program and allowing 
donors to purchase naming rights in exchange for donations for alley or passage 
improvements.   
 
On October 10, 2007, the Planning Board again discussed alleys and passages.  
The Planning Board recommended creating a trash compactor program similar to 
the City newsrack program, as well as drafting an off-site signage ordinance to 
allow directional signage in alleys and passages.  The Planning Board also 
suggested preparing a plan for one portion of an alley to assist in creating 
guidelines for improvement. 
 
On August 13, 2008, the Planning Board discussed this issue again and 
recommended establishing a subcommittee on alleys and passages, with 
representatives from the DRB, PSD and Planning Board.  Board members 
suggested that the next elements to be addressed should be off site signage and 
the integration of wayfinding and coordination with the trail marker system, and 
determining how many businesses there are downtown with entrance doors only 
on alleys and/or passages.     
 
The Alleys and Passages Committee was formed and had their first meeting in 
May 2009.  The Committee discussed burying utility lines underground in alleys 
and passages, cleaning up the City alleys, adding directional signage to 



encourage use, adding hanging planters to the pedestrian lighting already 
existing in some alleys, and allowing vendors to set up kiosks in alleys and 
passages to create an artisan market or other similar attraction to add life to the 
alleys and passages.  The Committee also recommended contacting the PSD to 
discuss many of these issues further. 
 
Over the past several months, the Planning Division has been approached by 
multiple vendors seeking to set up kiosks in Birmingham on the streets, 
sidewalks, alleys, passages, and in the parks.  As it was one of the 
recommendations that the Alleys and Passages Committee made to allow such 
vendors downtown, the Planning Division has been working with the Clerk’s 
Office, the City Attorney, the Building Division and the DPS to consider allowing 
such vendors.   
 
The existing regulations for vendors and peddlers can be found in Chapter 26, 
Businesses, Article IV.  Essentially, the City’s current policy is to allow peddlers 
throughout the year, but to be considered a peddler you must move every 20 
minutes.  This does not allow for an artisan market in an alley for instance, or a 
hot dog vendor on the same street corner every day.  The City’s policy on 
vendors (stationary kiosks) was to allow them only during special events as a 
part of the approved event.   
 
The City Attorney has now drafted an ordinance that would allow stationary 
vendors at designated locations in the City only, based on the suggestions of the 
Planning Board and the City departments listed above.  The Planning Division is 
preparing a map outlining the designated locations for discussion.  Based on the 
individual location constraints, the dimensions of the kiosk area for lease from 
the City will be determined.  A minimum of 5’ of clear pedestrian space will be 
maintained at all times.  The goal is to identify areas where we want to target 
additional activity, and to establish a clear plan for vendors to eliminate conflict.  
The draft ordinance will establish parameters for the aesthetics of kiosks, hours 
of operation, license regulations, insurance requirements, the lease terms 
available and all license fees and lease payment calculations.  The ordinance will 
also provide selection criteria including the type of product to be sold, the pricing 
of the product, and the vendor’s previous experience in Birmingham to allow the 
City to control both the number of vendors, and the type of product sold. 
 
In addition, the Planning Division will be working with the City Manager’s office 
to prepare an RFP to be issued this fall to solicit proposals for a more permanent 
food kiosk to be operated in Shain Park, and then in Booth Park, in accordance 
with the DB 2016 Plan.  The DB 2016 Plan states “the reason that parks in some 
cities are exceedingly popular is that food and beverages are provided, allowing 
people to stay for extended periods of time.” (p. 56).  The 2016 Plan goes on to 
provide the following recommendation “encourage a new café or pub on Booth 



Park at the corner of north Woodward and Harmon, possibly as a public-private 
partnership.”  (p. 56). 
 
The City would solicit proposals for a food booth that would be open all season, 
possibly removed in the winter, and would include seating areas around it to 
provide a plaza space for people to gather and enjoy the park.   
 
Fees 
A comprehensive review of the costs involved to process the applications was 
done by each department.  The license fee for the movable vendors is based on 
the location cost for the fair market rent and taxes.  The current fee allowed for 
a 50% discount on the application fee and daily fee for licensed Birmingham 
merchants.  This discount will now only apply to the daily fee as the cost to 
process an application is a standard fee.  In previous practice, the 
peddler/vendor application fee was a one-time fee per year.  This proposed fee 
will require the application fee to be paid for each application submitted. 
 
 



CHAPTER 26:  BUSINESSES 
 
ARTICLE IV.  PEDDLERS AND VENDORS* 
 
__________ 
*Editor's note:  Ordinance No. 1639, adopted April 14, 1997, amended §§ 26-111--
26-119, 26-131--26-138 by replacing them with §§ 26-111--26-124. Formerly, such 
sections pertained to similar provisions and derived from § 7.51(1)--(5), 7.52, 7.53, 
7.54(1)--(3), 7.55--7.64 of the 1963 Code; Ord. No. 1518, § 7.53, 3-23-92; Ord. No. 
1630, 9-16-96. Subsequently, Ord. No. 1680, adopted Sept. 14, 1998, amended Art. IV 
in its entirety.   
 
__________ 
 
Sec. 26-111.  Definitions. 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the 
meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a 
different meaning: 
Parent organization  means the person or organization that the peddler is employed by 
or represents, the principal manufacturer and distributor of goods and the principal 
provider of services being sold.   
Peddling  means traveling by foot, automotive vehicle or other conveyance, from place 
to place or from street to street, carrying, conveying or transporting goods, wares, 
merchandise, including food products, offering and exposing the same for sale or 
making sales and delivering articles to purchasers, or taking or attempting to take 
orders for the sale of goods, wares and merchandise, books or magazines, personal 
property of any nature whatsoever for future delivery, or for services to be furnished or 
performed in the future, whether or not such individual has, carries or exposes for sale 
a sample of the subject of such sale or whether the subject is collecting advanced 
payments on such sales or not.   
Peddler  means any person who engages in peddling. The word peddler shall include 
the words "hawker", "itinerant merchant", and "street vendor".   
Special event  means an organized activity, held on public property, specific to an 
identifiable place, occurring for a limited period of time, and for which a special event 
permit has been issued, including a) a fair, concert, carnival, festival, performance, or 
other similar activity, or b) an activity taking place on a designated route on public 
rights-of-way for the purpose of walking, running, jogging, biking, racing, conducting a 
parade, or engaging in a similar activity.   
Vending during special events  means the sale of goods, wares, or merchandise, 
including food products, on public property at a stationary or fixed location during a 
special event in and around the location of the special event.   
Vending at school or other athletic events in city parks  means the sale of goods, wares, 
or merchandise, including food products, on public property at a stationary or fixed 
location during school or other athletic events at city parks.   



Vendor  means any person who engages in vending.   
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98; Ord. No. 1961, 4-7-08) 
 
Sec. 26-112.  Exceptions. 
The following shall not be required to obtain a license under this division: 
(1)   Any person selling solely newspapers. 
(2)   Persons traveling on an established route at the request, express or implied, of 
their customers. 
(3)   Salespersons calling on regularly licensed business establishments. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-113.  License requirement. 
No person shall engage in the business of peddling or vending in the city without first 
obtaining a license from the city clerk. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-114.  License application. 
Any person seeking to obtain a license pursuant to this article shall file a sworn 
application with the city clerk upon forms prescribed and furnished by the city clerk and 
shall pay an application fee to cover the cost of investigation. The application fee is set 
forth in appendix A. The application shall include the following information: 
(1)   The name of the person who will engage in peddling or vending within the city, 
including the person's current address of residence and length of residence at such 
address, business address if other than the residence address, business and residence 
telephone numbers, social security number, driver's license number, and a physical 
description including height, weight, and color of hair and eyes. 
(2)   A brief description of the business or activity to be conducted including the 
methods to be used and a description of the types of goods or services to be sold. 
(3)   The dates, hours and location for which the right to engage in peddling or vending 
is sought. 
(4)   Proof that the applicant has obtained all licenses or permits required by state law. 
(5)   The names of three references who will certify as to the applicant's good character 
and business responsibility. 
(6)   If employed and acting as an agent, the name, address and telephone number of 
the parent organization who is being represented, and when and where this 
organization was formed, including the form of its organization. 
(7)   A statement as to whether the applicant or its parent organization has ever been 
found to have violated a municipal ordinance regulating peddling or vending. 
(8)   A statement as to whether the applicant or an officer or director of the applicant's 
parent organization has ever been convicted of a felony, and if so, a brief description of 
the offense. 
(9)   A current photograph of the applicant, taken within 60 days immediately prior to 
the date of the filing of the application, which picture shall be two inches by two inches 



in size showing the head and shoulders of the applicant in a clear and distinguishing 
manner. 
(10)   The application shall be signed by the applicant stating that the information 
contained therein is true and correct, that the city shall have the right to investigate 
and verify the information contained in the application, and that the applicant has read 
the peddlers and vendors ordinance and agrees to abide by its terms. 
(11)   Such other information as the city clerk shall determine to be appropriate. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-115.  Application review and license issuance. 
(a)   Upon the receipt of an application, the application will be reviewed and an 
investigation will be conducted to insure that all information supplied by the applicant is 
true and accurate. 
(b)   Unless the application is denied in order to insure the protection of the public 
health, safety and general welfare, the city clerk shall issue a license to the applicant 
upon payment of the applicable licensing fee. Licenses shall be issued for a period of up 
to one year depending upon the duration of the peddler's or vendor's activities. All 
licenses shall expire at the end of each calendar year regardless of the date upon which 
the license was issued unless the license is set to expire at an earlier time. 
(c)   While a license is in effect, a peddler or vendor shall, within seven calendar days 
after a change occurs, report to the city clerk in writing any material change in any 
information previously provided on the application form. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-116.  Denial of license. 
(a)   Upon review and investigation of the application and the information contained 
therein, the city may refuse to issue a license to an applicant for any one or more of the 
following reasons: 
(1)   The applicant has failed to comply with the provisions and requirements of this 
article. 
(2)   The applicant has been found to have violated a provision of this article within the 
two years immediately preceding the date of application. 
(3)   The applicant has been denied a license pursuant to this article within the 
immediate past year, unless the applicant shows to the satisfaction of the city that the 
reasons for such earlier denial no longer exist. 
(4)   The applicant falsified information on the application. 
(5)   The applicant has been convicted of a felony. 
(6)   The location, time, or method of peddling or vending will block or congest streets 
or sidewalks, impede the free flow of pedestrian or automobile traffic, or will otherwise 
endanger the health, safety, and welfare of the public in its use of the streets and 
sidewalks in the city. 
(b)   Whenever an application for a license is denied, the reasons for the denial shall be 
noted on the application, and the applicant shall be notified that his application is 



denied and that no license will be issued. Notice shall be mailed to the applicant at the 
address shown on the license application, or at the applicant's last known address. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-117.  License revocation and suspension. 
(a)   Any license issued under this article may be revoked or suspended by the city for 
any of the following reasons: 
(1)   Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement contained in the license application. 
(2)   Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement by the peddler or vendor in the course 
of peddling or vending. 
(3)   Engaging in peddling or vending in a manner contrary to the provisions contained 
in the license. 
(4)   Conviction for a felony. 
(5)   Engaging in peddling or vending in violation of any city ordinance or state law. 
(6)   Engaging in peddling or vending in such a manner as to create a public nuisance, 
constitute a breach of the peace, prevent the free flow of traffic on sidewalks and 
streets, or endanger the health, safety or general welfare of the public. 
(b)   A peddler or vendor shall have the right to notice and hearing before revocation or 
suspension occurs. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-118.  Notice and hearing. 
Notice of a hearing for revocation or suspension of a license issued under this article 
shall be provided in writing and shall set forth specifically the grounds for the proposed 
revocation or suspension and the time and place of the hearing. Notice shall be mailed 
to the peddler or vendor at the address shown on the license application, or at the 
applicant's last known address. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-119.  Appeals. 
Any person denied the issuance of a license or having a license suspended or revoked 
may appeal in writing to the city commission within 14 days of the denial, suspension or 
revocation. After receipt of the request for appeal, the city commission shall hear the 
appeal at its next regularly scheduled commission meeting. The decision of the city 
commission on the appeal shall be final and binding on all parties concerned. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-120.  License fee. 
A license fee shall be collected for the purpose of defraying the costs incurred by the 
city in regulation and enforcement of this article. The cost of a daily and annual license 
is set forth in appendix A. Whenever an applicant believes that the applicable license 
fee places an undue burden upon interstate commerce, the applicant may apply to the 
city clerk for an adjustment or waiver of the license fee. The application for an 
adjustment or waiver must include a sworn statement setting forth the specific reasons 



why the fee reduction or waiver is sought. The application must also include sufficient 
information for the city clerk to make a determination as to whether the license fee 
would unduly burden the applicant. Current licensed operating businesses within 
approved business zoning districts within the city are entitled to a 50 percent reduction 
in a peddler's or vendor's application and applicable license fee. This reduction shall not 
apply to businesses which are delinquent in their payment of city taxes or special 
assessments at the time of application. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-121.  License exhibition. 
While peddling or vending, the license issued pursuant to this article shall be displayed 
so that it is visible to any person dealing with the peddler or vendor. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-122.  Nontransferable. 
No license issued pursuant to this article shall be transferred to or used by any person 
other than the one to whom it was issued. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-123.  Prohibitions. 
(a)   No peddler or vendor shall block, obstruct, impede or otherwise interfere with the 
normal flow of vehicular or pedestrian traffic upon a public street, alley, sidewalk or 
other public area within the city. In no event shall a peddler remain stationary in any 
location for more than 20 minutes. 
(b)   No peddler or vendor shall block or impede the ingress or egress of the public into 
any business within the city. 
(c)   No peddler or vendor shall, without permission, accost, interfere with, or touch any 
member of the public in any manner. 
(d)   No peddler or vendor shall unreasonably disturb the peace and quiet of the city 
and shall not shout, cry out, blow any horn, ring any bell, utilize any amplification 
system, or use any device to attract the attention of the public. 
(e)   No peddler or vendor shall make any fraudulent or misleading representations to 
any person in connection with any sale or potential sale while peddling or vending. 
(f)   No person under 12 years of age shall engage in any peddling or vending during 
school hours, unless legally excused from school, or for a combined school and work 
period of more than eight hours in any one day. No person shall engage in any peddling 
or vending between sundown and 8:00 a.m. 
(g)   The city may restrict peddling and vending to certain hours or to certain areas 
within the city during special events where the city has determined that peddling or 
vending may be hazardous to the health, safety or welfare of the public due to 
congestion in city streets, sidewalks or other public places or when peddling or vending 
may cause an impediment to the free flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic. No peddler 
or vendor shall engage in peddling or vending during such an event in any area or 



during any time that peddling or vending is restricted after having received written 
notice from the city clerk of such restriction. 
(h)   No peddler or vendor shall operate in any residential zoned area of the city or 
upon a public street, alley, sidewalk or other public area adjacent to a residentially 
zoned area. 
(i)   No peddler or vendor shall operate from any conveyance device which does not 
meet the approved city standards for peddler conveyance devices on file in the office of 
the city clerk. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
 
Sec. 26-124.  Special events. 
In addition to obtaining a peddler's or vendor's license, a peddler's or vendor's name 
shall be listed with the city clerk in the special events permit application of a sponsoring 
agency in order for the peddler or vendor to be permitted to operate on the streets, 
alleys, sidewalks or other public areas where a special event is taking place and as 
described in the special event permit. 
(Ord. No. 1639, 4-14-97; Ord. No. 1680, 9-14-98) 
Secs. 26-125--26-160.  Reserved. 
 



1 

 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 26, BUSINESSES, ARTICLE IV, PEDDLERS 
AND VENDORS, AND CHAPTER 38, CHARITABLE SOLICITATIONS, ARTICLE I, IN 
GENERAL, AND ARTICLE II, PERMIT, OF THE BIRMINGHAM CITY CODE TO 
REGULATE PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS, AND TO ALLOW FOR FROZEN 
CONFECTION VENDORS, AND FEE SCHEDULES FOR ADMINISTRATION AND 
PENALTIES.  

 

THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM ORDAINS: Chapter 26,  Businesses, Article IV, Pedders and 
Vendors, and Chapter 38, Charitable Solicitations, Article I, In General and Article II, Permit, of 
the Birmingham City Code, shall be amended as follows: 

 

ARTICLE IV.  PEDDLERS AND VENDORS* 
 
 
Sec. 26-111.  Definitions. 
 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meanings 
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning: 
 
Parent organization  means the person or organization that the peddler is employed by or 
represents, the principal manufacturer and distributor of goods and the principal provider of 
services being sold.   
 
Peddling  means traveling by foot, automotive vehicle or other conveyance, from place to place 
or from street to street, carrying, conveying or transporting goods, wares, merchandise, including 
food products, offering and exposing the same for sale or making sales and delivering articles to 
purchasers, or taking or attempting to take orders for the sale of goods, wares and merchandise, 
books or magazines, personal property of any nature whatsoever for future delivery, or for 
services to be furnished or performed in the future, whether or not such individual has, carries or 
exposes for sale a sample of the subject of such sale or whether the subject is collecting 
advanced payments on such sales or not.   
 
Peddler  means any person who engages in peddling. The word peddler shall include the words 
"hawker", "itinerant merchant", and "street vendor".   

Formatted: Left



2 

 

Special event  means an organized activity, held on public property, specific to an identifiable 
place, occurring for a limited period of time, and for which a special event permit has been 
issued, including a) a fair, concert, carnival, festival, performance, or other similar activity, or b) 
an activity taking place on a designated route on public rights-of-way for the purpose of walking, 
running, jogging, biking, racing, conducting a parade, or engaging in a similar activity.   
 
Vending during special events  means the sale of goods, wares, or merchandise, including food 
products, on public property at a stationary or fixed location during a special event in and around 
the location of the special event.   
 
Vending at school or other athletic events in city parks  means the sale of goods, wares, or 
merchandise, including food products, on public property at a stationary or fixed location during 
school or other athletic events at city parks.   
 
Vendor  means any person who engages in vending.   
 
Sec. 26-112.  Exceptions. 
 
The following shall not be required to obtain a license under this division: 
(1)   Any person selling solely newspapers. 
(2)   Persons traveling on an established route at the request, express or implied, of their 
customers. 
(3)   Salespersons calling on regularly licensed business establishments. 
 
Sec. 26-113.  License requirement. 
 
No person shall engage in the business of peddling or vending in the city without first obtaining 
a license from the city clerk. 
 
Sec. 26-114.  License application. 
 
Any person seeking to obtain a license pursuant to this article shall file a sworn application with 
the city clerk upon forms prescribed and furnished by the city clerk and shall pay an application 
fee to cover the cost of investigation. The application fee is set forth in the schedule of fees, 
charges, bonds and insurance. The application shall include the following information: 
 
(1)   The name of the person who will engage in peddling or vending within the city, including 
the person's current address of residence and length of residence at such address, business 
address if other than the residence address, business and residence telephone numbers, social 
security number, driver's license number, and a physical description including height, weight, 
and color of hair and eyes. 
 
(2)   A brief description of the business or activity to be conducted including the methods to be 
used and a description of the types of goods or services to be sold. 
 
(3)   The dates, hours and location for which the right to engage in peddling or vending is sought. 

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"



3 

 

 
(4)   Proof that the applicant has obtained all licenses or permits required by state law. 
 
(5)   The names of three references who will certify as to the applicant's good character and 
business responsibility. 
 
(6)   If employed and acting as an agent, the name, address and telephone number of the parent 
organization who is being represented, and when and where this organization was formed, 
including the form of its organization. 
 
(7)   A statement as to whether the applicant or its parent organization has ever been found to 
have violated a municipal ordinance regulating peddling or vending. 
 
(8)   A statement as to whether the applicant or an officer or director of the applicant's parent 
organization has ever been convicted of a felony, and if so, a brief description of the offense. 
 
(9)   A current photograph of the applicant, taken within 60 days immediately prior to the date of 
the filing of the application, which picture shall be two inches by two inches in size showing the 
head and shoulders of the applicant in a clear and distinguishing manner. 
 
(10)   The application shall be signed by the applicant stating that the information contained 
therein is true and correct, that the city shall have the right to investigate and verify the 
information contained in the application, and that the applicant has read the peddlers and vendors 
ordinance and agrees to abide by its terms. 
 
(11)   Such other information as the city clerk shall determine to be appropriate. 
 
Sec. 26-115.  Application review and license issuance. 
 
(a)   Upon the receipt of an application, the application will be reviewed and an investigation will 
be conducted to insure that all information supplied by the applicant is true and accurate. 
 
(b)   Unless the application is denied in order to insure the protection of the public health, safety 
and general welfare, the city clerk shall issue a license to the applicant upon payment of the 
applicable licensing fee. Licenses shall be issued for a period of up to one year depending upon 
the duration of the peddler's or vendor's activities. All licenses shall expire at the end of each 
calendar year regardless of the date upon which the license was issued unless the license is set to 
expire at an earlier time. 
 
(c)   While a license is in effect, a peddler or vendor shall, within seven calendar days after a 
change occurs, report to the city clerk in writing any material change in any information 
previously provided on the application form. 
 
Sec. 26-116.  Denial of license. 
 

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left



4 

 

(a)   Upon review and investigation of the application and the information contained therein, the 
city may refuse to issue a license to an applicant for any one or more of the following reasons: 
 
(1)   The applicant has failed to comply with the provisions and requirements of this article. 
(2)  The applicant has been found to have violated a provision of this article within the two years 
immediately preceding the date of application. 
(3)   The applicant has been denied a license pursuant to this article within the immediate past 
year, unless the applicant shows to the satisfaction of the city that the reasons for such earlier 
denial no longer exist. 
(4)  The applicant falsified information on the application. 
(5)   The applicant has been convicted of a felony. 
(6)   The location, time, or method of peddling or vending will block or congest streets or 
sidewalks, impede the free flow of pedestrian or automobile traffic, or will otherwise endanger 
the health, safety, and welfare of the public in its use of the streets and sidewalks in the city. 
 
(b)   Whenever an application for a license is denied, the reasons for the denial shall be noted on 
the application, and the applicant shall be notified that his application is denied and that no 
license will be issued. Notice shall be mailed to the applicant at the address shown on the license 
application, or at the applicant's last known address. 
 
Sec. 26-116.  Denial of license. 
 
(a)   Upon review and investigation of the application and the information contained therein, the 
city may refuse to issue a license to an applicant for any one or more of the following reasons: 

(1)   The applicant has failed to comply with the provisions and requirements of this 
article. 

(2)   The applicant has been found to have violated a provision of this article within the 
two years immediately preceding the date of application. 

(3)   The applicant has been denied a license pursuant to this article within the immediate 
past year, unless the applicant shows to the satisfaction of the city that the reasons for such 
earlier denial no longer exist. 

(4)   The applicant falsified information on the application. 
(5)   The applicant has been convicted of a felony. 
(6)   The location, time, or method of peddling or vending will block or congest streets or 

sidewalks, impede the free flow of pedestrian or automobile traffic, or will otherwise endanger 
the health, safety, and welfare of the public in its use of the streets and sidewalks in the city. 
 
(b)   Whenever an application for a license is denied, the reasons for the denial shall be noted on 
the application, and the applicant shall be notified that his application is denied and that no 
license will be issued. Notice shall be mailed to the applicant at the address shown on the license 
application, or at the applicant's last known address. 
 
Sec. 26-117.  License revocation and suspension. 
 
(a)   Any license issued under this article may be revoked or suspended by the city for any of the 
following reasons: 

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: First line:  0"

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"

Formatted: Left



5 

 

(1)   Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement contained in the license application. 
(2)   Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement by the peddler or vendor in the course of 
peddling or vending. 
(3)   Engaging in peddling or vending in a manner contrary to the provisions contained in the 
license. 
(4)   Conviction for a felony. 
(5)   Engaging in peddling or vending in violation of any city ordinance or state law. 
(6)   Engaging in peddling or vending in such a manner as to create a public nuisance, constitute 
a breach of the peace, prevent the free flow of traffic on sidewalks and streets, or endanger the 
health, safety or general welfare of the public. 
 
(b)   A peddler or vendor shall have the right to notice and hearing before revocation or 
suspension occurs. 
 
Sec. 26-118.  Notice and hearing. 

 
Notice of a hearing for revocation or suspension of a license issued under this article shall 

be provided in writing and shall set forth specifically the grounds for the proposed revocation or 
suspension and the time and place of the hearing. Notice shall be mailed to the peddler or vendor 
at the address shown on the license application, or at the applicant's last known address. 
 
Sec. 26-119.  Appeals. 

 
Any person denied the issuance of a license or having a license suspended or revoked 

may appeal in writing to the city commission within 14 days of the denial, suspension or 
revocation. After receipt of the request for appeal, the city commission shall hear the appeal at its 
next regularly scheduled commission meeting. The decision of the city commission on the appeal 
shall be final and binding on all parties concerned. 
 
Sec. 26-120.  License fee. 

 
A license fee shall be collected for the purpose of defraying the costs incurred by the city 

in regulation and enforcement of this article. The cost of a daily and annual license is set forth in 
the schedule of fees, charges, bonds and insurance. Whenever an applicant believes that the 
applicable license fee places an undue burden upon interstate commerce, the applicant may apply 
to the city clerk for an adjustment or waiver of the license fee. The application for an adjustment 
or waiver must include a sworn statement setting forth the specific reasons why the fee reduction 
or waiver is sought. The application must also include sufficient information for the city clerk to 
make a determination as to whether the license fee would unduly burden the applicant. Current 
licensed operating businesses within approved business zoning districts within the city are 
entitled to a 50 percent reduction in a peddler's or vendor's application and applicable license fee. 
This reduction shall not apply to businesses which are delinquent in their payment of city taxes 
or special assessments at the time of application. 
 
Sec. 26-121.  License exhibition. 



6 

 

While peddling or vending, the license issued pursuant to this article shall be displayed so 
that it is visible to any person dealing with the peddler or vendor. 
 
Sec. 26-122.  Nontransferable. 

 
No license issued pursuant to this article shall be transferred to or used by any person 

other than the one to whom it was issued. 
 
Sec. 26-123.  Prohibitions. 
 
(a)   No peddler or vendor shall block, obstruct, impede or otherwise interfere with the normal 
flow of vehicular or pedestrian traffic upon a public street, alley, sidewalk or other public area 
within the city. In no event shall a peddler remain stationary in any location for more than 20 
minutes. 
 
(b)   No peddler or vendor shall block or impede the ingress or egress of the public into any 
business within the city. 
 
(c)   No peddler or vendor shall, without permission, accost, interfere with, or touch any member 
of the public in any manner. 
 
(d)   No peddler or vendor shall unreasonably disturb the peace and quiet of the city and shall not 
shout, cry out, blow any horn, ring any bell, utilize any amplification system, or use any device 
to attract the attention of the public. 
 
(e)   No peddler or vendor shall make any fraudulent or misleading representations to any person 
in connection with any sale or potential sale while peddling or vending. 
 
(f)   No person under 12 years of age shall engage in any peddling or vending during school 
hours, unless legally excused from school, or for a combined school and work period of more 
than eight hours in any one day. No person shall engage in any peddling or vending between 
sundown and 8:00 a.m. 
 
(g)   The city may restrict peddling and vending to certain hours or to certain areas within the 
city during special events where the city has determined that peddling or vending may be 
hazardous to the health, safety or welfare of the public due to congestion in city streets, 
sidewalks or other public places or when peddling or vending may cause an impediment to the 
free flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic. No peddler or vendor shall engage in peddling or 
vending during such an event in any area or during any time that peddling or vending is 
restricted after having received written notice from the city clerk of such restriction. 
 
(h)   No peddler or vendor shall operate in any residential zoned area of the city or upon a public 
street, alley, sidewalk or other public area adjacent to a residentially zoned area. 
 
(i)   No peddler or vendor shall operate from any conveyance device which does not meet the 
approved city standards for peddler conveyance devices on file in the office of the city clerk. 



7 

 

Sec. 26-124.  Special events. 
 
In addition to obtaining a peddler's or vendor's license, a peddler's or vendor's name shall 

be listed with the city clerk in the special events permit application of a sponsoring agency in 
order for the peddler or vendor to be permitted to operate on the streets, alleys, sidewalks or 
other public areas where a special event is taking place and as described in the special event 
permit. 
 

Chapter 38, Charitable Solicitations. 

ARTICLE I.  IN GENERAL 
 
Sec. 38-1.  Definitions. 

 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this chapter, shall have the 

meanings ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different 
meaning: 

Business  means any building where commercial, industrial or mercantile transactions, 
dealings or intercourse of any nature, customarily engaged in as a means of livelihood, is carried 
on.   

Charitable, religious or political organization  means an organization or institution of 
persons engaged in the free assistance of the poor, the suffering, or the distressed, or any 
political, religious, benevolent, educational, philanthropic, humane, patriotic, eleemosynary or 
civic purpose.   

Express  means directly and distinctly stated or expressed rather than implied or left to 
inference.   

Intimidation  means to make frightened or fearful.   
Noncommercial speech  means speech that does more than inform private economic 

decisions and is not primarily concerned with providing information about the characteristics and 
costs of goods and services.   

Person  means any individual, firm, copartnership, corporation, company, association or 
joint stock association, church, religious sect, religious denomination, society, organization or 
league, political party or organization, and includes any trustee, receiver, assignee, agent or other 
similar representative thereof.   

Residence  means a temporary or permanent dwelling place or abode.   
Solicitation  means going from house to house, business to business, to engage in one or 

more of the following: (1) seeking to obtain orders for the purchase of goods, (2) seeking to 
obtain prospective customers for any application or purchase of insurance of any type, kind or 
character, (3) seeking to obtain subscriptions to books, magazines, periodicals, newspapers or 
other types of publications, and (4) seeking to obtain gifts or contributions of money, clothing or 
other property for the support or benefit, in whole or in part, of any charitable or nonprofit 
organization.   

Undue burden  means the effects that follow from an exercise of police powers that put 
interstate commerce on a plane of inequality with local trade.   



8 

 

 
Sec. 38-2.  Hours prohibited. 

No person shall solicit in the city between the hours of 9:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Any 
violation of this section shall be punishable under section 38-44. 
 
ARTICLE II.  PERMIT* 
 
 
Sec. 38-26.  Exemptions. 

The following activities are exempt from the provisions of this chapter: 
(1)   Any communication by an organization soliciting contributions solely from persons who are 
members of the organization at the time of such solicitation. 
(2)   Any solicitation in the form of a collection at a regular meeting, assembly or service of a 
charitable, religious or political organization. 
(3)   Any solicitation pursuant to a political candidacy or ballot issue qualified pursuant to "The 
Michigan Election Law" or "The School Code of 1976" as they are amended from time to time. 
 
Sec. 38-27.  "No solicitation" list. 

The city manager or an authorized representative shall maintain a "no solicitation" list, at 
all times, which shall include the address(es) of each residence or business in the city whose 
occupant(s) or owner(s) have expressed their intention to prohibit all soliciting at a residence or 
business. 
(1)   This list shall be accessible to the public. 
(2)   The list shall be renewed from time to time. 
(3)   A photocopy shall be provided to each applicant upon filing an application for a solicitation 
permit. 
(4)   No person shall attempt to access any residence or business included on the city manager's 
"no solicitation" list for the purpose of securing an audience with the occupant(s) thereof and 
engaging in solicitation. 
(5)   Any violation of this section shall be punishable under section 38-44. 
 
Sec. 38-28.  "No solicitation" notices. 

The city manager or an authorized representative shall have "no solicitation" decals, 
which shall be available for any residence or business in the city. 
(1)   The owner(s) or occupant(s) of any residence or business in the city may evidence a 
determination to refuse to receive any uninvited solicitors by posting a card, decal or sign not 
less than three inches by four inches in size upon or near the main entrance door to the residence, 
containing the words "no soliciting." Any such card, decal or sign that complies with the 
requirements of this section shall be exempt from any additional or different requirements 
contained in the planning and zoning code. 
(2)   No person shall go upon any residence and ring the door bell, rap or knock upon any door, 
or create any sound in any other manner calculated to attract the attention of any occupant of 
such residence for the purpose of securing an audience with the occupant(s) thereof and engage 
in solicitation in disregard of a notice posted pursuant to this section. 
(3)   Any violation of this section shall be punishable under section 38-44. 



9 

 

 
Sec. 38-29.  Solicitation permit--Requirement. 

No person shall solicit within the city without having first obtained a solicitation permit 
from the city authorizing such solicitation. Any violation of this section shall be punishable 
under section 38-44. 
 
Sec. 38-30.  Permit application--Forms. 

Applications for solicitation permits shall be obtained at the city clerks office. 
 
Sec. 38-31.  Same--Information. 

Applicants for solicitation permits must fill out the application form in its entirety. The 
information that is required for the application includes the following: 
(1)   The applicant shall furnish his or her own name, address and telephone number, as well as 
that of the soliciting organization and of the person, if any, who was in charge of any solicitation 
in the city for the prior year. 
(2)   The applicant shall state the number of persons that will be soliciting on behalf of the 
soliciting organization. 
(3)   The applicant shall state whether or not the soliciting organization is exempt from federal 
taxation as a nonpartisan nonprofit organization, and whether or not the soliciting organization is 
permitted with the state to solicit (Act No. 169 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1975 (MSA 
3.240(2)). 
(4)   The applicant shall identify the purpose for solicitation. 
(5)   The applicant shall state the names of at least the last three municipal governmental 
organizations that have issued soliciting permits to the applicant. This requirement shall be 
waived when the soliciting organization has not been issued at least three soliciting permits in 
the past. 
(6)   The applicant shall identify the proposed date(s) and time(s) of solicitation. 
(7)   The applicant shall identify the proposed location(s) of solicitation. 
 
Sec. 38-32.  Exemptions from the permit fee. 

All charitable, religious or political organizations shall be exempt from paying the permit 
application fee required by section 38-33. 
 
Sec. 38-33.  Permit application fee. 

Upon submission of the application to the city clerk, the applicant shall pay a $20.00 
permit application fee. The city manager or his authorized representative may, if he determines 
that the permit fee would constitute an "undue burden" upon the applicant, waive or otherwise 
reduce the amount of the fee. 
 
Sec. 38-34.  Permit denial. 

A solicitation permit shall be denied whenever the city manager or his authorized 
representative shall find that the applicant: 
(1)   Has failed to pay the required permit application fee (where applicable). 
(2)   Has failed to fill out the permit application form completely. 
(3)   Has falsified information on the application. 



10 

 

 
Sec. 38-35.  Permit contents. 

Upon approval of a permit application, the city manager or his authorized representative 
shall issue the number of solicitation permits to the applicant as is requested in the permit 
application. Solicitation permits shall bear the name and address of the person by whom the 
solicitation is made, the date issued, the dates within which the permit holder may solicit, and a 
statement that the permit does not constitute an endorsement by the city of the purpose or of the 
person conducting the solicitation. All permits shall be signed by the city manager or an 
authorized representative. 
 
Sec. 38-36.  Replacement permits. 

Replacement copies of solicitation permits shall be issued only to the applicant. 
 
Sec. 38-37.  Permit expiration. 

A permit issued under this article shall last for a period not to exceed one calendar year 
from the date of issuance. 
 
Sec. 38-38.  Nontransferability. 

Any permit approved and issued under this article shall be nontransferable. 
 
Sec. 38-39.  Identification. 

All solicitors shall produce a copy of their city solicitation permit upon request of any 
citizen or city official. Every city solicitation permit shall contain the name, address and phone 
number of the person who is soliciting. 
 
Sec. 38-40.  Granting of permit not endorsement by the city. 

No person shall represent that the granting of a solicitation permit under this article is an 
endorsement by the city of the particular organization involved. Any such representation is 
hereby declared to be a misrepresentation of fact and subject to the provisions for revocation of 
the permit. 
 
Sec. 38-41.  Permit revocation. 

Any solicitation permit issued under this chapter may be revoked or suspended by the 
city manager or his authorized representative, after notice has been sent by mail (to the 
applicant's last known address), if the city manager or his authorized representative has reason to 
believe that any officer, agent or representative of a permittee has engaged in any of the 
following: 
(1)   Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement contained in the application for a permit. 
(2)   Fraud, misrepresentation or false statement made in the course of conducting solicitation. 
(3)   Conviction for any crime while soliciting within the city. 
(4)   Conducting solicitation in such a manner as to create a public nuisance, constitute a breach 
of the peace or endanger the health, safety or general welfare of the public. 
(5)   Any violation of the guidelines contained in the document entitled "City of Birmingham: 
Methods for Solicitation." 
 
Sec. 38-42.  Appeals. 



11 

 

Any person aggrieved by the action of the city manager or one of his representatives due 
to the denial or revocation of a permit, or in the assessing of a fee, or any other administrative 
action, as provided in this chapter, shall have the right to appeal to the city commission. 
(1)   Such an appeal shall be taken by filing a written statement setting forth fully the grounds for 
the appeal. 
(2)   The commission shall set a time and place for a hearing on such appeal. 
(3)   Notice of a hearing date shall be sent to the person's last known address within 14 days after 
the appeal has been received. 
(4)   A hearing shall take place no later than 45 days after the appeal has been received. 
(5)   The decision and order of the commission on such appeal shall be final and conclusive. 
 
Sec. 38-43.  Intimidation. 

No person, while soliciting in the city, shall intentionally intimidate any citizen. Any 
violation of this subsection shall be punishable under section 38-44. 
 
 
Sec. 38-44.  Penalties. 

A violation of any portion of this chapter may result in the revocation of the person's 
solicitation permit. A violation of any portion of this chapter is a misdemeanor, punishable by a 
fine as set forth in this section or imprisonment for a term not exceeding 90 days, or both. 
(1)   For a first offense: A fine not less than $50.00 and not to exceed $100.00. 
(2)   For all subsequent offenses: A fine not less than $100.00 and not to exceed $500.00 
 
Sec. 38-45.  Repealer. 

All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with the provisions of this chapter, be 
and the same are hereby repealed. 
 
Sec. 38-46.  Severability. 

The provisions of this chapter are declared to be severable and if any section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this chapter shall for any reason be held to be invalid or unconstitutional, 
such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, sentences, clauses and 
phrases of this chapter but they shall remain in effect, it being the legislative intent that this 
chapter shall stand notwithstanding he invalidity of any part. 
 

CHAPTER 26, BUSINESSES, ARTICLE IV, PEDDLERS, COMMERCIAL VENDORS 
AND SOLICITORS AND FROZEN CONFECTION VENDORS 
 
26-111.  Purpose. 
 
The purpose of this chapter is to license and regulate the movement, location, business practices 
and hours of operation of commercial vendors, peddlers and solicitors in the City; to reduce 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic congestion; to promote the safe use of the streets and sidewalks; 
to protect the citizens' quiet enjoyment and peace while leaving ample business opportunity and 
means for commercial vendors, peddlers and solicitors; and to protect the health, safety and 
welfare of the people of the City. 



12 

26-112.  Definitions.
As used in this chapter:

Commercial vendor  shall mean any person offering, exposing for sale or making available for a 
price or donation, making sales and delivering articles to purchasers, or taking or attempting to 
take orders for sale of goods, foodstuffs or services of any kind, for immediate or future delivery 
or performance, whether or not such person has, carries or exposes for sale a sample of the 
subject of such sale or whether or not the person is collecting advance payment on such sale, by 
any of the following:   

(1) Frozen Confection Vendors  shall mean any commercial vendor traveling by
automotive vehicle, from place to place, or street to street, carrying, conveying or
transporting goods, wares, merchandise or foodstuffs;

a) Frozen confection means ice cream, ice, popsicles, ice cream
bars, frozen candy, frozen dairy products and all other ice
cream or other frozen sugar items.

(2) Park Vendors shall mean any commercial vendor who sells food or other
products from a non-permanent stand at a fixed location as set forth in the vendor 
location map established by resolution of the City Commission, without the 
necessity of moving from place to place. 

(3) Movable Vendor shall mean any commercial vendor who sells food or other
products from a non-motorized removable stand such as a stationary cart, stand, 
wagon, or from one's person at a fixed location located on the sidewalks, alleys, 
rights-of-way, or other public property.  The location for movable vendors shall 
be set forth in the vendor location map established by resolution of the City 
Commission.   

(4) Special Event Vendor shall mean any commercial vendor engaged in the sale
of goods, wares, or merchandise, including food products, on public property at a
stationary or fixed location during a special event in the location of the special
event.

(5) School Vendor or other Vendor at an athletic event in a City park shall mean
any commercial vendor engaged in the sale of goods, wares, or merchandise,
including food products, on City property at a stationary or fixed location during
school or other athletic events at City parks.

Peddling, unless otherwise defined in this Chapter, shall  mean traveling by foot or automotive 
vehicle from place to place or from street to street, carrying, conveying or transporting goods, 
wares, merchandise, including food products, offering and exposing the same for sale or making 
sales and delivering articles to purchasers, or taking or attempting to take orders for the sale of 



13 

goods, wares and merchandise, books or magazines, personal property of any nature whatsoever 
for future delivery, or for services to be furnished or performed in the future, whether or not such 
individual has, carries or exposes for sale a sample of the subject of such sale or whether the 
subject is collecting advanced payments on such sales or not.   

Peddler means any person who engages in peddling. The word peddler shall include the words 
"hawker", "itinerant merchant", and "street vendor".   

Person shall mean any individual, firm, co-partnership, corporation, company, association, or 
joint stock association, church, religious sect or denomination, society, organization or league, 
and includes any trustee, receiver, assignee, agent or other similar representative.   

Removable stand shall mean a trailer, cart or stand that is not permanently affixed to a location, 
the primary purpose of which is vending.  

Solicitor shall mean any person who requests money, credit, property, financial assistance or 
other thing of value, by personal interview or otherwise, on the plea or representation that such 
money, credit, property, financial assistance or other thing of value, or the net proceeds over 
reasonable expenses thereof, will be used for a charitable, religious, patriotic, civic, educational 
or philanthropic purposes. 

Special Event means an organized activity, held on public property, specific to an identifiable 
place, occurring for a limited period of time, and for which a special event permit has been 
approved pursuant to Chapter 98, Article VI, as may be amended from time to time. 

Vendor shall mean commercial vendors.   

26-113.  License requirements.

(a) License required.  No person shall engage in commercial vending, soliciting or peddling
without a license authorized and issued by the City Clerk, as required under this Chapter.
Applications shall be completed and given to the City Clerk no later than fourteen (14) days prior
to the requested effective date. Commercial Vendor applications shall not be filed with the City
Clerk prior to November 1st before the year the vendor is seeking the license.

(b) Form.  The license application shall be made upon a form provided by the City Clerk.

(c) Fees.  License and application fees shall be set by the Schedule of Fees, Charges, Bonds and
Insurance.

(d) Exemption from fees.  The following are exempt from payment of all license and application
fees under this Chapter:

(1) A solicitor;
(2) Solicitations made in books, magazines, periodicals, newspapers and other

similar publications or through the mail;



14 

 

(3)   Any person exempt by law. 
 

The applicant shall provide the City Clerk with proof of the claimed exemption. The City Clerk 
shall indicate upon the face of the license that it was issued, pursuant to such exemption without 
any fee being paid. 
 
(e)   License period.  The license term for all commercial vendors, unless otherwise stated, shall 
be one (1) year, based on a calendar year.  The License term for Special Event vendors, School 
vendors, Vendors at an athletic event in a City park, Solicitors, and Peddlers shall be limited to 
the time frame approved by the City Clerk.  
 
26-114.  License required. 
 
It shall be unlawful for any commercial vendor, peddler or solicitor to engage in such business 
within the City without first obtaining a license as provided in this Chapter. 
 
26-115.  Exceptions to license. 
 
The following activities are exempt from this Chapter: 
 

(1)   Solicitations made to a congregation or group in attendance at one location 
and made by the person or organization inviting the individuals composing the 
congregation or group; 
 
(2)   Solicitations made over the radio, television or telephone; 
 
(3) Any communication by an organization soliciting contributions solely from 
persons who are members of the organization at the time of such solicitation; 
 
(4) Any solicitation pursuant to a political candidacy or ballot issue qualified 
pursuant to “The Michigan Election Law” or “The School Code of 1976” as they 
are amended from time to time; 
 
(5) Any peddler selling solely newspapers; 
 
(6) Any peddler traveling on an established route at the request, express or implied, of 
their customers; 
 
(7)   Salespersons calling on regularly licensed business establishments; 
 
(8)   The distribution of handbills or leaflets where the individual distributing 
them does not accept payments, orders or contributions; 
 
(9)   A person handling vegetables, fruits or perishable farm products at any 
established City Farmers’ Market; 
 



15 

 

(10) A person who is not a business or merchant as defined by Chapter 26 or 
Chapter 126, section 4.77, A, 3 of this Code, who engages in a garage sale 
whereby they are selling their own items from their household.   

 
26-116.  Special events licensing. 
 
Additional vendor licenses may be authorized for a special event by the City Clerk as follows: 
   

(1) Any such request must be in conjunction with a special event as defined by the 
City Code. 

 
(2) Such a request must have the prior written authorization from the coordinator of 

the special event.  
 
26-117.  Requirements For All Applications. 
 

(a) Applications. All applicants for a license under this Chapter shall pay to the City the fee 
required by the Schedule of Fees, Bonds, Charges and Insurance, and, file with the City 
Clerk a  sworn application in the form required by the City Clerk, which shall include the 
following: 
 
(1)   The name of the person(s) who will engage in vending, soliciting or peddling 
within the City, including the person's current address of residence and length of 
residence at such address, business address if other than the residence address, 
business and residence telephone numbers, driver's license number, and a physical 
description including height, weight, and color of hair and eyes. 
 
(2)   A brief description of the business or activity to be conducted including the 
methods to be used and a description of the types of goods or services to be sold. 
 
(3)   The dates, hours and location for which the right to engage in vending, 
soliciting or peddling is sought. 
 
(4)   Proof that the applicant has obtained all licenses or permits required by state 
law. 
 
(5)   The names of three references who will certify as to the applicant's good 
moral character and business responsibility. 
 
(6)   If employed and acting as an agent, the name, address and telephone number 
of the parent organization who is being represented, and when and where this 
organization was formed, including the form of its organization. 
 
(7)   A statement as to whether the applicant or its parent organization has ever 
been found to have violated a municipal ordinance regulating vending, soliciting 
or peddling. 



16 

 

 
(8)   A statement as to whether the applicant or an officer or director of the 
applicant's parent organization has ever been convicted of a felony, and if so, the 
date and location of such conviction, and a brief description of the offense. 
 
(9)   A current photograph of the applicant and/or a photograph of the person(s) 
who will be engaged in the vending, taken within 60 days immediately prior to 
the date of the filing of the application, which picture shall be two inches by two 
inches in size showing the head and shoulders of the applicant and or vendor, 
peddler or solicitor, in a clear and distinguishing manner. 
 
(10)   The application shall be signed by the applicant stating that the information 
contained therein is true and correct, that the City shall have the right to 
investigate and verify the information contained in the application, and that the 
applicant has read the vendors, solicitors and peddlers ordinance and agrees to 
abide by its terms. 
 
(11)   Such other information as the City Clerk shall determine to be appropriate. 

 
(b) Requirements of all vendors, solicitors and peddlers. 

 
 

(1) Loud noises, speaking devices, lights.  No drum, loudspeaker, amplifier, or 
other instrument or device which creates noise, or flashing lights which are for the 
purpose of attracting attention to commercial or noncommercial enterprises so as 
to annoy or disturb the quiet, comfort or repose of persons in any office, dwelling 
or other residence, or other place of employment or repose shall be used and may 
be treated as a violation under this Chapter, and Chapter 50, Article II, Division 4 
of the City Code. 

 
(2)  Frozen confection vendors shall not utilize any bell, chime or other 
noisemaking device beyond a moderate noise level for the purpose of attracting 
persons to buy the frozen confection. This prohibition shall not be construed to 
exclude the customary horn required under the motor vehicle laws of the State of 
Michigan. 
   
(3)   Off-limit locations.  No vendor, peddler or solicitor shall conduct business 
within fifty (50) feet of any school, church, synagogue or place of worship during 
services or within one-hour of services; courthouse; police station; or other public 
location unless specifically authorized pursuant to the terms of the license. In 
addition, the City Manager shall have power to designate such streets, sidewalks, 
parts of streets, or sidewalks, districts or areas where it shall be unlawful for any 
licensee to operate or conduct her/his business, such designation to be made based 
upon congested traffic conditions, character of the neighborhood, or if the conduct 
of such business constitutes a public nuisance.   

 



17 

 

(4) "No Soliciting" signs and “No Soliciting” list.  No solicitor or peddler shall 
enter into property that has a posted "No Soliciting" sign or shall remain on 
property after being requested to leave by the occupant.  No solicitor or peddler 
shall solicit or peddle their wares or enter any property that is listed on the No 
Soliciting list on file at the City Clerk’s office. 

 
(5) Threatening or harassing behavior.  No vendor, solicitor or peddler shall 
threaten or harass any citizen in the course of their activities or in any way engage 
in conduct that threatens the health and safety of another or causes a nuisance.   

 
(6) Effect of delinquent personal property taxes.  No vendor, solicitor or peddler 
license shall be granted to any person owing any personal property taxes or other 
indebtedness to the City, or who contemplates using any personal property on 
which personal property taxes are owed, in the operation of such business.   

 
(7) Sales limited to products on application.  Vendors, solicitors and peddlers 
shall be limited to the sale of products specified on their application. Amendments 
to originally approved applications must be submitted to the City Clerk for review 
and approval, and shall not be effective prior to such approval. An application fee 
of an amount established in the Schedule of Fees, Charges, Bonds and Insurance 
must accompany each request for an amendment.   

 
(8) Licenses non-sellable and non-transferable.  Vendor, solicitor and peddler’s 
licenses issued under the authority of this Chapter shall be non-sellable and non-
transferable, either as to persons or as to location.   

 
(c)   Traffic regulations, obstructing public places.     

 
(1)   Vendors, solicitors and peddlers shall observe all traffic and parking 
regulations. Unless specifically approved, vendors, peddlers and solicitors shall 
not conduct business in a congested area, or occupy a stationary location on a 
public street, sidewalk, parkway, park, parking lot, or any other public property 
which is to be used by pedestrians or persons operating motor vehicles. Such 
vendors, peddlers and/or solicitors shall be presumed to have occupied a location 
if he/she has conducted business in any such public place for a period in excess of 
ten (10) minutes. 
 
(2)   Sales to persons standing in roadway, to vehicles at red lights and to vehicles 
in moving traffic lanes are prohibited. 

 
(d)   Display of license required.  All vendors, solicitors and peddlers shall display the license 
provided by the City Clerk, on his or her person or in a prominent place on their vehicle or 
removable or non-permanent stand. The failure of a vendor, peddler and/or solicitor to 
conspicuously and constantly exhibit such license when engaged in his/her licensed business 
shall be sufficient cause for the suspension or revocation of his/her license.   
 



18 

 

(1) Any certificate or license issued by the Oakland County Health Department 
shall also be prominently displayed on any vehicle or stand subject to this 
ordinance. 

 
(e)   Prices posted.  A park vendor , movable vendor, and frozen confection vendor shall have 
posted on their vehicle, removable stand or non-permanent stand, the current prices charged for 
each item sold and no item shall be sold for more than the posted price.   
 
(f)   Litter clean-up required.  Vendors shall (at their own expense) keep the sidewalks, streets, 
and other public places adjoining and adjacent to their locations of business clean and free from 
any refuse generated or resulting from the operation of their business.  
 

(1) Under no circumstances may any vendor, solicitor or peddler use any City 
trash can, dumpster or other receptacle, drain or sewer to dispose of any 
litter, refuse, substance, fluid, liquid or grease. 
  

(2) Violation of this subparagraph more than twice during one license year 
may constitute license revocation. 

 
(g) Cash Deposit for Litter clean-up.  Movable vendors and Park vendors shall file with the City 
a cash deposit for the removal of any litter on any sidewalk, street and/or other public place 
adjoining and adjacent to their locations in the event the vendor fails to maintain such areas in 
compliance with this Ordinance.  The amount of the cash deposit shall be set forth in the 
Schedule of Fees, Charges, Bonds and Insurance.  If the vendor fails to remove any such litter, 
the City may remove the litter and charge the costs against the cash deposit. In the event a 
Movable vendor or Park Vendor exhausts its cash deposit, the vendor shall be invoiced by the 
City for any restoration or litter on City property in excess of the amount of the deposit. 
 
(h) Commercial vendors, peddlers and solicitors shall obtain insurance as set forth in the 
Schedule of Fees, Charges, Bonds and Insurance.  

 

(i) Commercial vendors shall agree to indemnify and hold the City harmless, the language of 
which is set forth in the Schedule of Fees, Charges, Bonds and Insurance.  

 
(j) Removable stands must be removed from the designated zone between 12:00 a.m. and 6:00 
a.m. each day or as otherwise restricted on a location by location basis by park hours or by 
resolution of the City Commission. 

 
(k) Removable stands, carts, wagons, automotive vehicles, non-permanent stands and other 
conveyances must be maintained in a clean and neat condition, and must be maintained in good 
repair and in a safe manner acceptable to the City.  

  
26-118. Park Vendor and Movable Vendor license. 
 
(a) Shain Park and Booth Park. For purposes of this Ordinance, there shall be one (1) Park 
Vendor allowed in the City.  The one Park Vendor shall be allowed in Shain Park.  Applicants 



19 

 

for a Park vendor license in Shain Park shall be required to submit to a Request For Proposal 
(RFP) procedure as established by the City. 
 
(b) Moveable Vendor. For purposes of this Ordinance, there shall be established two (2) 
Moveable Vendors allowed in the City.  Applicants for a Moveable Vendor license shall be 
required to submit a Request For Proposal (RFP) procedure as established by the City.  
  
(c)   Specific Application Information.  Applicants for a Park Vendor and/or a Movable Vendor 
license under this Chapter shall file with the City Clerk a sworn application in the form required 
by the City Clerk, the additional following information:   
 

(1) The type of goods or property being sold, the location where the goods or 
property are sought to be sold, location where the goods or property are 
manufactured or produced, where such goods or products are located at the 
time the application is filed, and the proposed method of delivery; 
 

(2) If food or beverages are proposed to be sold from the vendor, a copy of the 
proposed menu and price list; 

 
(3) A copy of the vendor’s current license and any applicable renewals from the 

Health Department must be attached to the application;   
 

(4) A description of the vendor stand, moveable commercial vendor stand, 
temporary stand, cart or wagon which the vendor will be offering goods, 
merchandise and wares from, including measurements of its height, width 
and length; 

 
(5) A photograph of the vendor stand, moveable commercial vendor stand, 

temporary stand, cart or wagon proposed to be placed on the City’s 
sidewalks, rights-of-way, alley’s and/or public property. 

 
(d)   Basis for granting licenses for park vendor and movable vendors.  To assure the safety of 
citizens, reduce congestion of pedestrian and vehicular traffic, to promote safe use of streets and 
sidewalks, and assure the highest quality offering of food and other products, park vendor 
licenses will be granted based upon:   

 
(1)   The application and the applicants demonstrated ability finance and operate 
the proposed vending unit. 
 
(2)   The extent of the products/cuisine offered and the price offered. 
 
(3)   Construction, quality, appearance and design of the stand, cart or mobile 
vending unit to be used and whether the applicant has an adequate site plan to 
handle the proposed vending activities. 
 



20 

 

(4)   Previous performance with the City including responding to City and/or 
citizen concerns as a vendor or merchant. 
 
(5) No license shall be issued to a food vendor until the applicant and any 
equipment used by such applicant are approved by the Oakland County Health 
Department. 
 
(6) All fees have been paid and any arrearages have been made current with 
the City. 

 
Any conflict between vendors over license location shall be resolved by the City Clerk based 
upon the suitability of the vendor for the specific location in conflict and the prior commercial 
relationship between the City and the vendors. 
 
In an effort to promote diversity in the types of vendors throughout the City, a commercial 
vendor applicant shall not be granted approval for more than 2 locations for the same calendar 
year.  

 
(e)   Review of Police Chief.     
 

(1)   After an application for a commercial vendor license has been filed, the City 
Clerk shall refer it to the Police Chief, or appointed officers of the Police 
Department, who shall review the applicant's and employees background and 
shall respond to the City Clerk with a recommendation on issuance of the license. 
No license shall be issued against the recommendation of the Police Chief. 
 
(2)   The Police Chief, or appointed officers of the Police Department, shall report 
to the City Clerk all violations of this Chapter and the City Clerk shall maintain a 
record for each license issued and record the reports of violations. The City Clerk 
shall file with the Police Chief a copy of each license and the Police Chief shall 
report to the City Clerk any complaints against any licensee and/or employee(s) 
and any convictions, pleas or other findings of responsibility for violations of this 
Chapter. The City Clerk shall keep a record of all such complaints and violations. 
 
 

 26-119. Frozen Confection Vendor License. 
 
(a) Specific Application Information.  Frozen Confection Vendor applications shall not be 
filed with the City Clerk prior to November 1st before the year the vendor is seeking the license. 
A person desiring to be a frozen confection vendor shall meet all of the requirements of this 
Chapter, and shall pay to the City the fee required by the Schedule of Fees, Bonds, Charges and 
Insurance, and, in addition, shall submit: 
 

(1) A copy of such person's most recent driver's license, and the Police 
Department shall perform a background and criminal check and also check 
such person's driving record to ascertain that the person is authorized to 

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Justified, Indent: Left:  0.5", Right:  0.5"



21 

 

operate a vending motor vehicle as well as had a valid and unrestricted 
driver's license and to also ascertain that the person does not pose an 
unreasonable risk and/or hazard to those persons to whom the frozen 
confections will be sold and/or offered for sale to. 

 
(2) Proof of liability insurance, as required by the City, which must be kept 

current during the lifetime of the license. 
 

(3) If the applicant applying for a license to be a frozen confection vendor will 
be selling and/or vending the frozen confection on behalf of another person 
and/or business entity, and/or if the motor vehicle to be used by the applicant 
is owned by another person and/or business entity, the applicant shall set 
forth on its application, the name, address and telephone number of such 
person and/or business entity and, if the business entity is a corporation, the 
applicant shall set forth the state of incorporation, as well as the registered 
agent of such corporation. 

 
(b) Basis for granting frozen confection vendor license. To assure the safety of citizens, 
reduce congestion of pedestrian and vehicular traffic, to promote safe use of streets and 
sidewalks, and assure the highest quality offering of food and other products, frozen confection 
vendor licenses will be granted by the City Clerk based upon:  
 

(1) The application and the applicants demonstrated ability finance and operate 
the proposed frozen confection vending unit. 
 

(2) The extent of the products/cuisine offered and the price offered. 
 

(3) Construction, quality, appearance and design of the mobile frozen confection 
vending unit to be used and whether the applicant has a plan to handle the 
proposed vending activities. 

 
(4) Previous performance with the City including responding to City and/or 

citizen concerns as a frozen convection vendor or merchant. 
 

(5) All fees have been paid and any arrearages have been made current with the 
City. 

 

(6) The applicant has not made a material misrepresentation of fact in and/or 
falsified any of the contents of the application. 

 
(7) The applicant has not had a frozen confection vendor's license denied or 

revoked by the City within a period of one (1) year prior to the date of the 
application. 

 



22 

 

(8) The applicant has not ever been convicted of operating a motor vehicle under 
the influence of liquor, operating a motor vehicle with an unlawful blood 
alcohol content, operating a motor vehicle under the influence of narcotics 
and/or other controlled substances, operating a motor vehicle while visibly 
impaired and/or any other drinking and driving offenses and/or any other 
offenses pertaining to driving and narcotics and/or controlled substances. 

 
(9) The applicant has a valid and unrestricted driver's license. 

 
(10) The applicant has never been convicted of a felony and/or convicted of any 

sexual offenses. 
 

(11) The applicant has met all other requirements of this Chapter. 
 

(12) The applicant/licensee shall be responsible for notifying the City of any 
changes in any of the above criteria within 3 calendar days of the change of 
status. 

 

(13)  No license shall be issued to a frozen confection food vendor until the 
applicant and any equipment used by such applicant are approved by the 
Oakland County Health Department. A copy of the vendor’s current license 
and any applicable renewals from the Health Department must be attached to 
the application. 

 
(c)   Review of Police Chief.     
 

(1)   After an application for a frozen confection vendor license has been filed, the 
City Clerk shall refer it to the Police Chief, or appointed officers of the Police 
Department, who shall review the applicant's and employees background and 
shall respond to the City Clerk with a recommendation on issuance of the license. 
No license shall be issued against the recommendation of the Police Chief. 
 
(4) The Police Chief, or appointed officers of the Police Department, shall 
report to the City Clerk all violations of this Chapter and the City Clerk shall 
maintain a record for each license issued and record the reports of violations. The 
City Clerk shall file with the Police Chief a copy of each license and the Police 
Chief shall report to the City Clerk any complaints against any licensee and/or 
employee(s) and any convictions, pleas or other findings of responsibility for 
violations of this Chapter. The City Clerk shall keep a record of all such 
complaints and violations. 

 
(d) Limited number of frozen confection vendor licenses. 

 
(1) To assure the safety of citizens, reduce congestion of pedestrian and 
vehicular traffic, to promote safe use of streets and sidewalks, and assure the 



23 

 

highest quality offering of food and other products, the City shall only grant 3 
frozen confection licenses per year.  A frozen confection vendor shall not obtain 
more than one license per year. A frozen confection vendor shall not operate more 
than one truck per license in the City. 

 
(e) Requirements specific to Frozen Confection Vendors. 

 
(1) Except as otherwise provided herein, the sale and/or offer for sale of 
frozen confection by frozen confection vendor in the City shall only be permitted 
from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. during Eastern Standard Time and from 9:00 a.m. to 
8:00 p.m. during [State of] Michigan daylight savings time. In addition, all frozen 
confection vendors shall comply with the regulations contained in subsection (b) 
of this section. 
 

(2) No frozen confection vendors shall: 
 

(i)   Sell or offer for sale any unsound, unwholesome, defective, faulty or 
deteriorated frozen confection. 

 
(ii)   At any time in the conduct of the sale and/or offer of sale of a frozen 
confection obstruct any street, alley, sidewalk or driveway. 

 
(iii)   Remain in front of, or at the side of, any property against the wish or 
desire of the property owner or the tenant or occupant of such property. 

 
(iv)   Engage in the sale of and/or the offer of sale of frozen confection 
within 500 feet of the entrance of any school building between the hours 
of 9:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on the days when school is in session. 

 
(v)   Engage in the sale of and/or the offer of sale of frozen confection on 
those portions of streets on which a public park abuts and/or engage in the 
sale of and/or offer of sale of any frozen confection in any public park, 
unless prior approval for the sale of and/or offer of sale of frozen 
confections in a public park is granted by the City Clerk. 

 
(vi)   Stop its vehicle for the purpose of engaging in the sale of and/or offer 
for sale of any frozen confection within fifty (50) feet of any street 
intersection in the City. 

 
(vii)   Fail to comply with all provisions of the traffic ordinances and/or 
any other ordinances of the City. 

 
(viii)   Remain standing at any one place on any of the streets, alleys or 
other permitted public places in the City for a longer period of time than 
ten minutes while engaging in the sale and/or offer for sale of frozen 
confections. 



24 

 

 
(ix)   Remain upon premises owned by another person for a longer period 
of time than ten minutes while engaging in the sale and/or offer for sale of 
frozen confection. 

 
(x)   Sell or offer to sell frozen confections from vehicles to minors under 
the age of sixteen (16) unless there is displayed on the vehicle properly 
operating vehicle flashing warning lights visible from the front and rear 
and from each side of the vehicle which under normal atmospheric 
conditions are visible from a distance of five hundred (500) feet unless 
such vehicle is stopped in a legal parking location not closer than one 
hundred (100) feet to the nearest intersecting street. 

 
(f) Revocation of Frozen Confection Vendor License. A frozen confection vendor's license 
issued under this Chapter may be revoked by the City for any of the following: 

 
(1)   The licensee violating and/or failing to comply with any of the terms, 
provisions and/or requirements of this ordinance. 
 
(2)   The licensee violating any health and/or food laws of the State of Michigan. 
 
(3)   The licensee being convicted of operating a motor vehicle while under the 
influence of liquor, operating a motor vehicle with an unlawful blood alcohol 
content, operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of narcotics and/or 
other controlled substances, operating a motor vehicle while visibly impaired 
and/or any other drinking and driving offenses and/or any other offenses 
pertaining to driving and narcotics and/or controlled substances. 
 
(4)   The licensee has been convicted of a felony and/or a sexual offense. 
 
(5)   The licensee has made a material misrepresentation of fact in and/or has 
falsified any of the contents of its application. 
 
(6)   The licensee no longer has a valid and unrestricted driver's license. 
 
(7)   The licensee poses an unreasonable risk and/or hazard to those persons to 
whom the frozen confections will be sold and/or offered for sale to. 
 
(8)   The licensee refuses to allow the City Police Department and/or its duly 
authorized representatives to inspect the licensed vehicle/premises during normal 
business hours for purposes of enforcement of this division, including inspection 
purposes, any vehicle from which the licensee will be selling and/or offering to 
sell frozen confections from. 

  
 
26-120. Peddler’s License. 



25 

 

 
(a) Specific Application Information.  Applicants for a peddler’s license under this Chapter 
shall file with the City Clerk a sworn application in the form required by the City Clerk. 

 
(b) Basis for granting peddlers license. 
 

(1)   Upon the receipt of an application, the application will be reviewed and an 
investigation will be conducted to insure that all information supplied by the 
applicant is true and accurate. 
 
(2)   Unless the application is denied in order to ensure the protection of the public 
health, safety and general welfare, the City Clerk shall issue a license to the 
applicant upon payment of the applicable licensing fee. Licenses shall be issued 
for a period of up to one year depending upon the duration of the peddler's 
activities. All licenses shall expire at the end of each calendar year regardless of 
the date upon which the license was issued unless the license is set to expire at an 
earlier time. 
 
(3) While a license is in effect, a peddler shall, within 3 calendar days after a 

change occurs, report to the City Clerk in writing any material change in any 
information previously provided on the application form. 

 
(4) The required fees have been paid. 

 

(5) The applicant has not made a material misrepresentation of fact in and/or 
falsified any of the contents of the application. 

 

(6) The applicant has not had a peddler's license denied or revoked by the City 
within a period of one (1) year prior to the date of the application. 

 
(7) The applicant has never been convicted of a felony and/or convicted of 

any sexual offenses. 
 

 
(8) The applicant has met all other requirements of this Chapter. 

 
(9) The applicant/licensee shall be responsible for notifying the City of any 
changes in any of the above criteria within 3 calendar days of the change of 
status. 

 
 
(c)   Review of Police Chief.     



26 

 

 
(1)   After an application for a peddler’s license has been filed, the City Clerk 
shall refer it to the Police Chief, or appointed officers of the Police Department, 
who shall review the applicant's background and shall respond to the City Clerk 
with a recommendation on issuance of the license. No license shall be issued 
against the recommendation of the Police Chief. 
 
(2)   The Police Chief, or appointed officers of the Police Department, shall report 
to the City Clerk all violations of this Chapter and the City Clerk shall maintain a 
record for each license issued and record the reports of violations. The City Clerk 
shall file with the Police Chief a copy of each license and the Police Chief shall 
report to the City Clerk any complaints against any licensee and any convictions, 
pleas or other findings of responsibility for violations of this Chapter. The City 
Clerk shall keep a record of all such complaints and violations. 

 
(d) Requirements Specific to Peddlers. 

 
(1)    No peddler shall block, obstruct, impede or otherwise interfere with the 
normal flow of vehicular or pedestrian traffic upon a public street, alley, sidewalk 
or other public area within the City. In no event shall a peddler remain stationary 
in any location for more than 10 minutes. 
 
(2)    No peddler shall block or impede the ingress or egress of the public into 
any business within the City. 
 
(3)    No peddler shall, without permission, accost, interfere with, or touch any 
member of the public in any manner. 
 
(4)    No peddler shall unreasonably disturb the peace and quiet of the City and 
shall not shout, cry out, blow any horn, ring any bell, utilize any amplification 
system, or use any device to attract the attention of the public. 
 
(5) No peddler shall make any fraudulent or misleading representations to any 
person in connection with any sale or potential sale while peddling. 

 
(6) No person under 12 years of age shall engage in any peddling during 
school hours, unless legally excused from school, or for a combined school and 
work period of more than eight hours in any one day.  

 
(7) Except as otherwise provided herein, peddling in the City shall only be 
permitted from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. during Eastern Standard Time and from 
9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. during [State of] Michigan daylight savings time. In 
addition, all peddlers shall comply with the regulations contained in subsection 
(b) of this section. 
 



27 

 

(8) The City may restrict peddling to certain hours or to certain areas within 
the City during special events where the City has determined that peddling may 
be hazardous to the health, safety or welfare of the public due to congestion in 
City streets, sidewalks or other public places or when peddling may cause an 
impediment to the free flow of pedestrian or vehicular traffic. No peddler shall 
engage in peddling during such an event in any area or during any time that 
peddling is restricted after having received written notice from the City Clerk of 
such restriction. 

 
(9) No peddler shall remain in front of, or at the side of, any property against 
the wish or desire of the property owner or the tenant or occupant of such 
property. 

 
(10) No peddler shall engage in the sale of and/or the offer of sale of 
goods/services on those portions of streets on which a public park abuts and/or 
engage in the sale of and/or offer of sale any goods/services in any public park, 
unless prior approval for the sale of and/or offer of such goods/services in a public 
park is granted by the City Clerk. 
 

(e) Prohibitions to Peddling. 

(1) The owner(s) or occupant(s) of any residence or business in the City may 
evidence a determination to refuse to receive any uninvited peddlers by posting a 
card, decal or sign not less than three inches by four inches in size upon or near 
the main entrance door to the residence, containing the words "no soliciting." Any 
such card, decal or sign that complies with the requirements of this section shall 
be exempt from any additional or different requirements contained in the zoning 
ordinance. No peddler shall peddle their wares or enter any property that is listed 
on the No Soliciting list on file at the City Clerk’s office. 
 

(2) No person shall go upon any residence and ring the door bell, rap or knock 
upon any door, or create any sound in any other manner calculated to attract the 
attention of any occupant of such residence for the purpose of securing an 
audience with the occupant(s) thereof and engage in solicitation in disregard of a 
notice posted pursuant to this section. 
 

(3) No person shall represent that the granting of a peddler’s license under this 
article is an endorsement by the City of the particular organization involved. Any 
such representation is hereby declared to be a misrepresentation of fact and 
subject to the provisions for revocation of the permit. 
 



28 

 

(4) No person, while peddling in the City, shall intentionally intimidate any 
citizen. 

 
 
26-121.  Solicitor license. 
 
(a)   Applications.  Persons applying for a license under this Chapter shall file with the City Clerk 
a sworn application in the form required by the City Clerk, which shall include the following:   

 
(1)   Names and addresses of individuals who will be soliciting on behalf of the 
organization; 
 
(2)   Length of time and exact dates for which the license is requested; 
 
(3)   A brief description of the nature of the organization, and proof of its tax 
exempt status; 

  
(b)   Approval.  The City Clerk shall issue a solicitor license upon determination that the 
application meets all provisions of this Chapter. 
 
(c)  Review of Police Chief. 
     

(1)   After an application for a solicitation license has been filed, the City Clerk 
shall refer it to the Police Chief, or appointed officers of the Police Department, 
who shall review the applicant's and employees background and shall respond to 
the City Clerk with a recommendation on issuance of the license. No license shall 
be issued against the recommendation of the Police Chief. 
 
(2)   The Police Chief, or appointed officers of the Police Department, shall report 
to the City Clerk all violations of this Chapter and the City Clerk shall maintain a 
record for each license issued and record the reports of violations. The City Clerk 
shall file with the Police Chief a copy of each license and the Police Chief shall 
report to the City Clerk any complaints against any licensee and/or employee(s) 
and any convictions, pleas or other findings of responsibility for violations of this 
Chapter. The City Clerk shall keep a record of all such complaints and violations. 

 
(d) Requirements Specific to Solicitors. 

 
(1) No person shall solicit within the City without having first obtained a 
solicitation permit from the City authorizing such solicitation. 
 
(2) Upon submission of the application to the City Clerk, the applicant shall 
pay a permit application fee, the amount of which shall be as established in the 
Schedule of Fees, Charges, Bonds and Insurance. 

 



29 

 

(3) The owner(s) or occupant(s) of any residence or business in the City may 
evidence a determination to refuse to receive any uninvited solicitors by posting a 
card, decal or sign not less than three inches by four inches in size upon or near 
the main entrance door to the residence, containing the words "no soliciting." Any 
such card, decal or sign that complies with the requirements of this section shall 
be exempt from any additional or different requirements contained in the zoning 
ordinance. No solicitor shall solicit or enter any property that is listed on the No 
Soliciting list on file at the City Clerk’s office. 
 

(4) No person shall go upon any residence and ring the door bell, rap or knock 
upon any door, or create any sound in any other manner calculated to attract the 
attention of any occupant of such residence for the purpose of securing an 
audience with the occupant(s) thereof and engage in solicitation in disregard of a 
notice posted pursuant to this section. 
 

(5) No person shall represent that the granting of a solicitation permit under 
this article is an endorsement by the City of the particular organization involved. 
Any such representation is hereby declared to be a misrepresentation of fact and 
subject to the provisions for revocation of the permit. 
 

(6) No person, while soliciting in the City, shall intentionally intimidate any 
citizen. 

 
(7) No person under 12 years of age shall engage in any soliciting during 
school hours, unless legally excused from school, or for a combined school and 
work period of more than eight hours in any one day.  
 

(8) Except as otherwise provided herein, soliciting in the City shall only be 
permitted from 9:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. during Eastern Standard Time and from 
9:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m. during [State of] Michigan daylight savings time. In 
addition, all solicitors shall comply with the regulations contained in subsection 
(d) of this section.  
 

(9) No solicitor shall remain in front of, or at the side of, any property against 
the wish or desire of the property owner or the tenant or occupant of such 
property. 

 
(10) No solicitor shall engage in soliciting on those portions of streets on which 
a public park abuts and/or engage in soliciting in any public park, unless prior 
approval for such soliciting in a public park is granted by the City Clerk. 

 



30 

 

 
26-122.  Enforcement. 
 
(a)   It shall be the duty of any police or Code Official to require any person seen soliciting, 
merchandising, or vending and who is not known by such official to be duly licensed, to show 
proof of a license issued by the City Clerk, and to enforce the provisions of this Chapter against 
any person found to be violating them. 
 
(b)   Any police officer or Code Official may enter any licensed premises at any time during 
business hours for the purpose of ascertaining the manner in which such business is conducted 
and to investigate complaints. At all such times, the official shall be permitted access to the 
books of such business to ascertain compliance with the provisions of this Chapter. 
 
26-123.  Revocation/Appeal. 
 
(a)  The City Clerk is authorized to revoke any license issued under this Chapter for violation 
of the provisions of this Chapter, including, but not limited to the following: 
 

(1)   Vendor, solicitor or peddler has violated any provision of this Chapter, any 
provision of the City of Birmingham Code of Ordinances, or state or federal laws, 
rules or regulations. 
 
(2)   Vendor, solicitor or peddler has made a false material statement in the 
application or has otherwise become disqualified for issuance of the license. 
 
(3)   Vendor, solicitor or peddler has had a written complaint filed against it for 
violation of this Chapter and probable cause exists for substantiation of the 
complaint. 
 
(4)   Vendor, solicitor or peddler has acted in a manner contrary to the public 
health, safety or welfare of the citizens of Birmingham. 

 
(b)  The City Clerk shall provide the vendor, solicitor or peddler with written notice at the 
address on the application for the license for the revocation of the license.  The written 
revocation notice must clearly set forth in writing the grounds for revocation, and allow the 
vendor, solicitor or peddler to file a written request with the City Clerk's office for a hearing to 
appeal the revocation; such request shall be filed with the City Clerk within fifteen (15) days 
from the date appearing on the notice of revocation. The hearing shall be held by the City 
Manager or the City Manager's designated representative. 
 
(c)  If a vendor’s, solicitor’s or peddler’s appeal of the revocation to the City Manager or his 
designee is not reversed by the City Manager, the vendor, solicitor or peddler has seven days to 
file a written appeal of the revocation to the City Commission, so that the appeal can be placed 
on the next available City Commission agenda for consideration of the appeal.   
 
26-124.  Non-Exclusive/No Property Interest. 



31 

 

 
Any license applied for and/or granted pursuant to this ordinance is non-exclusive, and does not 
grant any property right or right to receive such licenses in the future. 
 
26-125.  Other permits or licenses. 
 
A license obtained under this Chapter shall not relieve a person of the responsibility for 
obtaining any other license or authorization required by any other ordinance, statute or 
administrative rule. 
 
26-126.  Appearance tickets. 
 
The Police Chief and the appointed officers of the Police Department, or such code officials as 
are designated by the City Manager, are hereby authorized to issue and serve appearance tickets 
with respect to a violation of this Chapter pursuant to Section 1 of Act 147 of Public Acts of 
1968, as amended; MCL 764.9c(2). Appearance tickets shall be in such form as determined by 
the City Attorney and shall be in conformity with all statutory requirements. 
 
26-127.  Civil infraction. 
 
Municipal civil infraction.  Any person who violates any section of this Chapter shall be 
responsible for a municipal civil infraction, subject to a fine as provided herein, plus costs and 
other sanctions for each infraction. Each violation of the chapter shall be deemed a separate 
offense.   
 

(1)   For a first offense, a civil fine as set forth in the Schedule of Fees, Charges, 
Bonds, and Insurance. 
 
(2)   For a second offense and any subsequent offense, a civil fine as set forth in 
the Schedule of Fees, Charges, Bonds, and Insurance. 

 
 

ORDAINED this ___ day of ________ 2011.  Effective upon publication 

 

_________________________ 

Gordon L. Rinschler, Mayor  

 

_________________________ 

Laura M. Broski, City Clerk  



32 

 

 

 

 

I, Laura M. Broski, City Clerk of the City of Birmingham, do hereby certify that the foregoing 
ordinance was passed by the commission of the City of Birmingham, Michigan at a regular meeting 
held _______________, 2011 and that a summary was published ___________, 2011. 

 

 

________________________ 

Laura M. Broski, City Clerk  

 

 
Approved: 
 
 
________________________________ 

Robert J. Bruner, Jr., City Manager 
(Approved as to substance) 
 
 
________________________________ 

Timothy J. Currier, City Attorney 
(Approved as to form) 
 
 
 

 

 

 



I i tiInvigorating 

Birmingham’sBirmingham s 

Public Spaces



Daines passageDaines passage



CafeVia Passage



Peabody Alley



Willits Alley



Willits passage



Tokyo Sushi passage





Pierce Street Parking StructurePierce Street Parking Structure



Shain ParkShain Park



Booth ParkBooth Park



Alley Shopfronts



Alley Wayfindingy y g



Existing Vendor 
Di lDisplays

in…in 
Birmingham



… and around 
the worldthe world



Food Cartology Study, Portland 
“…food carts have positive impacts on street p p
vitality and neighborhood life.” 

RETHINKING URBAN SPACES 
AS PEOPLE PLACES



These locations 
were highlighted 
as potential areas 
throughout the 
Downtown that 
have the space to 
support vendors.





























Peddler/Vendor License 

A vendor permit or peddler permit is required to sell items in the city of Birmingham. 

See Chapter 26, Article 4 of the city code for additional information. 

Definitions 

Peddling means traveling by foot, automotive vehicle or other conveyance, from place to place or from street to 
street, carrying, conveying or transporting goods, wares, merchandise, including food products, offering and 
exposing the same for sale or making sales and delivering articles to purchasers, or taking or attempting to take 
orders for the sale of goods, wares and merchandise, books or magazines, personal property of any nature 
whatsoever for future delivery, or for services to be furnished or performed in the future, whether or not such 
individual has, carries or exposes for sale a sample of the subject of such sale or whether the subject is collecting 
advanced payments on such sales or not. 

*Please note:  

 Peddlers must keep moving. They may only stop to make a sale.  
 Peddlers are not allowed in the residential areas. 

Vending means the sale of goods, wares or merchandise, including food products, on public property at a 
stationary or fixed location during a special event in and around the location of the special event. 

*Please note: Vendors must be approved by the special event coordinator. 

Prohibitions 

Section 26-123 of the city code. 

Fees 

Application Fee:  $20.00*  

Daily Fee per Location: $10.00* 

*(Please note:  According to section 26-120 of the Birmingham city code, "Current licensed operating businesses 
within approved business zoning districts within the City of Birmingham are entitled to a 50% reduction in a 
peddler's or vendor's application and applicable license fee.  This reduction does not apply to businesses which 
are delinquent in their payment of city taxes or special assessments at the time of application.") 

 



 
 
 

03-83-11 VENDOR, PEDDLER, SOLICITOR ORDINANCE 
The Commission received the Vendor, Peddler, Solicitor Ordinance submitted by Planning 
Director Ecker. 

 
The Commission received a communication from Alan Borman supporting food vendors in City 
parks. 

 
 

BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 
MARCH 21, 2011 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 
7:30 P.M. 



 
 

 
04-89-11 VENDOR, PEDDLER, SOLICITOR ORDINANCE 
Ms. Broski explained the ordinance amendments include combining the peddler and vendor 
ordinance with the soliciting ordinance, defining non-charitable solicitors as peddlers, and adding 
frozen confection vendors. 

 
The Commission discussed allowing frozen confection vendors to operate using bicycles and 
hand-pushed carts. 

 
MOTION: Motion by Hoff, seconded by McDaniel: 
To adopt an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Businesses, Article IV, Peddlers and Vendors, and 
Chapter 38, Charitable Solicitations, Article I, In General, and Article II, Permit, of the Birmingham 
City Code to regulate peddlers and solicitors, and to allow for frozen confection vendors, and fee 
schedules for administration and penalties, and to expand the frozen confection vendor definition 
to include bicycles and hand-pushed carts. 

 
Dave Hohendorf pointed out that broadening the definition of frozen confection vendor has 
brought the topic closer to the moveable vendor concept. 

 
Commissioner Hoff withdrew the motion. 

 
MOTION: Motion by Hoff, seconded by McDaniel: 
To adopt an ordinance amending Chapter 26, Businesses, Article IV, Peddlers and Vendors, and 
Chapter 38, Charitable Solicitations, Article I, In General, and Article II, Permit, of the Birmingham 
City Code to regulate peddlers and solicitors, and to allow for frozen confection vendors, and fee 
schedules for administration and penalties. 

 
VOTE: Yeas, 7 

Nays, None 
Absent, None 

 
The Commission discussed the fee for frozen confection vendors. Ms. Broski explained the 
application fee covers the cost to process the application as well as the background check by the 
Police Department. Ms. Ecker explained that the annual fee covers items such as handling 
complaints. Commissioner Moore noted that, by operating in the City, the vendors are getting 
police protection, in addition to doing business in the City and not paying taxes  or  rent, yet using 
the streets to operate a business. 

 
The Commission requested staff to review this fee after the current season and contact other 
cities to get information on their experience with the fees for frozen confection vendors. 

 
Commissioner Sherman questioned how this will be enforced. Mr. Currier explained that an 

BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION MINUTES 
APRIL 11, 2011 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 
MARTIN 7:30 P.M. 



appearance ticket would be issued. 
 

MOTION: Motion by Sherman, seconded by Nickita: 
To amend the Schedule of Fees, Charges, Bonds and Insurance, City Clerk's Office, Peddlers 
and Vendors, to provide fees for commercial vendors, peddlers and solicitors with the change to 
the fee for frozen confection vendors to $500.00. 

 
VOTE: Yeas, 7 

Nays, None 
Absent, None 

 

The Commission discussed moveable and park vendors. Commissioner McDaniel suggested 
having a test program with a local restaurant using a temporary outdoor food facility in Shain Park 
and evaluating it after the season. 

 
Mr. Bruner noted that if the Commission desires to have a pilot project, it could be done with a 
license agreement through the RFP process. 

 
Commissioner Moore agreed the vendor should be limited to Shain Park. He suggested a cart for 
PSD members to promote their business on a rotating basis. 

 
The following individuals expressed concern with vendors in the park: 
David Hohendorf 
Michael Collins 
Terri Stefanakis, Greek Island Restaurant 
Leslie Banis, attorney for 250 Martin 
Barry Murphy, Batteries Plus 
Walter Stone, 215 North Old Woodward 
Holly Anselmi, The Italian Dish 
Susan Peabody 

 
Ashley Posley, former resident, commented that a large kiosk map would be a great tool. 

Edward Nemerkaiser expressed support of the park vendor concept. 

Commissioner McDaniel suggested taking the concept of a local business pilot project in Shain 
Park and present it to the PSD for their comment. 

 
Commissioner Dilgard noted that the PSD has already expressed their opinion. He expressed 
support for putting tables and chairs in the park. 

 
The Commission agreed to direct staff to review the concepts as discussed and how they would 
benefit the entire community. 

 
The Commission received a communication from Howard Atesian regarding the proposed 
ordinance. 

  



SEARCH

1 3Recommend

Comments (2) Recommend (3) Print E-mail Letter to the editor Share 

POSTED: OCT. 6, 2010 

Chef sells gourmet tacos from his 
restaurant on wheels in metro Detroit
BY SYLVIA RECTOR 
FREE PRESS STAFF WRITER

A few months ago, Wesley Holton was executive chef of the Michelin-starred Daniel Boulud Brasserie 
in Las Vegas, overseeing a talented staff and a high-end French menu.

Last week, he was making Little Piggy tacos for customers lined up at a 
food truck in a Farmington Hills office park.

Career crash? Hardly.

The 32-year-old Plymouth native is the chef and owner of Jacques' 
Tacos, thought to be the first licensed, Los Angeles-style roving gourmet 
food truck to get up and running in metro Detroit.

The trucks are the hottest new dining trend in America. Hundreds are 
rolling in cities from Miami to Seattle, each serving its own specialty 
cuisine and cooking on-site in their fully equipped kitchens. Menus range 
from stylish tacos like Holton's to sushi, grilled cheese sandwiches, 
sliders and ethnic cuisines.

The upscale food truck concept may be new here, but with national 
media coverage -- including a reality TV show -- it's not unknown, and 
Holton is finding an eager reception.

First-timers are trying the food and "coming back two or three times for 
more," he says. "All these people are contacting me, and Twitter is really 
taking off," as customers tweet to their friends about his food or location.

"The food is wonderful," engineer Bob Leffler of Ferndale said 
Wednesday, taking another bite of his D-Town braised beef short rib taco 
outside Henniges Automotive in Farmington Hills -- Holton's regular 
Wednesday lunch stop.

Leffler's coworker Steve Murree of Macomb Township called the 7-Way 
Smothered Rice and Beans "very good, very fresh." Murree had bought 
food from trucks before, he said, "but it wasn't like this."

That's because dishes from conventional trucks are prepared at a 
commissary and driven to the sales point, whereas Holton makes each 
item on-site when customers place their orders. His classical culinary 
skills, premium ingredients and contemporary recipes make a difference, 
too.

Other items on his small but polished menu include a pulled chicken taco, a marinated avocado taco 
and crispy tortilla chips with salsa.

His shiny black truck, customized by a Miami company, is easy to spot, decorated with orange 
lettering and the mug of a sombrero-wearing English bulldog -- who looks exactly like the Holtons' 
own 2-year-old family pet, Jacques.

DINING OUT
ENTERTAINMENT MAIN: MUSIC | MOVIES | RESTAURANTS | CELEBRITIES | CITY GUIDE

Hilary Holton, her husband, chef Wesley Holton, and Holton's 

father Dan Holton with Jacques the English bulldog at the 

Jacques' Tacos truck. 

A version of this story appears on page 1D of the Wednesday, 

Oct. 6, 2010, print edition of the Detroit Free Press.

RELATED INFORMATION

Jacques' Tacos
www.jacquestacos.com

http://twitter.com/jacquestacos

www.facebook.com/pages/Canton-MI/Jacques-

Tacos/136211289746042

Current stops

Wednesday: 11:45 a.m., Henniges Automotive, 36600 

Corporate Drive, Farmington Hills

Saturday: noon-4 p.m., Shell Station, 13 Mile and 

Woodward, Royal Oak

Sunday: 10 a.m.-2 p.m., Canton Farmers Market, 500 N. 

Ridge Road, Canton

PHOTO GALLERIES

Jacques' Tacos

Get local, breaking news sent to your phone.

Enter your phone number:

Continue

T & C | Privacy | Cancel Alerts

NEWS AUTOS BUSINESS SPORTS ENTERTAINMENT LIFE OPINION OBITUARIES INDEX CLASSIFIEDS JOBS CARS REAL ESTATE RENTALS
DEALS

Page 1 of 3Chef sells gourmet tacos from his restaurant on wheels in metro Detroit | freep.com | Detr...

10/6/2010http://www.freep.com/apps/pbcs.dll/article?AID=/20101006/ENT08/10060372/1002/NLE...



Holton's wife, Hilary, 33, brings the dog on a leash to the food truck stops as often as she can. "He 
loves it," she says, and customers frequently come over and meet him. The chef's dad -- Dan Holton, 
63, of South Lyon -- pitches in as cashier and helper.

The chef, a 1999 Schoolcraft College culinary graduate, had worked for internationally known chef 
Daniel Boulud for eight years in Miami, New York and Las Vegas before Boulud decided to close the 
Vegas restaurant last summer.

For a year before that, though, Holton had been looking for a way to get back home. He couldn't find 
the kind of job he wanted here at a salary he would accept. He finally decided on a food truck as a 
good entrepreneurial opportunity.

He wouldn't say how much the truck cost, except that it was "more than I wanted to pay." He projects 
he'll make more per year than in his previous job and hopes to buy more trucks if things go well.

He says he's willing to be a consultant for the many other people hoping to follow his lead.

The hardest part of getting started is figuring out the requirements not only for county health 
departments, but in each city where the truck stops, he says. Every city has its own fees, applications, 
licenses, background and credit checks, and operating restrictions. "They even want your shoe size," 
Holton jokes.

Even after getting permits, operators still have to find specific locations where it's OK to park and sell 
food. Brick-and-mortar restaurant owners often don't want trucks near them for competitive 
reasons.

"I don't want to go into detail about how to get started," Holton says. "I had to go through so much to 
find out -- that's the biggest challenge, working the bureaucracy.

"If I had known what I know now, my life would have been a lot easier," he adds.

He has regular stops in Royal Oak, Farmington Hills and Canton and hopes to add more cities and 
locations. And he's quickly gaining followers on Facebook and Twitter.

So far, he has no regrets. Customers are loving the food, and the lines are growing longer at every 
stop.

"The best part is working for myself," he says. "I think I know what's best, and I work so hard. I want 
to answer to myself."

Contact SYLVIA RECTOR: 313-222-5026 or

srector@freepress.com

Powered by 4INFO. Standard Messaging Rates or other charges 
apply. To Opt-out text STOP to 4INFO (44636). For more information 
text HELP to 4INFO (44636). Contact your carrier for more details.

PLACE AN AD ON FREEP.COM

MOST POPULAR

MOST POPULAR, MOST COMMENTS & MOST RECOMMENDED

Mitch Albom: One owner 3 teams = new math?1.

Pistons deal could be Detroit game changer2.

Irish coach Brian Kelly sizes up Spartans vs. 
Wolverines

3.

MSU practices with Denard Robinson stand-in4.

Michigan capitalizing on 5-0 start, Denard Robinson 
hype

5.

Michigan-MSU the hottest ticket in college football6.

'Parker Spitzer' appalls critics7.

3 teens held in sexual assault of girl, 14, in Melvindale8.

Drew Sharp: Pistons would get crumbs from pie9.

Ex-coach, 45, pleads no contest to abusing teen boys10.

  

 
COMPLETE COVERAGE

Pistons sale to Ilitch 
could boost Detroit
The Red Wings and Tigers 

owner is negotiating for the 

Palace Sports & Entertainment 

empire.

 
NEW BOOK

'Lost Detroit': Photos 
of Motor City relics
Relics of Detroit’s glamour days 

are the subject of a new book 

available now.

 
MOMSLIKEME.COM

Attention Moms: 
Report to bootcamp!
Need some oomph in your 

workout? Join our online boot-

camp for motivation.

 
DETROIT METROMIX

Pics: 2010 Tiffany 
Hairdresser of the 
Year Awards 
The celebration of artistic 

hairdressing mastery crowns its 

winner from Shelby Twp.

 
MIKE THOMPSON CARTOON

The Ilitch family and 
the Detroit Pistons?
The Detroit Red Wings, the 

Detroit Tigers and the Detroit 

Pistons all under the control of 

the Ilitch family?

Home
Local news
Detroit news
Oakland news
Macomb news
Michigan news
Auto news
Detroit Auto Show
Business
Weather Forecasts

Sports
Lions
Tigers
Red Wings
Pistons
Shock
Wolverines
Spartans
Detroit Marathon
Michigan Outdoors

Entertainment
Music
Movies
Restaurants
Life
Opinion
Mike Thompson
Comics
Win Stuff
Lottery

TOP SECTIONS INDEX

Text alerts
E-mail newsletters
RSS feeds
School closings alerts
Mobile Freep.com site
iPhone site
Follow our Twitter updates
Become a fan on Facebook

UPDATES

 Detroit Classifieds
Jobs: CareerBuilder.com
Cars & Trucks: Cars.com
Rentals: Apartments.com
Homes: Homefinder.com
Home Values
HomeGain.com
Tickets: Concerts & Events
Coupons: ShopLocal.com
Cozi: Family Life. Simplified.

PARTNERS

Home delivery

SEE TODAY'S NEWSPAPER

 
View today's edition of the Free 

Press including all advertising, 

coupons, comics and puzzles.

SITE INDEX

Page 2 of 3Chef sells gourmet tacos from his restaurant on wheels in metro Detroit | freep.com | Detr...

10/6/2010http://www.freep.com/apps/pbcs.dll/article?AID=/20101006/ENT08/10060372/1002/NLE...



Databases
Obituaries
Special Coverage
Columnists
Bloggers

High Schools Photos
Videos
Archives

Contact us
About the Free Press
Detroit Media Partnership
Free Press Bookstore
Photo and Page Reprints

CUSTOMER SERVICE

Detroit Moms Like Me
Detroit Metromix
Detroit High School Sports
Free Press Express on 
First Forecast Mornings
USA Today

Digital Free Press
Subscriber Customer Service
Find a Newsstand
Advertise with us

 

Copyright © 2010 ... Use of this site signifies your agreement to the Terms of Service and Privacy Policy/Your California Privacy Rights, updated March 2009.

Page 3 of 3Chef sells gourmet tacos from his restaurant on wheels in metro Detroit | freep.com | Detr...

10/6/2010http://www.freep.com/apps/pbcs.dll/article?AID=/20101006/ENT08/10060372/1002/NLE...



Thursday, August 4, 2011 | Follow Us:   

  

CARLOS NEILBOCK'S LOW ALTITUDE WIND TURBINE-MAKER FAIRE DETROIT PHOTO BY DAVID LEWINSKI |  SHOW PHOTO 

RELATED IMAGES

 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

Features
What Food Trucks Say About Ferndale
NICOLE RUPERSBURG | THURSDAY, AUGUST 04, 2011 

CRISTINA SHEPPARD-DECIUS- EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR OF THE FERNDALE DDA PHOTO BY DAVID LEWINSKI

Last month in Concentrate, the Ann Arbor-based 

sister publication to Metromode, we looked at the 

burgeoning food truck scene in Ann Arbor, with the 

arrival of the new food truck courtyard Mark's 

Carts. We also looked at Portland, Ore.'s successful 

"pod" model, groups of food trucks located in semi-

permanent positions on privately-owned lots. The 

scene has been so successful that there are now over 

600 food carts operating in Portland, and they 

regularly make national headlines in food, travel, 

and business publications.  

 

This week in Metromode, we look to Ferndale to see 

how feasible a food truck scene might be here, and 

what it means for the greater community. 

 

In terms of urban cred, Ferndale doesn't really have 

any one thing that makes it extraordinary. When 

considering the amenities that typically make a 

community stand out - rich history, impressive 

architecture, unique cultural heritage, major 

museums, exceptional restaurants - the city struggles 

to distinguish itself. And yet, distinguish itself it does. 

 

What makes this inner ring Detroit burb so attractive 

is its energetic commitment to developing a vibrant 

downtown, nurturing local entrepreneurship, 

drawing young professionals, and facilitating the 

creativity of its citizens. The nickname "Fabulous 

GIVE US YOUR EMAIL AND WE 
WILL GIVE YOU OUR WEEKLY 
ONLINE MAGAZINE. FAIR?

  
PRINT PAGE  |  EMAIL PAGE  |  

 

Top 10 Feature 
Stories

If Dallas Can Do It, Why 
Can't Detroit?
In Texas, Dallas is referred to as 

The Big D. And like our D, it's a 

sprawling metropolitan region ringed by 

suburbs and freeways, and deeply in love with 

its cars. We are talking oil country after all. 

Despite that, the city also has a growing light 

rail system with over 70 miles of track. So, why 

them and not us? 

What Food Trucks Say 
About Ferndale 

•

Density Vs. Transit •

Editor's Pick: Maker Faire •

Got Apps? •

SHARETHIS

Home Features News Focus Growing Companies Jobs Places FilterD

Page 1 of 5What Food Trucks Say About Ferndale

8/4/2011http://www.metromodemedia.com/features/ferndalefoodtrucks021...



 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

Ferndale" isn't just a tongue-in-cheek response to the 

city's growing LGBT population. It's become a 

mission statement of sorts. And unlike many local 

governments, the city has political and municipal 

leaders willing to embrace the changes necessary to 

meet those goals.  

 

"Ferndale is easy to work with as far as the city goes," 

says Chris Johnston, owner of popular Ferndale spots 

Woodward Avenue Brewers (WAB), the Emory and 

the Loving Touch. "A lot of other places seem to have 

red tape for no reason... it should be a given to not get 

in the way of people who have a lifelong dream of 

doing something and are willing to put money up to 

do it. [It almost seems like] some cities watch you do 

things the wrong way just to say 'Oh, you did it 

wrong.'"  

 

As if to drive that point home, consider the New 

Theater Project, an Ann Arbor troupe that was 

recently driven out of its small space because of 

zoning issues. Despite a year of performing and 

renovating the space, the city demanded $1,000 to 

apply for an exception hearing or move out. The 

company ended up relocating to Ypsilanti. 

 

Someone says, "I have an idea" and Ferndale 

answers, "Let's make it work." 

 

Recently a brand-new mobile food truck called El 

Guapo made headlines for becoming the first fully-

sanctioned food truck in downtown Detroit. It only 

took 60 trips to City Hall to make it happen.  

 

In Ann Arbor, where the city's mantra is "If it's not 

specifically permitted, it's forbidden",  Mark's Carts 

opened against all municipal odds. Given the 

constraints and requirements, it was the urban 

equivalent of lightning striking. 

 

In contrast, two weeks ago the Ferndale Downtown 

Development Authority was approached with four 

applications for mobile vending permits (two push-

carts and two trucks). Three out of four are already 

operating -- Underdog and Motor City Franks, both 

sidewalk hot dog vendors, and Jacques' Tacos, which 

is renting a space in the privately-owned parking lot 

of Ferndale Radiator. The fourth, another Mexican 

food truck called Taco Mama, is delayed only until an 

agreement on the truck's location can be reached and 

secured. Treat Dreams will also soon be operating an 

ice cream cart. 

 

"We had a vision session at the end of June of what 

people want to see here," explains Cristina Sheppard-

Decius, executive director of the Ferndale DDA. "We 

had a little wish board and had so many people say 'I 

wish we had a mobile taco stand, a mobile hot dog 

VIEW ALL FEATURE STORIES

The Wayne Ripple Effect •

The Best Of Metro Detroit's 
Rude Food 

•

Metro Detroit YPs Get 
Game 

•

Little Vietnam In Madison 
Heights 

•

Pontiac: What Was, What 
Is, What's Next... 

•

 

  

  

Pre-Owned Ford Truck
The low-mileage pre-owned Ford Truck you 
want. Certified.
FordCPO.com
Used Equipment Sale
going on now. We're clearing out our inventory. 
Visit Us Now.
www.frazaforklifts.com
Ford Model Year End Event
The Best Place To Be Is Behind the Wheel of a 
2011 Ford Truck.
www.ThinkFordFirst.com
Catering Truck $5,000 Off
$5,000 off Catering Trucks In Stock Mention 
This Ad to your Salesperson
www.vendingtrucks.com

Page 2 of 5What Food Trucks Say About Ferndale

8/4/2011http://www.metromodemedia.com/features/ferndalefoodtrucks021...



 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

 
ENLARGE

RELATED TAGS

DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT, 
ENTREPRENEURSHIP, FOOD, 
OAKLAND COUNTY  

FERNDALE  

stand…' then a week later we got a bunch of 

applications!"  

 

The myth of competition 

 

As contended in the Concentrate article, food trucks 

increase street excitement and neighborhood vitality, 

essential components for urban growth. Rather than 

creating competition with brick and mortar 

businesses, on-street vending can be used to help 

diversify a downtown area, draw a larger customer 

base (nothing attracts a crowd like a crowd) and 

supplement specific food niches. Sheppard-Decius 

notes that food carts help to build what is known in 

market analysis terms as "good competition" and 

"clustering."  

 

"When you have clusters of, say, clothing stores or 

certain types of restaurants or restaurants in general, 

it actually builds a stronger economy for all those 

businesses in that cluster," she explains. "With 

smaller items like food and gifts, people will go out 

and browse for awhile before they make their 

selection. When you have [these businesses] all 

within one area it draws them there and keeps them 

there longer which means more money spent [in that 

area]. There's a lot of strategy to all of this!" 

 

This should be of some comfort to those businesses 

who have expressed concern (to put it mildly) that 

our downtown areas will be overrun with food trucks 

stealing away jobs and customers. The hand-wringing 

makes for good rhetoric in an "earth is flat" sort of 

way, but the experiences of cities that have embraced 

food cart culture doesn't support the argument.  

 

Consider fast food franchises. How often do you see 

McDonald's, Subway, Jimmy John's and Tao Bell all 

within hailing distance of one another? Consider how 

often you see those very same places open right next 

to each other.  

 

Or to give a more localized example, take the WAB. A 

taco cart serving carnitas for $1.50 each is not going 

to cut into the customer base that is paying $8 for the 

WAB's taco entrees. One is a sit-down full-service 

establishment. The other is a truck. One serves a wide 

selection of hand-crafted beers, wines and spirits. 

The other is a truck. One has live music on weekends. 

The other is a truck. The reason you typically find fast 

food joints clustered together, food courts drawing 

large crowds, and so many food options in Chinatown 

(pick any Chinatown) is because having all of those places in one area creates a 

destination for customers, a reason to go that they wouldn't otherwise have if each 

establishment were an island unto itself. 

 

Brad Dahlhofer, owner of Ferndale's B Nektar Meadery, loves the idea of working 

with food trucks for his annual "Mead Day" celebration. He has to sell food in 

 

 

Page 3 of 5What Food Trucks Say About Ferndale

8/4/2011http://www.metromodemedia.com/features/ferndalefoodtrucks021...



order to serve alcohol, which is a challenge for his business which does not have 

the equipment to prepare food and must bring it in from the outside.  

 

"This could be the future of our Mead Day," he says. "I welcome every one of those 

carts and food trucks to get a hold of me!"  

 

Mobile economics 

 

Let's say you love to cook and dream of one day opening your own restaurant. The 

challenges associated with opening a brick and mortar establishment are 

enormous. Couple that to the financial failure rate of most eateries and it's a 

minor miracle when a local restaurant survives, no less thrives. 

 

But lest you think food trucks have some unfair marketplace advantage, consider 

that the average owner-operator puts in 12 hours of work a day and typically 

employs only one or two additional people. 

 

According to "Food Cartology", a study conducted by Portland's Urban Vitality 

Group, food trucks tend to be family-operated businesses that attract unskilled 

minority workers and mostly generate a modest living wage. No one is opening a 

food truck to become a millionaire. They don't have the advantage of investors, 

and rarely qualify for bank loans.  

 

This low barrier to entry is part of what makes mobile vending such an attractive 

option to aspiring entrepreneurs. While opening a restaurant might cost up to $2 

million before a single customer is served, a mobile vendor needs only the truck 

itself, food and supplies, necessary permits and leased space (if in a permanent 

parked position).  

 

There is a certain "grass is greener" mentality here, as Johnston mentions: lower 

overhead might sound like a dream to a restaurant owner, but challenges such as 

lack of seating, limited menu options, inability to sell alcohol, and the pitfalls of 

Michigan's weather all ensure that there is a pretty low ceiling to how much 

money a food truck can make.  

 

From the city's standpoint, however, every food truck that opens is one more 

locally-owned business generating tax revenue for the city and employing local 

residents with little infrastructure or formal support needed. Five carts may seem 

inconsequential, but on the scale of Portland's 600 mobile vendors that's 

thousands of added jobs and nearly $100,000 in additional tax revenue for the 

city. It adds up. 

 

For Ferndale, it just means more of doing what they do best. 

 

"Ferndale has always been very pro-small business, especially with things a little 

left of center," Johnston notes. "The government itself is very easy on everybody; 

there are rules you have to follow and if you do that, no problem."  

 

The rules governing mobile vending in Ferndale are thus: mobile units must have 

all necessary permits and food handlers' licenses; meet health department 

requirements; can prepare food inside the truck itself (no commercial kitchen 

required); and must relocate every two hours unless renting a permanent space in 

a privately-owned lot. The DDA has said it is amenable to discussing a "pod" 

concept so long as the location has the volume potential and doesn't eat into 

available parking spaces).  

 

Sheppard-Decius explains that the DDA has a motto: "Change is good." And in 

today's shifting and shaky economic climate, change is not only good but 

Page 4 of 5What Food Trucks Say About Ferndale

8/4/2011http://www.metromodemedia.com/features/ferndalefoodtrucks021...



necessary. Food trucks may be a "fad," but they're also an innovative approach to 

a sole proprietorship business that may have as-yet unknown effects on the local 

economy and the public approach to entrepreneurship.  

 

And if anything, they're certainly DIY. Which means they're the perfect fit for 

Ferndale.  

 

Nicole Rupersburg is a freelance writer and popular Metro Detroit food blogger. 

Read her blog at http://www.eatitdetroit.com  

 

 

GIVE US YOUR EMAIL AND WE WILL GIVE YOU OUR WEEKLY ONLINE 
MAGAZINE. FAIR?

  

About metromode | Contact Us  | Privacy Policy  | Terms of Use | RSS Links  | Have a tip for us?  | Locations | RSS 

Facebook social plugin

Add a comment...

Comment using...

Anne Schenk · Ferndale, Michigan
Love my city!

 · Like· Reply · 2 hours ago2

Shelley Curry · Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
I love your city too.
Like· Reply · 2 hours ago

Woodward Avenue Action Association
Ferndale stepping out again ahead of the pack...this would be a really cool concept for 
Woodward too!

 · Like· Reply · 3 hours ago1

Tom Borg · President at Tom Borg Consulting, LLC
The city of Ferndale's leadership team is consciously doing the things that are success 
oriented. It is no accident.. Other cities could learn a thing or two from their example.
Like· Reply · about an hour ago

Page 5 of 5What Food Trucks Say About Ferndale

8/4/2011http://www.metromodemedia.com/features/ferndalefoodtrucks021...



 
 1

 

 

 

MAIN STREET VENDOR GUIDELINES 
 

Outdoor vendors and activities are a desirable element in the animation of Main Street Mall, 

and the Center City Commission encourages such sidewalk merchants.  In order to ensure a 

uniform standard of quality in appearance and operation, certain guidelines have been 

established. These guidelines must be followed for a vendor permit (Main Street Mall 

encroachment permit) to be issued and maintained. 

 

The Center City Commission is authorized to approve or disapprove vendors on Main Street 

Mall according to Volume I, Chapter 7, Article II, Section 7-17 of the Code of Ordinances of 

the City of Memphis.  The Commission is further empowered to establish written rules and 

regulations governing operation of all common mall activities through Volume I, Chapter 7, 

Article IV, and Section 7-77 of the Code.  The mall area as defined by Article IV extends 

from Peabody Place on the south to Exchange Avenue on the north including Court Square 

and Civic Center Plaza. 

 

 

OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES: 

 

1. All merchandise vendors must use official Main Street Mall vendor carts or 

Canopies leasable from the Center City Commission.  Food vendors must supply 

their own carts, which meet the approval of the Memphis and Shelby County 

Health Department, 814 Jefferson Avenue. 

2. Carts/Canopies owned by the Center City Commission must be stored in the 

location designated by the CCC and picked up and returned at the times specified 

in the lease agreement. Food vendors are also required to have a designated storage 

place.  

3. All vendors must have a valid Memphis and Shelby County business license prior 

to opening for business.  

4. All food vendors must have a valid permit from the Memphis-Shelby County 

Health Department and submit their cart design to the CCC prior to a vendor 

permit being issued. The vendor must also purchase a permit from code 

enforcement before the Health Department will issue a permit. 

5. All vendors are responsible for carrying reasonable liability insurance before 

operating.  A certificate of insurance naming the Center City Commission and the 

City of Memphis as additional insureds may be required by the CCC, in addition to 

a signed hold harmless agreement prior to the first day of vendor operations.   

6. Displays or activities that may be detrimental to the public health and welfare will 

not be allowed. 



 
 2

7. All vendors will be located on Main Street Mall in the Court Square area and Civic Center Plaza.  The CCC 

will assign designated locations to any and all operating vendors. Vendors are not allowed to set up in front of 

an operating business without the permission of the business owner. 

8.  Merchandise must be displayed on the vendor cart or inside canopies.  All merchandise must be displayed in a 

professional manner. Vendors are required to keep their products, chairs, tables and equipment inside their 

canopy area. Tables must have appropriate skirting for a professional appearance. Any vendor with 

merchandise not inside their assigned area will be given a written citation. 

9. Merchandise vendors are allowed to sell novelty/souvenir tee shirts and caps and accessories (i.e. ties, scarves, 

and sunglasses, etc.).  At no time shall a Mall vendor sell other clothing, e.g. pants, dresses, shirts, skirts, shoes, 

etc., unless it is handcrafted. 

10. All vendors are responsible for maintaining their spaces in a clean & sanitary condition. They are responsible 

for keeping their immediate areas clean and safe. They also have to make arrangements for trash disposal. 

Vendors are not to deposit their refuse in the Mall trash containers. 

11. Recorded music or noise is not allowed with any vendor stand or cart except by special permit. 

12. No “hawking” (i.e., calling out to passersby) is allowed. 

13. Vendors are not permitted to eat food or drink alcoholic beverages while selling merchandise. 

14. Displays that include literature such as pamphlets or flyers must have the literature secured in such a way that it 

will not become a trash problem on the Mall.  Should such a problem occurs, clean up is the responsibility of 

the vendor. 

15. Organizations applying for a permit to solicit money must submit proof of non-profit status, I.e. State of 

Tennessee tax-exempt number. 

16. Arts and crafts vendors are encouraged; and all merchandise to be sold must be approved by the Center City 

Commission. 

17. A valid Center City Commission Mall Encroachment permit specifying approved merchandise; period of time 

authorized and specific location must be produced on demand if requested by an officer of the Memphis Police 

Department or employee of the Center City Commission (Blue Suede Brigade & Public Safety Officers). A 

CCC vendor permit should be visible at all times. 

18. No vendor vehicles will be allowed on the mall but must be legally parked in other locations. 

19. Street musicians are permitted unless a valid complaint is made regarding the musician/ performance to the 

CCC office.  No sound amplification is allowed. 

20. Sample distribution or product promotion is permitted at a special weekly fee providing no hawking occurs.  

All consumable samples must be pre-packaged or have a Shelby County health permit. 

21. Vendors must notify the CCC if said vendor will not be able to operate for five or more consecutive days. 

22. On days of inclement weather each vendor may decide whether or not to operate.  No refunds will be made for 

days on which a vendor does not operate. 

23. The Center City Commission reserves the right to: 

a. limit the number of vendors/exhibitors on the mall 



 
 3

b. specify the vendor’s location to ensure that high pedestrian traffic routes. Fire lanes and pedestrian 

walkways are not blocked in any way. 

c. refuse to issue a permit to any vendor or organization based on these guidelines 

24. Mall encroachment permits may be revoked at any time with no fees refunded if complaints are received or 

problems occur, or violations are not corrected within five (5) working days after vendor is notified. 

25.  Revocation of permits will be automatic following three (3) violations of design or operational guidelines. 

26.  Final revocations are permanent and future applications will be denied once a vendor’s permit has been 

revoked. 

FEE  SCHEDULE: 

All fees must be paid to the Center City Commission before a permit will be issued.  All fees are payable in advance 

on a minimum weekly basis. 

CCC Merchandise Carts / Canopies 

$50/week 

$200/month 

$1000/6 months 

$2000/year 

Food vendors providing their own approved carts will pay half the above fees. Food carts must be approved by the 

Heath Department. 

Sample distribution or product promotion fee is $250/week. 

No vendor cart or canopy shall be taken from the CCC storage location if appropriate fee has not been paid. 

The CCC reserves the right to waive or reduce any of the above fees (i.e. for non-profit groups performing a public 

service, bona fide religious groups, charitable organization, etc.) 

Other agencies to be contacted for necessary permits are: 

Shelby County Clerks Office (Business License)   Health Department 

150 Washington Avenue      814 Jefferson Avenue 

Memphis, TN 38103      Memphis, TN 38105 

(901) 545-4249       (901) 544-7600 

        (901) 544-7757 

 

Memphis & Shelby County Code Enforcement   City Permits Office 

6465 Mullins Station Road      2714 Union Ave Ext. 

Memphis, TN 38134      Suite 200-A 

(901) 379-4200       Memphis, TN 38112 

(901) 379-4205 fax      (901) 636-6711 
 

 
 



 
 4

 
 
 

MAIN STREET MALL ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 
 

Organization__________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

Representative _________________________________Phone __________________________________ 
       
 
Address ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
City____________________________________State____________Zip___________________________ 
 

 
Driver's License #_____________________Vehicle License #___________________________________ 
  
 
Applicant is granted permission to encroach on the common mall area for the purpose of: 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
From(date)________________to_______________(time)________________to____________________ 
 
Location  ____________________________________________________________________________ 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Authorized Equipment__________________________________________________________________ 
 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
This encroachment is authorized for the above-described activity only.  This permit can be revoked if  
complaints and/or disturbances arise.  Applicant agrees not to deface any mall surfaces in any way or to 
block pedestrian traffic and further agrees to abide by all provisions of  the Main Street Mall Operations Policies 
& Vendor Guidelines. 
 
Any applicant leasing a Center City Commission vendor cart agrees to return the cart in the same condition in 
which it was received, less normal wear and tear.  
 
Applicant does hereby indemnify and hold the Center City Commission and the City of  Memphis harmless 
from any claim, demand, action, suit, and otherwise, of  any type whatsoever, directly or indirectly, resulting or 
alleged to have resulted from the temporary use of  the Main Street Mall as stated above. 
 
For (Organization): _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
By: ___________________________________________ Title: _________________________________ 
 
Date: _______________ Attest: __________________________________________________________ 

Center City Commission 



GET TO KNOW YOUR STREET VENDORS

In New York, street vending has always attracted ambitious, hard-working 
men and women with limited economic options. Successive waves of 
immigrants – Jewish and Italian in a previous era, now Chinese, Bangladeshi, 
Afghan, and Senegalese – have used vending to gain a foothold in their new 
country. Its low startup costs, independence, and flexibility make vending 
a traditional first stop for small business entrepreneurs. 

But vending isn’t an easy way to get ahead. Throughout New York City’s 
history, merchants resentful of “unfair” competition have joined forces with 
city officials concerned with congestion, modernization, and “quality of life” 
to bar vendors from streets and regulate them excessively. These complex 
and shifting laws force vendors back and forth across the border between 
the formal and informal economies, making it difficult for vendors to serve 
the public and make a decent and honest living.   

Here are four basic ways the City can make vending laws work better for 
vendors, their customers, and everyone else.

WAYS TO A BETTER VENDOR WORLD

B U S I N E S S E S  T H AT  S TA R T E D

A S  P U S H C A R T S


B L O O M I N G DA L E ’ S

D ’A G O S T I N O

M A C Y ’ S

R O C - A - F E L L A  R E C O R D S

C O H E N ’ S  FA S H I O N  O P T I C A L

G O L D M A N  S A C H S

W H AT ’ S  A  

B U S I N E S S  

I M P R O V E M E N T  

D I S T R I C T  ( B I D ) ?

First formed in the 1980s, Business 
Improvement Districts (BIDs) are groups 
of merchants and property owners in a 
given area that take on certain city 
responsibilities – like sidewalk mainte-
nance, security, and capital improve-
ments – in exchange for greater control 
over their neighborhoods. BIDs have led 
the fight against vendors, pressing city 
officials for caps and street restrictions, 
or simply placing large planters and other 
obstructions that prevent vendors from 
operating in their neighborhoods.  

AV E R A G E

N YC  V E N D O R

S A L A R Y

$14,000

S TA R T- U P  C O S T S  T O  V E N D

L I C E N S E

F O O D
P E R M I T

$25 - 200

$15 - 200

TA B L E $20 - 200

G A R A G E
R E N TA L  
F O R  C A R T

I N V E N T O R Y

$300 - 500

$500 - 3,000

P E R  M O N T H

T O  S TA R T

P E R  Y E A R

C A R T
$3,000 - 
80,000

V E N D O R  L A N G U A G E S

I N  L O W E R  M A N H AT TA N

B E N G A L I
21%

E N G L I S H
20%

M A N DA R I N
O R

C A N T O N E S E

15%

FA R S I
10%

F U L A N I
8%

A R A B I C
7%

S PA N I S H
6%

O T H E R
5%

T I B E TA N
2%

U R D U
2%

W O L O F
2%

F R E N C H
2%

L I C E N S E  C A P S

D R A S T I C A L LY  

L I M I T  T H E

N U M B E R  

O F  L E G A L

V E N D O R S

G E N E R A L

V E N D O R S

F O O D

V E N D O R S

853

3,000

9,000

3,133

C A P
I M P O S E D
I N  1 9 7 9

O N
WA I T I N G

L I S T

C A P
I M P O S E D
I N  1 9 8 3

L E F T
W I T H O U T

F O R M E R  N YC  V E N D O R S

J E R R Y  S E I N F E L D

J AY- Z

J E A N - M I C H E L  B A S Q U I AT

A M A D O U  D I A L L O

L E V I  S T R A U S S

N U M B E R  O F  L I C E N S E D  N YC  V E N D O R S  T H R O U G H  H I S T O R Y

1 9 3 41 8 9 7 1 9 1 7 1 9 4 5 2 0 0 9

14,000
7,0002,000 1,200

6,000Influx of 
Jewish 
and Italian 
immigrants 
brought Old 
World street 
vending to 
the Lower 
East Side.

Vending remained 
the first rung on 
the economic 
ladder for many 
new arrivals. 
Dozens of new 
pushcart markets 
were established 
in immigrant areas. 

The Great 
Depression 
flooded the 
streets with 
a new kind 
of vendor: the 
native-born 
unemployed. 

As part of a plan 
to “clean up” and 
modernize NYC, the 
City closed most 
pushcart markets 
and reduced the 
number of licenses. 
Many vendors were 
also off at war.

More licenses 
were made 
available, then 
capped. There 
are about 12,000 
vendors, only half 
of whom are able 
to get licenses.

APPLES
5c

The first Midtown 
ban dates back to 
the Depression, when 
thousands of former 
bankers, brokers, 
and other jobless 
residents took to 
Midtown to sell the 
iconic 5-cent apple. 

M I D T O W N  M A N

S E T B A C K S  A N D  S T E P S  F O R WA R D

Mayor Michael Bloomberg (2001-present) is 
responsible for increasing fines from $250 to 
$1000 and for banning vending near the World 
Trade Center. He did, however, sign the Greencarts 
bill in 2008 which grants specialized vending 
permits that allow vendors to sell fruit in low 
income neighborhoods. While limited in scope, it 
is the first increase in vending permits in decades.

L O W E R I N G  T H E  Q U A L I T Y  O F  V E N D O R S ’  L I V E S

Mayor Rudolph Giuliani (1994-2001) cracked down 
on vendors as part of his “quality of life” campaign. 
He enforced street restrictions that Koch and 
Dinkins disregarded. He closed the outdoor bazaar 
on 125th Street in Harlem. He also wrested control 
of street closures from the City Council and formed 
a special committee - the Street Vendor Review 
Panel - with one mission: to close more streets.

1 9 3 9

New York City 
featured an exhibit 
in the World’s Fair 
called “The Life and 
Death of a Pushcart”

1 8 8 0 s

Four Jewish 
peddlers set up 
pushcarts along 
Hester Street in the 
Lower East Side, 
leading to the first 
pushcart market in 
New York City. The 
main Italian market 
evolved on Grand 
Street in lower 
Manhattan, and 
Paddy’s Market in 
Hell’s Kitchen served 
Irish immigrants.  

W H Y  D O

V E N D O R S  V E N D ?

WA N T
T O

H AV E
T O

50%50%

~50,000

T O TA L

N U M B E R  

O F  

T I C K E T S

V E N D O R S  

R E C E I V E

E A C H  

Y E A R

~7,000

N U M B E R  O F  

V E N D O R S  

A R R E S T E D  

E A C H  Y E A R  

O P P O S I T I O N  T O  A N  “ O L D  W O R L D ”  J O B

Mayor Fiorello LaGuardia (1934-1945) was the son of 
immigrants and a champion of the poor, but he thought 
of street vending as an “Old World” form of retailing 
unsuitable for modern New York. He tried to ban outdoor 
vending and moved vendors to indoor markets. Some of 
these markets, like the Essex Street Market, still exist.

G O O D  L U C K  T O  YO U

Vendors lucky enough 
to get a license from 
the City also receive 
a photocopied 
packet meant to 
explain the rules. It 
includes direct 
excerpts from the city 
administrative code 
and a long list of 
streets with the varied 
days and times the 
city prohibits vending 
on each. This is a 
sample page from 
that book.

H A R L E M

M I D T O W N

F I N A N C I A L
D I S T R I C T

M O S T  R E S T R I C T E D  

V E N D I N G  A R E A S

H A R L E M

M I D T O W N

F I N A N C I A L
D I S T R I C T

W H AT  V I O L AT I O N S  

V E N D O R S  G E T  

T I C K E T E D  F O R

PA R K E D  M O R E  T H A N  

1 8  I N C H E S  F R O M  C U R B22%
PA R K E D  O N  A  

R E S T R I C T E D  S T R E E T16%
PA R K E D  L E S S  T H A N  

2 0  F E E T  F R O M  A  

S T O R E F R O N T

15%

H E A LT H  V I O L AT I O N S10%
PA R K E D  O N  A  S I D E WA L K  

L E S S  T H A N  1 2  F E E T  W I D E8%
U N L I C E N S E D8%
L I C E N S E  N O T  V I S I B L E5%
N O  P R I C E S  P O S T E D4%
O T H E R12%

1 9 2 7

Between 10-15% of 
all produce sold in 
New York was sold 
in pushcart markets.

N U M B E R

O F  N YC

V E N D O R S

~12,000

M I X E D  A C T I O N  T O WA R D S  

A  “ N O B L E  P R O F E S S I O N ”

Mayor Edward 
Koch (1978-1989) 
said “peddling is a 
noble profession” 
and proposed a 
bill to open more 
streets to vending 
while restricting the 
number of vendors 
per block through a site lottery, but it 
didn’t pass. While he didn’t enforce 
increased street restrictions, he 
signed Local Law 50 in 1979, capping 
general vendor licenses at 853, the 
number of licenses at the time. It was 
the first hard cap in the city’s history. 

Intro 621 proposed higher 
caps, reduced fines, and more 
street openings in exchange 
for limits on the numbers of 
vendors per block. It died in 
committee.

2 0 0 4

A G E N C I E S  I N V O LV E D

I N  V E N D O R  R E G U L AT I O N

C O N S U M E R  A F FA I R S

H E A LT H  A N D  M E N TA L  
H YG I E N E

S A N I TAT I O N

E N V I R O N M E N TA L  
P R O T E C T I O N

F I N A N C E

PA R K S  A N D  R E C R E AT I O N

T H E  P O L I C E

In 2005, Mayor Michael Bloomberg quadrupled 
the maximum fines for street vendor violations 
from $250 to $1000. A few tickets for parking a 
cart more than 18 inches from the curb or less 
than 20 feet from a storefront can wipe out 
months of earnings. Other businesses pay less 
for more serious violations while having a 
greater ability to pay. Vendors are entry-level 
small business owners who cannot absorb 
fines as a cost of business. The city should 
reduce fines to pre-2005 amounts – a level that 
deters violations but doesn’t put vendors out 
of business. 

3 .  R E D U C E  T H E  F I N E S

Vending regulation is a patchwork of policies 
from the last hundred years that both vendors 
and the police find hard to understand. The 
official rulebook is a series of photocopied and 
unformatted excerpts from the city code – rough 
going, even for native English speakers. As a 
consequence, vendors who want to follow the 
rules often get tickets for violations they don’t 
understand, and police who want to enforce the 
rules often give tickets for violations that don’t 
exist. To increase compliance, the City should 
simplify vendor regulation and create a new 
rulebook that clearly explains the rules in English 
and a few of the many languages vendors speak.

4 .  R E F O R M  
A D M I N I S T R AT I O N  
A N D  E N F O R C E M E N T

It’s virtually impossible to get a vending license 
in New York City because of strict caps, or limits, 
placed on the number of vendors in the 1970s 
and ‘80s. The estimated wait for a general 
vending license is several decades. By setting 
the caps far below vendor supply and public 
demand, the City unintentionally creates a 
thriving and exploitative black market for permits 
and licenses. Legal vendors have to buy licenses 
from illegal middlemen at exorbitant prices. 
Other vendors are driven underground, where 
they’re unlicensed and unregulated. To bring 
vendors into the legal mainstream, the City 
should raise the caps to realistic levels and 
crack down on the black market in licenses 
and permits. 

1 .  L I F T  T H E  C A P S

C O S T  O F  F O O D  V E N D I N G  P E R M I T

F R O M  T H E  C I T Y

( D E P E N D I N G
O N  S E A S O N A L
V S .  F U L L -T E R M ,
T Y P E  O F  C A R T )

O N  T H E  B L A C K  M A R K E T

$15 - 200

$6000 - 8000

2 .  I N C R E A S E  
S T R E E T  A C C E S S

Vendors need foot traffic to survive, but waves 
of street restrictions have forced them farther 
away from the areas of the city that can support 
them. Pressure from merchant associations in 
the 1970s and Business Improvement Districts 
(BIDs) in later decades led to widespread 
restrictions, and Mayor Rudolph Giuliani made 
street restrictions a centerpiece of his “quality 
of life” campaign. Even on open streets, complex 
rules make it difficult to legally vend. The City 
should review street closings according to set 
criteria and rescind restrictions not founded in 
legitimate concerns about safety and street 
congestion. It should also simplify time-of-day 
restrictions to make them easier for vendors to 
understand and follow.

T H E  W I L D  W E B  O F  S T R E E T  R E S T R I C T I O N S

C O M PA R I S O N  O F  F I N E S

$1000
M A X I M U M

F I N E

M A X I M U M

F I N E

V E N D O R
V I O L AT I O N

T I C K E T

$100

S I D E WA L K-
B L O C K I N G  T I C K E T  

F O R  S T O R E S

SALE

?

V E N D O R

C O U R T H O U S E

N E W
L I C E N S E

C I T Y  
L I C E N S I N G

C E N T E R

S TAT E  TA X
A U T H O R I T I E S

L O G
( O P T I O N A L )

C I T Y  TA X
A U T H O R I T I E S

S T E P S  T O  R E N E W  YO U R  L I C E N S E

L I S T E N I N G  T O  H I S  I N N E R  V E N D O R  

As a youth, Mayor 
David Dinkins 
(1990-1993) was an 
unlicensed vendor in 
Harlem. He proposed 
raising the license 
caps and increasing 
vending enforcement. 
After an attempt to

ban vendors from 125th Street in 1993 led 
to large protests, the mayor refrained from 
further restrictions. 

3 5 T H  S T

8
T

H
 A

V
E

7
T

H
 A

V
E

3 4 T H  S T

3 3 R D  S T

M-Su 7am-7pm

M-Su 8-7 M-Sa 8-7

All times

M-Su 8-6

M-Su 8-6

M-Su 8-9,4-6

M-Su 8-7

M-Su 8-7

M-Su 7-7

M
-S

u
 7

-7

M
-S

a
 8

-7

M
-S

a
 8

-1
2

M
-S

a
 6

-1
1

M
-S

a
 6

-1
1

M
-S

a
 8

-1
2

M
-S

a
 8

-6
M

-S
a

 6
-1

1

M
-S

u
 7

-6

A
ll 

ti
m

e
s

M
-S

u
 7

-6

F O O D  V E N D O R S

G E N E R A L  V E N D O R S

F I R S T  A M E N D M E N T  V E N D O R S

V E T E R A N  V E N D O R S

P E R M I T T E D  V E N D I N G  T I M E S

$65
M A X I M U M

F I N E

PA R K I N G
T I C K E T

1925 2005

E T H N I C  B A C KG R O U N D  O F  

V E N D O R S  I N  

L O W E R  M A N H AT TA N

J E W I S H
72%

B A N G L A D E S H I
18%

U . S . - B O R N
17%

C H I N E S E
16%

S E N E G A L E S E
16%

A F G H A N
12%

E G Y P T I A N
5%

O T H E R

12%

C A R R I B E A N
4%

I TA L I A N
22%

G E R M A N ,
R U S S I A N ,
S PA N I S H ,

I R I S H ,
“ N E G R O  

O R
M U L AT T O ”

6%
( A L M O S T  A L L

WA R  V E T E R A N S )

R. I. P.
A

L O V I N G
C A R T

N U M B E R  O F  V E N D O R S

 F O O D  V E N D O R S G E N E R A L  V E N D O R S U N L I C E N S E D  V E N D O R S

C O M M O N  I T E M S  S O L D C O M M O N  I T E M S  S O L D

Only 3,000 2-year food vending permits 
are available. The average wait time to 
receive one is 5-10 years.

Hot dogs, coffee, fruit, ice cream, donuts, 
bagels, burritos, falafel, halal, tamales, 
arepas, dosas, roasted nuts, pretzels

T-shirts, hand bags, watches, scarves, 
gloves, belts, neckties, perfume, 
umbrellas, cell phone accessories

Books, newspapers, CDs, DVDs, 
paintings, photographs, handmade 
crafts and jewelry, items with political 
messages

The City of New York has capped the 
number of general vending licenses at 
853 (excluding veteran vendors). The 
waiting list for licenses has been closed 
since 1992.

Since 1982, vendors who sell expressive 
material are protected by the First 
Amendment and do not need a license. 
There are around 1,000 First Amendment 
vendors. 

Under New York state law, honorably 
discharged U.S. military veterans may 
receive a general vending license 
despite the 853-cap. There were 1704 
veteran vendors on record in 2005. 

N U M B E R  O F  V E N D O R S

F I R S T  A M E N D M E N T  V E N D O R S V E T E R A N  V E N D O R S

C O M M O N  I T E M S  S O L D C O M M O N  I T E M S  S O L D C O M M O N  I T E M S  S O L D

Anything from the previous categories: 
umbrellas, tamales, ice cream, hand 
bags, scarves, watches, perfume, DVDs

N U M B E R  O F  V E N D O R SN U M B E R  O F  V E N D O R S

There are perhaps 6,000 unlicensed vendors 
(nobody really knows). Only half of vendors 
are licensed due to license caps.

N U M B E R  O F  V E N D O R S

BUT WAIT!
T H E R E ’ S

A L S O

D E F I N E S

V E N D O R S

FOUR
T H E  C I T Y

T Y P E S  O F
Anything from the General Vendor 
category: gloves, neckties, cell phone 
accessories, scarves, t-shirts, hand bags, 
watches, belts, perfume, umbrellas 

Too many sources were used to squeeze into this space. For a list of sources please visit The Street Vendor Project website at www.streetvendor.org.

I sell hot dogs and pretzels in front of 2 Lafayette Street. I moved here 
from Bangladesh in 1991 and I have been a street vendor for 17 
years. I love it but this is not easy. I haven’t gotten a ticket in three 
years, but before that I got around 100 tickets. One time I got a ticket 
because my jacket covered my license. And then I have to pay a 
$1000 fine. Do you have $1000 in your pocket? You don’t have it! I 
don’t have it! This is a small business. I sell 20 hot dogs a day. This 
hand makes money and the other hand finishes it very fast. How do 
they think I can give so much?

H I ,  I ’ M  M U N N U  D E WA N

I’m here at 55th Street and I sell handbags. If it’s very cold, I sell scarves and 
gloves. But that job is not easy. My family is in Africa. I send some back to 
them. If I have anything, I send $100, $150, but it’s not enough for my family.  
My wife, my children, my mother is over there. Working outside is very hard. I 
wear jackets, gloves, and three pairs of pants. Sometimes I can only stay out 
here for 4 or 5 hours. I'm going to finish this for this month and see. If it’s not 
good after this month, I'm going to stop and give the city my license back. 
Maybe I could drive a taxi or get a job in a restaurant. I have no other 
possibilities. I don't want to stay at home.

H I ,  I ’ M  M O R  D I O P

I sell paintings in Times Square on 52nd and 7th Ave. I came here from Qingdao, 
China and I’ve lived in the U.S. for six years. I’ve been vending for five. I enjoy 
vending because it allows work when I want, which you can’t do working at a 
restaurant. It is also good for my husband who for health reasons cannot work 
another job. The trouble with the job is the way the police bother me and the tickets 
they give. Sometimes they say my display is too high, sometimes they say I am too 
far from the curb. They say all kinds of things, but I know the law, and I know that 
everything I’m doing is exactly right! When I am not vending I like traveling - San 
Francisco and Las Vegas are two of my favorite spots. [Translated from Mandarin] 

H I ,  I ’ M  X I A N  L I N G  D O N G

On the street they call me Mr. B or Mr. Bert. That’s because I’m 73 and a disabled war 
veteran and they show some respect. I started vending when my printing business went 
bankrupt after 9/11. I sell neckties, perfume, scarves in winter. A lot of people come to New 
York strictly because of the street vendors. They can get things here that they can’t get other 
places. The police don’t know the rules. The book is written in such a way that everybody 
scratches their heads and wonders what they’re talking about. Sometimes the police will 
take your merchandise away, and they move it around - downtown, to Brooklyn, to Queens - 
and no one’s keeping track. It took me three days of constant calling to track down my 
merchandise, and I was shown not guilty. But it took three days and I lost a lot of money.

H I ,  I ’ M  B E R T  S T E I N

I couldn’t find a job when I moved here from Mexico four years ago, so I 
make tamales, arroz con leche, and champurrado like I did in Morelos, 
where I’m from. I start cooking at 2 a.m., and head out at 6 a.m. I’m 
selling in the cold, in the heat, everyday by the hospital at East 149th in 
the Bronx. The doctors and nurses get off the bus or pull over in the car 
to get one. I sell about 60 a day, sometimes 50, sometimes 70, enough to 
send some money to my mother in Morelos. I have a cooler, so the police 
watch me and make me move sometimes. But if I’m not here my clients 
start to call me! [Translated from Spanish] 

H I ,  I ’ M  R A FA E L A  M E N D O Z A  S A N TA N A



7F





NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
RETIREMENT BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, July 26, 2021, the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint one member to serve a three-year term to expire July 26, 2024.   

The retirement board shall consist of seven voting trustees as follows: 
(1) The mayor.
(2) A city commissioner to be selected by the city commission and to serve at the
pleasure of the city commission.
(3) The city manager.
(4) A citizen, who is an elector of the city, and who is not eligible to participate in
the retirement system as a member or retired member, to be appointed by the
mayor by and with the consent of the city commission.
(5) A police member to be elected by the police members.
(6) A fire member to be elected by the fire members.
(7) A general member to be elected by the general members.

In addition, there shall be one nonvoting ex officio retired member/beneficiary 
member to be elected by the retired members and beneficiaries currently receiving 
benefits from the system. 

RETIREMENT BOARD DUTIES 
The retirement board consists of seven members who serve three-year terms without 
compensation.  The retirement board shall hold meetings regularly, at least one in each 
quarter year. The retirement board shall have the power to administer, manage, and 
properly operate the retirement system, and to make effective the applicable provisions of 
the City Code. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the city clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunites.  Applications must be submitted to the city clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, July 21, 2021.  These applications will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on the appointments. 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Elector of the city who is not eligible to 
participate in the retirement system as a 
member or retired member.  

7/21/2021 7/26/2021 

10A1

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunites


 NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
MUSEUM BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, July 26, 2021, the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint two regular members to the Museum Board to serve three-year terms to expire 
July 5, 2024, and one alternate member to serve the remainder of a three-year term to 
expire July 5, 2023.  

Interested parties may submit an application available at the City Clerk's office on or before 
noon on Wednesday, July 21 2021.  These applications will appear in the public agenda 
for the regular meeting at which time the commission will discuss recommendations, and 
may make nominations and vote on appointments.  

Board Duties 
The Museum Board is charged with collecting, arranging, cataloging and preserving 
historical material.  The Board may locate and erect plaques or markers at historic sites, 
buildings or properties in the City of Birmingham with the consent of the owner or owners of 
any such property and subject to the approval of the City Commission with respect to 
properties that, in the opinion of the Board, have historic significance. Further, the Board 
shall have the power to develop, operate and maintain the Allen House as a museum and to 
exercise authority, control and management over the Hunter House and John West Hunter 
Memorial Park. 

NOTE: All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, 
Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Shall be qualified electors of the City. 07/21/2021 07/26/2021 

10A2



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
GREENWOOD CEMETERY ADVISORY BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, July 26, 2021 the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint three regular members to the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board to serve three-
year terms to expire July 26, 2024.   

Members must be chosen from among the citizens of Birmingham and, insofar as 
possible, represent diverse interests, such as persons with family members interred in 
Greenwood Cemetery; owners of burial sites within Greenwood Cemetery intending to be 
interred in Greenwood Cemetery; persons familiar with and interested in the history of 
Birmingham; persons with familiarity and experience in landscape architecture, 
horticulture, law or cemetery or funeral professionals.  

Interested citizens may submit a form available at the City Clerk's Office on or before noon on 
Wednesday, July 21, 2021.  These applications will appear in the public agenda for the 
regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss recommendations, and 
may make nominations and vote on the appointments. 

Committee Duties 
In general, it shall be the duty of the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board to provide 
recommendations to the City Commission on: 

1. Modifications. As to modifications of the rules and regulations governing Greenwood
Cemetery.

2. Capital Improvements.  As to what capital improvements should be made to the
cemetery. Future Demands. As to how to respond to future demands for cemetery
services.

3. Day to Day Administration. The day to day administration of the cemetery shall be
under the direction and control of the City, through the City Manager or his/her
designee.

4. Reports. The Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board shall make and submit to the City
Commission an annual report of the general activities, operation, and condition of the
Greenwood Cemetery for the preceding 12 months. The Greenwood Cemetery
Advisory Board shall, from time to time, as occasion requires, either in the annual
report, or at any time deemed necessary by the Greenwood Cemetery Advisory Board,
advise the City Commission in writing on all matters necessary and proper for and
pertaining to the proper operation of Greenwood Cemetery and any of its activities or
properties.

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 2, Article 
IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

10A3



Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Must be a resident of Birmingham and, insofar as 
possible, represent diverse interests, such as persons 
with family members interred in Greenwood Cemetery; 
owners of burial sites within Greenwood Cemetery 
intending to be interred in Greenwood Cemetery; 
persons familiar with and interested in the history of 
Birmingham; persons with familiarity and experience 
in landscape architecture, horticulture, law or 
cemetery or funeral professionals. 

07/21/2021 07/26/2021 



1 

MEMORANDUM 

Fire Department 

DATE: June 8, 2021 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Paul A. Wells, Fire Chief 

SUBJECT: Return to in-person City Commission and Board meetings 

It is anticipated that current MDHHS orders that restrict indoor capacities to 50% will be lifted on 
July 1st, 2021.  With this change in MDHHS orders, the City will no longer be able to operate 
under the public health emergency declared at the regular March 22nd, 2021 Commission meeting. 
With the emergency declaration expiring, all City Commission and Board members must meet in 
person beginning July 1st, 2021 unless they attend virtually due to active military duty or have a 
medical condition. “Medical condition” means an illness, injury, disability, or health-related 
condition. MCL 15.263(12)(b) 

In order to provide a safe environment for Board members, visitors, and constituents, a hybrid 
in-person/virtual option for the public attendees will be allowed under the amended Open 
Meetings Act (OMA) Public Act 254 of 2020.  While Commission and Board members will meet in 
person, a virtual option will also be available to the public since the OMA regulates the body, not 
the public at large. The virtual option will be provided to help reduce the volume of people inside 
meeting rooms at any given time.  This option will allow individuals and staff members to attend 
and participate in meetings offsite, if they so choose. Additionally, the following precautions and 
procedures will be put into place in the City Commission and conference rooms to ensure a safe 
environment and to adhere to Public Act 254 requirements. 

 According to Public Act 254, “For each member of the public body attending the meeting
remotely, a public announcement at the outset of the meeting by that member, to be
included in the meeting minutes, that the member is in fact attending remotely.”  Unless
on active military duty, a virtual attending member must identify their physical location.

 Signs will be posted at the doors of the Commission and conference rooms to have all
non-vaccinated attendees wear a CDC approved face mask.

 Signs will be posted at the doors of the Commission and conference rooms to remind
attendees not to enter if they are exhibiting any COVID-19 symptoms.

 HVAC controls will be set to circulate air continuously and portable air purifiers will be
placed in the Commission and conference rooms to help clean and circulate room air.

 Signs will be placed on seats in the Commission room to ask participants to maintain social
distance.

 The City Commission room will be cleaned before and after any meeting with an
electrostatic sprayer using an EPA approved solution.

Although COVID-19 numbers are currently low, the possibility of an uptick of cases is likely as 
MDHHS orders are rescinded and variants of COVID-19 are detected.  We will continue to monitor 
the infection rate and make any appropriate changes. 

10E1



10E2













INFORMATION ONLY



Fwd: Woodward Speeding/noise
2 messages

Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org> Tue, May 25, 2021 at 1:08 PM
To: City Commission <city-commission@bhamgov.org>, DepartmentHeads <departmentheads@bhamgov.org>

Ongoing communications and response re enforcement on Woodward.

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Mark Clemence <Mclemence@bhamgov.org>
Date: Tue, May 25, 2021 at 12:31 PM
Subject: Re: Woodward Speeding/noise
To: Brad Host <bhost@bhamgov.org>
Cc: Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org>, Grewe, Scott <Sgrewe@bhamgov.org>, Kucharek, Mary
<Mkucharek@bhlaw.us.com>

Commissioner Host, 
I am glad you take the time to ride with officers and experience what we see and do every day.  We have not been
allowing people to ride because of COVID until now, so hopefully others will come out and ride as well. As you know, I
met with police officials from Bloomfield Township, Bloomfield Hills, the Oakland County Sheriff's Office (OCSO) and the
Michigan State Police (MSP) on April 7, 2021.  Royal Oak PD was not able to attend that day, but I have been in
communication with their chief and he assures me that Royal Oak is approaching the issue the same way Birmingham is
approaching it. At the meeting, we discussed our situation at great length. Like Birmingham, Bloomfield Twp. is commiting
extra police presence to the problem.  Bloomfield Hills is not bringing in additional officers and is addressing it with on-
duty staff.  Both the OCSO and MSP stated that they would do their best to patrol the Woodward corridor when
manpower allowed for it.  The OCSO also stated that they would try and use their traffic unit to assist when timing and
manpower allowed for it. 

According to my staff and from what I have seen working Woodward myself, weather has a huge factor in the number of
cruisers who are out and about.  My command staff feels that they are doing a good job of addressing traffic violations
observed and in addressing noise within the parameters of the law. I agree with their assessment and the service
response we are providing. 
Just a few facts for you to consider:
1. Over the course of this past  weekend, the police department only received one call from the public as it related to
traffic, traffic noise or reckless driving.  The call was received on Friday night at 9:55 PM and the complainant stated that
cars were "Racing in the Dairy Mart parking lot and that they were extremely loud." Officers immediately responded to the
area and did not observe any vehicles racing or any loud noise.
2. Over the course of the weekend, officers issued 56 traffic violations just on Woodward Ave alone.

I am very aware of citizen concerns over Woodward Ave vehicle noise.  You and I have had numerous conversations
about this issue. I have written reports on the issue.  I have sought legal advice on the issue.  I have thoroughly discussed
the issue with the City Attorney to ensure that I am doing everything within the legal limits of the law to address the
concerns. I have networked with the other cities on the Woodward corridor and MSP and the OCSO to coordinate an
organized/joint response.  The fact that the City only received one call from the general community over the entire
weekend and the fact that the police department has been aggressively patrolling Woodward and issuing sound/legal
violations of the motor vehicle code (56 violations) should be reassuring to you as a citizen that the police department
understands the scope of the issue and is addressing it.  When this issue arises with residents you have contact with as a
Commissioner, please feel free to educate them on all that we are doing and as always, please do not hesitate to have
them reach out to me or Commander Grewe for clarification and understanding of the law and our department's response.

Regards,
Mark   

Mark H. Clemence
Chief of Police
Birmingham Police Department INFORMATION ONLY

mailto:Mclemence@bhamgov.org
mailto:bhost@bhamgov.org
mailto:tmarkus@bhamgov.org
mailto:Sgrewe@bhamgov.org
mailto:Mkucharek@bhlaw.us.com


151 Martin St.
Birmingham, MI. 48009
248-530-1875

On Mon, May 24, 2021 at 2:19 PM Brad Host <bhost@bhamgov.org> wrote:
Dear Gentlemen,
Many thanks for allowing me to spend Friday night with Sargeant Romanowski on Woodward 
Avenue. It was the busiest night of the year, and we only had 4 cars out on Woodward. When are we going to ramp it
up to 12/13? Based on my neighbors, last Friday and Saturday were the worst nights this year.
Friday night I saw an Oakland County Sheriff car, and two Township cars (North of Oak), and am wondering if the State
Police might be coming back?
Am told there is a Nextdoor thread about this past weekend, and the tread says we do not care. Can we add money to
the budget to show we care?
Best safe wishes and color me frustrated,
Brad 

-- 
You received this message because you are subscribed to the Google Groups "City Commission" group.
To unsubscribe from this group and stop receiving emails from it, send an email to city-commission+unsubscribe@
bhamgov.org.
To view this discussion on the web visit https://groups.google.com/a/bhamgov.org/d/msgid/city-commission/
CALPLqCi71i1DarmUfOx0qA7huzHJdMnmf7b07hpfAbfyKm-Fiw%40mail.gmail.com.

https://maps.google.com/?q=151+Martin+St.Birmingham,+MI.+48009+(248&entry=gmail&source=g
https://maps.google.com/?q=151+Martin+St.Birmingham,+MI.+48009+(248&entry=gmail&source=g
mailto:bhost@bhamgov.org
mailto:city-commission+unsubscribe@bhamgov.org
https://groups.google.com/a/bhamgov.org/d/msgid/city-commission/CALPLqCi71i1DarmUfOx0qA7huzHJdMnmf7b07hpfAbfyKm-Fiw%40mail.gmail.com?utm_medium=email&utm_source=footer


INFORMATION ONLY





6/4/2021 https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now availa…

https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now available. Get up t… 1/5

DANNY SKLENICKA / MICHELLE WATTERWORTH / AMANDA WARD

June 2, 2021 / Article

Government agencies receiving federal Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (CSLFRF) under the American
Rescue Plan Act, need to carefully consider the best use of these funds. Read our overview of current guidance on eligible
expenditures over the period of performance.

The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), signed into
law in March 2021, provides $350 billion in relief to states and local governments to combat the continued impact of the COVID-
19 pandemic. To offer swift guidance on the use of Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds (CSLFRF), the U.S.
Department of Treasury (Treasury) published the interim final rule (IFR) on May 10, 2021, through an expedited rule-making
process. The IFR outlines the requirements for CSLFRF and went into effect immediately upon issuance, despite the fact that
Treasury is seeking comment on all aspects of the rule. If warranted by public comments, the IFR may subsequently be modified,
but that doesn’t change its current authoritative status.

The IFR establishes a framework for determining the types of programs and services eligible under this program, along with
examples of uses that state and local governments may consider. These uses build on eligible expenditures under the Coronavirus
Relief Fund issued through the CARES Act by recognizing a broad range of additional eligible uses. The objective of CSLFRF is to
help governments support the families, businesses, and communities hardest hit by the COVID-19 public health emergency.

Eligible state, territorial, metropolitan city, county, and tribal governments may request their allocation of CSLFRF through the
Treasury Submission Portal. Eligible local governments classified as nonentitlement units — generally local governments with
populations under 50,000 — will receive this funding through their applicable state government.

With the IFR guidance in mind, we recommend you consider the following as you begin to plan how you’ll use this funding: (1)
eligible uses, (2) ineligible uses, and (3) appropriate planning for spending.

Eligible uses of CSLFRF

The American Rescue Plan Act: Identifying
eligible uses by governments

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.plantemoran.com/get-to-know/people/s/danny-sklenicka
https://www.plantemoran.com/get-to-know/people/w/michelle-watterworth
https://www.plantemoran.com/get-to-know/people/w/amanda-ward
https://www.plantemoran.com/


6/4/2021 https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now availa…

https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now available. Get up t… 2/5

Eligible uses of CSLFRF fall into four broad categories: 

1. Public health & economic impacts

2. Premium pay

3. Revenue loss

4. Investments in water, sewer, or broadband infrastructure

Expenditures qualifying under public health and economic impact can be used to respond to the public health emergency with
respect to COVID-19 or its negative economic impacts, including assistance to households, small businesses, and nonprofits, or aid
to impacted industries such as tourism, travel, and hospitality. Eligible uses in this category must be in response to the disease
itself or the harmful consequences of the economic disruptions resulting from or exacerbated by the COVID-19 public health
emergency.

Expenditures qualifying under public health and economic impact can be used to
respond to the public health emergency with respect to COVID-19 or its negative
economic impacts.

A nonexhaustive list of eligible expenditures identified in the IFR includes: 

COVID-19 mitigation and prevention programs (medical care, testing, contract tracing, purchases of PPE, public
communication efforts)

Behavioral health and substance abuse treatment

Payroll and covered benefits for public health and safety personnel

Addressing disparities in public health outcomes and responding to negative impacts on households and individuals

Qualifying business loans and grants

Rehiring staff for state and local governments

Aid to impacted industries such as tourism, travel, and hospitality

Affordable housing in qualifying areas

Serving the homeless

The IFR also provides flexibility to use CSLFRF payments for programs or services not identified in the nonexhaustive list by
providing considerations for evaluating other potential uses.

Premium pay can be provided to eligible workers performing essential work during the COVID-19 public health emergency. A few
of the more important aspects in the IFR related to premium pay include the following:

The ARPA defines premium pay as an amount up to $13 per hour, in addition to wages or remuneration the worker otherwise
receives.

Premium pay is limited to an aggregate amount not to exceed $25,000 per eligible worker.

Premium pay or grants provided using CSLFRF should prioritize compensation of those lower-income eligible workers who
perform essential duties. 

Premium pay that increases a worker’s total pay above 150% of their residing state’s average annual wage for all occupations or
their residing county’s average annual wage, whichever is higher, must be supported by written justification of how the
premium pay is responsive to individuals performing essential work during the public health emergency.

Providing retrospective premium pay is encouraged, where possible, for work performed since the start of the public health
emergency (Jan. 27, 2020), recognizing that many essential workers haven’t yet received additional compensation for work
conducted over the course of many months.

Essential workers who have already earned premium pay for essential work performed during the COVID-19 public health
emergency remain eligible for additional payments; an essential worker may receive both retrospective premium pay for prior



6/4/2021 https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now availa…

https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now available. Get up t… 3/5

work as well as prospective premium pay for current or ongoing work.

Examples of workers who may qualify for premium pay include:

Staff at nursing homes, hospitals, and home care settings

Workers at farms, food production facilities, grocery stores, and restaurants

Janitors and sanitation workers

Truck drivers, transit staff, and warehouse workers

Public health and safety staff

Childcare workers, educators, and other school staff

Social service and human services staff

Revenue loss should be used to provide government services to the extent of a reduction in revenue due to the COVID-19 public
health emergency. The revenue loss will be measured relative to revenues collected in the most recent full fiscal year prior to the
emergency. The IFR provides further guidance and a methodology for this calculation. Note that recipients should look at general
revenue in the aggregate, rather than on a source-by-source basis. Given that recipients may have experienced offsetting changes
in revenues across sources, this approach is intended to provide a more accurate representation of the effect of the pandemic on
overall revenues.

Investments in infrastructure category allows for a broad range of necessary investments in projects that improve access to clean
drinking water, improve wastewater and stormwater infrastructure systems, and provide access to high-quality broadband service.
Necessary investments include projects that are required to maintain a level of service that, at least, meets applicable health-based
standards, taking into account resilience to climate change, or establishes or improves broadband service to unserved or
underserved populations to reach an adequate level to permit a household to work or attend school, and that are unlikely to be met
with private sources of funds. 

For water and sewer infrastructure, governments have wide latitude to identify investments that are of the highest priority for their
own communities, which may include projects on privately owned infrastructure. The guidance aligns with the wide range of types
or categories of projects that would be eligible to receive financial assistance through the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA)
Clean Water State Revolving Fund or Drinking Water State Revolving Fund.

For water and sewer infrastructure, governments have wide latitude to identify
investments that are of the highest priority for their own communities.

For broadband infrastructure, eligible investments are those designed to provide services meeting adequate speeds and provided
to unserved and underserved households and businesses. The IFR offers governments flexibility to identify the specific locations
within their communities to be served and to otherwise design the project.

Ineligible uses of CSLFRF
The ARPA includes two provisions that define the boundaries of the statute’s eligible uses. First, ARPA prohibits recipients from
using the funds for deposit into a pension fund. A deposit under the Act refers to an extraordinary payment into a pension fund for
the purpose of reducing an accrued, unfunded liability. More specifically, the IFR doesn’t permit CSLFRF to be used to make a
payment into a pension fund if both: (1) the payment reduces a liability incurred prior to the start of the COVID-19 public health
emergency, and (2) the payment occurs outside the recipient’s regular timing for making such payments. It’s important to
understand that a deposit is distinct from a payroll contribution, which occurs when employers make payments into pension funds
on regular intervals, with contribution amounts based on a predetermined percentage of employees’ wages and salaries. Therefore,
if an employee’s wages and salaries are an eligible use of CSLFRF, governments may treat the employee’s covered benefits,
including pension, as an eligible use as well.

ARPA prohibits recipients from using the funds for deposit into a pension fund.



6/4/2021 https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now availa…

https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now available. Get up t… 4/5

Second, state and territories may not use CSLFRF to either directly or indirectly offset a reduction in net tax revenue resulting
from a change in law, regulation, or administrative interpretation during the covered period. Note that this prohibition only
applies to entities covered under Section 602 of ARPA, not entities covered under Section 603. Therefore, local governments aren’t
subject to this offset limitation.

Although not explicit in ARPA, payments from CSLFRF are also subject to preexisting limitations provided in other federal
statutes and regulations. For example, CSLFRF funds may not be used as a source of an entity’s required matching contribution
when other federal programs prohibit the use of federal matching funds. It’s important to check eligibility requirements of other
federal programs before applying CSLFRF.

Finally, the IFR gives additional examples of ineligible uses — expenditures that Treasury believes don’t qualify within any of the
four broad buckets — including contributions to rainy day funds, payments on outstanding debt, and fees or issuance costs of new
debt.

Appropriate planning for the best use of
CSLFRF for your community
Within the four broad categories of eligible uses, you’ll need to determine the best use of the CSLFRF for your government. The
needs for each government will be different, so it’s imperative to quickly begin discussions — both within the walls of your
government and with your constituents — to start planning so you can maximize the use of these funds for your community.

The needs for each government will be different, so it’s imperative to quickly
begin discussions — both within the walls of your government and with your
constituents.

As you engage in robust discussions about spending CSLFRF, here are some other planning considerations to keep in mind:

Period of performance: Before you begin to plan for spending your CSLFRF award, you must first understand the period of
performance, that is, the start of the award and the planned end date. The period of performance or spending period for
eligible expenditures begins March 3, 2021, except for retroactive premium pay, which is discussed above. Funds must be
obligated by Dec. 31, 2024, and those obligated funds must be spent by Dec. 31, 2026.

Double dipping: With the influx of increased federal funding, you’ll likely face the challenge of preventing the same costs
from being charged to multiple funding sources. The first two broad eligible categories have similar eligible uses as the
Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) (CFDA 21.019) and the Coronavirus Emergency Supplemental Funding Program (CESF)
(CFDA 16.034), which could raise the risk that the same cost is charged to multiple grants. It’s important to establish and
ensure adequate cost tracking controls to avoid .

Reporting and recordkeeping requirements: Treasury will establish reporting and recordkeeping requirements,
including enhanced reporting requirements for certain uses. For certain types of expenditures, the IFR also includes public
disclosure requirements. In addition to ensuring the CSLFRF are used on eligible expenditures, it’s also critical for all
governments to identify, track, and adhere to the required reporting and public disclosure requirements.

Funds are subject to single audit: Be aware that these funds are subject to the provisions of the Uniform Guidance (2 CFR
Part 200) and therefore a single audit is required when total expenditures equal or exceed $750,000 in a given fiscal year. If
you’ll have a single audit for the first time or simply would like a refresher, take a look at the following articles:

Documentation: No matter how you choose to use the funding, documentation of any decision-making will be key. The
calculation of revenue loss in particular will likely present its own unique challenges in this regard.

Given that the spending period extends to Dec. 31, 2026, projects eligible for CSLFRF can have a lasting impact on communities.
In some cases, premium pay and public health expenses may provide more immediate relief while water, sewer, and broadband
may provide much-needed services that will benefit constituents well into the future.

double dipping

Top three things to consider if you’ve received COVID-19 funding

COVID-19 funding impact on single audits: Key questions and answers

https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/05/an-influx-of-federal-funds-comes-with-increased-risks-for-nonprofits
https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2020/06/top-three-things-to-consider-if-youve-received-covid-19-funding
https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2020/09/covid19-funding-impact-on-single-audits-key-questions-and-answers


6/4/2021 https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now availa…

https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/insight/2021/06/utm_term=LEARN MORE&utm_campaign=ARPA funding is now available. Get up t… 5/5

   

Alliance |  Careers |  Disclaimers |  Employment Fraud Scheme |  Privacy Policy |  Subscribe |
Site Map

2021 Plante & Moran, PLLC. All rights reserved.

Given that the spending period extends to Dec. 31, 2026, projects eligible for
CSLFRF can have a lasting impact on communities.

As you consider how to spend your ARPA funds and navigate its complexities, we’re here to help. Don’t hesitate to reach out.

RELATED AREAS OF FOCUS

RELATED SERVICES

RELATED INDUSTRIES

COVID-19 resource center

COVID-19 resource center for government

Single Audit

Government

http://twitter.com/plantemoran
http://www.facebook.com/plantemoran
https://www.linkedin.com/company/8795
https://www.instagram.com/plantemoran/
https://www.plantemoran.com/alliance
https://www.plantemoran.com/join-our-team
https://www.plantemoran.com/disclaimer
https://www.plantemoran.com/get-to-know/news/2017/05/plante-moran-warns-career-seekers-of-employment-fraud-scheme
https://www.plantemoran.com/privacy-policy
https://www.plantemoran.com/subscribe
https://www.plantemoran.com/sitemap
https://www.plantemoran.com/how-we-can-help/services/international-services/praxity
https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/areas-of-focus/covid-19-resource-center
https://www.plantemoran.com/explore-our-thinking/areas-of-focus/covid-19-government-resource-center
https://www.plantemoran.com/how-we-can-help/services/audit/single-audit
https://www.plantemoran.com/how-we-can-help/industries/government


              INFORMATION ONLY




	20210614 Agenda Packet 303
	20210614 Agenda Packet 304
	20210614 Agenda Packet 305
	20210614 Agenda Packet 306
	20210614 Agenda Packet 307
	20210614 Agenda Packet 308
	20210614 Agenda Packet 309
	20210614 Agenda Packet 310
	20210614 Agenda Packet 311
	20210614 Agenda Packet 312
	20210614 Agenda Packet 313
	20210614 Agenda Packet 314
	20210614 Agenda Packet 315
	20210614 Agenda Packet 316
	20210614 Agenda Packet 317
	20210614 Agenda Packet 318
	20210614 Agenda Packet 319
	20210614 Agenda Packet 320
	20210614 Agenda Packet 321
	20210614 Agenda Packet 322
	20210614 Agenda Packet 323
	20210614 Agenda Packet 324
	20210614 Agenda Packet 325
	20210614 Agenda Packet 326
	20210614 Agenda Packet 327
	20210614 Agenda Packet 328
	20210614 Agenda Packet 329
	20210614 Agenda Packet 330
	20210614 Agenda Packet 331
	20210614 Agenda Packet 332
	20210614 Agenda Packet 333
	20210614 Agenda Packet 334
	20210614 Agenda Packet 335
	20210614 Agenda Packet 336
	20210614 Agenda Packet 337
	20210614 Agenda Packet 338
	20210614 Agenda Packet 339
	20210614 Agenda Packet 340
	20210614 Agenda Packet 341
	20210614 Agenda Packet 342
	20210614 Agenda Packet 343
	20210614 Agenda Packet 344
	20210614 Agenda Packet 345
	20210614 Agenda Packet 346
	20210614 Agenda Packet 347
	20210614 Agenda Packet 348
	20210614 Agenda Packet 349
	20210614 Agenda Packet 350
	20210614 Agenda Packet 351
	20210614 Agenda Packet 352
	20210614 Agenda Packet 353
	20210614 Agenda Packet 354
	20210614 Agenda Packet 355
	20210614 Agenda Packet 356
	20210614 Agenda Packet 357
	20210614 Agenda Packet 358
	20210614 Agenda Packet 359
	20210614 Agenda Packet 360
	20210614 Agenda Packet 361
	20210614 Agenda Packet 362
	20210614 Agenda Packet 363
	20210614 Agenda Packet 364
	20210614 Agenda Packet 365
	20210614 Agenda Packet 366
	20210614 Agenda Packet 367
	20210614 Agenda Packet 368
	20210614 Agenda Packet 369
	20210614 Agenda Packet 370
	20210614 Agenda Packet 371
	20210614 Agenda Packet 372
	20210614 Agenda Packet 373
	20210614 Agenda Packet 374
	20210614 Agenda Packet 375
	20210614 Agenda Packet 376
	20210614 Agenda Packet 377
	20210614 Agenda Packet 378
	20210614 Agenda Packet 379
	20210614 Agenda Packet 380
	20210614 Agenda Packet 381
	20210614 Agenda Packet 382
	20210614 Agenda Packet 383
	20210614 Agenda Packet 384
	20210614 Agenda Packet 385
	20210614 Agenda Packet 386
	20210614 Agenda Packet 387
	20210614 Agenda Packet 388
	20210614 Agenda Packet 389
	20210614 Agenda Packet 390
	20210614 Agenda Packet 391
	20210614 Agenda Packet 392
	20210614 Agenda Packet 393
	20210614 Agenda Packet 394
	20210614 Agenda Packet 395
	20210614 Agenda Packet 396
	20210614 Agenda Packet 397
	20210614 Agenda Packet 398
	20210614 Agenda Packet 399
	20210614 Agenda Packet 400
	20210614 Agenda Packet 401
	20210614 Agenda Packet 402
	20210614 Agenda Packet 403
	20210614 Agenda Packet 404
	20210614 Agenda Packet 405
	20210614 Agenda Packet 406
	20210614 Agenda Packet 407
	20210614 Agenda Packet 408
	20210614 Agenda Packet 409
	20210614 Agenda Packet 410
	20210614 Agenda Packet 411
	20210614 Agenda Packet 412
	20210614 Agenda Packet 413
	20210614 Agenda Packet 414
	20210614 Agenda Packet 415
	20210614 Agenda Packet 416
	20210614 Agenda Packet 417
	20210614 Agenda Packet 418
	20210614 Agenda Packet 419
	20210614 Agenda Packet 420
	20210614 Agenda Packet 421
	20210614 Agenda Packet 422
	20210614 Agenda Packet 423
	20210614 Agenda Packet 424
	20210614 Agenda Packet 425
	20210614 Agenda Packet 426
	20210614 Agenda Packet 427
	20210614 Agenda Packet 428
	20210614 Agenda Packet 429
	20210614 Agenda Packet 430
	20210614 Agenda Packet 431
	20210614 Agenda Packet 432
	20210614 Agenda Packet 433
	20210614 Agenda Packet 434
	20210614 Agenda Packet 435
	20210614 Agenda Packet 436
	20210614 Agenda Packet 437
	20210614 Agenda Packet 438
	20210614 Agenda Packet 439
	20210614 Agenda Packet 440
	20210614 Agenda Packet 441
	20210614 Agenda Packet 442
	20210614 Agenda Packet 443
	20210614 Agenda Packet 444
	20210614 Agenda Packet 445
	20210614 Agenda Packet 446
	20210614 Agenda Packet 447
	20210614 Agenda Packet 448
	20210614 Agenda Packet 449
	20210614 Agenda Packet 450
	20210614 Agenda Packet 451
	20210614 Agenda Packet 452
	20210614 Agenda Packet 453
	20210614 Agenda Packet 454
	20210614 Agenda Packet 455
	20210614 Agenda Packet 456
	20210614 Agenda Packet 457
	20210614 Agenda Packet 458
	20210614 Agenda Packet 459
	20210614 Agenda Packet 460
	20210614 Agenda Packet 461
	20210614 Agenda Packet 462
	20210614 Agenda Packet 463
	20210614 Agenda Packet 464
	20210614 Agenda Packet 465
	20210614 Agenda Packet 466
	20210614 Agenda Packet 467
	20210614 Agenda Packet 468
	20210614 Agenda Packet 469
	20210614 Agenda Packet 470
	20210614 Agenda Packet 471
	20210614 Agenda Packet 472
	20210614 Agenda Packet 473
	20210614 Agenda Packet 474
	20210614 Agenda Packet 475
	20210614 Agenda Packet 476
	20210614 Agenda Packet 477
	20210614 Agenda Packet 478
	20210614 Agenda Packet 479
	20210614 Agenda Packet 480
	20210614 Agenda Packet 481
	20210614 Agenda Packet 482
	20210614 Agenda Packet 483
	20210614 Agenda Packet 484
	20210614 Agenda Packet 485
	20210614 Agenda Packet 486
	20210614 Agenda Packet 487
	20210614 Agenda Packet 488
	20210614 Agenda Packet 489
	20210614 Agenda Packet 490
	20210614 Agenda Packet 491
	20210614 Agenda Packet 492
	20210614 Agenda Packet 493
	20210614 Agenda Packet 494
	20210614 Agenda Packet 495
	20210614 Agenda Packet 496
	20210614 Agenda Packet 497
	20210614 Agenda Packet 498
	20210614 Agenda Packet 499
	20210614 Agenda Packet 500
	20210614 Agenda Packet 501
	20210614 Agenda Packet 502
	20210614 Agenda Packet 503
	20210614 Agenda Packet 504
	20210614 Agenda Packet 505
	20210614 Agenda Packet 506
	20210614 Agenda Packet 507
	20210614 Agenda Packet 508
	20210614 Agenda Packet 509
	20210614 Agenda Packet 510
	20210614 Agenda Packet 511
	20210614 Agenda Packet 512
	20210614 Agenda Packet 513
	20210614 Agenda Packet 514
	20210614 Agenda Packet 515
	20210614 Agenda Packet 516
	20210614 Agenda Packet 517
	20210614 Agenda Packet 518
	20210614 Agenda Packet 519
	20210614 Agenda Packet 520
	20210614 Agenda Packet 521
	20210614 Agenda Packet 522
	20210614 Agenda Packet 523
	20210614 Agenda Packet 524
	20210614 Agenda Packet 525
	20210614 Agenda Packet 526
	20210614 Agenda Packet 527
	20210614 Agenda Packet 528
	20210614 Agenda Packet 529
	20210614 Agenda Packet 530
	20210614 Agenda Packet 531
	20210614 Agenda Packet 532
	20210614 Agenda Packet 533
	20210614 Agenda Packet 534
	20210614 Agenda Packet 535
	20210614 Agenda Packet 536
	20210614 Agenda Packet 537
	20210614 Agenda Packet 538
	20210614 Agenda Packet 539
	20210614 Agenda Packet 540
	20210614 Agenda Packet 541
	20210614 Agenda Packet 542
	20210614 Agenda Packet 543
	20210614 Agenda Packet 544
	20210614 Agenda Packet 545
	20210614 Agenda Packet 546
	20210614 Agenda Packet 547
	20210614 Agenda Packet 548
	20210614 Agenda Packet 549
	20210614 Agenda Packet 550
	20210614 Agenda Packet 551
	20210614 Agenda Packet 552
	20210614 Agenda Packet 553
	20210614 Agenda Packet 554
	20210614 Agenda Packet 555
	20210614 Agenda Packet 556
	20210614 Agenda Packet 557
	20210614 Agenda Packet 558
	20210614 Agenda Packet 559
	20210614 Agenda Packet 560
	20210614 Agenda Packet 561
	20210614 Agenda Packet 562
	20210614 Agenda Packet 563
	20210614 Agenda Packet 564
	20210614 Agenda Packet 565
	20210614 Agenda Packet 566
	20210614 Agenda Packet 567
	20210614 Agenda Packet 568
	20210614 Agenda Packet 569
	20210614 Agenda Packet 570
	20210614 Agenda Packet 571
	20210614 Agenda Packet 572
	20210614 Agenda Packet 573
	20210614 Agenda Packet 574
	20210614 Agenda Packet 575
	20210614 Agenda Packet 576
	20210614 Agenda Packet 577
	20210614 Agenda Packet 578
	20210614 Agenda Packet 579
	20210614 Agenda Packet 580
	20210614 Agenda Packet 581
	20210614 Agenda Packet 582
	20210614 Agenda Packet 583
	20210614 Agenda Packet 584
	20210614 Agenda Packet 585
	20210614 Agenda Packet 586
	20210614 Agenda Packet 587
	20210614 Agenda Packet 588
	20210614 Agenda Packet 589
	20210614 Agenda Packet 590
	20210614 Agenda Packet 591
	20210614 Agenda Packet 592
	20210614 Agenda Packet 593
	20210614 Agenda Packet 594
	20210614 Agenda Packet 595
	20210614 Agenda Packet 596
	20210614 Agenda Packet 597
	20210614 Agenda Packet 598
	20210614 Agenda Packet 599
	20210614 Agenda Packet 600
	20210614 Agenda Packet 601
	20210614 Agenda Packet 602
	20210614 Agenda Packet 603
	20210614 Agenda Packet 604
	20210614 Agenda Packet 605
	20210614 Agenda Packet 606
	20210614 Agenda Packet 607
	20210614 Agenda Packet 608
	20210614 Agenda Packet 609
	20210614 Agenda Packet 610
	20210614 Agenda Packet 611
	20210614 Agenda Packet 612
	20210614 Agenda Packet 613
	20210614 Agenda Packet 614
	20210614 Agenda Packet 615
	20210614 Agenda Packet 616
	20210614 Agenda Packet 617
	20210614 Agenda Packet 618
	20210614 Agenda Packet 619
	20210614 Agenda Packet 620
	20210614 Agenda Packet 621
	20210614 Agenda Packet 622
	20210614 Agenda Packet 623
	20210614 Agenda Packet 624
	20210614 Agenda Packet 625
	20210614 Agenda Packet 626

	Catalog Number 2: 
	Notes 2: 
	Type 2: 
	Text Field 6: 
	Text Field 7: 
	Text Field 8: 
	Text Field 9: 
	Text Field 10: 
	Text Field 43: 
	Page 1: 

	Text Field 44: 
	Page 1: 

	Text Field 42: 
	Page 1: 

	policy_p2_person: 
	policy_p2_1: Off
	policy_p2_2: Off
	policy_p2_3: Off
	policy_p2_4: Off
	policy_p2_5: Off
	policy_p2_6: Off
	policy_p2_7: Off
	education_p2_person: 
	edu_p2_1: Off
	edu_p2_2: Off
	edu_p2_3: Off
	edu_p2_4: Off
	edu_p2_5: Off
	edu_p2_6: Off
	facility_p2_6_other: 
	policy_p2_8: Off
	policy_p2_9: Off
	facility_p2_person : 
	facility_p2_1: Off
	facility_p2_1a: Off
	facility_p2_1b: Off
	facility_p2_1c: Off
	facility_p2_1d: Off
	facility_p2_1e: Off
	facility_p2_1f: Off
	facility_p2_1g: Off
	facility_p2_1h: Off
	facility_p2_1i: Off
	facility_p2_1j: Off
	facility_p2_1k: Off
	facility_p2_1l: Off
	facility_p2_1m: Off
	facility_p2_1m_other : 
	facility_p2_2: Off
	facility_p2_3: Off
	facility_p2_4: Off
	policy_p3_10: Off
	policy_p3_11: Off
	policy_p3_12: Off
	facility_p3_5: Off
	facility_p3_6: Off
	facility_p3_9: Off
	facility_p3_10: Off
	facility_p3_11: Off
	facility_p3_12: Off
	facility_p3_13: Off
	facility_p3_14: Off
	facility_p3_15: Off
	facility_p3_16: Off
	facility_p3_16_other: 
	facility_p3_7: Off
	facility_p3_8: Off
	policy_p3_13: Off
	policy_p3_14: Off
	policy_p3_14_other: 
	policy_p3_10a : Off
	policy_p3_10b: Off
	policy_p3_10c: Off
	policy_p3_10d: Off
	comm_p4_person: 
	comm_p4_1: Off
	comm_p4_1a: Off
	comm_p4_1b: Off
	comm_p4_1c: Off
	comm_p4_1d: Off
	comm_p4_1d_other: 
	comm_p4_2: Off
	comm_p4_2a: Off
	comm_p4_2b: Off
	comm_p4_2c: Off
	comm_p4_2d : Off
	comm_p4_2d_other: 
	comm_p4_3: Off
	comm_p4_4: Off
	comm_p4_5: Off
	comm_p4_6: Off
	comm_p4_8: Off
	comm_p4_8_other: 
	comm_p4_7: Off
	action_p4_person: 
	action_p4_text: 
	before_p5_person: 
	before_p 5_1: Off
	before_p5_2: Off
	before_p5_2_a: Off
	before_p5_2_b: Off
	before_p5_3: Off
	before_p5_4: Off
	before_p5_5: Off
	before_p5_7: Off
	before_p5_7_other: 
	when_p5_person: 
	when_p5_1: Off
	when_p5_2: Off
	when_p5_3: Off
	when_p5_4: Off
	when_p5_5: Off
	when_p5_6: Off
	when_p5_6_other: 
	after_p5_person: 
	after_p5_1: Off
	after_p5_2: Off
	after_p5_3: Off
	after_p5_4: Off
	after_p5_5: Off
	after_p5_5_other: 
	notes_p5: 
	before_p5_6: Off
	policy_p6_person: 
	policy_p6_1: Off
	policy_p6_2: Off
	policy_p6_3: Off
	policy_p6_4: Off
	policy_p6_5: Off
	policy_p6_6: Off
	policy_p6_7: Off
	policy_p6_8: Off
	policy_p6_9: Off
	facility_p6_person: 
	facillity_p6_1: Off
	facillity_p6_1_a: Off
	facillity_p6_1_c : Off
	facillity_p6_1_d: Off
	facillity_p6_1_e: Off
	facillity_p6_1_f: Off
	facillity_p6_1_h: Off
	facillity_p6_1_i : Off
	facillity_p6_1_j: Off
	facillity_p6_1_k: Off
	facillity_p6_1_m: Off
	facillity_p5_1_j_other: 
	facillity_p6_2: Off
	facillity_p6_2_a: Off
	facillity_p6_2_b: Off
	facillity_p6_2_c: Off
	facillity_p6_2_d: Off
	facillity_p6_2_d_other: 
	facillity_p6_3: Off
	education_p6_person: 
	edu_p6_1: Off
	edu_p6_2: Off
	edu_p6_3: Off
	edu_p6_4: Off
	edu_p6_5: Off
	policy_p6_11: Off
	policy_p6_12: Off
	facillity_p6_1_b: Off
	facillity_p6_1_g: Off
	facillity_p6_1_l: Off
	policy_p7_13: Off
	policy_p7_14: Off
	policy_p7_14_other: 
	facillity_p_4: Off
	facillity_p7_5: Off
	facillity_p7_6: Off
	facillity_p7_7: Off
	facillity_p7_8: Off
	facillity_p7_9: Off
	facillity_p6_10: Off
	facillity_p7_11: Off
	facillity_p7_14: Off
	facillity_p7_14_other: 
	edu_p7_6: Off
	edu_p7_7: Off
	edu_p7_8: Off
	edu_p7_8_other: 
	facillity_p7_12: Off
	facillity_p7_13: Off
	comm_p8_person: 
	comm_p8_1: Off
	comm_p8_1_a: Off
	comm_p8_1_b: Off
	comm_p8_1_c: Off
	comm_p8_1_l: Off
	comm_p8_1_d_other: 
	comm_p8_2: Off
	comm_p8_2_a: Off
	comm_p8_2_b: Off
	comm_p8_2_c: Off
	comm_p7_2_d: Off
	comm_p7_2_d_other: 
	comm_p8_3: Off
	action_p7_person: 
	action_p8_text: 
	comm_p8_5: Off
	comm_p8_6: Off
	comm_p8_7: Off
	comm_p8_8: Off
	comm_p8_9: Off
	comm_p8_9_other: 
	comm_p8_4: Off
	other_p9_person: 
	considerations_p9_person: 
	considerations_p9_text: 
	end_p9_person: 
	end_p9_1: Off
	end_p9_2: Off
	end_p9_3: Off
	end_p9_4: Off
	end_p9_5: Off
	comm_p7_9_other 2: 


